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Action
Declaratory action
KANDIAH V. POORANLESWARY i

For jactitation of marriage — J urisdiciion of Court
KANDIAH V5. POORANESWARY

Possessory action,
FERNANDO ¥s. FERNANDO ..

Agency

See under—PRINCIPAL AND AGENT

Appeal

Right of -appeal — Appeal by person not parly lo
proceedings from order directing motor car to be
returned to alleged owner — Motor car produced by
police on complaint of robbery.

In re NANCY DE SILVA
Appropriation. Act
Does not create rights or impose legal duties.

KARIAPPER ¥s THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE-
SENTATIVES .. e A 8

81

81
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Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Special

Provisions) Act No. 5 of 1960

Ta;fcing over of unaided school.

See under CERTIORARI = s ats

41

Assisted Schoo!s and Training Colleges (Supplemen-

tary Provisions) Act No. 8 of 1961
Taking over of unaided schools.

See under—CERTIORARL .. T

Births and Deaths
See under — REGISTRATION OF BIRTHS AND DEATHS.

Bribery

Alegation of bribery against Member of Parliament
proved — Effect on member of Imposition of Civic
Disabilities (Special Provision) Act No. 14 of 1965.

KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE-
SENTATIVES e = i

Cerfiorari

. Certiorari — Failure to observe the principles of
natural justice — Failure to consider the right question
before making an order — Consequent lack of juris-
diction to make order — Assisted Schools and Training
Colleges (Special Provisions) Act No. 5 of 1960 —
Assisted Schools andTraining Colleges (Supplemen-
tary Provisions) Act No. 8 of 1961,

41

DIGEST

The ‘Appellants ate a body incorporated by the
Maradana Mosque Ordinance (Cap. 347)and charged
with the administration, inter alia, of Zahira College.
Zahira College became on the 30th November 1960
an Unaided School, and as such became subject to
Sections 6and 11 of the Assisted Schools and Training
Colleges (Specizl Provisions) Act No. 5of 1960, and
afterwards to the Assisted Schools and Training
Colleges (Supplementary Provisions) Act No. 8 of
1961. On the | 1th August 1961 respresentations were
made by groups of teachers to the 2nd Respo.ident
that their salaries were not being paid in accordance
with the duty imposed on the Appellants by section
6(i) of Act No. 5 of 1960, and that fact showed that
Appellants were not in a position to satisfy the duty
imposed on them by Section 6(k) of the same Act.
The 2nd Respondent thereupon informed thz Appel-
lants on the 11th August 1961 that it had been brought .
{o his notice that they had contravened section 6(f),
and asked them to show cause why the School shoutd
not be taken over for management by the 2nd Res.
pondent. There was no reference to Section 6(k),
nor were the Appellants informed that a complaint
existed that they were not in a position .to satisfy
the duty imposed by Seciion 6(k).

The Appellants by a letter dated 15th August 1961
showed cause as requested. On the 2ist August 1961
the 2nd Respondent informed the Appellants that the
school had been taken over under Section 11 of Act
No. 5 of 1960 as section 6{¢) of the Act had been

 violated. About two months later, the 1st Respondent

made a broadcast speech, which was later published

as an. official paper by the Government, giving the o5

reasons for the take over of the School. The Miaister
here stated that theletter of the Appellants of the 15th
August 1961 clearly indicated that the appellants had
been disregarding section 6(k),as well as 6(i),and that
under these circumstances he had no alternative but

to order the take over of the School. The Appellants

challenged the validity of the order for the take over’
of the school made on the 21st August 1961 by way -
of dertiorari on a number of grounds, The two
grounds adjudicated on by their Lordships were,

(a) that in imaking the order, the Minister was
acting in a judicial or quasi-judicial capacity
and was under a duty to observe the rules of
natural justice; this he failed to do in that he
did not afford the appellants an opportunity
of answering the charge against them.

(b) that the Minister failed to consider whether
the school ‘‘is being adiinistered in coatra-
vention of any of the provisions of this Act,”
(which were the words of Section 11) which
imply an elenient of continuance in the contra-
vention of the Act as at the date of the order.

Held: That both arguments were entitled to succeed.
With regard to the first argument, the Appellants had
no notice of any complaint in regard to the contraven-
tion of section 6(k), and no opportunity of stating
their case in regard to this. In making the order, it
was established that the Minister was largaly
influenced by this alleged contravention of which the
Appellants had no netice. With regard Lo the second
argument, in making the order the Minister had not
considered the right guestion which was whe'her the
School was presently being administered in contra- .



vention of the Act. The Minister should have concer-
ned himself with the present conduct of the School,
and not the past. Since he had not considered the
rigdht question, he had no jurisdiction to make the
order.

Per Curlam — When an applicant applies to quash
an Order on the ground of a failure of natural justice,
he is not confined to the face of the record. He may
establish his case from other reliable evidence.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MARADANA MOSQUE vs.
MAHMUD & ANOTHER .. s :

Ceylon (Constitution) Order in Council 1946

Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946 —
Ceylon Independence Act 1947 — Scope of the powers
of Ceylon Parliament — Whether nnable to pass laws
contrary to fundamental principles of justice — Colonial
Laws Validity Act, 1865 — Separation of powers —
Whether Acts 1 of 1962 and 31 of 1962 constitute an
interference with the judicial function — Invalidit 'y of
legislation interfering with the judicial function.

The eleven appellants were each convicted of three
offences in respect of an abortive coup d’etat on the
27th January 1962. The trial was before three judges
of the Supreme Court sitting without a jury, and,
apart from the other provisions the criminal law of
Ceylon, was affected by the provisions of the Criminal
Law (Special Provisions} Act No. 1 of 1962, and the
Criminal Law Act No. 31 of 1962, the relevant pro-
visions of which are set out in the opinion of the
Board, The appellants were convicted in April 1965,
and they appealed from their convictions. It was
agreed between the parties at the appeal that if the
legislation referred to above, which affected the mode
of trial, the offences, the admissibility of evidence,
and the sentences, was invalid, the convictions could
not be sustained.

The validity of the convictions was attacked before
the Board on three main grounds. Firstly, that the
Ceylon Parliament was limited by an inability to pass
legislation contrary to the fundamental principles of
justice. Secondly, that the legislation was invalid
inasmuch as it constituted an unjustifiable assumption
of judicial power by the legislature, or an interference
with judicial power, which was outside the competence
of the legislature and inconsistent with the severance
of power between the legislature, the executive and the
Judiciary which the constitution ordains. Thirdly, that
the language of the 1962 Acts did not suffice in the
absence of an express provision to that effect to dep-
rive the appellants of the right to a jury which they
had acquired previous to the passing of these Acts.

Held: (1) That with reference to the first argument,
there was no such restriction on the competence of the
Ceylon legislature. The joint effect of the Ceylon
(Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946, and the Ceylon
Independence Act 1947, was intended to and did have
the result of giving to the Ceylon Parliament the full
legislative powers of a sovereign independent State.

(2) With reference to the secopd argument, that
under the Constitution of Ceylon there existed a
separate power in the judicature which could not be

DIGEST
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usurped or infringed by the executive or the legis-
lature. That the pith and substance of both the Acts
of 1962 referred to above was a legislative plan ex
Post facto to secure the conviction and enhance the
punishment of particular individuals; to legalise their
Imprisonment while awaiting trial; to make admissible
their statements inadmissibly obtained during that
period; to alter the fundamental law of evidence so as
to facilitate their conviction: and to alter ex post facto
the punishment to be imposed on them. That in the
circumstances of the case, it amounted to an inter-
ference with the functions of the Judiciary, and the
legislation was therefore invalid,

Inthecircumstances, no opinion was expressed with
regard to the appellants’ third. argument,

Per The Judicial Committee — () “*These liberating
provisions thus incorporated and enlarged the
enabling terms of the Act of 1865, and it is clear that
the joint effect of the Order-in-Council of 1946 and
the Act of 1947 was intended to and did have the
result of giving to the Ceylon Parliament the full legis-
lative powers of a sovereign independent State, (See
1bralebbe vs. The Queen (1964) A.C. 900).”

(6) “Section 29(1) of the Constitution saysi—
‘Subject to the provisions of this Order Parliament
shall have power to make laws for the peace order
and good government of the Island.’ These words
have habitually been construed in their fullest scope.
Secnop 29(4) provides that Parliament may amend the
Constitution on a two-thirds majority with a certi-
ficate of the Speaker. Their Lordships however cannot
read the words of section 29(1) as entitling Parliament
to pass legislation which usurps the judicial power
of the judicature —e.g, by passing an act of attainder
against some person or instructing a judge to bring
In a verdict of guilty against someone who is being
tried — if in law such usurpation would otherwise be

contrary to the Constitution. There was speculation

during the argument as to what the position would: be
if Parliament sought to procure such a result by first
amending the Constitution by a two-thirds majority.
But such a situation does nof arise here, Inso far as
any Act passed without recourse to section 29(4) of the
Constitution purports to usurp or infringe the judicial
poOwer it is wltra vires.”

LIYANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QuUEEN -

Sections 15(5) 45 and 51(2).

See HaBEAS CorPUS

Sections 3, 13, 24, 28(1), 29 and 55(1)

Doctrine of Ultra vires — “Peace, order and good
government” — Effect of Speaker’s certificate on Bill
— Usurpation of judicial power,

KARIAPPER vs, THE CLERK OF THE House oF REPRE-
SENTATIVES .,

. s s

Ceylon Independence Act, 1947

_ Joint effect of the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-
Council, 1946, and the Ceylon Independence Act, 1947

71
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gives the Ceylon Parliament the full legislative powers
of a sovereign independent State.

LivANAGE & OTHERS 5. THE QUEEN

Ceylon (Parliamentary Elections) Order in Council

¢

Election Petition Inquiry — Right to obrain certified
copies of statements made to police by witnesses for
purposes of cross-examinativn — Law applicable to
strmmomng of witnesses and admissibility of evidence
in Election cases — Civil Courts (Special Provisions)
Act No. 43 of 1961, section 3 —Ceylon (Parliamentary
Elections) Order-in-Council, section T8(A)3).

Held: (1) That there is no legal objection to the
issue of certified copies of statements made to the
police by some of the witnesses listed to testify against
a party o an election petition, when such party needs
them for the purpose of cross-examining these
witnesses.

(2) That the provisions of section 3 of the Civil
Courts (Special Provisions) Act No. 43 of 1961 and
those of section 78(1)(3) of the Ceylon (Parliamentary
Elections) Order-in-Council justify the view that in
matters relating to the summoning of witnesses and
the admissibility of evidence, the law applicable to
civil trials before a District Court should be followed
in a Election Court, rather than the provisions of the
Criminal Procedure Code.

YAsSAPALA & ANOTHER ¥5. MUNASINGHE

Election Petition — Prayer for security and recount
of votes and for declaration that candidate who lost
be declared duly elected — Successful candidate not
made a respondent — Is the petition badly constituted

— Ceylon (Parliamentary Elections) Order-in-Council

1946, Third Schedule, rules 8, 9 and 29 (1),

The petitioner in an ¢lection petition, to which only
the Returning officer had been made respondent
prayed:

(a) for a scrutiny in terms of Section 80(b) of the
Ceylon (Parliamentary Elections) Order-in
Council 1946.

. {(b) for a recount.

(c) for a declaration that if either of these showed
that the petitioner had polled a majority of the
lawful votes, that he be duly elected.

The successful candidate at the election was not
made a party to the petition.

l-!e.d (1) That as the successful candidate who is the
party vitally interested had not been made
a respondent, the petition was badly cons-
tituted and should be dismissed.

(2) Thatanamendment to an election petition
is permitted only within the time allowed
by law and the Court has no power to add
a respondent after this time has lapsed.

48

DIGEST
| {3) That the form of the petition and the rules
sct out in the Third Schedule to the Ceylon
(Parliamentary  Elections)  Order-in-

Council, 1946, also clearly contemplate
that a successful candidate should be made
a respondent when a declaration is sought
that the:candidate who lost should be dec-
lared duly elected.

Per Tambiah, J. — “A clear distinction should be
drawn between a recount and a scrutiny. A recount
is only ordered when there has been no count accor-
ding to law and a scrutiny is granted when as a result
of bribery, impersonation, etc., a winning candidate
has not obtained the votes he is entitled to in law.”

——a
—e
—

RAJAPAKSE 1S, KATHIRAGAMANATHAN .. e 7]
| Citizenship
Different from “‘race”
PasANGNA vs. REGISTRAR GENERAL & ANOTHER 72

Citizenship Act, No. 18 of 1948, sections 12, 12(4)
and 12(6) — Indian citizen marrying Ceylon citizen
by descent — Application for registration as citizen

of Ceylon— Refusal — Unsuccessful appeal to Minister
-— Application for Writ of Certiorari and Mandamus—

Right to question Minister's decision — Applicability
of Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

The petitioner, an Indian citizen came to Ceylon
in November, 1958 and in January, 1959 married a
citizen of Ceylon by descent. In 1960 she applied for
registration as a citizen of Ceylon in terms of Section
12 of the Citizenship Act (Cap. 349).

This application having been disallowed by the
Ministry of Defence and External Affairs, her husband
appealed to the Minister concerned and on 16/4/64
he was informed that the decision was taken after care-
ful consideration for giving effect to Government
policy and that it could not be altered. Thereupon
tﬁl;lil application for Certiorari and Mandamus was

ed.

It was contended in support of the application,

(a) that the failure to state the reasons for the.

Minister’s said refusal was contrary to natural
justice.

(b) that the reason stated viz. that it was giving

effect to Government policy was bad as that

concept was not the same as public interest.

(¢) that the provisions of Section 12(6)- of the
Citizenship Act were unconstitutional,

(d) that the said refusal was in breach of the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

- Ruge
Held: (1) That in view of sub-sections 4 and 6 of
Section 12 of the Citizenship Act it was
not necessary for the Minister to give
reasons for refusing the said application.



(1) That there does not appear to be any con-
flict between the concepts of Government
policy and publicinterest. The policy of the
Goyernment would presumably always be
in accordance with the public interest.

(3) That the Parliament has the power to enact
a Statute which contains a provision such
as Section 12(6).

(4) That while the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights is an instrument of the
highest moral authority, it has no binding
force as it is not a legal instrument forming
part of the Law of Ceylon.

LEELAWATHIE v. MINISTER OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS vt s o :

Civic Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act

Mandamus — Does not lie against servant or agent
of the Crown.

Appropriation Act — Does not create rights or
impose legal duties — Payment of allowances to Mem-
bers of Parliament — No legal duty imposed on Clerk
to the House.

Ceylon Constitution — Doctrine of *ultra vires®® —
Effect of Speaker’s Certificate — **Peace Order and
Good Government™ — Uswrpation of Judicial Power —
Doctrine of amendment by subsequent inconsistent
enactment.

Civic Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act No. 14
of 1965, Sections 5, 1, 10 — Ceylon (Constitution)
Order-in-Council 1946, Sections, 3, 13, 24, 28(1), 29,
55(1) — Appropriation Act No. 7 of 1965, Section 2 —
Criminal Law (Special Provisions) Act No. 10f1962 —
Criminal Law Act No. 31 of 1962 — Bribery Act No.
i;sgf 1954 — Bribery (Amendments) Act No. 40 of

Interpretation of Statutes — Expressio unius ex-
clusio alterius.

The Petitioner was elected to the House of Repre-
sentatives from the Kalmunai Electoral District at the
General Election held in March 1965. Four years pre-
viously, in 1960, a Commission of Inquiry appointed
by the Governor-General under the Commissions of
Inquiry Act to investigate and report upon the pre-
valence of bribery among members of the Legislature
had found that an allegation of bribery made against
the Petitioner was proved. On 16th November 1965,
theImpositionof CivicDisabilities(Special Provisions)
Act — hereinafter referred to as the impugned Act
— received the Royal Assent. The object of this Act
was to impose civic disabilities on the persons against
whom allegations of bribery had been held to have
been proved by the Commission of Inquiry. In terms
of its provisions, the Petitioner was deemed to have
vacated his seat from the date on which the impugned
Act came into operation, and he was further disquali-
fied from beingelected or appointed to the Legislature
for a period of seven years. The Act contained a pro-
vision that wherever necessary, it was to be deemed

AL
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as having amended the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-
in-Council 1946. There was also endorsed on the Bill
when it was presented for the Royal Assent, the
Certificate of the Speaker that two-thirds of the
members of the House of Representatives had voted
in favour of it.

The Petitioner contended that inasmuch as the
Act was wltra vires the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-
in-Council, he continued to be a Member of Parlia-
ment. He therefore applied for a Writ of Mandamus
against the Clerk to the House directing him to
recognise him as the Member for Kalmunai, and pay
him his remuneration and allowances as such member
which had not been paid since the end of October
1965.

It was argued on behalf of the Pctitioner that:—

l. Though the Act purported to deprive the
electors of the Kalmunai Electoral District of
theservices of the Member of Parliament whom
they had chosen and impose on him penalties,
such as vacation of the seat and the disquali-
fication from sitting and voting, no Act of
Parliament, even by a constitutional amend-
ment, could do this;

2, The Act was not a law contemplated by section
29(4) of the Ceylon Constitution because it was
in effect a judgment or an enactment interfering
with judicial power and could not be saved even
by the Speaker’s Certificate;

3. Before this Bill was placed before the House,
the Constitution should have been amended by
aseparate Act whichempowered the Legislature
to exercise judicial power and to pass Bills of
Attainder;

4, The Bill should have been expressly stated to
be a Bill for the amendment or repeal of the
Constitution and not one for the imposition of
civic disabilities,

Held: (¢) That a provision of any Act bearing the
Speaker’s Certificate which is inconsistent
with a term of the Constitution operates
as a repeal by implication.

(b) That an amendment of the Constitution
made in accordance with section 29(4)
becomes a part of the Constitution and is
entitled to all the obedience due to any
other part of the Constitution,

(¢) That it is not open to the Supreme Court to
say that a law passed by two-thirds of the
members of the House of Representatives
does not conduce to peace, order and good
government. The Court is not at liberty to
declare an Act void because it is said to
offend against the spirit of the Constitution
though that spirit is not expressed in words.

(d) That the ex post facto nature of the legis-
lation did not affect its validity.

(¢) That accordingly, the Impoéition of Civie
Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act No,

Vol. LXX
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14 of 1965 is imtra vires the Ceylon
{Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946,

Held farther: (f) That the effect of the Appropriation
Act was not to give a third party a right
to the money authorised by it to be
expended for a particular purpose. Accor-
dingly, there is no legal duty on the Clerk
to the House to pay the Petitioner his
remuneration and allowances.

(g) That the Clerk to the House, when he pays
Members of Parliament their remuneration
aind allowances, acts as a servant or agent
of the Crown, and Mandamus does not
lie against a servant or agent of the Crown
to compel him to perform a duty which he
owes to the Crown.

Per G.P. A, Silva, J. —*“ [ am therefore of the
view that the ex pest facto nature of the legislation
does not affect its validity. The fact that this legislation
touches a matter which belongs to the field of con-
duct of members over which the House has full
control would tend to reduce the offensive nature, if
any, of such legislation.”

KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE~
SENTATIVES i

97

H

Civil Courts (Speeial Provisions) Act No. 43 of 1961 '

Section 3 — Applicability of to Parliamentary
Election trial.

YASAPALA & ANOTHER vs, MUNASINGHE e

Civil Procedure Code

Section 671 — After a partnership is dissolved, a
court cannot appoint a receiver under section 671,

PARANIR UPASINGHAM & ANOTHER v5. RAMANATHAN
CHETTIAR ; .

Section 344 — Sale in execution of morigage—
decree— Application by purchaser to set aside sale on
ground of misrepresentation — Auctioneer made ja
party.

DE SiLva vs. DE Siva & OTHERS

Section 189 — Amendment of error in decree —

Inherent power of Court.

Lucaow vs. DE Siiva

Sections 5, 40 and 217.

KANDIAH 13, POORANESWARY

Revision—Powers of Supreme Court,
See under—CoURTS ORDINANCE

48

10

17

65

81

Colonial Laws Validity Act 1865
See — L1yaNaGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

Constitutional Law
Written Constitution — Separation of powers.

LivaANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN
Is delegation of law making powers to Executive
valid

See HaBeas COrRPUS i

Constitution— Repeal by implication—Act bearing

Speaker’s Certificate — Doctrine of ulrra vires —
“Peace, order and good Government™

KariarrER v. THE CLERK OF THE Housk oF Re-
PRESENTATIVES. . il o e

Contempt of Court

Contempt of Court — Ovrder by Supreme Court on
administrator on 3rd August 1962 to bring all income
of the properties forming the estate of the deceased to
Court — Subsequent order on 1st April 1963 with con-
sent of administrator divecting him to file final accounts
onor before 31st October 1963 and bring into Court the
income from the properties in his charge — Failure to
comply withboth orders — Charge of contempt of Court
— Courts Ordinance, section 47,

The respondent, the eldest son of the deceased, who
died intestate leaving a widow and six children was
granted letters of administration on 9.3.53. The widow
and three of her children successfully moved the
Court for orders revoking the grant of the said letters
and appointing the widow in his place as administra-
trix. The respondent appealed from these orders as
well as from a later order refusing stay of execution,

Pending these appeals, on an application by the res-
pondent to the Supreme Court to stay all testamentary
proceedings in the District Court and for the advance-
ment of the date of hearing of the said appeals, on
3.8.62 the Supreme Court made order directing

(i) a stay of further action in the District Court

(ii) that all the income of the properties forming
the estate of the deceased be brought into Court
to the credit of the testamentary case.

The two appeals came up for hearing on 29.3.63
and on 1.4.63 and after argument the orders appealed
against were set aside after recording an agreement
of Counsel in the following terms:—

“That the appellant who is the present adminis-
trator is directed to file a final account together
with vouchers and receipts on or before 31.10.63,
and that the account be judicially settled thereafter,

71
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Until the final settlement of the accounts the
administrator is directed to bring into Court the
income from the properties in his charge.”

~_On a motion and affidavit by the petitioner — one
of the sons of the deceased — a rule was issued on the
respondent to show cause why the latter should not
be punished for the offence of contempt of Court for
failing to comply with and for disobeying the direc-
tions contained in the said two orders.

It was not denied that no payment as directed by
the Court was made by the respondent since the first
order on 3.8.62. The final accounts were filed only on
28, 5. 64 after obtaining several dates from the District
Judge. The respondent in his affidavit admitted that he
had Rs. 40,000/- in his hands as administrator and
further stated (a) that a sum of Rs. 248,690/- was
spent on litigation and other expenses (b) that Rs.
157,022/71 was lost through thefts by the petitioner
and two other brothers, who were acquitted in crimi-
nal proceedings in that connection.

Held: (1) That the complaint that the respondent is
guilty of contempt of Court in respect of
the order made on 3.8.62 should not be
pursued in view of the fact that the said
order was made pending theappeals which
were disposed of on 1.4.63 on an order
being made of consent; besides the comp-
laint was a stale one, being made two years
after the event.

(2) That the aforesaid order of 1.4.63 contains
a clear direction by the Supreme Court
(not an undertaking between parties which
the respondent hoped he would be'able to
fulfil) to an administrator who is an officer
of Court, disobedience to which amounts
to a comtempt of Court.

(3) That the words “income” from the proper-
. ties” mentionedinthe said consent order of
1.4.63 should be understood to mean the
net income from the properties after
deducting the expenses of production
thereof. They could not mean that the
expenses of duly administering the estate
were to be deducted from the gross in-
come without an order of Court.

(4) That as the respondent had failed to bring
into Court the netincome of the properties,
and as he had failed to deposit in Court
at least the sum of Rs. 40,000/- admittedly
in his hand his conduct amounted to a
wilful disobedience of the direction given
by this Court and therefore he was guilty
of the offence of contempt of Court.

ARUMUGASAMY 15, KATHIRKAMANPILLAL

Contract »
See under — KANDYAN Law
LANDLORD & TENANT
MORTGAGE S
PrINCIPAL & AGENT
FIpEICOMMISSUM .. o
MARRIAGE s i

|
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57
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Conversion
Sece under — PRINCIPAL AND AGENT

Co-owners

A co-owner who demolishes a fence erected by
another co-owner on co-owned preperty cannot be
convicted of the offence of mischief.

PEIRIS vs. THOMAS v =1 i

Court of Criminal Appeal Decisions

Court of Criminal Appeal — Charges of unlawful
assembly, murder and attempted murder, common
intention — Five accused — One accused acquitted —
Effect on convictions of others — No misdirection —
Verdict not unreasonable — Only one eye-witness —
Indivisibility of credibility — Limits of such principle
— Identity of fifth man — Surprise — Whether new
case set up — No misdirection on common intention —
Prosecution failing to call witness — Presumption
drawn under Evidence Ordinance (Cap. 14), section
114(f) — Penal Code, sections 32, 140, 146, 296, 300.

The four appellants and one D. S. were indicted
on 15 charges; charge 1 that they were the members
of an unlawful assemly, the common object of which
was to cause hurt to one E. Charges 2 to 8 were based
on an imputation of vicarious criminal liability for the
acts of one or more members of that unlawful assemb-
ly in killing two persons, C. and T, and attempting
to kill five persons. Charges 9 to 15 were against the
five accused on an imputation that the said acts of
killing or attempts to Kill the said persons were done
in furtherance of the common intention of all.

The Jury by a verdict of five to two found the four
appellants guilty on all the charges, and D.S. the
fifth accused not guilty of any offence.

Apart from the medical evidence, the evidence of
the Government Analyst and Police and other formal
evidence, the case of the Crown rested on the sole
testimony of a single eye-witness, Irene Rodrigo, the
mistress of E. At the trial she purported to identify all
five accused as having taken part in the incident, and
as having had weapons (first four accused, guns, and
the fifth accused, a revolver) in their hands, with the
help of bright electric light at the junction where the
incident was alleged to have taken place at about
11.30 p.m. She also described the entire incident.

In her evidence she stated that while the firing was
going on, the 5th accused D.S. who was a driver
employed under the 2nd accused was seen firing three
or four times shaking the pistol. In her statement to
the Police on the same night (4D3), she had stated
that she *'did not know the name of the person who
fired two or three shots with a pistol ,”” and had des-
cribed that man as a driver who lived at Katubedde
Junction — not even as a driver employed under the
2nd accused.

The trial Tudge directed the Jury as follows:—

“Then gentlemen, in regard to these people she
says that she knew them; she knew them by name:
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but she says in regard to the 5th accused, she knew
the man, but she had forgotten his name. Now there,
gentlemen, comment has been very legitimately made
by the defence, “Well, in that case why did she not say
to the police T know the man, but I have forgotten
His HaBie.. b 3

“If, in view of that discrepancy, you think that it
was not the 5th accused that she referred to at that
time, but some other man, and that later she has
brought in the 5th accused saying that it was Podda’s
(2nd accused’s) driver, then, the benefit of that doubt
must be given to the Sth accused that she has not
correctly identified, and .........if she has made you
to come to the conclusion with certainty that she has
not correctly identified ; 1 mean it is not justa question
of giving the benefit of the doubt to the 5th accused,
but you are certain in your mind then you must see
the impression on your mind in regard to the other
accused: whether you believe her evidence or not.”

The main ground of appeal relied on by counsel or
alt four appellants was that the verdict on the lst to
5th charges (the unlawful assembly charges) was
unreasonable in the light of the acquittal of the fifth
accused.

Held: (1) That in view of this direction, the Jury’s
verdict could fairly be taken as indicating
that they merely entertained a reasonable
doubt about the identity, but not about the

presence, of a fifth man.

The trial Judge further directed the Jury as follows:

“If you think that she did not know the assailants,
ot if you think that she never saw the assailants be-
cause they never got out of the car, then you will
remembet, if that is your opinion, that you are dis-
believing Irene; or in your consideration of the
evidence you come to the conclusion that that is
possible, then there is no use going further, for then
Irenc has told a false story in the box.”

Lateér he said: “If Irene’s evidence has satisfied you
that the 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th and another man were
there, because if you have doubts in view of Irene
earlier havingsaid that it was a manshe knows butshe
did not give the name of the man, or that it was
Podda’s driver — though she said it was a driver — if
that creates a doubt in your mind with regard to the
5th accused, then the 5th accused is out. If you accept
Irene’s evidence that these five people were there, or
that the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th accused and another man
were there, then...... we have to consider the Crown
charge that there was an unlawful assembly.” The
Judge also directed the Jury that Irene had never
swerved from her position that there were five persons.

Held: (2) (a) That the said directions were not unfair
.in the circumstances, since the Crown
had to prove the existence of the unlaw-
ful assembly and the identification of
the members thereof;

(h) That it was not correct to state that the
Judge was setting up a new case alto-
gether from that which the prosecution
alleged and the defence had to meet.

DIGEST

(3) That in returning the verdicts on the first
charges, the Jury were undeniably satisfied
that there were five persons, four of whom
were the four appellants, and in the light of
the directions given by the Judge, it was
not permissible to infer that the Jury con-
sidered Irene’s evidence in respect of her
identification of the Sthaccused to be false,
and the high probability was that they
concluded that shewas merely mistaken .
inregard to the identity of the fifth man.

5

(4) That there was no substance in the argu--
ment that the defence was taken by
surprise by a case of an allegation of un-
lawful assembly composed of the appel-
lantsand an unidentified manbeing sprung
upon it for the first time during the sum-
ming-up of the trial Judge. So long as the
Crown was able to establish the presence of
the requisite number of persons with a
common object, the unlawful assembly was
complete. All that was thereafter necessary
was identification of those proved to be
present.

(5) That whileit was true that a doubt inrespect

of the presence of a named man cannot «

amount to proof beyond reasonable doubt .
of the presence of an unnamed man, the ;

verdict in the light of the directions given:

to the Jury meant that the Jury was quite
satisfied that five persons were present
doing the acts attributed to them by Irenet

(6) That in directing the Jury on the charges
based on common intention, the trial
Judge had placed the burden on the pro-
secution at the highest possible level, and
the verdict showed that the Jury was satis-
fied that the appellants had agreed to kill.
Tll;njc; directions were neither inadequate nor
unfair.

With regard to the omission to call the witness
Gilbert and or other similar witnesses who were
present at the time of the shooting, the trial Judge
directed as follows: “............ you may infer that the
Crown did not call the others because they are not in
position to speak to the assailants. You may infer
that they are witnesses who do not help the prose-
cution case............ 1 think the simple point for you
to decide is this: do you accept the testimony of Ir%;d
If you are doubting the evidence of Irene, then you
must acquit the accused.” Tt was submitted on behalf
of the appellants that the directions to the jury on
this point were wrong and contrary to the presump-
tion that could have been drawn under section 114(f)
of the Evidence Ordinance.

Held: (7) That the direction put the matter as favour-
ably as possible to the defence.

Per T. S. Fernando, J. — “The remark that credibi-
lity of witness could not be treated as divisible came
to be made in the circumstance related above, We do
not think this remark can be the foundation for a
principle that the evidence of a witness must be accep-
ted completely or not at all. Certainly in this country
it is not an uncommon experienee to find in criminal
casés witnesses ‘who, in addition to implicating”a
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person actually seen by them committing a crime,
seek to implicate others who are either members of the
family of that person or enemies of such witness, In
that situation the judge or jurors have to decide for
themselves whether that part of the testimony which
is found to be false taints the whole or whether the
false can safely be separated from the true, In the
instantcase, in the light of the directions given by the
trial judge, it is, in our opinion, not permissible to
infer that the jury considered Irone’s evidence in res-
?elct of her identification of the 5th accused to be
alse.”

APPUHAMY & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

Court of Criminal Appeal — Misdirection — Burden
of proof on prosecution — Evidence of prosecution wit-
nesses uncontradicted by accused — Does this lessen
burden on prosecution — Whether duty cast on aceused
to give evidence on their own behalf in every case —
Evidence Ordinance, sections 101 B

Five accused were charged in this case with being
members of an unlawful assembly and attempting
inter alig to commit murder in prosecution of its
common object. They were also indicted on a charge
of attempted murder on the basis that they commited
afcriﬁﬁnal act in furtherance of the common intention
of all,

In the gourse of his charge, the learned Trial Judge
directed the jury as follows:—

“.orrrne I want you to bear in mind that in view
of the assessment of innocence there js no duty cast
onan accused person to give evidence, He can remain
silent and the prosecution must prove the guilt of
each accused beyond reasonable doubt. But where
you have a case where evidence is given which impli-
cates an accused, then when you come to assess that
evidence you could take into consideration the fact
that there is no evidence given by the accused person
contradicting such evidence. On that question then of
credibility of the prosecution witness you have their
evidence. You have no evidence which contradicts it,
given by the persons whom they accuse, You can take
that into consideration in assessi ng the credibility of
the prosecution witness Ran Banda and Mudiyanse
who say
us."When you come to decide whether you are going
to believe them or not you can ask yourselves of the
fact — the fact that none of the accused gave evi-
dence —and of your assessment of the evidence given
by these 2 persons.”

Held: (1) That the learned trial Judge's direction was
wrong in law. The fact that an accused person elects
not to give evidence does not render the prosecution
evidence more credible on that account and is not
a factor to be taken into consideration in evaluating
such evidence.

(2) That therefore the conviction must be quashed
as it could not be said that the jury were not in-
fluenced by this wrong direction in arriving at a
verdict.

QUEEN »s. ARIYADASA & ANOTHER '

DIGEST

20

‘We saw these people there. They attacked |

33

Criminal Procedure Code, section 121 — Statements
in first information to police not testified ro orally in
Court — Improper admission of hearsay evidence —
Duty of Appeal Court.

At a trial for murder, it transpired that a witness,
M., (who was the wife of the deceased) was the person
who carried the first information to the police of the
injuries caused to her hushand. Her complaint as
recorded by the police was produced in document
form, in terms of section 121 of the Criminal Proce-
dure Code, as part of the case for the Crown .This
complaint was read out to the jury and it contained,
inter alia, the following statement :—

“He (the appellant) has on several occasions
threatened to shoot us.”

M. did not in her evidence refer to any previous
threat either to shoot or injure in any other way.

Held: (1) That the evidence of previous threats by the
appellant to shoot was hearsay and, there-
fore, inadmissible.

(2) That where such evidence is wrongly ad-
mitted the Appzal Court would quash the
conviction unless the Crown was able to
satisfy it that a reasonable jury, had they
been properly directed, would without
doubt have convicted the appellant,

SIRTNIVAL vs. THE QUEEN .. 2 e

Court of Criminal Appeal —Pleaofguilt — Culpable
homiicide and attempt to commit culpable homicide not
armounting 1o murder — Sudden fight — Principles and
basis of punishment — Sentence manifestly excessive
= Criminal Procedure Code, section 325(2).

Inan Assize trial for murder and attempted murder,
before the close of the prosecution case, the trial
Judge accepted on behalf of the three appellants a
plea of guilty of culpable homicide not amounting
to murder and of attempting to commit culpable
homicide not amounting to murder on the basis that
the injuries were inflicted in the course of a sudden
fight. The defence had sugeested that the appellants
went to the assistance of their mother, who had a
number of injuries.

The trial Judge sentenced the first and secend
appellants to 10 years’ and 2 vears’ rigorous imprison-
ment on the two counts, the sentences to run con-
secutively and the third appellant to 10 years rigorous
imprisonment on the first count. In imposing the
sentence, the trial Judge stated that he was satisfied
that the appellants were lying in wait to attack the
deceased when he was retu rning from his brother’s
house, and characterised the causing of the injuries
as a cowardly attack.

Held: (1) That it is contrary to principle to accept a
plea on one basis and to impose punish-
ment on another, and that the basis on
which the plea was accepted must be re-
garded as the basis also of the appropriate
sentence in respect of the offence,

Yol. LXX
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(2) That the sentences imposed in this case were
not only contrary to principle, but also
manifestly excessive.

(3) That the following sentences should be im-
posed:—

(a) First and second appellants — 4 years’
rigorous imprisonment on the first
count and 2 years’ rigorous imprison-
ment on the second count, the sentences
to run concurrently;

(b) Third appellant (who only had a club
which evidentl he had not used) — to
enter into a bond in a sum of Rs. 500/-
with one surety, to be of good behaviour
for 2 years, in terms of section 325(2)
of the Criminal Procedure Code.

QUEEN vs, PREMADASA & OTHERS 5

Courts Ordinance

Sole Testamentary jurisdiction, application for —
Minar heirs — Appointment of “guardian-ad liten”
— Which District Court has jurisdiction — Courts
Ordinance section 69(1).

Held: That where the minor heirs and the property
concerned are within the jurisdiction of the District
Court of Colombo, a petitioner in an application for
conferment of sole testamentary jurisdiction on the
said District Court is entitled under section 69(1) of
the Courts Ordinance to make an application to that
Court for the purpose of appointing a guardian-ad-
litem in respect of such minors.

In re RATHINANAYAGAM

Stay of proceedings — Interlocutory appeal — Re-
fusal by trial judge to stay execution of order allowing

evidence on commission — Power of Supreme Court
to act in revision — Likely delay in disposal of appeal
irrelevant consideration.

Held: (1) That where a District Judge makes orders
refusing an application forstay of proceedings pending
an interlocutory appeal, section 73 of the Courts
Ordinance does not limit in any way the powers of the
Supreme Coutt to revise such an order.

(2) That in an application for stay of proceedings
pending an interlocutory appeal, the likely delay in
the disposal of the appeal is not a factor that can
override the possiblity that the appeal itself, if success-
ful, would be rendered nugatory.

LespAYTHAMBY & OTHERS vs. ATTORNEY GENERAL
& ANOTHER ., 7 o
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Section 47 — See under—CoNTEMPT OF COURT

Seetion 62 — KANDIAH vs. POORANESWARY .. 81

! Criminal Law

Creation of new offence *Ex post facto™ — Validity

LivANAGE & OTHERS ¥s, THE QUEEN

When can Magistrate impose whipping — Maximum
sentence Magistrate can impose when convicting a
person on several counts.

FLocks vs. INSPECTOR OF POLICE, MIRIHANA 39

Charge of theft and retaining stolen property —
Accused cannot be convicted of both charges.

NAGAMUTTU vs. INSPECTOR or PoLICE, GampoLA . 56

Criminal Law Act No. 31 of 1962
Invalid.

LivaANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN ..

See also—KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE
OF REPRESENTATIVES 4 =

Criminal Law (Special Provisions) Act No. 1 of 1962
Invalid.

LivaNaGE & OTHERS vs, THE QUEEN ., 1
See also — KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE

OF REPRESENTATIVES pe . e

Criminal Procedure Code

Sections 298 and 299 — Application of — To main-
tenance proceedings.
Miss: NoNa vs. WEERASURIYA s e
Section 121—S8mriNtyaL vs. THE QUEEN v i3
Section 121-—QUEIEN vs. SELLIAH & ANOTHER 79

Sections 15 and |7 — Sentence of whipping — Wien
can @ Magistrate inflict it — Maximum sentence a
Magistrate is empowered to impose when convicting a
person on several counts.

Held: (1) That a Magistrate has jurisdiction to
inflict a sentence of whipping only in the case of a
person who is under 16 years of age.

(2) Thatunder section 17 of the Criminal Procedure
Code a Magistrate could sentence an accused con-
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victed on several counts to a maximum of only 12
months.

FLOCKS vs. INSPECTOR OF PoLicE, MIR1HANA

Section 338(1) — In re NANCY DE SiLvA

" Decree

Decree, amendment of — Ejectment of tenant from
premises — Wrong assessment number given through
bona fide error — Error partly due to tenant — Writ
returned by Fiscal — Application to amend decree
allowed — Appeal — Civil Procedure Code, section
189 — Inherent powers of court.

Of consent, decree was entered to gject a tenant from
premises No. 25 Old Matale Road, Kandy. When
writ issued, the Fiscal’s Officer reported that the
premises occupied by the tenant was No. 28 and not
No. 25. The Landlord, then realising thatshe had erred
in giving the assessment Numbecr which was partly
due te her being misled by the description given in an
application by the tenant to the Rent Control Board
and the failure to dispute in the answer this obvious
misdescription in the plaint, moved for an amendment
of the decree, which the learned Commissioner
allowed. On an appeal by the tenant —

Held: (1) That the error aforesaid did not fall
witgin the ambit of section 189 of the Civil Procedure
Code.

(2) That thé said crroneous description does not
affect the right of the Landlord to execute the decree
after it was duly amended by correcting the error.,
This'was an appropriate case for the Court to use its
inherent powers to prevent a miscarriage of justice.

LucHow vs. DE SiLva

Declaratory decrees — Declaration that plaintiff not
married to defendant — Action for Jactitation of
marriage — Jwvisdiction of owr Courts in respeel of
such actions — Civil Procedure, Code, sections 217,
40 and 5 — Limits to the jurisdiction of Court to grant
a declaratory order -— Plaintiff’s cause of action in such
a case — Application of maxim “ut magis valeat quam
perear” —- Cowrts Qrdinance, section 62,

The plaintiff sued the defendant for a declaration
that he was not married to the defendant, and for an
order restraining the defendant from boasting that
she was married to the plaintiff. The trial Judge held
on the evidence that the plaintiff and the defendant
were in fact marricd on the 21st Janudry 1959 accor-
ding to the custom applicable to the My kkuwa com-

. munity to which both parties belonged and dismissed
the plaintifl’s action.

65

[

" Declaratory Decrees

Held: (1) That with regard to the action to prevent
the defendant boasting that she was married to the
plaintiff (action for jactitation of marriage), such
an action was one within matrimonial jurisdiction,
and no authority had been cited which might indicate
that the Courts in Holland or Ceylon had entertained
such an action.

(2) That the Court had jurisdiction to grant the
declaration that the plaintifl was an unmarried man.
The cause of action in such a case in terms of section
5 of the Civil Procedure Code was the defendant’s
denial of the plaintifi’s status, which would include
the denial of the rights of the plaintiff arising from
thestatus denied. In grantingsuch a declaration, how-
ever, the Court would not order either party to per-
form conjugal duties.

(3) That the power of a Court to grant adeclaration
would be subject to the following conditions ;—

(@) The Court would have a discretion in deciding
whether to grant the declaration or not,

(b) The declaratory jurisdiction could be invoked
for the determination of legal disputes, but not
for disputes of a moral, social or political
character.

(c) Theoretical issues could not be determined in
such an action.

(d) The declaratory jurisdiction could not be in-
voked to determine the lawfulness of a pro-
posed action, or the rights which might be
claimed or denied if and when a person takes
such proposed action.

(¢) Norcould it be invoked if the declaration could
have no practical consequences,

(4) That none of these limitations, however, could
be invoked in the present case to defeat the plaintiff’s
action. The Court therefore had Jurisdiction to grant
the declaration asked for,

(5) That on the evidence the trial judge had erred
in finding that the parties had on the 2ist January
1959 gone through a ceremony of marriage according
to the custom applicable to the parties, or that the
plaintiff had intended to contract a marriage with the
defendant on that day,

KANDIAH vs. POORANESWARY

See under — DECREE

Election Petitions

See under — CEYLON (PARLIAMENTARY ELEcTIONS)
OrpER 1IN CoUNncIL

Vel. LXX
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Evidence

Evidence — Charges of obstruction of public servants
and escape front lawful custody — Proof of lawful dis-
charge of duties — Investigation conseguent 1o first
complaint — Oral evidence inadmissible — First comp-
laint must be produced — Omission fatal to convictions
— Criminal Procedure Code, section 121 — Penal
Code, sections 183 and 2204 — Evidence Ordinance,
section 91.

The first appellant was charged with offences, infer
alia, under Sections 183 and 220A of the Penal Code,
and the second appellant with two offences under the
said sections. All these charges depended on proof
that the police officers who received injuries were
acting in the lawful discharge of their publicfu nctions,
The prosecution alleged that the injuries were received
when they went to investigate into a complaint made
by a man named H to one of the police officers.

Held: That no evidence of the nature of the comp-
Jaint made by H could have been led in Court other
than through the document itself, that is, the comp-
laint made in terms of section 121(1) of the Criminal
Procedure Code, and that oral evidence of the
contents of the document was wrongly admitted in
the absence of the document and was fatal to the
convictions of those charges.

QUEEN v¥s. SELLIAH & ANOTHER 25

Evidence Ordinance

Section 114(f) — AppunaMy & OTHERS vs, THE
QUEEN e 14 ! e

Sections 101 and 155 — QUEEN vs. ARIYADASA &
ANOTHER 4G 5 o e

Section 91 — QUEEN vs. SELLIAH & ANOTHER

Execise Ordinance

Charge of possessing fermented toddy against hus-
band and wife — Acquittal of wife and conviction of
h:t::?and — Absence of husband from home at time of
raid,

Held: That the mere fact that a husband is the
chief occupant of the house, without any other evi-
dence against him, cannot support the conviction of

the husband for the possession of an excisable article.

PIvASENA, S. 1. POLICE vs, FERNANDO .. vie

Execution

Stay of proceedings — Refusal by trial judge —
Powers of Supreme Court to act ifl revision.

LEBBAYTHAMBY & OTHERS

¥s. ATTORNEY-GENERAL
& ANOTHER .. i

19

20

33
)

71
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Fideicommissum
Fideicommissum — Deed of Gift — Prohibition
avainst alienation — Clause vesting the property in
heirs executors adniinistrators and assigns of the donees
— Validity of fideicommissum.

By deed P 3, E gifted to thethree children of his
son M certain interests in a land subject to a life-
interest reserved for M and his wife.

After prohibiting the donees from alienating, the
deed proceeded to state that “the four portions of Jand
hereby gifted shall vest in the above named three child-
ren of my said son and .in the children that may be
born to him in the future and their heirs, executors
administrators and assigns................. )

Held: That the deed P 3 did not create a fideicom-
missum as the persons who were to take in the event
of a breach of the prohibition were not clearly
designated.

RAIAPAKSE EsTaTES Co. LTD. vs. DULSIN & OTHERS . .

Habeas Corpus

Public Security Ordinance (Cap. 40), section 5 —
Validity of Ordinance and Regularions made thereunder
— Whether delegation of law naking powers 1o
Executive valid—Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Coun-
cil (Cap. 378), sections 15(5), 45, 51(2) — Emeirgency
(Miscellaneous Provisions and Powers) Regulations —
Powers of detention and right to regulate conditions
under which persons detained given by Regulation 26
— Whether duties other than those referred to in sec-
tion 51(2) of Constitution can be imposed on a
Permanent Secretary to a Ministry.

Writs of Habeas Corpus and Mandamus — Appli-
cation by brother of person detained under Emergency
Regulations — Whether petitioner has status to make
an application for @ Mandamus — Powers of Court to
issue Writ of Habeas Corpus during state of Public
Emergency — Regulation 26(1) of Emergency (Mis-
cellancous Provisions and Powers) Regulations.

The petitioner filed this application for writs of
Habeas Corpus and Mandamus, praying for the
custody of his brother the 3rd respondent, a captain
in the Regular Army, who had been arrested on orders
issued by the 1st respondent under regulation 26(1)
of the Emergency (Miscellancous Provisions and
Powers) Regulations, made by the Governor General
under section 5 of the Public Security Ordinance. It
was contended for the petitioner (@) that the Public
Security Ordinance under which the Governor Gene-
ral had purported to make the regulations relevant
to the 3rd respondent’s arrest and detention was
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ultra vires the Constitution; (5) that the regulations in
question imposed duties upon the Permanent Secre-
tary to the Ministry of Defence and External Affairs
which were not contemplated in and in conflict with
duties imposed by section 51(2) of the Constitution;
(c) that a mandamus lay against the 2nd respondent
Chairman of the Advisory Committee appointed
under regulation 26(4) to inquire into the objections
filed by the 3rd respondent; and (d) that the 3rd res-
pondent had been denied the rights and privileges to
which he was entitled under the Prisons Ordinance
(Cap. 54).

Held: (i) That the Public Security Ordinance was
intra vires the Constitution and so also the
Regulations made thereunder, for the
reason that Parliament by virtue of sec-
tions 2(3) and 5(3) of that Ordinance and
15(3) of the Constitution retained its
power and control over the Executive even
during a State of Emergency when regu-
lations such as those under the Public
Security Ordinance can be made by the
Executive.

(ii) That the power of the Court to issue a
writ of habeas corpus was, during a state
of emergency taken away by Regulation
26(10).

(iii) That section 51(2) of the Constitution
empowering each Permanent Secretary
to exercise supervision over the depart-
ment or departments in the charge of his
Minister is not exhaustive of the powers
and duties which may be conferred on a
Permanent Secretary, and additional
powers not in conflict with section 51(2)
may be conferred.

(iv) That no mandamus would lie because there
is nothing to suggest that the 2nd respon-
dent has failed or will fail to do his duty
at the appropriate time, apart from the
fact that as no duty was owed the peti-
tioner by the 2nd respondent, the
petitioner had no status to make the
application.

(v) That regulation 26(3) empowers the Inspec-
tor General of Police with the sole
authority to issue instructions in regard to
the conditions under which prisoners are
held in detention and it is not for the
Courts to adjudicate upon such measures
as are taken under regulation 26(3).

Per Sansoni, C.J.—"'Onc thing is essential for the
validity of a delegation of its law making power, and
that is that it should not abandon its legal authority
or its control over the Executive Authority to which
it has delegated that power. It must not try to trans-
form the Executive into a parallel legislature and
abdicate its function. There is nothing in the Public
Security Ordinance to indicate that Parliament has
adbicated its legislative authority.”

WEERASINGHE vs. PERMANENT SECRETARY, MINISTRY
OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS & ANOTHER

Custody of Minor — To whai extent is a child’s
consent relevant in an application for custody.

FERNANDO vs. FERNANDO & OTHER

Income Tax
Income Tax Ordinance, section 85(1) — Tux in
default deemed to be a fine — Not obligatory on Magis-
trafe fo impose term of imprisonment in default of
payment of fine — Criminal Procedure Code, section
312(1).

Held: (1) That it is not obligatory on a Magistrate,
in every case where tax in default is deemed by
section 85(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance to be a
fine, to order a term of imprisonment in default of
payment of fine.

(2) That although no appeal lies against an order
made in pursuance of section 85(1) of the Ordinance,
it is open to the Supreme Court to alter such order
in the exercise of its power of revision.

_Per T. S, Fernando, J. — (4) “No question of con-
victmg a person arises where proceedings under

section 85 of the Ordinance have been taken, Where
sufficient cause has not been shown, the tax in default
shall be deemed to be a fine imposed by a sentence
of the Magistrate on the defaulter for an offence
punishable with fine only or not punishable with
imprisonment.”

(B) “This Court does not ordinarily interfere with
the exercise of a judicial discretion. But the learned
Magistrate, in making the order sought to be revised
here, acted on the assumption that he was obliged,
at the time of imposition of the fine, also to make an
order in respect of imprisonment in default of pay-
ment, De Jong's case had been cited before him, and
Weerasooriya J. had there made the observation that
the object of the proceedings under section 85(1)
would be defeated if the Magistrate merely makes an
order that the defaulter should pay the tax as a fine.
The learned Magistrate, therefore acted in the instant

Vol. LXX
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case as if he had no discretion in regard to the question

whether imprisonment in default of payment should
be ordered or not.”

PererA ys. COMMISSIONER OF INLAND REVENUE

.

Indian and Pakistani Residence (Citizenship) Act

Section 6(2) (iv) (a) and 18 —— Effect of — Distinetion
between ‘race’ and ‘eitizenship.

PAsANGNA vs. REGISTRAR GENFRAL & ANOTHER 27

Interpretation of Statutes
See under — STATUTES,

Judiciary
Is free from legislative or Executive control.

LivaNAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

Nomination by Minister of Justice — Invalid.

LIvANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEFN

Jurisdiction
Of Court in respect of action for jactitation of
marriage — Limits to jurisdiction of courfs to grant
declaratory order,

KANDIAH v5. POORANESWARY 81

Kandyan Law

Kandyan law — Deed of gift — Use of words “as a
gift irrevocable” — Revocability of such deed of gift
— Kandyvan Law Declaration and Amendment Ovdin-
nance (Cap. 59}, section 5(1).

A donor gifted lands to his son subject to a fidei-
commissum. I was submitied on behalf of the appe-
llant that the expression “‘as a gift irrevocable™ used
in the deed was merely declaratory of the kind of gift
the donor was making, but did not amount to an
express renunciation ofthe statutory right to revoke
vested on him by section 5(1){d) of the Kandyan Law
Declaration and Amendment Ordinance. It was
further subinitted that the case of Punchi Banda vs.
Nagasena (64 N.L.R, 548) was wrongly decided and
should not be followed on this point.

Held: That the use of the words “as a gifi irreve-
cable” was sufficient to indicate the gift was meant

to be irrevocable and to bring it within section 5(1)(d).
DuLLEWE vs, DULLEWE & ANOTHER 55

DIGEST

Kandyan Law Declaration & Amendment Ordinance

See under — KANDYAN Law

Landlord and Tenant
Landiord and tenant — Notice to quii — Validity.

THE tenancy in this case was a monthly tenancy
and had commenced cn 1st February 1964. Only one
calendar month’s notice was required by law. The
notice given by the landlord was dated 20th August
1964 and requested the tenant to vacate “within a
period of three months from the date hereof.”

It was submitted on behalf of the defendant-
appellant that although the notice gave the tenant
three months’ time, nevertheless it was not a valid
notice as it did not run concurrently with a term of
the letting and hiring and expire at the end of such
a term. The issue as] to whether the notice was valid
had been raised by plaintiff at the trial and had been
answered in the plaintiff’s favour.

Held: That although the notice gave the tenant
three month’s time to vacate the premises, it did not
terminate the tenancy at the end of any calendar
month of the tenancy, The notice was therefore not
valid and the plaintiff’s action must fail.

SOORIYAARATCHI v§. KULARATNE 16
Legal Maxims
Ut magis valeat quam pereat.

KANDIAH vs, POORANESWARY 97

Expressio unius exclusio alterius.

KARIAPPER vs. THE CLIRK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE~
SENTATIVES = e

Legislation
Validity of — Empowering Minister of Justice to
nominate Judges of the Supreme Court,

LivaNaGe & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN ..

Parliament of Ceylon has full legislative powers af
a sovereign independent state.

.

LivaNAGe & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE-

SENTATIVES 97

Statute enacting that Minister’s order “‘shall be
final and shall not be contested in any cowrt” —
Validity.

LEELAWATHIE vs. MINISTER OF DEFENCE AND EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS 5 v 112

T T
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" Delegation. of law making powers to Execntive — | Mandamus
Validity.

! | Does not lie agalnst servant or agent of the Crown
WEERASINGHE vs. PERMANENT SECRETARY, MINISTRY

K ARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK Or THE HOUSE of REPRE-

OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS & ANOTHER .. 71 ‘ SENTATIVES .. N & 97
Magistrate Marriage
: f e d ! Action for jactitation of marriage — Jurisdiction
When can Magistrate order whipping — Maxinmum [ of 0(;”. Co{:rrs{ f 4
sentence Magistrate can impose when convicting a
person on several colnts. KANDIAH vs. POORANESWARY 2o |
KS VS, PECT 3 LICE ANA i
Frocks v Hemscron op Pouicn. Mirm A% Of minor — Registered without consent of parent
- ) or guardian — Validity.
Magistrates’ Court has exclusive jurisdiction to en-

. S0l ok : e M | DAYAWATHIE vs, GUNARATNE 52 .. 96
tertain. application for maintenance of illegitimate

chid of Muslim parents, ' Marriage Registration Ordinance

Prrcuar vs. FreNa Umma .. 2 .. 56 Marriage Registration Ordinance (Cap. 112), sec-
‘ tions 42 and 46 — Marriage of minor registered
without consent of parent or guardian — Is the
Maintenance ‘ marriage void?

Maintenance OQrdinance (Cap. 91), sections 13, 14, Held: That when the marriage of a minor is
15, 16 — Criminal Procedure Code, sections 298, registered under the Marriage Registration Ordinance,
299 — Oral examination required by section 14 in want of consent of parent or guardian does not make
maintenance proceedings — Condition precedent to the marriage null and void.

."ssue. of surimons — Procedure to be followed in re- DA AT 39 s R ) .. 96
cording such evidence.

It was submitted by counsel for the applicant, ,.M“mrs
whose - application for maintenance the learned Custody of minor — Application for, by parents
Magistrate had refused, that the case should be sent ( petitioners) — Parents acceding to request of wife's
back for re-trial before another Magistrate as there childless sister (3rd respondent) to bring up child —
had been a breach of the mandatory provisions of Petitioners and respondents sharing cares and joys of
section 14 of the Manitenance Ordinance. Although child’s upbringing — Substantial contribution by peti-
oral evidence of the applicant had been recorded tioners fo child’s welfare — Absence of any indication
prior to issue of summons as r equired by that section, | 10 renounce parental rights — To what extent is a
it was submitted that section 299 of the Criminal | child’s consent relevant in such an application.

Procedure Code should have been complied with in |
regard to such evidence and that the entire procee-

dings were rendered null and void by such non- ‘
compliance. |

Child D was the daughter of the petitioner and
his wife. At the request of the wife’s childless sister
the child was given to the latter to be brought up in
her home, but without any agreement express or
implied to renounce parental rights. For many years,
the petitioners and the respondents “together shared
precedent to the issue of summons in proceedings | the cares and joys of child’s upbringing.” The child
under that Ordinance, it is not necessary that the | was sent or taken on visits to her parents and brothers
procedure laid down in section 299 of the Criminal | and sisters and the parents contributed to the welfare

Procedure Code should be followed. of the child in a substantial manner,

Held: That although an examination under section
14 of the Maintenance Ordinance is a condition

% . S In application by the parents for a writ of habeas
Missi NONA ys. WEERASURIYA . < 120 corpus in respect of the child against the respondents:

Held: (1) That in the circumstances, it could not be
said that the parents ever intended to renounce their
parental rights to the child. The father was therefore
PHCHAI VS, FEF\IA Umma ., .t +» 56 . ‘entitled to its custody,

In respect of illegitimate child of Muslim parents —
Maglsrmfes Cour: has exclusive jurisdiction.
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(2) That the child, not having attained the age of .-~

discretion was not entitled in law to consent to her
continnance in the custody of others. Her wishes
were only relevant 1o the consideration whether the
placing in parental custody would be detrimental o
health and morals.

FerNaNDO vs. FERNANDO & OTHERS

Marriage of, registered without consent of parent
or guardian — Validity,

- DAYAWATHIE vs. GUNARATNE

Misdirection
See under — Court of Criminal Appeal Decisions.

Mortgage

Morigage action — Sale in execution of decree —
Applicatior: by purchaser 1o set aside sale — Misrep-
resentation — Purchaser misled regarding size and
nature of property — Grant of relief by Court —
Whether purchaser entitled to make such application
for  relief.

Auctioneer made party to proceedings — Whether
this permissible — Allegations against such auctioneer
— Civil Pracedure Code, section 344.

Held: (1) That where purchaser at a sale held in
pursuance of a decree in a mortgage action is misled
in regard to the size and nature of the property the
Court should grant relief to such purchaser in the
absence of a positive provision of law which stands
in the way of such relief being granted.

(2) That, therefore, the learned trial Judge’s order
setting aside the sale in the present case should be
affirmed.

Held further: (3) That there was no provision of
law or judicial decision which precluded the enter-
tainment of the application made by the first respon-

dent (the purchaser of the property) or of the grant
of relief sought.

(4) That in the circumstances of the case the fourth
respondent (the auctioneer) was properly made a
party to these proceedings,

DE Sieva vs. De Sitva & OTHERS

Motor Traffic Act

Motor Traffic Act (Cap. 203), section 149 — When
it applies.

Held: That section 149 of the Motor Traffic Act
applies where an accident is imminent and whena
person fails to take such action as may be necessary
to ayoid such an accident and not where a collision
takes place in tiying to avoid pedestrians, -
JAYASUNDERA vs, SINNIAH .,

9i

96

17

114

Natural Justice -

Judicial or quasi-judicial act — Failure 1o consiver

principles of natural justice — Certiorari,

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MARADANA
MAHMUD AND ANOTHER .. ‘

Non-Direction _ y
See tnder — CorT oF CRIMINAL APPEAL DECISIONS,

Notice
Notice to guite.
See under — LANDLORD & TENANT

Parliament

Validity of Statute empowering Minister of Justice
to nominate Judges of the Supreme Court.

LivaNaGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN
Has full powers of a sovereign independent State.

LiyanNAGE & OTHERS v5. THE QuUEEN

Delegation of law making powers to Executive —
When possible.

WEERASINGHE 5. PERMANENT SECRETARY, MINISTRY
OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS & ANOTHER

Payment of allowances to members of — Na legal
duty imposed on Clerk of the Honse of Representatives.

KARIAPPER s THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRE-
SENTATIVES S

. -

Partition
Partition Ordinance, Neo. 10 of 1863, sectionr 5 —
Notice required thereunder — Is the Commissioner

required to state in his report whether or not such notice
was given ?

Where on a plea taken by a party toa partition
action instituted under the repealed Partition Ordi-
nance, No. 10 of 1863, the District Judge held that the
final decree was of no force or avail in law because
the Commissioner had failed to give due notice as
})mvided by section 5 of the said Ordinance merely

or the reason that the Commissioner’s report did
not state or indicate that the said notice was given —

Held: That the learned District Judge had mis-
directed himself in coming to that conclusion. There
is no provision of law that requires the Commissioner

to state in his report whether or not the said notice
was given.

HANIFFA vs. SAMSUDEEN

. e i.

Partition action — Addition of parties — Whether
Simmons or notice should issue on such added partics
— Discretionary power of trial Judge to add parties

MOSQUE v,

41

18

7

97

14
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ai any stage — Partition Act (Cap. 69), sections 12,
13, 22 and 70(1). ?

Held: (1) That once a person has been added as a
party to a partition action he isentitled to be served
with summons and the correct procedure would be to
issue summons on him.

(2) That under the Partition Act (Cap. 69), a notice
should be issued only on a person who is not a party
to the action. 3

(3) That section 70(1) of the Partition Act em-
powered a trial Judge to add a party at any time and
even before the trial stage of the action,

(4) That, in the present case, as the learned trial
Judge had ordered a notice and not summons to issue
after an order to add the 7th to 13th defendants as
parties, all steps taken since that stage (including the

interlocutory decree already entered) should be set
aside.

Per Sansoni, C.J. — “A party to an action can, of

. ‘course, waive the service of summons and enter an
appearance even before summons has been issued.
That is because the rule that service of summons is
necessary has been laid down in the interest of the
party, and to prevent orders being made behind his
back. If he appears before the Court and is permitted
to take part in the proceedings, he may be said to have
dispensed with the need for complying with the rule.”

LEELAWATHIE vs. WEERAMAN & OTHERS

Partnership

Partnership — Whether property partnership proper-
1y or only co-owned property — Section 20, Partnership
Act; '1890_-— Power to appoint a receiver in respect of
gg;merskw property — Civil Procedure Code, section

The plaintiffs and the defendants purchased S.
Estate as co-owners, and they carried on in partner-
ship the working of the said estate, and also the
purchase of green leaf and the manufacture and sale
of tea from 1st February, 1956. The plaintiffs
mstituted this action on 8th July, 1959, praying, infer
alia, that the partnership be dissolved. The case was
finally fixed for trial on 17th February, 1964, and on
that day Court made order dissolving the partnership,
and (despite the opposition of the plaintiffs) appointed
a receiver to take charge of the estate, The plaintiffs
appealed from that part of the order which appointed
a receiver,

Held: (1) That the estate was not partnership pro-
perty, but was property co-owned by the plaintiffs
and the defendant. The ultimate test of what is or is

‘not partnership property must be the agreement of
the partners. Persons may be entitled jointly or in
common to property, and the same persons may be
partners, and yet the property may not be partner-
ship property. 3

(2) That further, after a partnership is dissolved, a
‘Court cannot appoint a receiver under section 671 of
the Civil Procedure Code.

PARANIRUPASINGHAM & ANOTHER vs. RAMANATHAN

CHETTIAR BhRY ¥ > s

DIGEST Vol LXX
| Penal Code
E Sections 32, 140, 146, 296 and 300. -
| ; ' .
| APPUHAMY & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN.. oo 20
] Sections 183 and 220A.
THE QUEEN vs. SELLIAH & ANOTHER ., 79

51

10 |

Section 409 — Co-owner demolishing fence erected
by another co-owner on co-owned property — Is
he guilty of the offence of mischief. .

PEmRIS vs. THOMAS o ik g

Permanent Secretary

Duties imposed on, by Emergency Regulations —
Whether in conflict with section 51(2) of Constitution.

WEERASINGHE vs. PERMANENT SECRETARY, MINISTRY
OF HOME AFFAIRS & ANOTHER . . o

Possessory Action

Passessory action — Meaning of the words “ut
dominus”.

Held: That the learned Judge had misinterpreted
the expression “ut dominus™ to mean “as sole
owner”. A possessory decree is not based on sole
ownership the words “‘at dominus®” in thecontext
ownership. The words means “in his own right”.

FErNnANDO vs. FERNANDO .. A=

Principal and Agent

Agency — Actual authority of agent to indorse
cheques made in favour of principal — Conversion of
‘cheques by agent by payment into his bank account —
Aection by principal against Bank for conversion.

The Respondents were suppliers of heavy electrical
machinery, who appointed the firm of Helios Heavy
Electrical Engineering Contracting Co., Private Ltd.,
as their general agents in Australia for the negotiation
and execution of contracts for the supply and instal-
lation of electrical machinery. In pursuance of such
a contract entered into between the Respondents
and Snowy Mountains Hydro-Electric Authority, the
Authority handed over to Helios Ltd., a number of
cheques made out in favour of the Respondents.
Helios Ltd. indorsed the cheques and paid them into
its account with the Appellants but did not remit
the proceeds of fifteen of the cheques abroad to the
Respondents. The Respondents sued the Appellants
in conversion in respect of these cheques, and the
trial judge held in their favour. In appeal —

Held: That as Helios Ltd. was, inter alia, operating
the Australian office of the Respondents, acting as
importer and holder of the import licences for the
equipment supplied by the Respondents, arranging
and paying for expenses connected with the perfor-
mance of the Respondents’ contracts, was the holder
of a “full credential” form the Respondents to act
for them in negotiating contracts; and had of necessity

95

1

40
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to devise some method of paying the Respondenis
in Belgium in respect of payments made to the
Respondents in Australia in Australian currency,
Helios Ltd., had implied actual authority to endorse
the cheques. The Appellants were therefore not liable
in conversion.

AUSTRALIA AND NEw ZeALAND Bank Lip. vs.
ATELIERS DE CoONSTRUCTIONS ELECTRIQUES DE
CHARLEROI o e T %

Privy Council Decisions

AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND BANK vs. ATELIERS
DEe ConstrUcTIONs ELECTRIQUES DE CHARLEROL. .

See under — PRINCIPAL & AGENT

BoArD OF TRUSTFES OF THE MARADANA MOSQUE vs,
MasMUD & ANOTHER e A o

See under — CERTIORARI.

LiYANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

See under — CeyrLon  (CONSTITUTION)

ORDER-IN-
CounciL, 1946. : T

Prisons Ordinance
See under—HABEAS CORPUS il

Public Security Ordinance

Validity of Ordinance and regulations made there-
nnder.

See — Hapeas Corrus .. x X

Registration of Births and Deaths

Registration of Births and Deaths Act (Cap. 110)
section 10 — Application for alteration of particulars
regarding father’s and mother’s race from “‘Indian
Tamil” in Birth Register under section 28(i)(b) —
Applicant, a registered citizen of Ceylon under Indian
and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act (Cap. 350)
— Effect of sections 6(2)(iv) (a) and 18 — Distinction
between “race” and ‘‘citizenship.”

Interpretation of Statutes — Schedule to Enactment
—Preamble — Their importance in interprefation.

The petitioner-appellant applied in terms of section
28(1)(b) of the Births and Deaths Registration Act
(Cap. 110) for the alteration of two entries as to the
petitioner’s race and that of his wife from, “Indian
Tamil” to “Citizen of Ceylon Tamil””. These entries
had been made in cages (4) and (5) respectively in
the register of Births in respect of the registration
of the birth of the petitioner’s son born on 30.9.1960
as required by section 10(1) of the said Act and Form
‘A referred to therein. To the particulars in Form A
regarding “race” in each of the cages 4 and 5 is
attached a footnote containing the following words:—

“Tamils or Moors must be described as Ceylon
Tamils or Moors or Indian Tamils, or Moors as
the case may be."”

71

71

L

The evidence led before the District Court showed:

{@) that the petioner, his wife and four children
were on 18.3,1954 registered as citizens of Ceylon
under the Indian and Pakistani Residents {Citizen-
ship) Act,

(h) That the petitioner and his wife were born
in India and they were Indian Tamils by race and
born of parents who lived in India, before he
obtained citizenship rights in Ceylon.

The learned District Judge upheld the contention
of the respondents (The Registrar General and the
Provincial Registrar of Births and Deaths) that the
acquisition of citizenship rights by any person did not
involve a change in his ‘race” and refused the appli-
cation. |

An appeal was taken from this order on the ground
inter alia that by virtue of the provisions of section
i8 of the Indian and Pakistani Residents (Citizen-
ship) Act, a person who is registered as a citizen under
the Act becomes entitled to the same rights and subject
to the same liabilities as any other citizen of Ceylon
and therefore the appellant and hiswife were Ceylon
Tamils on the day of the birth of the son whose
registration was in question.

On account of a difference of opinion between the
two Judges before whom the appeal was originally
argued, the matter was referred to a Bench of three
judges under section 38 of the Courts Ordinance.

Held: (1) That it is a rule of interpretation that
what is provided in a schedule referred to in a section
of an Act is as important as a provision in the Act
itself, and would cease to prevail only in the event of
a repugnance to a provision in the main Act itself.

(2) That applying this principle, it is imperative that
-the schedule referred to in Section 10 of the Births
and Deaths Registration Act and containing the Form
A, which lays down in clear terms the particulars to
be entered should be complied with, there being no
conflcting provision in the Act itself.

(3) That, therefore the Registrar was correct in
making the entry “Indian Tamil” in both cages 4 and
5 aforesaid.

(4) That there is a distinction between ‘race’ and
‘citizenship’ and consequently the renunciation .of
all the rights to the civil and political status referred
to in section 6(2)(iv)(a) of the Indian and Pakistani
Residents (Citizenship) Act would not preclude an
applicant who is registered as a citizen from calling
himself thereafter an Indian Tamil by race. This
would not prejudicially affect such a person or any
member of the family.

PASANGNA 18, REGISTRAR GENERAL & ANOTHER

Retrospective Legislation
See — LiyaNAGE & OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN iR

Revision

Order under section 85(1) of Income Tax Ovdinance
— Not appealable — Exercise of revisionary powers
by Supreme Couri. B

PeErERA vs, COMMISSIONER OF INLAND REVENUE. ..

Xvi

27

46
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Refusal by trigl Judge to stay proceedings — Power
af Supreme Court to act in revision.

LEBBAYTHAMBY & Omms Vs, ATTOR‘NFY-GE\IERAL
& ANOTHER .. 1 i

Sale

In execution of morigage decree — Application by
purchaser to set aside on ground of his misreprésen-
tation.

DE Siva vs. DE Siva & OTHERS

Sentence

Wihipping — When can a Magistrate inflic it —
Maximum sentence Magisirate can impose when con-
victing a person on several counts,

FLOCKS vs. INSPECTOR OF POLICE MIRIHANA -

Principles and basis of punishment.

QuUEEN vs. PREMADASA & OTHERS

Servitude

Servitude Right of way of Recessity — What
must g plaintiff’ prove to sticceed in such an action —
Burden of proof.

Held: (1) That the onus lies on a person who
claims a right of way of necessity to show that it is
nececessary for him to claim this right.

(2) That an owner of a land is not entitled to
claim, a way of necessity if there is another though
less cunvement road.

CHANDRASIRI v5. WICKRAMASINGHE

Statutes

Interpretation of Statutes — Preamble— Schedules
— Their Importance in interpretation.

PasaGNa vs. REGISTRAR-GENERAL & ANOTHER

Interpretation of—Expressio unius exclusio al-
terius — Doctrine of ultra vires — Repeal by impli-
cation.

KartApper vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE or RE’PRE-
SENTATIVES b e i

Legislation “ex post facto”.

See under — Civic D1saBILITIES SPECIAL PrRoOVISIONS
AcCT e iy s .

See under — CEYLON (CO\ST[TUTIDN) ORDER N
CounciL, 1946 3% Ly 4

Legislation by Executive — When valid.

See under — Hapeas Corprus

53

17

39

76

48

97

Stay of Proceedings
See under — COURTS ORDINANCE . .

Universal Declaration of Human Rights
Applicability of, to Ceylon.
LEELAWATHIE vs. MINISTER OF DEFENCE AND Ex-
TERNAL AFFAIRS T o i

Words and Phrases

‘Citizenship,” ‘race’ — PASAGNA vs. REGISTRAR-
GENERAL & ANOTHER .. . s
‘Ceylon Tamil’ — PASAGNA vs. REGISTRAR-GENERAL
AND ANOTHER
“final and shall not be contested in any Court” —
LEELAWATHIE vs. MINISTER OF DEFENE & EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS o2 ; oy ik
‘Indian Tamil’ — PASAGNA vs. REGISTRAR-GENERAL
AND ANOTHER i
‘Irrevocable’ deed of gifi — DULLEWA vs. DULLEWA
AND ANOTHER . e S
Fudicial pom’.i — LivaANAGE & OTHERS vs. THE
QUEEN i B =,
‘Peace, order and good Government® — KARIAPPER
v8. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES | |
“Ur dominus” — FERNANDO vs. FERNANDO
Writs
Certiorari.
BoaArRD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MARADANA MOSQUE ws.
ManMubn & ANOTHER 5 o
LEELAWATHIE vs. MINISTER OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS ;
Mandarus
KAriAPPER vs. THE CLERK oF THE House or Repre-
SENTATIVES .. o £l ¥ o
LEELAWATHIE v5. MINISTER OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL
AFFAIRS i gl [
WEERASINGHE vs. THE PERMANENT SECRETARY,
MiNISTRY OF DEFENCE & EXTFRNAL AFFARS &
ANOTHER
Habeas Corpus

KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE Of REPRE-
SENTATIVES .. W

WEERASINGHE vs. PERMANENT SECRETARY OF DEFEM:E :

& EXTERNAL AFFAIRS & ANOTHER

FerRNANDO vs. FERNANDO & OTHERS

Vol. LXX
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Privy Council Appeal No. 25 of 1965

Present: Lord Macdermott, Lord Morris of Berth-y~Gest, Lord Guest, Lord Pearce, Lord Pearson

DON JOHN FRANCIS DOUGLAS LIYANAGE AND OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN*
' From
THE SUPREME COURT OF CEYLON
REASONS FOR REPORT OF THE LORDS OF THE JUDICIAL
COMMITTEE OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL,

ARGUED ON 27711, 28TH OCTORER, 15T, 2ND AND 3RD NOVEMBER, 1965
DELIVERED THE ZND DECEMBER 1965
Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946—Ceylon Independence Act 1947—Scope of the powers
of Ceylon Parliament—Whether unable to pass laws contrary to fundamental principles of justice—Colonial
Laws Validity Act, 1865—Separation of powers — Whether Acts 1 of 1962 and 31 of 1962 constitute an
interference with the judicial function —Invalidity of legislation interfering with the Jjudicial function.

The cleven appellants were each convicted of three offences in respect of an abortive coup d'etat on the 27th January
1962. The trial was before three judges of the Supreme Court sitting without a jury, and, apart from the other provisions
the criminal law of Ceylon, was affected by the provisions of the Criminal Law (Special Provisions) Act No. 1 of 1962,
and the Criminal Law Act No. 31 of 1962, the relevant provisions of which are set out in the opinion of the Board. The
appellants were convicted in April 1965, and they appealed from their convictions. Tt was agreed between the parties at the
appeal that il the legislation referred to above, which affected the mode of Lrial, the offences, the admissibility of evidence,
and the sentences, was invalid, the convictions could not be sustained.

The validity of the convictions was attacked before the Board on three main grounds. Firstly, that the Ceylon
Parliament was limited by an inability to pass legislation contrary to the fundamental principles of justice. Secondly,
that the legislation was invalid inasmuch as it constituted an unj ustifiable assumption of judicial power by the legislature,
or an interference with judicial power, which was outside the competence of the legisiature and inconsistent with the
severance of power between the legislature, the executive and the judiciary whichthe constitution ordains, Thirdly, that the

language of the 1962 Acts did not suffice in the absence of an express provision to that effect to deprive the appellants of
the right to a jury which they had acquired previous to the passing of these Acts.

Held: (1) That with reference to the first argument, there was no such restriction on the competence of the Ceylon
legislature. The joint cffect of the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946, and the _C‘eylon
Independence Act 1947, was intended to and did have the result of giving to the Ceylon Parliament

the full legislative powers of a sovereign independent State.

(2) With reference to the second argument, that under the Constitution of Ceylon there existed a separate
power in the judicature which could not be usurped or infringed by the executive or the legisiature.
That the pith and substance of both the Acts of 1962 referred Lo above was a legislative plan ex post
facto to secure the conviction and enhance the punishment of particular individuals; to legalise their
imprisonment while awaiting trial; to make admissible their statements inadmissibly obtained during
that period; to alter the fundamental law of evidence o as to facilitate their conviction; and to alfer
ex post facte the punishment to be imposed on them. That in the circumstances of the case, it amounted
to an interference with the functions of the judiciary, and the legislation was therefore invalid.

In the circumstances, no opinion was expressed with regard to the appellants’ third argument,

Per THE JupiciAL CommiTTeE:— (4) “These liberating provisions thus incorporated and enlarged the enabling
terms of the Act of 1865, and it is clear that the joint effect of the Order in Council of 1946 and the Act of 1947 was in-
tended to and did have the result of giving to the Ceylon Parliament the full legislative powers of a sovereign independent

State. (See Ibralebbe v. The Queen (1964) A.C. 900.) ”

(B) “Section 29(1) of the Conslilution says— ‘Gybiject to the provisions of this Order Parliament shall have power
1o make laws for the peace order and good government of the Tsland’. These words have habitually been construed in their
fullest scope. Section 29(4) provides that Parliament may amend the Constitution on a two-thirds majority with a certificate
of the Speaker. Their Lordships however cannot read the words of section 29(1) as entitling Parliament to pass legislation
which usurps the judicial power of the judicature—e.g. by passing an act of attainder against some person or instructing
a judge to bring in a verdict of guilly against some one who is being tried—if in law such usurpation would otherwise be
contrary to the Constitution. There was speculation during (he argument as (0 what the position would be if Parliament
sought to procure such a resull by first amending the Constitution by a two-thirds majority. But such a situation does not

"~ % For Sinhala translation, see Sinhala section, Vol. 12 part 1, p. 1
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arise here, In so far as any Acl passed without recourse to section 29(4) of the Constitution purports to usurp or infringe

the judicial power it is wltra vires.

Cases referred to :  Campbell v. Hall, 1 Cowp. 204; 98 E.R. 1045
Abeysekera v. Jayatilake, 1932 A.C 260 ; (1931) 33 N.L.R. 291
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: (1963) 65 N.L.R. 433

Bribery Conumnissioner v. Ranasinghe, 1965 A.C. 172 ; LXVI C.L.W. 1 ; (1964) 66 N.L.R. 73

Calder v. Bull, (1798) Curtis 269

Thambiayah v. Kulasinghe, (1949) 50 N.L.R. 25 ; XXXVIIC.1.W. 53
The Queen v. Liyanage & Others, (1962) 64 N.L.R. 313 ; LXII C.L.W. 49

E. F. N. Gratiaen, Q.C., with H. W. Jayewardene, Q.C., Dick

Taverne, Q.C.,Walter Javawardena,

M. P. Solomon and S. J. Kadirgamar for the appellants.

Vietor Tennakoon,
for the Crown-respondent,

Lorp PrarcEe

This is an appeal against the judgment and
sentence of the Supreme Court of Ceylon. The
eleven appellants were cach convicted of three
offences in respect of an abortive coup d’etat on
27th January 1962. The offences were, first that
they conspired to wage war against the Queen,
sccondly that they conspired to overawe by
means of criminal force or the show of criminal
force the Government of Ceylon and thirdly
that they conspired to overthrow otherwise than
by lawful means the Government of Ceylon by
law cstablished. Thirteen other defendants who
were tried with the appellants were acquitted.
Each of the appellants was sentenced to ten vears
rigorous imprisonment and forfeiture of all his
property.

The appellants were not tried by a Jjudge and
jury in accordance with the normal criminal
procedure, but by three judges of the Supreme

Court sitting without a jury. The trial was very |

long and complicated since so many defendants
were involved, playing, as was alleged, different
parts in the attempted coup. Indecd, the Jjudgment
of the Court occupies more than 200 pages ol
the law reports (The Queen v. Liyanage & Others,
67 N.L.R. 193). The individual appeals raise
many points which demand a very extensive
consideration of evidence and factual detail.

All the appeals however share a common sub-
mission that, whatever be the details of fact or
evidence, these convictions must be quashed
owing to the invalidity of certain legislation in
1962 passed especially in crder to deal with the
trial of those persens who partook in the abortive
coup. This legislation affected the mode of trial,
the offences, the admissibility of evidence and the
sentences. It was rightly agreed between the parties
that, if this legislation was invalid, the convictions
cannot be sustained. Their Lordships therefore
decided that before embarking on a detailed

0.C., (Solicitor-General, Ceylon) with R. K. Handoo and V. S. A. Pullenayagam,

| investigation of the facts and evidence they should
| first decide, as a preliminary point, whether the
| legislation in question was invalid.

The detailed story of the coup d'etat of 27th

JJanu;:J“y 1962 and how it was foiled at the very

' last moment, is set out in a White Paper of the
 Ceylon Government issued on 13th February
| 1962. This sets out the names of thirty alleged
| conspirators and the parts played by them. All
the accused were named in it. It alleges that the
coup was planned by certain police and army
| officers with the object of overthrowing the
Government and arresting, inter alios, the Parlia-
mentary Secrctary for Defence and External
| Affairs since he could give orders to the Service
Commanders which might frusirate the coup.
| The White Paper stated what the participants
intended to do and gave descriptions of their
| interrogation by Ministers immediately after their
{arrest. It concluded with the observation “It is
also essential that a deterrent punishment of a
‘sevcrc character must be imposed on all those
| who are guilty of this attemipt to inflict violence
and bloodshed on innocent people throughout
the country for the pursuit of reactionary aims
'and objectives. The investigation must proceed
| to its logical end and the people of this country
| may rest assured that the Government will do
|its duty by them.”

From about 27th January all the accused were
in custody (except one who gave himself up on
| 31st July 1962), and they remained thereafter in
| very rigorous custody. (Sce The Quecn v. Liyanage

& Others, 67 NLL.R. at 259.) They were questioned
| both on the night of 27th January 1962 and there-
after while in custody.

On 16th March 1962 there was passed the
Criminal Law (Special Provisions) Act, No. |
of 1962 (for convenience referred to as the “first
"Act”). That it was directed towards the parti-
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cipants in the coup is clear. It was given retros-
pective force and section 19 reads:—

“The provisions of this Act, other than the provisions
of section 17, shall be deemed, for all purposes, to
have come into operation on January 1 1962:

Provided, however, that the provisions of Parl 1
of this Act shall be limited in its application 1o any
offence against the State alleged to have been committed
on or about January 27, 1962, or any matter, act, or
thing connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

Part 1 was directed towards legalising the detention
of the persons who had been imprisoned in respect
of the attempted coup. Under the general eriminal
law an arrested person has the following protective
provisions. Under the Criminal Procedure Code
he must without unreasenable delay be taken or
sent before a Magistrate (section 36). If he 15 |
arrested without a warrant, the reasonable period
shall not exceed 24 hours (section 37). The police
must report the arrest to the Magistrate’s Court
(section 38), Part [ of the first Act legalised ex
post facto the detention for 60 days of any person |
suspected of having committed offences against
the State, but the fact of his having been arrested
had to be notified to the Magistrate’s Court.

In Part II of the first Act section 4 altered the
made of trial for the effences here in question in
the following manner. Under scction 440A of |
the Criminal Procedure Codec the Minister of |
Justice could direct that the defendant be tried
by three judges without a jury in the case of the
cffence of sedition and any other offence in which
such a mode of trial would be appropriate by
reason of civil commotion, disturbance of public
feeling or any other similar cause. That clause
was amended so as to apply expressly not only te
sedition but to any other offence under Part VI
of the Penal Code, the part which dealt with
offences against the State, the offences with which
the appellants weie charged. Thus the Minister
could direct that the appellants should be tried
by three judges without a jury. With this section
one may conveniently read section 9 of the first
Act whereby in cases in which the Minister directs |
a trial by three judges without a jury, the three |
judges should be nominated by the Minister of
Justice, and section 17 which provided for the
addition of two more judges to the Supreme
Court, such provision to come into operation
on such date as the Minister might appoint.

Section 5 retrospectively allowed arrest without |
a warrant for the offence of waging war against

1965—Lord Pearce—Liyanage & Others vs. The Queen

the Queen whereas previously a wartant had been
necessary.

Section 6 altered the penalty for an offence under
section 114 of the Penal Code, namely tor waging
war against the Queen, by inserting a minimum
punishment of not less than ten years’ imprison-
ment. It altered the penalty for an offence under
section 115 of the Penal Code, namely for cons-
piring to wage war against the Queen and overawe
the Government by criminal force, by inserting a
minimum punishment ¢f ten years' imprisonment
and a forfeiture of all property. It also altered
the offence itself. Section 115 had :ead previously
as follows:—

“Whoever conspires to commit any of the offences
sunishable by the next preceding section, or to deprive
the Queen of the sovereignly of Ceylon or of any
part thercof, or of any of Her Majesty’s Realms and
Territories, or conspires to overawe, by means of
criminal force or the show of criminal force, the
Government of Ceylon, shall be punished with imprison-
ment of either description which may extend Lo twenty
years, and shall also be liable to fine.”

This was amended as follows:—

“By the substitution, for all the words from “Ceylon,
shall® to “to fine.”, of the following:—

“Ceylon, or conspires to overthrow, or attempts
ot prepares to overthrow, or does any acl, or conspires
to do, or attempts or prepares Lo do any act, caleulated
to overthrow, or with the object or intention of overs
throwing, or as a means of overthrowing, otherwise
than by lawful means, the Government of Ceylon by
law established, or conspires to murder, or attempts
to murder, or wrongfully confines, or conspires or
attempts or prepares (o wrongfullv confine, the
Governor-General or the Prime Minister or any
other member of the Cabinet of Ministers, with the
intention of inducing or compelling him to exercise
or refrain from exercising in any manner any of the
Jlawful powers of such Governor-General, Prime
Minister cr Cabinet Minister, shall be punished with
death, or imprisonment of ecither description which
shall extend to at least ten years but shall not extend
to more than twenty years, and shall forfeit all his
property.” '

Thus a new offence was added ex post facto to
meet the circumstances of the abortive coup.

Section 11 of the first Act provided that the
Attorney General might before or at any stage
during the trial pardon any accomplice with a

. view to obtaining his evidence,

Scetion 12 altered the laws of evidence in the
case of offences against the State. The general
criminal law gave the following protections to
an accused person.
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It provided that “No confession made to a
police officer shall be proved as against a person
accused of any offence” (Evidence Code section
25(1)). It further provided that no confession
made by an accused in the custedy of & police
officer could be proved against him, unless made
in the immediate presence of a Magistrate. (Evi-
dence Code section 26 (1)). And it forbade that
a confession by onc of several co-defendants
should be used against the other. (Evidence
Code section 30). It excluded from admission
all statements to a police officer in the course of
an investigation (Criminal Procedure Code section
122(3)). Further, the onus of proving a confession
to be voluntary was on the prosecution.

The first Act swept these protections away, Tt
allowed statements made in the custody of a
police officer to be admitted provided the police
officer was not below the rank of Assistant § uperin-
tendent (section 12(1)). 1t laid on the accused the
burden of proving that a statement made by him
was not voluntary (section 12(3) ). It removad the
effect of sections 25, 26 and 30 of the Evidence
Ordinance above referred to (seciion 12(4) ).

Section 12(2) provided that “In the case of an
offence against the State, a statement made by
any person which may be proved under subsection
(1) of this section” (i.e. whether or not in the
custody of a police officer) “as against himself
may be proved as against any other person jointly
charged with such person, if, but only if, such
statement is corroborated in material particulars
by evidence other than a statement proved under
that subsection.” Thus a vital and age old protective
rule of evidence was removed.

Section 12(5) removed the protection of section
122(3) of the Criminal Procedure Code which

prohibited the admission of statements made to |

a police officer in the course of an enquiry. Section
15 removed the right of appeal to the Court of
Criminal Appeal in the case of trials before three
Jjudges without a jury.

Finally section 21 provided as follows:—,

“The preceding provisions of this Act, save and
except Part I and section 17, shall cease 1o be operative
after the conclusion of all legal proceedings connected
with or incidental to any offence against the State
committed on or about 27th January 1962, or from
one year afler the date of commencement of this
Act, whichever is later, provided that the Senate
and the House of Representatives may, by resolution
seiting out the grounds therefor, extend the operation
of this Act from time to time for further periods not
exceeding one year at 4 time.”

1965—Lord Pearce—Liyanage & Others vs. The Queen
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| In the circumstances the reference to one year
| after the commencement of the Act cannof be
read as indicating any intention that the provisions
in question should continue in force beyond the
conclusion of the proceedings mentioned. Thus,
apart from the increase in the number of judges
by s. 17 (which obviously could not be temporary),
and apart from Part 1 (which gives the right to
arrest and detain persons suspected of having
committed an offence against the State and which
in itself is limited to any offence against the
State alleged to have been committed on or about
27th January 1962 and matters incidental thereto)
the whole of these elaborate provisions for altering
the nature of the offence, for providing a trial
without a jury, and for allowing the admission of
otherwise inadmissible statements and confessions
is to end when the proceedings based on the
coup come to an end. By that time it would have
served its purpose which would appear to be the
fulfilment of the promise implied in the last two
sentenices of the White Paper, quoted above.,

The Minister of Justice then nominated three
Judges to try the accused. Preliminary objection
was taken that the nomination and the section
under which it was made were wltra vires the
Constitution. In October 1962 the three learned
judges of the Supreme Court in a full and careful
judgment in which they examined the relevant
authorities unanimously upheld the objection
(The Queen v. Livanage & Others 64 N.L.R. 313).
They concluded (at page 359)—

*For reasons which we have endeavoured to indicaie
above, we are of opinion that because

(@) the power of nomination conferred on the
Minister is an interference with the exercise by
the Judges of the Supreme Court of the striot
judicial power of the State vested in them by
virtue of their appointment in terms of section
52 of the Ceylon (Constitution) Order in
Council, 1946, or is in derogation thereof, and

(B} the power of nomination is one which has

hitherto been invariably exercised by the

Judicature as being part of the exercise of the

Judicial power of the State, and cannot be

reposed in anyone outside the Judicature,

section 9 of the Criminal Law (Special Provisions)
Act, No. | of 1962, is ultra vires the Constitution.”

This conclusion was not challenged by an
appeal to this Board. But in November 1962
there was passed the Criminal Law Act, No: 31
of 1962 (for convenience referred to as the s cond
Act). This repealed those provisions of the first
. Act which dealt with section 440A of the Criminal
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Procedure Code, and amended that section anew |

by providing as respects offences under certain
sections of the Penal Cede, including section 115,

5

The appellants’ third argument is that the
language of the 1962 Acts did not suffice *in
the absence of an express provision to that effect”

for a trial before three judges without a jury; | (Interpretation Ordinance section 6(3) ) to deprive
but instead of the nomination by the Minister | the appellants of the right to a jury which they

which had been rejected by the Supreme Court,
there was inserted a new subsection whereby the
Chief Justice could nominate three judges before
whom the trial should be held. It was also pro-
vided that the determination should be according
to the majority. Futther the second Act (section
6) nullified the Minister’s carlier direction, in-
formation and nomination in the proceedings
(setting them out in schedules), and it deemed that
the Minister had never had any power to nominate
the judges for the trial without a jury, and any
action proceeding or thing instituted by virtue
of the said direction information or nomination
was deemed for all purposes never to have been
instituted or commenced.

All the other elaborate provisions of the first
Act were left untouched.

The trial proceeded before three judges nomi-
nated by the Chief Justice. In April 1965 after a
very extensive trial the appellants were cenvicted
and sentenced. '

Mr. Gratiaen on behalf of the appellants attacks
the validity of the convictions on three main
grounds.

The first is that the Ceylon Parliament is limited

had acquired previous te the passing of those Acts,

The first argument starts with a judgment of
Lord Mansfield L.C.J. In Campbell v. Hall 1
Cowp. 204 at 209, 98 E.R. 1045 he laid down as a
clear proposition that “if the King (and when I
say the King, I always mean the King without the
concurrence of Parliament) has a power to alter
the old and to introduce new laws in a conquered
country, this legislation being subordinate, that is,
subordinate to his own authority in Parliament he
cannot make any new change contrary to funda-
mental principles”. The Crown having, thercfore
(it is said), no power over Ceylon as a colony
to make laws which offended against fundamental

| principles, could not hand over to Ceylon a higher

power than it pessessed itsclf. The Constitution

| of Ceylon was not laid down as in the case of

many other colonies by an Act of Parliament but
by an Order in Council (The Ceylon (Constitution)
Order in Council 1946) which gave power to the
Ceylon Parliament to make laws for the peace
order and good Government of the Island. This
was followed by the Ceylon Independence Act,

| 1947, a United Kingdom Act. But Parliament,

it is contended, did not in terms transfer to Ceylon

| the Sovercign right of the United Kingdom

by an inability to pass legislation which is contrary |

to fundamental principles of justice. The 1962
Acts, it is said, arc contrary to such principles in

that they not only are directed against individuals |

but also ex post facto create crimes and punish-
ments, and destroy fair safeguards by which those
individuals would otherwisc be protected.

The appellants’ second centention is thot the

1962 Acts offended against the Constitution in |

that they amounted to a direction to convict
the appellants or to a legislative plan to secure
the conviction and severe punishment of the
appellants and thus constituted an unjustifiable
assumption of judicial power by the legislature,
or an interference with judicial power, which
is outside the legislature’s competence and is

inconsistent with the severance of power between |

legislature, exccutive, and judiciary which the
Constitution ordains.

Parliament. Therefore the legislative power of
Ceylon is still limited by the inability (which it
inherits from the Crown) to pass laws which
offend against fundamental principles. This vague
and uncertain phrase might arguably be called
in aid against some of the statutes passed by any
Sovereign power. And it would be regrettable
il the procedure adopted in giving independence
to Ceylon has produced the situation for which the
appellants contend.

In the view of their Lordships, however, such
a contention is not maintainable. Before the
passing of the Colonial Laws Validity Act 1865
considerable difficultics had been caused by the
over-insistence of a Colonial judge in South
Australia that colonial legislative Acts must not
be repugnant to English law (see “The Statute of
Westminster and Dominion Status” by K. C.
Wheare 4th edition pp. 75—7). That Act was
intended to and did overcome the difficultics.
It provided that colonial laws should be void to
the extent to which they were repugnant to an
Act of the United Kingdom Parliament applicable
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to that colony, “but not otherwise (section 2 (3) As from the appointed day the provisions of
d that they should te voil uek i the First Schedule to this Act shall have effect with
and that they should not be void o1 inoperative respect to the legislative powers of Ceylon,”

on the ground of repugnancy to the law of England
(section 3). “The essential feature of this measure is
that it abolished once and for all the vague doctrine
of repugnancy to the principles of English law |

# * i

“First Schedule
Legislative Powers of Ceylon

as a source of invalidity of any celonial act.....The |

e e s . 1. (1) The Colonial Laws Validity Act, 1865, shall
boon thus secured was enormous; lt_ Wds NOw not apply to any law made after the apponted day by
necessary only for the colonial legislator to the Parliament of Ceylon,

ascertain that there was no Imperial Act applicable
and his field cf action and choice of means became
1 o AL Sg be void or inoperative on the ground that it is repugnant
' ig e ; 5 :
u]]fEtFe]_"d (“The lbowrrcacnty of the British to the law of Hngiand, or to the provisions of any
Dominions™ by Prof. Keith 1929 at p. 45). existing or future Act of Parliament of the United
| Kingdom, or to any order, rule or regulation made

3 Lgars AN e e under any such Act, and the powers of the Parliament
| Then- I.'mdfhl?s.li‘dl_mot .‘?‘pr[ the \\I(_‘W that : of Ceylon shall include the power to repeal or amend
the legislature while removing the fetter of re- any such Act, order, rule or regulation in so far as

pugnancy to English law, left in existence a fetter the same is part of the law of Ceylon.
of repugnancy to some vague unspecified law
of natural justice. The terms of the Colonial |
Laws Validity Act and especially the words “but
not otherwise™ in section 2 make it clear that
Parliament was intending to deal with the whole
question of repugnancy. Morcover their Lordships
doubt whether Lord Mansficld was intending to
say that what was not repugnant te English law
might yet be repugnant to fundamental principles
or to sct up the latter as a different test from the
former. Whatever may have been the possible‘
arguments in this matter prior to the passing of
the Colonial Laws Validity Act, they arc not
maintainable at the ptesent date. No casc has
been cited in which during the last 100 years any ‘ ) .
Jjudgment (or, so far as one can sce, any argument) | Those powers, however, as in the case of all
has been founded on that portion of Lord Mans- | countries  with written constitutions, must be
field’s judgment. And in Abeyesekera v. Jayatilake  exercised in accordance with the terms of the
(1932) A.C. 260, a case from Ceylon dealing with | constitution from which the power derives. The
the validity of a retrospective Order in Council | 2ppellants second argument maintains that the
and therefore a fertile field for the germination | powers of Parliament were not so exercised in
of arguments about fundamental principles, Lord | the passing of the Acts which are here in question,
Mansficld’s judgment in Campbell v. Hall was = ) A y
only referied to in the Board’s judgment as autho- | The learned Solicitor-General in his clear, fair
rity on a wholly different point. ' rand forceful argument strongly relied on the
| fact that there is no express vesting of judicial

The Ceylon Independence Act 1947 of the | power in the Courts, such as ene finds for example
British Parliament provided—: | in the case of the United States of America or
Australia. But that is not necessarily decisive.

" 1. —(1) No Act of the Parliament of the United | For in the two latter instances there were no federal
Ki‘;ﬁ%"m pgssgd ol “ftc{' 1gclapgoiqtcd gay. 3}"‘;]11. Courts apart from the Constitution. Unless such
fl;{c law Ocif Eey?g;,tunI{;sgxifr;s’e;pré:gl;f} ndgglijrﬁi in | Courts were ¢ cated and Invcsl'c.d with power by
that Act that Ceylon has requested, and consented | the Constitution they had no existence or power.
to, the enactment thereof. !

(2) No law and no provision of any law made after
the appointed day by the Parliament of Ceylon shall

2. The Parliament of Ceylon shall have full power
to make laws having extra-territorial operation,”

These liberating provisions thus incorporated
and enlarged the enabling terms of the Act of
1865, and it is clear that the joint effect of the
Order in Council of 1946 and the Act of 1947
was intended to and did have the result of giving
to the Ceylon Parliament the full legislative powers
of a sovereign independent State. (See Ihralebbe v.
The Queen (1964) A.C. 900.)

Accordingly the appellants’ first argument fails.

. In Ceylon, however, the position was different.

(2) As from the appointed day His Majesty’s ; o7 iy : i S
Government in the United Kingdom shall have no The change of 50"3‘9‘8{“5’ did not 1n 1lsc]f_prorduw
responsibility for the government of Ceylon, any apparent change in the constituents or the
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functioning of the Judicature. So far as the Courts
were concerned their work continued unaffected
by the new Constitution, and the ordinances under
which they functioned remained in force. The
judicial system had been established in Ceylon
by the Charter of Justice in 1833. Clause 4 of the
Charter read “And to provide for the administra-
tion of justice herzafter in Our said Island Our
will and pleasure is, and We do hereby direct that
the entire administration of justice, civil and crimi-
nal therein, shall be vested exclusively in the
courts erected and constituted by this Our Charter
And it is Our pleasure and We herecby declare,
that it is not, and shall not be competent to the
Governor of Our said Island by any Law or
Ordinance to be by him made, with the advice
of the Legislative Council thereof or otherwise
howsoever, to constitufe or establish any court for
the administration of justice in any case civil or
criminal, save as hereinafter is expressly saved
and provided.” Clause 5 established the Supreme
Court and clause 6 a Chief Justice and two puisne
Judges. Clause 7 gave the Governot powers of
appointing their successors. There follow many
clauses with regard to administrative, procedural
and jurisdgictional matters. Some half a century

later Ordinances (in particular the Courts Oidi- |

nance} continued the jurisdiction and procedure

tioned continuously up to the present day.

There was ne compelling need therefore to
make any specific reference to the judicial power
of the Courts when the legislative and executive
powers changed hands. ““But the importance
of securing the independence of judges and main-
taining the dividing line between the judiciary
and the executive” (and also, one should add,
the legislature) “was appreciated by those who

Commission is made a criminal offence. There is
also provision that judges shall not be removable
except by the Governor-General on an address
of both Houses.

These previsions manifest an intention to
secure in the judiciary a freedom from political
legislative and executive control. They are wholly
appropriate in a Constitution which intends that
judicial power shall be vested only in the judicature.
They would be inappropriate in a Constitution
by which it was intended that judicial power should
be shared by the executive or the legislature.
The Constitution’s silence as to the vesting of
judicial power is consistent with its remaining,
where it had lain for more than a century, in
the hands of the judicature. it is not consistent
with any intention that hence forth it should pass
to or be shared by, the executive or the legislature.

During the argument analogies were naturally
sought to be drawn from the British Constitution.
But any analogy must be very indirect, and pro-
vides no helpful guidance. The British Constitution
is unwritten whereas in the case of Ceylen their
Lordships have to interpret a wiitten document
from which alone the legislature deiives its legis-

( | lative pawer.
of the Couits. Thereunder the Courts have func- |

The difficult question as to the separation of

| powers was carefully argued before the learned

framed the Constitution™ (see Bribery Commissioner |

V. Ranasinghe (1965) A.C. 172 at 190). The Cons-
titution is significantly divided into parts — “‘Part
2 The Gevernor-General™, “Part 3 the Legislature™,
“Part 4 Delimitaticn of Electoral Districts™,
“Part 5 the Executive”, “Part 6 The Judicature™,
“Part 7 The Public Service’, “Part 8 Finance”.

And although no express mention is made of |

vesting in the Judicature the judicial power which
it already had and was wielding in its daily piocess
under the Cecurts Ordinance, there is provision
under Part 6 for the appointment of judges by a
Judicial Service Commission which shall not
contain a member of either House but shall be

composed of the Chief Justice and a judge and |

another person who is or shall have been a judge.

judges on the hearing of the inteioleutory appli-
cation which successfully challenged the Minister’s
nomination of three judges to try the accused.
(The Queen v. Livanage & Others (64 N.L.R,
313) ). The learned Attorney-General there
contended that “no separation of powers exists
under our Constitution and that if a separation
of powers exists dehors the wriitten constitution
it is a separation after the British method because
we have been accustemed to that kind of separation
throughout the British occupation of this
country ” (at p. 348). But he conceded that
there was a recognised separation of functions.
As the Court itself said (at p. 350). “That
a divisien of the three main functions of
Government is recognised in our Censtitution
was indeed conceded by the learned Attorney-
General himself. For the purposes of the present
case it is sufficient to say that he did not contest
that judicial power in the sense of the judicial
power of the State is vested in the Judicature i.e.
the established civil courts of this country. There
is no dispute that the three of us, as constituting,
for the purposecs of this Trial at Bar, the Supreme

Any attempt to influence any decision of the ' Court are called upon to exercise the strict judicial
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power of the State and in fact we have, all three | White Paper and were in prison awaiting their
of us, received at onec time ar another, but in | fate, The fact that the learned judges declined to
cach case before the Supreme Court was so called | convict some of the prisoners is not to the point.
upon o exercise judicial power, appointment | That the alterations in the law were not intended
by the Governor-General acting under section | for the generality of the citizens or designed as
52(1) of the 1946 Order in Council.” After a any improvement of the general law, is shown by
careful review of authorities the three learned | the fact that the effect of those alterations was
judges came (o the conclusions quoted previcusly | to be limited to the participants in the January
and decided that the Minister’s nomination of coup and that after these had been dealt with
judges was an infringement of the Judicial power | by the judges, the law should revert to its normal
of the State which cannot be reposed in anyone | state,

outside the judicature.

But such a lack of gencrality in criminal legis-

The learned Solicitor-General before the Board | latien need not, of itself, involve the judicial
has contended that the decision was wrong and | function, and their Tordships are not prepared to
that there was no separation of powers such as | hold that every enactment in this field which can
would justify it. But in their Lordships’ view | be described as ad hominem and ex post facto must
that decision was correct and thare exists a separate | inevitably usurp or infringe the judicial power,
power in the judicature which under the Censti- | Not do they find it necessary to attempt the
tution as it stands cannot be usurped or infringed | almost impossible task of tracing where the line

by the executive or the legislature. is to be drawn between what will and what will
; not constitute such an interference. Each case
Section 29 (1) of the Constitution says:— [ must be decided in the light of its own facts and

“Subject to the provisions of this Order Parliament circumstances, including the tive purpose of the
shall have power to make laws for the peace oider | legislation, the situation to which it was directed,
and good government of the Island.” These words | the existence (where several enactments are
have habitually been construed in their fullest impugned) of a common design, and the extent
scope. Section 29(4) provides that Parliament | to which the legislation affects, by way of direction
may amend the Constitution on a two-thirds | or restriction, the discretion or judgment of the
majority with a certificate of the Speaker. Their | judiciary in specific proceedings. It is therefore
Lordships however cannot read the words of necessary to consider more closely the nature of
section 29(1) as entitling Parliament to pass | the legislation challenged in this appeal,
legislation which usurps the Jjudicial powar of
the judicature — c.g. by passing an act of attainder Mr. Gratizen succinctly summarises his attack
against some person or instructing a judge t0 | on the Acts in question as follows. The frst
bring in a verdict of guilty against seme one who Act was whelly bad in that it was a special direction
is being tried—if in law such usurpation would |t theiudiciar}*astoIhetl_‘ialofparticularprisoners
otherwise be contrary to the Constitution. There who were identifiable (in view of the Whit - Paper)
was speeulation during the argument as to what and charged with particular offences on a particular
the p()ﬁl'tion \u‘r"Ul[]d be If Pﬂlvliﬁn]{:nt 5(‘3nght to OCcagion_ The pi[l*l and Subgtance ol both Acts
procuie such a result by first amending the Cons- was a legislative plan ex post facto to sccure
titution by a two-thirds majority. But such a | {he conviction and enhance the punishment of
situation does not arise here. In so far as any | those particular individuals, It legalised their
Act passed without recouise to section 29(4) imprisonment while they were awaiting trial.
of the Constitution purports to usurp or infringe | It made admissible their statements inadmissibly
the judicial power it is ulira vires. obtained duiing that period. It altered the funda-
mental law of evidence so as to facilitate their
But do the Acts of 1962, otherwise than in | conviction, And finally it altered ex post facto the
respect of the Minister’s nomination, usurp | punishment to be imposed on them.
or infringe that power ? It goes without saying that |
the legislature may legislate, for the generality | Tn their Lordships’ view that cogent summary
of its subjects, by the creation of crimes and fairly describes the effect of the Acts. As has
penalties or by enacting rules relating to evidence. | been indicated already, legislation ad fhominem
But the Acts of 1962 had no such general in- | which is thus directed to the course of particular
tention. They were clearly aimed at particular | proceedings may not always amount to an inter-
known individuals who had been named in a | ference with the functions of the Jjudiciary. But
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in the present case their Lordships have no doubt
that there was such interference; that it was not
only the likely but the intended cffect of the
impugned enactments: and that it is fatal to
their validity. The true nature and purpose of
these enactments arc revealed by their conjoint
impact on the specific proceedings in respect of
which they were designed, and they take their
colour, in particular, from the alterations they
purported to make as to their ultimate objective,
the punishment of those convicted. These alter-
ations constituted a grave and deliberate incursion
into the judicial sphere. Quite bluntly, their aim
vas to ensure-that the judges in dealing with these
patticular persons on these particular charges
were deprived of their normal discretion as
respects appropriate sentences. They were com-
pelled to sentence each offender on conviction
to not less than ten years’ imprisonment. and
compelled to order confiscation of his possessions,
even though his part in the canspiracy might have
been trivial.

The trial Court concluded its long and careful
judgment with these words (67 N.L.R. 194 at 424).

“But we must diaw attention to the fact
that the Act of 1962 radically altered ex post
facto the punishment to which the defendants
are rendered liable. The Act removed the

discretion of the Court as to the period of the |

sentence to be imposed, and compels the Court
to impose a term of 10 years imprisonment,
although we would have wished te differentiate

in the matter of sentence between those who |

organised the conspiracy and those who were
induced to join it. It also imposes a compulsory
forfeiture of property. These amendments were
not merely retroactive: they were also ad hoc,
applicable only to the conspiracy which was
the subject of the charges we have tried. We
are unable to understand’ this discrimination.
To the Courts, which must be free of political
bias, treasonable offences are equally heinous,
whatever be the complexion of the Government
in-power or whoever be the offenders.”

Their Lordships sympathise with that protest
and wholly agree with it.

One might fairly apply to these Acts the words
of Mr. Justice Chase in the Supreme Comt of

1965—Lord Pearce—Livanage & Qthers vs. The Queen

the United States in Calder v. Bull (1798) 1 Curtis
269 at 272 “These acts were legislative judgments;
‘and an exercise of judicial power.”

Blackstons in his Commentaries wrote at
p. 44 “Therefore a particular act of the legislature
to confiscate the goods of Titius, or to attaint him of
high treason, does not enter into the idea of a
municipal law: for the operation of this act is
spent upon Titius only and has no relation to the
community in general: it is rather a sentence than
a law.”

If such Acts as these were valid the judicial
power could be wholly absorbed by the legislature
| and taken out of the hands of the judges. It is
 appreciated that the legislature had no such general

intention. 1t was beset by a grave situation and it

took grave measures to deal with it, thinking,
one must presume, that it had power to do so
i and was acting rightly. But that consideration is
lirrelevant, and gives no validity to acts which
infringe the Constitution. What is done cnee, if
' it be allowed, may be done again and in a lesser
|erisis and less serious circumstances. And thus
|judicial power may be eroded. Such an erosion is
sontrary to the clear intention of the Constitution.
{n their Lordships’ view the Acts were ultra vires
‘;md invalid,

The appellants’ third argument as to the appel-
lants’ right to a jury does not therefore arise and
their Lordships express no opinion on the matter.

It may be that section 17 of the first Act can
gscape from its context and survive under the
uthority of Thambiayah v. Kulasingham (50
N. L. R. 25 at 37), but as their Lordships had no
argument on this point they prefer to express no

| opinion.

d

It was agreed between the parties that if the
| Acts were ultra vires and invalid, the convictions
! cannot stand. Their Lordships have therefore
humbly advised Her Majesty that these appeals
should be allowed and that the convictions should
‘ be quashed.

! Appeal allowed,
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Present : T. S. Fernando, J., and Alles, J.

S.C. No. 31/64 (Inty.)—D.C. Badulla, No. 892/ M.

Argued on ; 28th June, 1965.
Decided on : 23rd July, 1965,
Partnership—Whether property partnership property or only co-owned property—Section 20,
Lartnership Act, 1890—Power to appoint a receiver in respect of partnership property—Civil Procedure
Code, section 671,

The plaintiffs and the defendants purchased 5, Estate as co-owners, and they catried on in partnership the working
of the said estate, and also the purchase of green leaf and the manufacture and sale of tea from Ist February, 1956. The
plaintiffs instituted this action on 8th July, 1959, praying, inter afia, that the partnership be dissolved. The ease was finaliy
fixed for trial on 17th February, 1964, and on that day Court made order dissoly ing the partnership, and (despite the opposis
tion of the plaintifis) appointed a receiver to take cha rge of the estate. The plaintifis appealed from that part of the order
which appointed a receiver.

Held @ (1) That the estate was not partnership property, bul was property co-owned by the plaintiffs and the
defendant. The ultimate test of what is or is not partnership property must be the agreement of
the partners. Persons may be entitled jointly or in common to property, and the same persons
may be partners, and yet the property may not be partnership property.

(2) That further, after a partnership is dissolved, a Courl cannot appoint a receiver under section 671 of
the Civil Procedure Code.

Order appointing a receiver set aside.

C. Ranganathan, for the plaintiffs-appellants.
No appearance for the defendants-respondents,

T. S. FERNANDO, J. cin Court. It appears, however, that these terms
did not come to be embodied in an order or
The case in which this appeal has atisen has | decree of the Court at any stage of the proceed-
already followed a chequered course. It was ings in this case. Nevertheless, term 2 of the
filed as long ago as 8th June, 1959, by the plaintiffs | said terms of settlement was acted upon and the'
alleging that the defendants and they were carry- | possession and management of Singarawatte
ing on business in partnership since 1st February, | Estate appear to have been handed over on the
1956, and praying that (i) the partnership be dis- | order of the Court by consent of parties to ons
solved ; (i) that the defendants who were in | Mr. Taylor who has been referred to in the journal
control and management of the business of the | entries in this case as a receiver.
partnership be ordered to render an account of |
that business from date of commencement i On 24th November, 1960, the st plaintiff
(iii) that the defendants be ordered to pay to the applied to Court for an order removing the said
plaintiﬂ's the reasonable estimate 0!? their shars M; Ta}.fk)r from his office of receiver and for a
of the profits which shaie the plaintiffs valued at | furiher order that the latter do submit accounts
Rs. 21,000/ ; (iv) that the defendants be removed | of pis management of the business of the Estate.
from the custody and management of the partner- | By an order made on the 14th February, 1961,
ship business ; and (v) that a ieceiver be appointed ‘ Mr. Taylor’s appointment as receiver was can-
to take charge of the management of the business celled by the Court, with certain rights reserved
pending a final determination of the case. Ito Mr. Taylor and the partics. It would also
appear from the (ext of that order that the plain-
It must be mentioned that the 2nd defendant | tiffs have been in posscssion of Singarawatte
was actually brought in as a party to the case only | Estate since November, 1960. In what circum-
on 2nd November, 1959, after the lst defendant | stances they came to resume possession is not
had filed answer. On that day certain terms of | clear ; but it must be presumed that, although
settlement dated 29th October, 1959, were filed | the defendants were in possession of the estate as
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managers of the business of the partnership from
Ist February, 1956, the plaintifls always owned
a two-third share of the Estate.

Efforts appear to have been made about March,
1961, by the plaintiffs to have decree entered in
accordance with the terms of settlement dated
29th October, 1959, and to obtain the issue of a
commission to Messrs. Sambamoorthi & Co.,
Accountants, to examine the accounts. None of
these efforts succeeded and the case was refixed
for trial to bz held on 17th February, 1964. On
that day, after certain issues had been suggested
by counsel for both sides, the Court made the
following order :—

* As parties are agreed that the partnership
should be dissolved, 1 declare the partnership
dissolved as from today. A receiver should
now be appoeinted .”

Having made this order, in spite of the opposi-
tion of the plaintiffs to such a course, the Court
appointed a Mr. Wiggin **as receiver to take
charge of the custody and control of this cstate
and who will have all the powers and duties of a
receiver as from Ist March, 1964 . Certain
other orders also were made on this day, (i) on
Mr. Taylor 1o render accounts for the period
9th February, 1960 to 14th February, 1961 ; and
(ii) on the plaintiffs to render accounts from 14th
February, 1961 to 17th February, 1964. The
plaintiffs were ordered also to render all facilitics
to Mr. Wiggin to take over the custody and
management of the Estate.

By the present appeal to this Court the plaintiffs
canvass the legality of the order appointing Mr.
Wiggin as receiver as from 17th February, 1964,
No argument was presented against the order for
the dissolution of the partnership.

Learned counsel for the plaintiffs contended
that Singarawatte Estate was not the property of
the partnership that came into existence as from
1st February, 1956. Persons may be entitled
jointly or in common to property, and the same
persons may be partners, and yet that preperty
may not be partnership property. The ultimate
test of what is or is not partnership property must
bé¢ the agreement of the partners—see Lindley
on Partnership, 11th ed., p. 409,

The recitals in the partnership agreement—
document “* A —show that the parties (the two
plaintiffs and the two defendants) had puichased

Singarawatte Estate as co-owners and had been
carrying on in partnership the working of the said
Estate and also the purchase of green leaf and
the manufacture and sale of tea from Ist Feb-
ruary, 1956 : they also show that at the com-
mencement the two defendants had been managing
and running the said business on an informal
agreement and that as from the date of the written
agreement “* A "—Ist August, 1957—the defen-
dants were to be regarded as the managing partners
of the said business. Counsel contended that the
ownership (or co-ownership) of the Estate must
not be confused with the right to manage the
business which is the right to work the Estate and
do the other things specificd in the agreement as
forming part of that business. He referred to the
definition of partnership prop.rty in section 20
of the Partnership Act of 1890 and contended
that Singarawatte Estate was at no time brought
into the partnership by the four co-owners, and
that its ownership (or co-ownership) remained
always in the co-owners as co-owners and not as
partners of a business. Indeed. sub-section (3)
of that section goes as far as providing that—

“ Where co-owners of an estale or interest in any land,
not being itself partnership property, are partners as to
profits made by the use of that land or estate, and pur-
chase other land or estate oul of the profits to be used in
like manner, the land or estate so purchasad belongs to
them, in the absence of an agreement to the contrary,
not as partners but as co-owners for the same respective
estates and interests as are held by them in the land or
estate first mentioned at the date of purchase.”

1t is a matter for some regret that the defendants
who were represented by senior counsel from
Colombo at the proceedings in the District Court
held on 17th February, 1964, were unrepresented
before us. In considering the question raised on
this appeal we have, therefore. been without
assistance on behall of the defendants, but we
think the contenticn of plaintiff’s counsel is
correct.

It was argued before us that, after ordering a
dissolution of the partnership, it was not com-
petent for the Court to proceed to appoint a
receiver.  When the partnership was dissolved the
legal title to the shares in the Estate which was

throughout in the several co-owners remained

i with them without those obligations that follow

upon the existence of a partnership in respect of
' ths working of the Estate. Any obligation at law
| on the part of co-owners in possession to account
| for the shares of the produce that should go to
the other co-owners will then accrue only by
virtue of the common law and not by virtue of a
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partnership. The power of a Court fo appoint |re1ates to the appointment of a receiver. The
a receiver in terms of section 671 of the Civil | case should now be set down for the trial of the
Procedur¢ Code, plaintifi*s counsel contended. | remaining issues or any other issues which the
does not extend to enable an appointment to be | Court may permit the parties to raise. The
made even after a dissolution of the partnership. | parties will bear their own costs of the proceedings
I think this contention is also corrcct. The | of 17th February, 1964, in the District Court,
plaintiffs are co-owners, entitled to a two-third | but the defendants shall pay the plaintiffs the
share of this Estate, and they should not be dis- | costs of this appeal.
possessed of their property in favour of a receiver |
|
[

at this stage when the partnership for the working | Ajpes, 1.
of the Estate has been dissolved by order of the | e
Court. | e
I set aside that part of the order of the District Order appointing
Court made on 17th Fgbruary, 1964, which | receiver sel aside.

Present @ Alles, J.

Argued on : 15th October, 1965.
Decided on : 28th October, 1965,

Maintenance Ordinance (Cap. 91), sections 13, 14, 15, 16—Criminal Procedure Code, sections 298,
299—Oral examination required by section 14 in maintenance proceedings—Condition precedent to issue
of summons—~Procedure to be followed in recording such evidence.

1i was submitted by counsel for the applicant, whose application for maintenance the learned Magistrate had refused,
that the case should be sent back for re-trial before another Magistrate as there had been a breach of the mandatory pro-
visions of section 14 of the Maintenance Ordinance. Although oral evidence of the applicant had been recorded prior
to issue of summons as required by that section, it was submitted that section 299 of the Criminal Procedure Code should
have been complied with in regard to such evidence and that the entire proceedings were rendered null and void by such

non-compliance.

Held : That although an examination under section 14 of the Maintenance Ordinance is a condition precedent
to the issue of summons in proceedings under that Ordinance, it is not necessary that the procedure
laid down in section 299 of the Criminal Procedure Code should be followed.

Per ALLES, J.—" Section 16 of the Maintenance Ordinance requires that all evidence shall be recorded in the manner
prescribed for trials in the Magistrate’s Court and section 298 of the Criminal Procedure Code prescribes the procedure
for recording evidence at inquiries and trials in District Courts and Magistrate’s Courts. Therefore, that portion of the
learned Chicf Justice's dictum which states that section 298 of the Criminal Procedure Code is applicable to the recording
of evidence in proceedings under the Mainlenance Ordinance can be supported. But with all respect to the learned Chief
Justice that portion of the dictum which states that the provisions of section 299 apply would appear to have been made
per incuriam. This view is fortified by the observations made by Weerasooriya, I., in Gunadasa v. Pemawathie, 60 C.L.W,
19, where the learned Judge took the same view which T have taken in this case.

Cases referred to 1 Anna Perera v. Emaliagio Nonis, (1908) 12 N.L.R, 263 : 1 Cur, L.R, 120
Namasivayam v. Saraswathy, (1949) 50 N.L.R, 333 ; XXXIX C.L.W. 71.
Sebastianpillai v. Magdalen, (1949) 50 N.L.R. 494 ; XLI C.L.W. 2.
Rupasinghe v. Somawathie, (1959) 61 N.L.R, 457.
Gunadasa v. Pemawathie, (1961) LX C.L.W. 19.
Baby Nona v. Kahingala, (1964) 66 N.L.R. 361.

E. St. N. D. Tillekeratne, for the applicant-appellant.
No appearance for the defendant-respondent.
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ALLES, I

This is an appeal by an applicant in maintenance
proceedings dismissing her application for main-
tenance against the defendant in respect of her
illegitimate child.
ings, the defendant admitted paternity but sub-
mitted that the applicant could not maintain the
action.

The proceedings commenced with an application
under section 13 of the Maintenance Ordinance
for an order of maintenance. In her application
made on 14th February, 1964, the applicant said
that the child was born on 28th April, 1962,
although in her evidence under section 14 of the
Ordinance she said she gave birth to the child on
28th April. 1963. 1In the course of the proceedings,
the Birth Certificate was produced marked P 1
according to which the child was born on 28th
April, 1962. Since the application was made
twelve months after the birth of the child, theie
should have been evidence that during that period
the father bad maintained the child—vide sec-
tion 6 of the Ordinance. In her
recorded under section 14 she said that the defen-
dant had * failed to maintain the child since it’s
birth ” although in the course of the trial she said
that the defendant gave her two sums of money,
Rs. 10/- and Rs. 5/- for the child two months
after its birth., In view of the discrepancy be-
tween the applicant’s evidence under section 14
and her subsequent evidence at the f(rial, the
Magistrate quite rightly disbelieved her and her
witnesses with regard to these payments and I sce
no reason to interfere with his finding on this
question of fact,

The only matier that arises for consideration
in this appeal is whether | should accede to the
submissicn of Counsel for the applicant that the
case should be sent back tor re-tiial before another
Magistrate, since in his submission there has been
a breach of the mandatory provisions of section 14.
Section 14 provides that on an application for
maintepance under section 13, the Magistiate
shall commence the inquiry by examining the
applicant on oath or affirmation and that such
examination shall be duly recorded. It is now
settled law that it is a condition-precedent to the
issue of summons in proceedings under the Main-
tenance Ordinance that the oral testimouy of the
applicant must be taken on cath or affirmation,

1965-—Alles, J.—Missi Nona vs. Weerasooriva

In the course of the proceed- |

testimony |

13

would render a subsequent inquiry null and void
| -—vide Rupasinghe v. Somawathie, (1959) 61
N.L.R. 457 and Baby Nona v. Kchingala, (1964)
66 N.L.R. 361.

Counsel in the present case, however, relied on
the following passage in the judgment of Bas-
| nayake, CJ., in Rupasinghe v. Somawathie, at
| page 459 @

*“ The deposition of an applicant who is examined
under section 14 must be recorded us prescribed in sec-
tion 293 of the Criminal Procedure Code and read over
to the witness as required by section 299 (1) of that Code
and the other requirements of that section must be com-
plied with. The requirements of section 14 and the pro-
visions of the Code have not been complied with, That
non-compliance is fatal to the order made by the Magis-
trate and renders it null and void,

In his submission since the provision of sec-
| tion 299 of the Criminal Procedure Code were
| not complied with in the present case the entire
proceedings are null and void and, therefore, the
applicant 15 entitled to a re-trial.

In Anna Perera v. Fmaliano Nonis, (1908) 12
N.L.R., at 263, a Bench of two Judges consisting
of Justice Middleton and Justice Woodrenton
(as he then was) held that only those sections of
the Criminal Procedure Code which are expressly
incorporated into the Maintenance Ordinance are
applicable to proceedings under the Ordinance.
i Woodrenton, J., specifically drew attention to

sections 15, 16 and 17 of the Ordinance. The
|dccisi0n in Anna Percra v. Emaliano Nonis was
followed by Basnayake, C.J., in Baby Nona v.
Kahingala. The learned Chief Justice specifically
drew attention to the fact that a Magistrate when
acting under the Ordinance may exercise only the
powers expressly conferred on the Magistrate’s
Court under the Criminal Procedure Code. He
then proceeded to examine the provisions of sec-
tions 15, 16 and 17 of the Maintenance Ordinance
under which it was possible to invoke the various
pravisions of the Criminal Procedure Code and
concluded by saying that ** only those provisions
of the Criminal Procedure Code expressly declared
to be applicable to the proceedings under the
Ordinance, apply . Section 16 of the Main-
tenance Ordinance requires that all evidence shall
be recorded in the manner prescribed for trials in
|the Magistrate Court and section 298 of the
' Criminal Procedure Code prescribes the pro-

cedure for recording evidence at inquirics and

so that the Magistiate may be satisfied that there | trials in District Courts and Magistrate’s Courts,
is sufficient ground for further proceedings ; a | Therefore, that portion of the learned Clue{
nonscompliance with these provisions of the law | Justice’s dictum which states that section 298 of
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the Criminal Procedure Code is applicable to the
recording of evidence in proceedings under the
Maintenance Ordinance can be supported. But
with all respect to the learned Chief Justice that
portion of the dictum which states that the pro-
visions of section 299 apply would appear to have
been made per incuriam. This view is fortified
by the observations made by Wecrasooriya, J.,

in Gunadasa v. Pemawathie, 60 C.L.W. 19, where ]

the learned Judge took the same view which I have
taken in this case. At the time Weerasooriya, J,,
delivered his order in Gunadasa v. Pemawathic
he did not have the advantage of the learned
Chief Justice's observations in the Divisional
Bench case of Baby Nona v. Kahingala where no
reference is made whatsoever to either section 298
or section 299 of the Criminal Procedure Code.

It is not out of place to note that in Rupasinghe
v. Semawathie the reference was made to a Bench
of two Judges in view of the conflicting decisions
in Namasivayam v. Saraswathy, 50 N.L.R. 333
and Sebastianpillai v. Magdalen, 50 N.L.R. 494,
as to whether the examination of an applicant on
oath or affirmation was a condition-precedent
to the issue of summons in maintenance pre-
ceedings. The manner in which that evidence
has to be led was not one of the matters which
was referred to the Bench for decision.
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Finally, having regard to the purpose for which
| the evidence of the applicant has to be led under
| section 14 before the issue of summons, it seems
‘ unnecessary that the intricate procedure laid down
. in section 299 should be strictly complied with.
| The only object of leading the evidence of the
’ applicant on oath or affirmation under section 14
|is to ensure that the Magistrate is satisfied that
it is a fit case in which summons should issue,
{ as stated by Basnayake. C.J., in Namasivayam v,
| Saraswarhy, * the legislature has in its wisdom
, enacted this provision as a safeguard against a
‘ person being summoned on an unsworn. allegation
| to answer charges of neglect of refusal to main-
| tain his wife or child lsgitimate or illegitimate. >
; It is unnecessary to follow the procedure laid
down in section 299 of the Criminal Procedure
Code in order to achieve this object.

I am, therefore, of the view that Counsel’s sub-
mission that section 299 of the Criminal Pro-
cedure Code should be complied with in an
examination under section 14 of the Maintenance
Ordinance is unnecessary. The appeal is, there-
fore dismissed.

Appeal dismissed.

Present ;: Abeyesundere, J., and G. P. A, Silva, J.
M. M. HANIFFA vs. _A L. M. SAMSUDEEN.

S.C. 4/62—D.C. Panadura, 6242.

Argued on : 12th and 13th May, 1965.
Decided on : 13th May, 1965.

Partition Ordinance, No. 10 of 1863, section 5—Notice required thereunder-—[Is the Conmissioner
required o state in his report whether or not such notice was given ?

Where on a plea taken by a

parly to a partition action instituted under the repealed Partition Ordinance, No. 10

of 1863, the District Judge held that the final decree was of no force or avail in law because the Commissioner had failed

to give due notice as provided by section 5 of the said Ordinance merely

notstate or indicate that the said notice was given—

Held : Thal the learned District Judge
of law

that requires the Commissioner to state in his report whether or not the said

for the reason that the Conunissioner’s report did

had misdirected himselfin coming to that conclusion. There is no provision

notice was given,

A. C. Gooneratne with L. W. Athulathmudali for the plaintiffs-appecllants,
D. R. P. Goonetillake, for the defendant-respondent.

ABEYESUNDERE, J,

The plaintiff, instituied this action against the
defendant praying for a declaration of title to an

| undivided seven-eighth shares of the land des-
| cribed as lot A in the plaint, for the ejectment of
| the defendant and for damages. The learned
| District Judge who tried the action dismissed it

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org |-aavanaham.org
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holding that the defendant is entitled to the
interest in the said land claimed by him in the
amended answer. The plaintiffs have appealed
from the judgment and decree of the lcarncd!
District Judge. |

The title claimed by the plaintiffs is derived |
from the final decree in partition action, No. TK
1233/10213 of the District Court of Kalutara. The |
defendant has pleaded that such final decree is of
no force or avail in law as against him because the !
Commissioner appointed for the purpose of the
said partition action has failed to give notice of |
the proposed partition to the public by beat of |
tom tom as required by section 5 of the now |
repealed Partition Ordinance under which the said |
partition action has been instituted and deter-
mined. Issues 14 and 15, which relate to the said |
plea of the defendant, are as follows — i

“14. Was the final plan in case No. 1233 of
this Court made by the Commissioner in the said |
casc after due notice as provided by law ? -

“15. 1If not, is the said final decree, il any,
of any force or avail in law as against this |
defendant ? 7 |

The learned District Judge answered these issues |
as follows :—
“14. The Commissioner in TK 1233 has
not given the due notice as required by law.

“15. No, the final decree is of no force or
avail in law as against the defendants,”

The reason for the learned District Judge's
finding that the Commissioner had not given the
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said notice is that the Commissioner’s report does
not state or indicate that the said notice was given.
There is no provision of law which requires the
Commissioner to state in his report whether or
not the said notice was given. The learned District
Judge has, therefore, misdirected himself in
inferring that the Commissioner had not given the
said notice from the fact that the Commissioner’s
report does not state or indicate that the said
notice was given. 1 hold that the answers of the
learned District Judge to issues 14 and 15 are
incorrect and that the defendant has failed to
prove that the Commissioner had failed to give the
said notice.

Issue 5 relates to the question whether the
defendant is entitled to the interest in the said land
claimed by him in his amended answer. The
learned District Judge has answered that issue in
the affirmative but he has failed to indicate in his
judgment whether the defendant’s title to the said
interest is based on the deeds produced by him or
on prescription. Issue 2 relates to prescriptive
rights of parties. Although the learned District
Judge has stated that the plaintiffs have not
acquired any prescriptive rights, he has not stated
in his judgment whether or not the defendant has
acquired any prescriptive rights,

I set aside the judgment and decree of the
learned District Judge and 1 direct the District
Court of Panadura to try this action afresh. The
appellants are entitled to the costs of their appeal.
G.P. A. SiLva, J.

I agree.
Appeal allowed.

Present : Herat, J., and Abeyesundere, J.

In the matter of an application under the provisions of section 68 of the Courts Ordinance,
Chapter 6, of the Legislative Enactments of Ceylon with respect to the Estate of the late
Dr. Sabarathinam Rathinanayagam of No. 119, McCarthy Road, Colombo 7.

S.C. Application, No. 254 of 1963,

In RE RATHINANAYAGAM

Argued and decided :

July 29, 1963.

Sole Testamentary jurisdiction, application for—Minor heirs—Appointment of * guardian-ad
liteim "—Which District Court has jurisdiction—Courts Ordinance section 69 (1).

Held : That where the minor heirs and the property
of Colombo, a petitioner in an application

concerned are within the jurisdiction of the District Cour
for conferment of sole testamentary jurisdiction on the said

District Court is entitled under section 69 (1) of the Courts Ordinance to make an application to that
Court for the purpose of appointing a guardian-ad-litem in respect of such minors.

S. Sharvananda with S. Basnayake, for the petitioner,

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org
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ABEYESUNDERE, J. informs ws that the minors and the property
On 5th June, 1963, this Court made order that, cofcerned are within the jurisdiction of the
as there are three minors mentioned as heirs of | Djstru.‘i. Court of C(]}Omb.ﬂ' We are, ‘herchi‘es
the deccased, a guardian-ad-litem should be | Of the view that by reason of the aforesaid provision
appointed and a minute of consent be obtained | °F law the District Court of Coiomtyo can entertain
from him, and _makc an order on an anplication for the
appointment of a guardian-ad-litem in respect
We are now informed by Mr. Sharvananda | of the aforesaid minors for the purpose of the
who appears for the petitioner that there is no | application made by the petitioner to this Court.
District Court which has jurisdiction to deal with | The petitioner should make an application to the
an application for the appointment of a guardian- District Court of Colombo for the appointment
ad-litem @s this matter relates to an application  of a guerdian-ad-litem in respect of the minors
to this Court for the conferment of sole | and after such guardian is appointed she should
testamentary jurisdiction on the District Court of | obtain a minute of consent from such guardian
Colombo with regard to the estate in Ceylon of | and renew the application which she has made
a person who has died outside Ceylon. Subsection | to this Court,
(1) of section 69 of the Courts Ordinance provides
that the care of the persons of minors and the
charge of their property shall be subject to the
Jurisdiction of the District Court. Mr. Sharvananda

Herar, 1.
[ agree. ' D;‘rm"rfcms Jor appointiment
of guardian given.

Present: Sri SE;anda_Rajah., J.
SOORIYAARATCHI vs. KULARATNE

S.C. 133/65 C.R. Kalutara 5732,
Argued and decided on: 10th February, 1966.

Landlord and tenani—Notice to quit—Validity.

. The tenancy in this case was a monthly tenancy and had commenced on 1st February 1964. Only one calendar month’s
notice was required by the luw, The notice given by the landlord was dated 20th August 1964 and requested the tenant to
vacate “within a period of three months from the date hereof.”

It was submitted on behalf of the defendant-appellant that although the notice gave the tenant three months® time,
nevertheless it was not a valid notice as it did not run concurrently with a term of the letting and hiring and expire at the
end of such a term. The issuc as to whether the notice was valid had been raised by piaintilf at the trial and had been ans-
wered in the plaintiff's favour,

Held: That althovgh the notice gave the tenant three month's time to vacate the premises, it did not terminate
the tenancy at the end of any calendar month of the tenancy, The netice was therefore not valid and
the plaintiff's action must fail.

N. 8. A. Goonetillzke, for the defendant-appellant.

N. E. Weerasooria (Jnr)), for the plaintiff-respondent.

Skri Skanpa Raran, I BICATHSES o csiion) within a period of 3 months
from the date hereof............ #

The plaintiff purchased the premises in qusstion
on the 31st of Janunary, 1964. At the trial tenancy
was admitted and it would appear that tenancy
commenced on the lst of February., 1964, One
calendar month’s notice is the notice that is

Though this notice gave 3 months’ time to
vacate the premises the tenancy was pot terminated
by this notice at the end of any calendar month:
Therefore, the notice was not valid,

required to be given under the law. The notice Tssue No. 1 which was raised by the plaintiff,
given by the plaintiff to the defendant reads as | should have been answered in the negative and
follows ' — the action, therefore, dismissed with costs.

I would, thercfore, set aside the judgment of
20th August, 1964, | the learned Commissioner and dismiss the plain-
tiff’s action with costs. I would reserve to the
“I am instrucled by my client M. S. E. Kularatne | Gcfendant the right to recover any excess payment.
of 10, Mosque Street, to request you to vacate | L€ appellant will have costs of this appeal.

e aceful 085¢581 ] wed,
and hand over e fi pjs%%\?iz%g byo OOFE!%%FH Foundation. Appeaz' allowed,
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org
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Present: Sansoni, C.J. & Silva, J.

B. S, DE SILVA v. G. M, A, DE SILVA AND OTHERS

S.C. No. 58 (Inty) 1965 — D.C. Galle Case No. 1812/{MB

Argued on: 25th March, 1966.
Decided on: 6th April, 1966.

Mortgage action — Sale in execution of decree — Application by purchaser to set aside sale —
Misrepresentation—Purchaser misled regarding size and nature of property — Grant of relief by Court—
Whether purchaser entitled to make such application for relief.

Auctioneer made party to proceedings—Whether this permissible—Allegations against such auction-

eer—Civil Procedure Code, section 344,

Held:

(1) That where a purchaser at a sale held in pursuance of a decree in a mortgage action is misled

in regard to the size and nature of the property the Court should grant relief to such purchaser
in the absence of a positive provision of law which stands in the way of such relief being granted.

(2)
be affirmed.

Held further: (3)

That, therefore, the learned trial Judge’s order setting aside the sale in the present case should

That there was no provision of law or judicial decision which precluded the entertainment of

the application made by the first respondent (the purchaser of the property) or of the grant

of relief sought,

“)
party to these proceedings.

Case referred to:

That in the circumstances of the case the fourth respondent (the auctioneer) was properly made a

Kaia Mea v. Harperink (1909) T,L.R. 36 Calcutta 323

N.E. Weerasooria, Q.C., with M. T. M. Sivardeen and W.S. Weerasooria, for the plaintiff (respon-

dent)-appellant.
C. Ranganathan, Q.C., with S. Sharvananda

for the purchaser (petitioner)-respondent.

F. A. Abeywardena, for the 4th defendant-respondent,

N. R, M. Daluwatte, for the 1st defendant-respondent.

G. P. A. Silva, J.

The question that arises for decision in this
case is whether the learned District Judge's order
setting aside a sale of certain premises in a mort-
gage action in pursuance of the decree is in order.
The plaintiff-appellant, who was the mortgagee
of certain land and premises at Ambalangoda
situated by the Galle Road, put his bond in
suit and, after the decree of Court, obtained a
commission in favour of D. G. Ratnapala,
Auctioneer to sell the mortgaged premises. The
auctioneer, who is the 4th respondent to this
appeal, held the sale, after due publication, on
the 24th May 1961. At the sale, Mrs. Agnes de
Silva the st respondent, became the purchaser of
the property at a bid of Rs. 60,135/- and paid the
4th respondent a cheque for Rs, 6,013/50 being

1/10th of the purchase mouney. On the 30th day
after the sale when the balance purchase money
had to be deposited in Court the 1st respondent
made an application for two months time which
was refused. Six weeks after this date the Ist
respondent filed a petition and affidavit praying
that the sale held on the 24th May be set aside
and that the 1/10th purchase money deposited
by her be i1efunded on the ground that the 4th
respondent auctioneer made a certain misrepre-
sentation which led the petitioner to believe that
a strip of land on the west of the property mort-
gaged extending up to the parapet wall, the parapet
wall itself by the Galle-Colombo main road and
another strip of land on the southern side extending
| up to the boundary fence were being put up for
sale as part of the mortgaged property. She added
that she discovered this misrepresentation regar-
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ding the identity of the property about a month |
later, the result being that the most valuable portion
of the land the petitioner purported to buy did
not form part of the mortgaged property, and
alleged that, had it not been for this misrepresen-
tation, she would not have offered the price she
did for the property. After an exhaustive inquiry |
the learned District Judge upheld the contention
of the petitioner and ordered that the sale be
set aside and that the amount deposited by her
be refunded. The present appeal is from this order
on the ground that the said judgment is erroneous
in law and that the Judge had misdirected himself
on the question of fact that there had been a
misrepresentation by the auctioneer.

At the argument in appeal, Counsel for the |
appellant contended that the oral evidence re-
garding any misrepresentation by the auctioneer
was most flimsy and unsatisfactory and was con-
tradicted by the petitioner’s witness himself |
and that the District Judge should therefore not |
have acted on that evidence, In order to support
his contention he pointed out that the real pur-
chaser was the husband of the petitioner who had
decided to buy the property if he was able to
obtain it below a certain price and that the bid
was made by his agent Hettiarachi who was
merely given instructions tc bid at the auction
sale and that whatever representation was made
by the auctioneer, even if such a representation
had been made, would not have made a difference
to the offer made by the agent. He relied on this
fact to contradict the petitioner’s contention and
in some way to show the mala fides of the applica-
tion to set aside the sale. He also submitted that
the advertisement pave the correct boundaries |
of the property and that a purchaser should have
been guided by the advertisement and that even
if any oral representation had been made they
were not relevant to the issue. He relied also on
the description of the property given in the con-
ditions of sale which gave the correct boundaries.

In support of the Ist respondent the following
points were urged.

(1) the absence of any demarcations on the
ground apart from.the parapet wall and
the fence to put any person even on inquiry
as to whether the premises that were being
auctioned comprised an extent smaller than
the land that was enclosed by the parapet:
wall and the fence,

the oral evidence accepted by the District
Judge that the auctioneer announced the
sale of the entire land.

(1

‘the presence of the purchaser at the Fiscal’s
sale near the premises, who could hear
what was stated by the auctioneer even
though the bidder, Hettiarachi, was sent
by the husband of the purchaser as his
agent for the purpose of making a bid.

3)

The absence of a cart road to the house
which was put up for sale, if the portions
alleged by the appellant to be outside the
subject matter of the sale are in fact excluded
from the premises which the 1st respondent
says was her intention to purchase, (the
suggestion being that the Ist respondent
would never have given the offer of Rs.
60,135/50 if she did not belicve that there
was no motorable access.)

“

the fact that in the report that was made to
Court (Document P3) by the auctioneer,
dated 10. 4. 61, containing the appraise-
ment of the property to be sold, he had
included the parapet wall which was
valued at a thousand rupees as well as the
coconut trees that stood on the property
up to the parapet wall,

()

The last item on which the 1st respondent placed
much emphasis appears to us to be a strong
circumstance which supports the oral evidence
of the 1st respondent in regard to the representation
made by the auctioneer and her own mistaken
impression of the size of the property which she

| purchased at the sale. Coupled with this circums-

tance it is of very great significance in this case
that the only person who could have contradicted
the evidence of the 1st respondent and her witness,
namely, the auctioneer, who was the 4th res-
pondent at the inquiry into this application, did
not choose to give evidence, While these were
the points urged by Counsel for the respondent,
the learned District Judge has taken into account
a number of other factors regarding the conduct
of the auctioneer before the sale which have
induced him to hold that the 1st respondent
was misled in regard to the size and the nature
of the property she was bidding for. These factors
are that the auctioneer came up to the entrance
at the gate near which the petitioner’s car was

| parked and announced that the whole property

up to the gate would be sold; that this was followed
by tom-tom beating and that the tom-tom beating
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was at the entrance to the property which ex-
tended up to the parapet wall. What is important
in this case is the state of mind of the purchaser
and as to whether that state of mind which led
her to believe that she was bidding for the entire
property was induced by a positive misrepre-
sentation or even by an incorrect representation
which the auctioneer believed to be true. Whether
such representation was by words or by conduct
is in our view immaterial, The question is whether
the purchaser was misled into believing that she
was buying a larger property with a road frontage
abutting it and with a motorable road access and
in that belief made an offer for the property
which in fact did not possess these attributes and
whether, when such matters are represented to
the Court for the purpose of obtaining relief,
a Court, if satisfied that the complaint is well
founded, should refuse to grant relief. We think
it is the duty of the Court to grant relicf in those
circumstances in the absence of a positive pro-
vision of law which stands in the way of the
Court granting such relief.

The learned District Judge has on a careful
‘analysis of the evidence come to the conclusion
that the purchaser was in fact misled. The sub-
missions made on behalf of the appellant do
not persuade us to take a contrary view.

The other question for consideration therefore
is whether there is any legal bartier against giving
the relief desired. Having regard to the provisions
of the Civil Procedure Code and the number of
judicial pronouncements which have been con-
sidered by the learned District Judge, we cannot
say that there is any provision of law or any
judicial decision which precludes the entertainment
of the application of the Ist respondent by the
Court or of the grant of the relief sought. On the
contrary, it seems to us that the tiend of judicial
.decisions favours the grant of relief in circumstan-
ces such as those present in the instant case. It
is apposite to quote in this connection the following
words of the Privy Council decision in Kala
Mea v, Harperink (1908)—ILR 36 Calcutta 323,

which was cited both in the lower court and before !

this court which should serve as a guide to the
Courts’ responsibility on the matter of sales which
are ordered on their directions;

“1t has been laid down again and again that in sales
under the direction of the Court it is incumbent on the
Court to be scrupulous in the extreme and very careful
to see that no taint or touch of fraud, or deceit or misrepre-
sentation is found in the conduct of its ministers., The
Court, it is said, must at any rate, not fall below the
standard of honesty which it exacts from those on whom
it has to pass judgment. The slightest suspicion of trickery
or unfairness must affect the honour of the Court and
impair its usefulness. It would be disastrous, it would
be shocking if theCourt were to enforce against 4 purchaser
misled by its duly accredited agents a bargain so illusory
and so unconscientious as this.”

For these reasons we se¢ no reason to interfere
with the order made by the learned District Judge

It was submitted on behalf of the 4th respondent
that there was no provision to make him a party
to these proceedings relating to Section 344 of
the Civil Procedure Code. It would appear that
the 4th respondent raised no objection to his
being made a party at the inception of the inquiry.
He took part in the proceedings and although the
whole point of the inquiry turned on the question
of certain representations said to have been made
by him he chose to give no evidence. If indeed
the allegations were well founded this is a case
where much responsibility would have to be
taken by the 4th respondent and the rules of
natural justice required that he should be given
notice of such proceedings. In fact a serious and
legitimate complaint could have been made by
him if indeed he was not made a party. Fer that
reason alone we think that the petitioner acted
correctly when the 4th respondent was made a

party to the original proceedings and the learncd
District Judge’s order in this regard merits no
criticism,

The appeal is dismissed with costs payable to
the 1st respondent.

Sansoni, C.J.
1 agree.

Appeal dismissed.
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IN THE COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEAL

Present: T. S. Fernando, J. (President), Abeyesundere, J., and G. P. A. Silva, J.
S. D. FRANCIS APPUHAMY anp THREE OTHERS vs. THE QUEEN

C.C.A. Appeals Nos. 116-119 of 1965 (with Applications Nos. 140-143 of 1965)
S.C. 287—M.C. Panadura 80408.

Argued on: 28th February, Ist, 2nd and 7th March, 1966.
Decided on: Tth March, 1966.
Reasons delivered on: 29th March, 1966.

Court of Criminal Appeal—Charges of unlawful assembly, murder and attempted murder, common
intention — Five accused — One accused acquitted—Effect on convictions of others—No misdirection—
Verdict not unreasonable—Only one eye-witness—Indivisibility of credibility—Limits of such principle—
Identity of fifth man — Surprise—Whether new case set up — No misdirection on common intention—
Prosecution failing to call witness — Presumption drawn under Evidence Ordinance (Cap. 14), section
114(f) — Penal Code, sections 32, 140, 146, 296, 300.

The four appellants and one D, §. were indicted on 15 charges : charge 1 that they were the members of an unlawful
assembly, the common object of which was to cause hurt to one E. Charges 2 to § were based on an imputation of
vicarious criminal liability for the acts of one or more members of that unlawful assembly in Killing two persons, C. and T,
and attempting to kill five persons, Charges 9 to 15 were against the five accused on an imputation that the said acts of
killing or attempts to kill the said bersons were done in furtherance of the common intention of all,

The Jury by a verdict of five to two found the four appellants guilty on all the charges, and D.S. (the fifth accused)
not guilty of any offence.

Apart from the medical evidence, the evidence of the Government Analyst and Police and other formal evidence,
the case of the Crown rested on the sole testimony of a single eye-witness, Irene Rodrigo, the mistress of E.. At the trial
i ify all five accused as having taken part in the incident, and as having had weapons (first four accused,
guns, and the fifth accused, a revolver) in their hands, with the help of bright electric light at the junction where the incident
was alleged to have taken place at about 11.30 p.m, She also described the entire incident,

In her evidence she stated that while the firing was going on, the 5th accused D.S, who was a driver employed under
the 2nd accused was seen firing three or four times shaking the pistol. In her statement to the Police on the same night
(4D3), she had stated that she **did not know the name of the person who fired 1wo or three shots with a pistol,” and had

described that man as a driver who lived at Katubedde Junction — not even as a driver employed under the 2nd accused,
The trial Judge directed the Jury as follows:—

“Then gentlemen, in regard to these people she says that she knew them; she knew them by name; but she says in
regard to the 5th accused, she knew the man, but she had forgotten his name. Now there, gentlemen, comment has been
very legitimately made by the defence, “Well, in that case why did she not say to the police I know the man, but I have
forgotten his name,’.....................

“If, in view of that discrepancy, you think that it was not the 5th accused that she referted to at that time, but
some other man, and that later she has brought in the 5th accused saying that it was Podda’s (2nd accused’s) driver, then,
the benefit of that doubt must be given to the 5th accused that she has not correctly idcptiﬁed, and ,.....if she has made

The main ground of appeal relied on by counsel or all four appellants was that the verdict on the 1st to 5th charges
(the unlawful assembly charges) was unreasonable in the light of the acquittal of the fifth accused.

Held: (1) That in view of this direction, the Jury’s verdict could fairly be taken as indicating that they merely entertained
a rcasonable doubt about the identity, but not about the presence, of a fifth man,

The trial Judge further directed the Jury as follows:—

“If you think that she did not know the assailants, or if you think that she never saw the assailants because they
nhever got out of the car, then you will remember, if that is your opinion, that you are disbelieving Irene; or in your con-
sideration of the evidence you come to the conclusion that that is possible, then there is no use going further, for then Irene
has told a false story in.the box.” :



Vol. LXX 1966—T. S. Fernando, J.—Appuhamy & Others vs. The Queen 21

Later he said: “If Irene's evidence has satisfied you that the Ist, 2nd, 3rd and 4th and another man were there, be-
cause if you have doubts in view of Irene earlier having said that it was a man she knows but she did not give the name of
the man, or that it was Podda’s driver — though she said it was a driver — if that creates a doubt in your mind with
regard to the 5th accused, then the 5th accused is out. If you accept Irene’s evidence that these five people were there, or
that the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th accused and another man were there, then...... we have to consider the Crown charge that there
was an unlawful assembly.”” The Judge also directed the Jury that Irenc had never swerved from her position that there
were five persons.

Held: (2) (a) That the said directions were not unfair in the circumstances, since the Crown had to prove the
existence of the unlawful assembly and the identification of the members thereof;

(4) That it was not correct to state that the Judge was setting up a new case altogether from that
which the prosecution alleged and the defence had to meet,

(3) That inreturning the verdicts on the first eight charges, the Jury were undeniably satisfied that there were
five persons, four of whom were the four appellants, and in the light of the directions given by the
Judge, it was not permissible to infer that the Jury considered Irene’s evidence in respect of  her
identification of the 5th accused to be false, and the high probability was that they concluded that
she was merely mistaken in regard to the identity of the fifth man.

Distinguished: Mohamed Fiaz Baksh v. The Queen (1958) A.C. 167; (1958) 2 W.L.R. 536
R. v. Margulas (1922) 17 Cr. AR. 3.

{4) That there was no substance in the argument that the defence was taken by surprise by a case of an alle-
gation of unlawful assembly composed of the appellants and an unidentified man being sprung upon it
for the first time during the summing-up of the trial Judge. So long as the Crown was able Lo estab-
lish the presence of the requisite number of persons with a common object, the unlawful assembly was
complete. All that was thereafter necessary was identification of those proved to be present.

Referred to:  Dalip Singh v. State of Punjab (1953) ALR. (8.C.) 366
The King v. Fernando et al. (1947) 48 N.L.R, 200
Distinguished: Jayaram v. Saraph (1954) 56 N.L.R. 22.

(5) Thatwhileit was truethata doubtinrespect of the presence of a named man cannot amount to proof
beyond reasonable doubt of the presence of an unnamed man, the verdict in the light of the directions
given to the Jury meant that the Jury was quite satisfied that five persons were’present doing the acts
attributed to them by Irene.

(6) That indirecting the Jury on the charges based on common intention, the trial Judge had placed the
burden on the prosecution at the highest possible level, and the verdict showed that the Jury was
satisfied that the appellants had agreed to kill. The directions were neither inadequate nor unfair.

With regard to the omission to call the witness Gilbert and or other similar witnesses who were present at the time
of the shooting, the trial Judge directed as follows: “............you may infer that the Crown did not call the others because
they are not in position to speak to the assailants. You may infer that theyare witnesses who do not help the prosecution
case............ I think the simple point for you to decide is this: do you accept the testimony of Irene.If you are doubting
the evidence of Irene, then you must acquit the accused.” It was submitted on behalf of the appellants that the directions
to the jury on this point were wrong and contrary to the presumption that could have been drawn under section 114(f) of
the Evidence Ordinance.

Held: (7) That the direction put the matter as favourably as possible to the defence.

Referred to: The King v. Chalo Singho (1941) 42 N.L.R. 269; XX C.L.W. 21
R. v. Olivia (1965) 3 A.E.R. 116 ; (1965) 1 W.L.R. 1028 ;
R. v. Edwards, Underwood & Edwards (1848) 3 Cox. C.C. 82; 11 L.T.0.S. 50; 12'1.P. 795

Per T. S. Fernando, J. — “The remark that credibility of witnesses could not be treated as divisible cameto be made
in the circumstances related above. We do not think this remark can be the fouadation for a principle that the levidence
of a witness must be accepted completely or not at all. Certainly in this country it is not an uncommon experience to find
in criminal cases witnesses who, in addition to implicating a person actually seen by them committing a crime, seek to
implicate others who are either members of the family of that person or enemies of such witnesses. In that situation the
Judge or jurors have to decide for themselves whether that part of the testimony which is found to be falsetaints the whole
or whether the false can safely be separated from the true. In the instant case, in the light of the directions given by the
trial judge, it is, in our opinion, not permissible to infer that the jury considered Irene’s evidence in respect of her identi-
fication of the 5th accused to be false.”

G. E. Chitty, Q.C., with Eardley Perera and A. S. Vanigasooriyar, for the Ist accused-appellant,

E. R. 8. R. Coomaraswamy, with L. Athulathmudali, Miss Barr-Kumarakulasinghe, Anil Obeysekere,
N. M. §. Jayawickrama and Kumar Amerasekera, for the 2nd accused-appellant.
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Colvin R. de Silva with E. R. S. R, Coomaraswamy, Eardley Perera and Miss Manouri de Silva

for the 3rd and 4th accused-appellants.

Neville Wijeratne, (assigned) for all four appellants.

A. C. de Zoysa, Crown Counsel, for the Crown.

T. S. Fernando, J.

The four appellants (as the 1st to the 4th accused) |
along with another man named Don Stephen |
(as the 5th accused) stood their trial at the Kalutara
Assizes on an indictment consisting of no less
than 15 charges. The first eight of these charges
were based on the allegation that the five persons
accused were members of an unlawful assembly. |
Of these eight charges, the first was what I might
term a charge of unlawful assembly simpliciter:
the second to eighth charges were based on an |
imputation of vicarious criminal liability for the
acts of one or more members of the aforesaid
unlawful assembly in killing two persons and
attempting to kil five others. The remaining seven
charges, namely the ninth to the fifteenth charges, |
had been framed, also against all five persons, on
an imputation that the killings and the attempts
to kill persons referred to above were done in
furtherance of the common intention of them all. |
The jury by a divided verdict of five to two found
the four appellants guilty of the offences specified
in all fifteen charges. By a similarly divided verdict
they found the 5th accused, Don Stephen, not
guilty of any offence. Each of the appellants was
sentenced to death in respect of the convictions
on the charges of murder and to terms of imprison-
ment in respect of the convictions on the other
charges.

Apart from the medical evidence, the evidence
of the Government Analyst and formal police
and other evidence, the case of the Crown rested
on the sole testimony of a single eye-witness, a
woman by the name of Irene Rodrigo, the mistress
of a man called Edwin alias Ediman, who had
herself received certain gun-shot injuries on the
fingers of her left hand in the course of the firing
which she alleged caused the deaths of two men
and injuries on four others on the night in question.
Shortly stated, her evidence was to the effect
that she had accompanied Ediman about 6 p.m.
on the night of the 7th July 1963 to an cvening

party at Ratmalana to celebrate the wedding of a
police constable. Ediman took along to this
party a friend of his, a man named Gilbert, and
Gilbert’s mistress Sumanawathie and four men,

Tyrell, Christie, Anthony and Ariyadasa, who

| were all musicians and who, along with about six

others, provided the music at the party. They
travelled to the party from Panadura in two cars,
picking up the musicians on the way at Moratu-
mulla. Liquor appears to have been served liberally
at the party which broke up about 11 p.m. On
the way back Ediman and Irene, Gilbert and
Sumanawathic got into Ediman’s car. Three of
the musicians, Tyrell, Christic and Anthony,
also got into it and sat on the front seat beside
Gilbert who took the wheel. The other three sat
on the rear seat, Irene between Ediman and
Sumanawathic. Irene in her evidence described
Sumanawathic and herself as being the only
persons who were sober. The others had ail
partaken of liquor at the party.

At a place described as the junction between
De Mel road and Fonseka road a car which
Ircne recognised as the car of the Ist accused
came up and halted about 8 feet away from the
car in which she was travelling, blocking its
progress. She raised a cry “There is Shelton Bass’s

' car”. (Shelton Bass is a name by which the Ist
{ accused is commonly known). As the car halted

she recognised the 4th accused getting down from
its driving seat with a gun in his hand. (The 4th
accused is the car driver of the Ist accused).
Almost immediately thercafter the 3rd accused,
who is a cousin of the st and 2nd accused got
down from the rear seat of the car, also carrying
a gun, Irene cried out te her husband almost
instinctively “They are trying to shoot”. At the
same moment the 5th accused got down from the
front seat with a pistol in his hand. (The 5th
accused is a car driver employed under the 2nd
accused who is a brother of the Ist accused).
Thereafter the 2nd accused, and finally the 1st
accused, also got dewn from the rear seat of the
same car, each of them carrying a gun. All of them
then moved as if in a row towards the left of
Irene’s car. None of the occupants of her car
made any attempt to get down. As the 4th accused
aimed his gun at them, Irene, shouting to Ediman
to duck, held him by his head and pressed him
down. That shot rang out and Ediman collapsed
on to the floor of the car. Then, as the 3rd accused
stepped forward to fire, Irene put her arm round
the shoulder of Sumanawathic and shouted “Bend
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down”. Both women ducked the shot fired by
the 3rd accused which Irene thought struck some
portion of the rcar seat of the car. As the two
women rtaised their heads thereafter, Trene saw
the 2nd accused aim his gun in the direction of
the front seat of the car and fire. Tyrcll cried
out, and Trene assumed Tyrell had been injured
by that shot. The 1st accused then aimed his
gun in the direction of the car and fired. A silence
of about two minutes followed. Irene raised her
head and looked round. None of the accused
was then to be seen, but immediately thereafter
she again saw the 4th accused go up to the other
car, take over a gun from one of the persons in
that car, step forward towards Irene’s car and |
fire in the direction of the front seat As a result
of that firing Christic’s head slumped towards
the left and Irene thought that shot struck Christie.
The 4th accused next got into that car which then
drove off in the dircction of the main road. In
answer to a specific question as to whether she
saw the 5th accused do anything, Irene replied
that while the other firing was going on the 5th
accused was scen firing three or four times shaking
the pistol.

After the car in which the accused had come |
there had driven off, Irenec raised cries and a
crowd collected. The other car which carried the
rest of the musicians also came up about this
time, and Gilbert and Sumanawathie were taken
to hospital in that car. Ediman was lying un-
conscious on the floor of his car. Irene raised
him on to her lap. Anthony got off the front seat.
He was the only person of the seven who travelled
in Bdiman’'s car who had escaped injury. Tyrell
and Chuistie lay slumped on the front seat. Some
man who had come up there for the cries that
were raised drove Ediman’s car to the hospital
carrying in it the injured Ediman, Trene, Tyrell

and Christie. In all probability Tyrell and Christie |

were then already dead. The medical evidence

was to the effect that Tyrell and Christie had
received gun shot injuries killing them almost
instantaneously. Ediman had several gun . shot
wounds on his face and head and Gilbert similar
wounds on his chest and abdomen. The two women
had also received gun shot injuries but they were
relatively minor ones.

The investigating police found at the scene of
the firing certain spent cartridges, wadding etc.
which were examined by the ballistics expert
who expressed the opinion that at least six, possibly
seven, shots had been fired that night. If one or
more of those who fired with guns did not teload |

their guns at the scene they would in all pro-
bability have the spent cartiidge still in the gun
at the time of driving away from the scene, and
in that event there were probably more shots fired
than even the seven which was the estimate of the
expert. There was damage on Ediman’s car that
could have been caused, in the opinoin of the
expert, by at least two bullets from pistols. This
expert evidence went some way towards corro-
borating the evidence of Irene that she heard seven
or eight shots being fired before the 4th accused
fired the last shot just before the othet car drove
off.

It was plain at the trial that Irene must un-
doubtedly have been in the company of the persons
who were killed or injured on the night in question,
She claimed that apart from the lights of the cars
there was a bright street lamp at the junction.
The jury by its verdict showed that it accepted
and acted on her evidence except so much of it
as related to her identification of the Sth accused.

The main ground of appeal relied on by counsel
for all four appellants was that the verdict on the
first to the eighth charges (the unlawful assembly
charges) was unreasonable in the light of the
acquittal of the 5th accused. As Irene stated that
only the 1st to the 5th accused were present at
the firing, and because the jury was not satisfied
that the 5th accused was one of those so present,
they contended that only four persons were proved
to have been present, thus making it obligatory
on the jury to return a verdict of not guilty in
respect of all the charges dependent upon the
existence of an unlawful assembly. An assess-
ment of this argument requires an examination
of Irene’s evidence in regard to two matters,
(1) the number of persons who participated in
the firing and (2) the identity of those persons.

In regard to the number of persons, Irene was
never in doubt that there were five persons who
got down from the Ist accused’s car. She had
known the brothers, the 1st and the 2nd accused,
from her childhood. Their cousin, the 3rd accused,
she had known for 15 years. She had known the
4th accused for some 10 years, and had also known
that he was for the last 6 years the car driver of
the 1st accused. The 5th accused she had known
for a relatively shorter period of 2 years, but she
knew that he used to drive the car of the 2nd
accused. Her cross-cxamination elicited an answer
from her that when she made a statement to the
police she had not mentioned the name of the
5th accused because she could not remember it at



the time. That part of her statement was, however,
proved by the defence at the trial — (vide 4D3) —
and showed that what she had stated to the police
was that she “did not know the name of the person
who fired two or three shots with a pistol.” She
had described that man as a driver who lives at
Katubedde junction, not even as a driver employed ‘
under the 2nd accused whom she had earlier in |
that statement named as a participant in the |
firing. This aspect of her testimony was referred

to by the learned trial judge in his charge to the ‘
jury in the following words:— f

“Then gentlemen,

in regard to these people, she says
that she knew them;

she knew them by name; but she |
says in regard to the 5th accused, she knew the man,
but she had forgotten his name, Now there, gentlemen
comment has been very legitimately made by the defence,
‘Well, in that case why did she not say to the police I
know the man, but I have forgotten his name’.........

If, in view of that discrepancy, you think that it was
not the 5th accused that she referred to at that time,
but some other man, and that later she has brought in
the 5th accused saying that it was Podda’s (2nd accused’s)
driver, then, the benefit of that doubt must be given
to the 5th accused that she has not correctly identified,
and gentlemen, if she has made you to come to the
conclusion with certainty that she has not correctly |
identified; T mean it is not just a question of giving the
benefit of the doubt to the 5th accused, but you are
certain in your mind then you must see the impression
on your mind in regard to the other accused ; whether
you believe her evidence or not.”

This is a direction which indicates that the trial |
Judge was telling the jury that if they entertained
a reasonable doubt about correct identification
of the fifth man, the 5th accused had to receive
the benefit of that doubt; but that if they went
further and concluded that Irene was either
testifying falsely in respect of the 5th accused or
was quite mistaken in regard to his identity, then
they had to consider whether the evidence in
respect of the identification of the other four
(the appellants) is also not tainted thereby. The
jury’s verdict can fairly be taken as indicating
that they merely entertained a reasonable doubt
about the identity but not about the presence of a
fifth man.

We should, moreover, not overlook another
direction which the trial judge gave the jury.|
Referring to a suggestion made by counsel for the |
defence he said — “If you think that she did |

nts, or if you think that she
never saw the assailants because they never got |
out of the car, then you will remember, if that |
Is your opinion, that you are disbelieving Irene; |
or in your consideration of the evidence you come |
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to the conclusion that that is possible, then there is
no use in going further, for then Irene has told a
false story in the box.”

Dealing finally with the unlawfu

1 assembly
charges, the trial judge stated :—

“If Trene’s evidence has satisfied you that the 1st, 2nd,
3rd, 4th and another man were there, because if you
have doubts in view of Irene earlier having said that
it was a man she knows but she did not give the name of
the man, or that it was Podda’s driver — though she said
it was a driver — if that creates a doubt in your mind
with regard to the 5th accused, then the 5th accused is
out, If you accept Irene’s evidence that these five people
were there, or the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th accused and another
man were there, then gentlemen, we have to consider
the Crown charge that there was an unlawful assembly.”

As we construe it, the charge in the indictment
alleged that these four appellants and the 5th
accused were that night members of an unlawful
assembly. In other words, the allegation was
that there was an unlawful assembly of five persons
and that the
persons charged at the trial were identified as
those five persons. There were two matters the
Crown undertook to prove, (1) the existence of
an unlawful assembly and (2) the identification
of the persons who formed the membership of
that particular assembly. We do not consider
that the way in which the learned Jjudge addressed
the jury on the question was unfait in the circums-
tances, nor can we agree with the contention that
in his charge to the jury the judge was setting up
a new case altogether from that which the prose-
cution alleged and the defence had to mect. As
he put it, “if you accept Irene’s evidence that she
saw the 1Ist, 2nd, 3rd and 4th — you might prossibly
have some doubt whether the 5th was there in
view of what 1 told you earlier — If you have that
doubt whether the 5th accused was there in view
of Trene’s evidence saying “I know the man”,
then the question is wherher there were Jive persons.
Now Irene said right along that there were five;
she never swerved from that position, The fifth
man she had said was the 5th accused. Even
if you doubt that it was the 5th accused, there
was a fifth man according to her. So then the
Jifth man and these four people would form' the
unlawful assembly.”

In returning verdicts of guilty on the first eight
charges, it is undeniable in the circumstances
that the jury was satisfied that there were that
night five persons, four of whom, they were
confident, were the four appellants. We were
referred to the remarks contained in the Jjudgment
of the Privy Council in the case of Mohamed Fiaz
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Bakshv.The Queen,(1958) A.C. 167, hat the credibi- | of the 5th accused to be false. The high probability

lity (of witness) could not be treated as divisible and
accepted against one and rejected against another.
These remarks, it must not be overlooked, came
to be made on an appeal from the Court of Criminal
Appeal in British Guiana where that court had
made an unusual order. The appellant and his
co-accused (who had each relied on an alibi)
had been convicted of murder. At an appeal
taken to the Court of Criminal Appeal, that Court
permitted to be produced and proved before it
statements, which had not been available at the
trial, made to the police by the three main witnesses
for the prosecution. The Court found that a com-
parison of the statements with the oral evidence
given by those witnesses at the trial disclosed
material discrepancies. In respect of the appellant’s
co-accused the Court said that in the interests of
justice the value and weight of the new evidence
should be determined by a jury and not by that
court, and his conviction was quashed and a re-
trial ordered. In the case of the appellant the

Court said that different considerations applied, |
that nothing favourable to him could have been |

obtained from the statements which were not
available at the trial and held that the jury’s
verdict could not be disturbed. In regard to the
distinction the Court of Criminal Appeal made,
the Privy Council observed that “if the statements
afforded material for serious challenge to the
credibility or reliability of the witnesses on matters
vital to the case for the prosecution, the defence
by cross-examination might have destroyed the
whole case against both accused or, at any rate,
shown that the evidence of those witnesses could
not be relied on as sufficient to displace the evidence
in support of the alibis.” The remark that credi-
bility of witnesses could not be treated as divisible
came to be made in the circumstances related
above. We do not think this remark can be the
foundation for a principle that the evidence of a
witness must be accepted completely or not at
all. Certainly in this country it is not an uncommon
experience to find in criminal cases witnesses
who, in addition to implicating a person actually
seen by them committing a ciime, seek to implicate
others who are either members of the family
of that persons or enemies of such witnesses.
In that situation the judge or jurors have to decide
-for themselves whether that part of the testimony
which is found to be false taints the whole or
whether the false can safely be separated from the
true. In the instant case, in the light of the directions |
given by the trial judge, it is, in our opinion, not

permissible to infer that the jury considered
Trene’s evidence in respect of her identification !

is that they concluded she was merely mistaken
in regard to the identity of the fifth man, the man
with the pistol. Certainly, they found on her
evidence that five persons did come along with
firearms and participated inanattack substantially
in the manner she described.

We do not consider, as we have already indicated
above, that there is much substance in the argument
that the defence was taken by surprise by a case
of an allegation of unlawful assembly composed
of the appellants and an unidentified man “being
sprung upon it fer the first time™ during the
summing-up of the trial judge. The charge was
that the five persons named in the indictment were
members of an unlawful assembly. So long as the
Crown was able to establish the presence of the
requisite number of persons with a common
unlawful object, the unlawful assembly was comp-
lete. All that was thereafter necessary was identi-
fication of those proved to be present. As Bose J.
stated in delivering the judgment of the Supreme
Court of India in Dalip Singh v. State of Punjab,
1953 A.LR. (S.C.) at 366, “this is not to say
that five persons must always be convicted before

section 149 can be applied. There are cases
and cases. It is possible in some cases for
judges to conclude that though five - were

unquestionably there the identity of one or
more is in doubt. Tn that case, a conviction
of the rest with the aid of section 149 would be
good”. Tn the local case of The King v. Fernando
et al. (1947) 48 N.L.R. 200, one of the two
reasons given by this Court for the dismissal
of an appeal of four appellants who had stood
their trial (along with a fifth man who was
acquitted) on charges of unlawful assembly
and murder was that “while there was overwhel-
ming evidence that the four appellants and another
took part in the transaction which resulted in the
death of the deceased there were circumstances
which involved in some doubt the identity of
the fifth person’”. This case was sought to be
distinguished in a decision given by a single
judge, Pulle J., in Jayaram v. Saraph, (1954)
56 N.L.R. 22, but the distinction was based on
the manner in which the charge had been there

| framed. The charge in Jayaram v. Saraph was

that the accused “did form members of an
unlawful assembly”, i.e. they constituted the

| unlawful assembly, and not, as here, that they

“were members of an unlawful assembly™.

Reference was made also to the case of Harry
Margulas, (1922) 17 Cr. A.R. 3, and cases which



26

1966—T. S. Fernando, J.—Appuhamy & Others vs. The Queen

Vol. LXX

have purported to follow it. In all those cases, how-
ever, the jury on evidence of the same weight had in
the case of one or more of the accused persons re-
turned a verdict of guilty while acquitting another
orothers. Such a result would, of course, be un-
reasonable; but that is not the position in the
instant case where the distinction drawn by the
jury can be shown to be based on sufficient reason.

Another argument addressed to us was that the
verdict shows that the jury was satisfied beyond
reasonable doubt only in respect of the presence
of the four appellants. If there was a reasonable
doubt in regard to the presence of the 5th accused,
80 counsel argued, such a doubt could not in
any circumstances amount to proof beyond
reasonable doubt of the presence of a fifth un-
identified man. While we must, of course, agree
that a doubt in respect of the presence of a named
man cannot amount to proof beyond reasonable
doubt of the presence of an unnamed man, the
verdict in the light of the directions given to the
jury by the trial judge meant that the jury was
quite satisfied that five persons were present doing
the acts attributed to them by the witness Irene,
In our opinion the main ground relied on by the
appellants fails.

We can now turn to the examination of the
other two grounds of appeal that were urged. j
The first of these related to an alleged inadequacy
of the directions in regard to proof of common
intention. In framing the ninth of the fifteenth
charges, the Crown had placed reliance on the
principle of law embodied in Section 32 of the
Penal Code. In respect of these charges, it was
urged that the directions actually given to the
jury were inadequate., We need only say, however,
that in directing the jury on these particular charges
the learned judge placed the burden on the prosecu-
tion at the highest possible level when he stated :—

“In other words, did each of them have a murderous
intention, and did they agree among themselves to commit |
the act in which case it becomes a common murderous
intention.”

This was repeated at a later stage of his charge
when he stated “but if they had all agreed then
the murder by A is murder by all”. The verdict |
shows that the jury was satisfied that the appellants |
had agreed to kill. Indeed, an acceptance of |
Irene’s evidence in respect of the appellants did |
not leave room for any other inference. The block- ‘
ing by an armed gang of the car in which the
victims were travelling and repeated firing by |
all at the cornered victims could not have been

o ——— e ——

explained on any other theory but that of a pre-
arrangement to kill. The plan of the appellants in
all probability was to kill Ediman, but the manner
of the execution of that plan left little room for

| doubt that they were determined also to kill

anyone else who might be in the way of the achiev-
ment of that object. The directions to the jury
in so far as they affected the ninth to the fifteenth
charges were neither inadequate nor unfair.
That ground of appeal also therefore fails.

The remaining ground of appeal revolved round
the omission of the Crown to call certain witnesses
(occupants of Ediman’s car at the time of the
firing) whose names were on the indictment in the
list of witnesses for the prosecution. After the
Crown and the Defence had closed their respective
cases, counsel for the 4th and 5th accused began
his address to the jury and concluded it on the
next day. Thereupon Crown counsel addressed
the jury, followed by counsel for the Ist, 2nd
and 3rd accused. He had not concluded his address
at the time the Court adjourned for the day and
on the following day, before counsel could resume
his address, the foreman of the jury asked the
judge whether it was possible (a) to call Gilbert
as a witness and (b) to make a visit to the scene.
For reasons which appear to us to be adequate,
the trial judge declined to order either of the
steps indicated by the jury to be taken. It was
conceded by counsel for the appellants that in
so far as a discretion lay with the judge that dis-
cretion could not be said to have been exercised
wrongly or unfairly. It was contended, however,
that the directions to the jury on the question of
omission to call the witness Gilbert and /or other
similar witnesses was wrong and was contrary
to the presumption that could have been drawn
as shown in illustration (f) to section 114 of the
Evidence Ordinance. What the learned judge did
say was as follows:—

“The Crown has called one person. The Crown has
called that person to tell you what happened. The Crown
has not called the others. Well, you may infer that the
Crown did not call the others because they are not in
a position to speak to the assailants. You may infer
that they are witnesses who do not help the prosecution
case. The defence says, well, you cannot expect us to
call prosecution witnessess because we will lose the right
of cross-examining them for they are likely to be adverse
and so on. I think the simple point for you to decide is
this: do you accept the testimony of Irene? If you feel
that you want to hear other witnesses, it is because you
don’t rely on the evidence of Irene. If you are doubling
the evidence of Irene, then you must acquit the accused.”

At the stage the jury made the inquiries specified
above, it is highly probable they did so because
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counsel who addressed them on behalf of the
accused had made comments unfavourable to the
Crown’s case on account of the failure to call the
other witnesses. The direction given to the jury
to acquit the accused if they doubted the evidence
of Irene put the matter as favourably as possible
to the defence, and we saw no substance in this
last ground of appeal.

This Court has dealt with a similar point in
The King v. Chalo Singho, (1941) 42 N.L.R.
269, where Soertsz J. stated on behalf of the
Court that “there is no non-direction by the
judge when he omits to refer to the pre-
sumption under section 114(f) of the Evidence
Ordinance in cases in which the. Crown does
not call or tender for cross-examination on
the request of the prisoner’s pleader a witness
whom the prisoner’s pleader had himself an
opportunity of calling. Indeed, it would be a
misdirection for a judge, in those circumstances,
to tell the jury that they may apply the presump-
tion.” The law on this point has been understood
in the manner above stated and has been so
applied in this country for nearly a quarter of a
century, but we were invited by learned counsel
for the 1st accused to consider whether it should
not be reviewed in the light of the recent decision
of the English Court of Criminal Appeal in R. v.
Olivia, (1965) 3 A.E.R. 116 at 122. Lord Parker,
C.]., there observed:—

“Accordingly, as it seems to this court, the principles
are plain. The prosecution must of course have in court
the witnesses whose names are on the back of the indict-
ment, but there is a wide discretion in the prosecution
whether they should call them, cither calling and exa-
mining them, or calling and tendering them for cross-

examination. The prosecution do not, of course, put
forward every witness as a witness of truth, but where the
witness’s evidence is capable of belief then it is their duty,
well recognised, that he should be called, even though
the evidence that he is going to give is inconsistent with
the case sought to be proved. Their discretion must be
exercised in a manner which is calculated to further the
interests of justice, and at the same time be fair to the
defence. If the prosecution appear to be exercising that
discretion improperly, it is open to the judge of trial
to interfere and in his discretion in turn to invite the
prosecution to call a particular witness, and if they refuse
there is the ultimate sanction in the judge himself calling
that witness.”

We would like to observe, with respect, that
we find nothing in the above enunciation of the
relevant principles to induce us to attempt to
modify the salutary dictum in Chalo Singho’s
case (supra) we have quoted above. Indeed, it is
our experience that in this country where un-
fortunately for several years there has been too
great a time lag between committal and trial — a
time lag which still disfigures the calendars of
the courts — there is particular reason not to
criticise or interfere unduly with the discretion
of prosecuting counsel as to the witnesses he
| should call. As Erle C.I. stated in R. v. Edwards,
Underwood and Edwards,(1848) 3 Cox C.C. at 83,
“generally speaking, we ought to be careful not
to overrule the discretion of counsel who are,
of course, more fully aware of the case than we
| can be.”

For the reasons we have now set down we
| dismissed at the conclusion of the argument the
appeals and the applications for leave to appeal
of the four appellants.
Appeals dismissed.

Present: T. S. Fernando, J., G. P. A. Silva, J. and Alles, J.

PASANGNA vs. THE REGISTRAR-GENERAL & ANOTHER

D. C. Criminal 47/1963 — D. C. Matale — X 868.

Argued on: 30th September, 1964, and 29th January, 1963.
Decided on: 12th February, 1965.

Registration of Births and Deaths Act

regarding father’s and mother’s race from “Indian

(Cap. 110) section 10 —Application for alteration of particulars

Tamil” to “Ceylon Tamil” in Birth Register under

section 28(i)(b) — Applicant, a registered citizen of Ceylon under Indian and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship)

Act (Cap. 350) — Effect of sections 6(2)(iv) (a) and 18 —

Distinction between “race” and “citizenship.”

Interpretation of Statutes—Schedule to Enactment—Preamble—Their importance in interpretation.

The petitioner-appellant applied in terms of section 28 (1)(b) of the

Births and Deaths Registration Act (Cap.

110) for the alteration of two entries as to the petitioner’s race and that of his wife from ,‘Indian Tamil” to “Citizenof Ceylon
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Tamil”. These entries had been made in cages (4) and (5) respectively in the register of Births in respect of the registration

‘of the birth of the petitioner’s son born on 30. 9.

1960 as re

quired by section 10(1) of the said Actand Form A referred to

therein. To the particulars in Form A regarding “race” in cach of the cages 4 and 5 is attached a footnote containing

the following words:—

“Tamils or Moors must be described as Ceylon Tamils or Moors or Indian Tamils or Moors as the case may be.”

The evidence led before the District Court showed :—

(@) that the petitioner, his wife and four children were on 18, 3. 1954 registered as citizens of Ceylon under the Indian

and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act,

(b) That the petitioner and his wife were born in India and they were Indian Tamils by race and born of parents
who lived in India, before he obtained citizenship rights in Ceylon.

The learned District Judge upheld the contention of the respondents (The Registrar General and the Provingial Re-
gistrarof Births and Deaths) that the acquisition of citizenship rights by any person did not involve a change in his

‘race’ and refused the application.

; An appeal was taken from this order on the ground inter alia that by virtue of the provisions of section 18 of the
Indian and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act, a person who is registered as a citizen under the Act becomes entitled to
the same rights and subject to the same liabilities as any other citizen of Ceylon and therefore the appellant and his wife
were Ceylon Tamils on the day of the birth of the son whose registration was in question,

On account of a difference of opinion between the two Judges before whom the appeal was originally argued, the
niatter was referred to a Bench of three judges under section 38 of the Courts Ordinance.

Held:

(1) That it is a rule of interpretation that what is provided in a schedule referred to in a section of an Act

Is as important as a provision in the Act itself, and would cease to prevail only in the event of a re-
pugnance to a provision in the main Act itself,

(2) That applying this principle, it is imperative that the schedule referred to in Section 10 of the Births
and Deaths Registration Act and containing the Form A, which lays down in clear terms the parti-
culars to be entered, should be complied with, there being no confiicting provisionin the Act itself,

(3) That, therefore the Registrar was correct in making the entry “Indian Tamil” in both cages 4 and 5

aforesaid.

(4) That there is a distinction between ‘race’ and ‘citizenship’ and consequently the renunciation .of all
the rights to the civil and political status reforred to in section 6(2)(iv)(a) of the Indian and Pakistani

Residents (Citizenship
person or any member of the family,

M. Tiruchelvam,

R. Hector Deheragoda, Senior Crown Counsel, with N.

the respondents-respondents.

G. P. A. Silva, J.

The petitioner-appellant made an application
to the District Court of Matale to have certain
particulars of entries made by the Registrar of
Births, Matale, in respect of the registration of the
‘birth of his son born on 30. 9. 1960, altered in
terms of section 28(1)(b) of the Births and Deaths
Registration Act, (Chapter 110 of the Legislative
Enactments of Ceylon). The said particulars, so
far as they are relevant to the present appeal,
consisted of the alteration of the particulars as
to the father’s race and the mother’s race from

| In cross-examination, however,

i $ Act would not preclude an applicant who is registered as a citizen from
calling himself thereafter an Indian Tamijl by race.

This would not prejudicially affect such a

0.C., with T. Somasunderam and Mark Fernando for the petitioner-appellant.

B. de S. Wijesekera, Crown Counsel, for

“Indian Tamil” to “Citizen of Ceylon Tamil”
in cages (4) and (5) of the Register of Births.

The evidence of the petitioner before the District
Court was that he, his wife and their four children
were, on 18. 3. 1954, registered as Citizens of
Ceylon under the Indian and Pakistani Residents
(Citizenship) Act, (Chapter 350 of the Legislative
Enactments of Ceylon). He produced the certificate

relating to their registration as Citizens of Ceylon
and there was no dispute in regard to this matter.
the petitioner
stated that both he and his wife were born in
India and that they were Indian Tamils by race
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and that he was a subject of India, being born of
parents who lived in India, before he obtained
citizenship rights in Ceylon. It would appear
from the cvidence that the relevant particulars in
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ment in a Schedule contradicts an earlier clause
it prevails against it. Maxwell on ‘Interpretation
of Statutes’ (Eleventh Edition) at page 156,
says that where a passage in a Schedule to a

the Register of Births in regard to a son born on | Statute is repugnant to one in the body of the

4, 10. 1954 after
had been entered in the way the petitioner
namely, as “Ceylon Tamil”. It was contended
on behalf of the respondents, the Registrar-
General and the Assistant Provincial Registrar
of Births and Deaths, Matale, that the alterations
desited by the petitioner should not be made.
The learned District Judge upheld the respondents’
contention and refused the application holding
that the acquisition of citizenship rights by any
person did not involve a change in his race,
the petitioner having admitted that he and his
wife were Indian Tamils by race.

The appellant has appealed to this court from
the decision of the learned District Judge inter
alia on the ground that, by virtue of the provisions
of section 18 of the Indian and Pakistani Residents
(Citizenship) Act, (Chapter 350 of the Legislative
Enactments of Ceylon), a person who is registered
as a citizen under the Act becomes entitled to the
same rights and subject to the same liabilities as
any other citizen of Ceylon and also that, by
reason of such registration, the appellant and his
wife were Ceylon Tamils on the day of the birth
of the son whose registration was in question.
For these reasons, the appellant prayed for an
order setting aside the order made by the learned
District Judge and requiring an alteration of the
words “Indian Tamil” to “Ceylon Tamil” in
cages (4) and (5) of the Register of Births referred
to. On account of a difference of opinion between

the two Judges of this court before whom the

appeal first came up for argument it was listed
before us in terms of section 38 of the Courts
Ordinance.

Primarily, in this appeal, the law which this
court is called upon to interpret is a provision
contained in Births and Deaths Registration Act.
It is necessary that the provisions of any Act
should be read together with any Schedule
referred to therein as well as any Forms given
thereunder. A Schedule has often even greater
importance than a provision in the Act itself, for

a Schedule or a Form contained therein may

clarify a provision that is otherwise doubtful.
It is stated in Craies on Statute Law (Sixth Edition)
at page 224, that the Schedule in a Statute is as
much a part of the Statute and is as much an
- enactment as any other part, and that if an enact-

he became a Citizen of Ceylon Statute the latter would prevail. Earlier at page
desired, | 143 it is stated, “Clear provisions in the Schedule

to an Act cannot be limited either by the title to
that Schedule, or by a section in the Act itself
reciting the purpose for which the Schedule is
enacted.” The conclusion to be drawn from these
principles of interpretation is that what is pro-
vided in a Schedule referred to in a section in the
Act is as important as a provision in the Act itself
and would cease to prevail only in the event of
repugnance to a provision in the main Act itself.

I The Births and Deaths Registration Act, a
non-compliance of the provisions of which is

| complained against in this appeal, lays down in

| section 10(1) that it shall be the duty of every

Registrar of Births and Deaths to register accu-
|rately and with all convenient despatch in the
registers provided by the Registrar-General the
| particulars of the matters set out in forms A and
| B of the Schedule. Form A relates to registration
of births while Form B relates to registration of
‘ deaths. Cage (4) of Form A requires the Registrar
'to give the following particualrs with regard to
the father of the child which is being registered :—

Full name:

Date of Birth:
Place of Birth:
Race:

Rank or profession:

Cage (5) requires him to enter the same particulars
as regards the mother of the child. To the parti-
culars regarding “Race” in each of the cages
(4) and (5) is attached a foot note numbered 2 to
the following effect:

“Tamils or Moors must be described as ‘Ceylon’
Tamils or Moors, or ‘Indian’ Tamils or Moors,
| as the case may be.”
| An application of the rule of interpretation
referred to in the last paragraph to the facts
of this case would lead to the conclusion
that it is imperative that the provisions of the
Schedule containing a Form which lays down
| in clear terms the particulars to be entered should
be complied with, there being no specific provision
in the Act itself which conflicts with such comp-
liance. Tn regard to the particulars as to race the
Registrar made the entry “Indian Tamil” in
both cages (4) and (5) as he considered it to be
'the only compliance with section 10 and Form
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A in the Schedule and the learned District J udge
to whom an application was made in terms of
section 28 of the Act for an alteration of these
particulars refused the application on the ground
that the particulars entered by the Registrar were
correct,

The main questions arising in this appeal,
therefore would appear to be:

(1) What is the general meaning attributable to the
word ‘race’?
(2) Can the race of a person be indirectly altered by
gp Ahg?t of any legislature subsequent to such person’s
irt
What is the meaning of the word “race’ in the con-
f:m];lation of the Births and Deaths Registration
ct

Does the registration of an Indian or Pakistani
resident as a Citizen of Ceylon under the Indian and
Pakistani Residented (Citizenship) Act entitle an
Indian Tamil or an Indian Moor to be called a
Ceylon Tamil or a Ceylon Moor or, as stated by the
appellant in his application to the District Court,
a “Citizen of Ceylon Tamil” or a “Citizen of Ceylon
Moor™ after such registration has been effected ? and
If the answer to (4) is in the negative or even in
doubt. would a Registrar be in order in describing
the race of an Indian Tamil, who has obtained
Ceylon Citizenship by registration under the Indian
and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act, as a
Ceylon Tamil, in the face of the specific provision
in Form A in the Schedule to the Registration of
Births and Deaths Act?

3

@

)

The word ‘race’ does not appear to have been
legally defined in our law nor has a clear definition
of the word in the Municipal Law of any other
country or in International Law been brought to
our notice. While the word ‘nationality’ has been

defined as being the state or quality of belonging |

to a nation with political independence the word
‘race’ has a narrower connotation. While the
fact of belonging to a certain nationality will
necessarily confer a certain political status carrying
with it certain civil rights which every national of
a country will be entitled to, the fact of belonging
to a certain race will not give either such political
status or such civil rights. The political status and
civil rights will be determined by the nationality
to which a person of a particular race belongs.
Depending on the nationality laws of a particular
country the nationality of a person can be altered by
the acquisition of another nationality. There are
no such laws which would enable a person to
change his race. ‘Race’ hds generally been des-
cribed in the courts as an ethnic group. This has
probably followed the dictionary meaning of
the word ‘race’. Webster’s Dictionary gives the
meaning of the word °‘race’, inter alia, as the
“state of being one of a special people or ethnical

stock; hence, more narrowly, state of belonging
to a particular group or family » It also
gives the following meanings: “The descendants of
a common ancestor; a family, tribe, people, or
nation, believed or presumed to belong to the
same stock; a lineage; a breed; also, more broadly
a class or kind of individuals with common,
characteristics, interest, appearance, habits, or
the like, as if derived from a common ancestor;
as, the race of doctors; the race of birds.” Although
the word ‘nation’ too has been loosely used among
the other words in Webeter’s Dictionary, in view
of the consideration that political status and civil
rights appear to be the dividing line between
‘nationality’ and ‘race’ in modern times and in
view of the fact that nationality or citizenship
laws which have been enacted in most countries
deal with national groups and not racial groups
and as the question or decision in the instant case
revolves to some extent round the implications
of the Citizenship Act in which the term ‘citizen
of Ceylon’ is used in the sense of nationality,
the use of the word ‘race’ as being equivalent to
or co-extensive with the word “nation’ can reason-
ably be eliminated.

Looking at it from another angle, nationality
or citizenship of an individual is unaffected by the
race to which he belongs and, conversely, what-
ever the race a person may belong to, he is not
precluded from becoming a national or a citizen
of another country, as the case may be, if he
conforms to the requirements of the nationality
or citizenship laws of that particular country.
The words ‘nationality’ and ‘citizenship’ can
generally be said to have the same meaning while
‘race’ does not. It is only in a few countries that
citizenship has a wider connotation than nationality
and this is from the point of view of Municipal
Law. Citizenship, in these instances, would mean
the state of being endowed with full political
and personal rights, while nationality would not
grant all those rights,

Oppenheim (Eighth Edition — Volume I) at
page 645 says ‘ ‘Nationality’ in the sense of
citizenship of a certain State, must not be confused
with ‘nationality’ as meaning membership of a
certain nation in the sense of race. Thus, according
to International Law, Englishmen and Scotsmen
are, despite their different nationality as regards
race, all of British nationality -as regards their
citizenship. Thus further, although all Polish
individuals are of Polish nationality qua race,
for many generations there were no Poles qua
citizenship,” Here too even though ‘nationality’
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and ‘race’ are used more or less as synonyms,
citizenship is used in the different sense of being
endowed with political and civil rights. The argu-
ment of counsel for the appellant too was in
support of the principle that race was immutable
while citizenship or nationality was not. This
principle, of course, stands to reason. In the
book entitled ‘Nationality and Citizenship Laws
of the Commonwealth and of the Republic of
Ireland’ by Clive Parry, a number of instances
are given, at page 264 and subsequent pages, of
the circumstances in which a person belonging to
a foreign race or nationality (in the sense of race)
can apply for citizenship of the United Kingdom,

thus showing the distinction between race and |

citizenship. In the instances such as those above
cited from Oppenheim, I should be very surprised
if a Pole or a Canadian or a Frenchman or a
German by race called himself British by race
after acquiring citizenship of the United Kingdom,
although he would, no doubt, enjoy the very
same political and civil rights as a British having
such rights.

Bearing those principles in mind, 1 shall now
proceed to ccnsider the position in the instant
case having regard to the specific provisions of
law in the Births and Deaths Registration Act.
According to Schedule A, read with section 10
of the Births and Deaths Registration Act, it is
clear that the Act requires the Registrar to state
in the cage dealing with the race of the father or
the mother of the child, where the father or the
mother is a Tamil, the words ‘Indian Tamil’
or ‘Ceylon Tamil’. In my view it is not necessary
in this application to engage in any profound
research as to where the line is to be drawn bet-
ween Tamils of recent Indian origin and Tamils
of remote Indian origin for the purpose of section
10 of the Act. The appellant admitted in evidence
in the lower court that he was an Indian Tamil.
The fact that he applied for registration as a
Ceylon citizen under the Indian and Pakistani
Residents (Citizenship) Act confirms his evidence.
For, Ceylon Tamils are citizens of Ceylon and
are not required to take any action in order to
entitle them to all the civil and political rights
attaching to a Ceylon citizen. If that was so and,
if a change in one’s nationality or citizenship does
not change one’s race, would the Registrar of
Births and Deaths have any alternative except
to obey the peremptory requirement of the Act
which, far frem leaving the matter in doubt,
gives the very words that the Registrar must use
in regard to the particulars in question?

vs. The Registrar-General & Another 31

No doubt a difficulty is created by the fact that,
ordinarily, the race of a Tamil person who makes
an application under the Tndian and Pakistani
Residents (Citizenship) Act would be Tamil,
and ‘Indian’ or ‘Ceylon’ would only be an adjective
describing his domicile. It may logically be argued,
therefore, that when a person obtains Ceylon
citizenship under this Act, he would in effect
be changing his domicile and would be entitled
to describe himself thereafter as a ‘Ceylon’ Tamil.
But, of course, it has to be borne in mind that
neither the Indian and Pakistani Residents (Citizen-
ship) Act, nor the Citizenship Act deals with
questions of domicile, but only with the question
of citizenship. In view of the silence of the Indian
and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act on
this question, there is no warrant by inference to
describe an Indian Tamil who has obtained
Ceylon Citizenship as a Ceylon Tamil on the
ground of his domicile and to make use of that
description which will have the effect of violating
an express provision of the Births and Deaths
Registration Act, which, as I have said before,
has made a clzar distinction between Indian
Tamils and Ceylon Tamils and considered Indian
Tamils as a race for the purposes of the Act.
In the context in which it is used, therefore, one
has to conclude that at least for the purposes
of the Act a race called the ‘Indian Tamil’ race
and another called the ‘Indian Moor’ race have
been recognised. If such a race was not recognised
at least for the purpose of this Act, it would be
wrong to give a direction in the foot note that the
race should be shown as ‘Indian’ Tamil, ‘Ceylon’
Tamil, ‘Indian” Mecor or ‘Ceylon’ Moor. Further,
quite apart from the special meaning given to
“Indian Tamils” as being a race in the Act, in
view of the varied meanings given to the word
‘race’ in Webster’'s Dictionary quoted earlier,
it would not be inappropriate nor without justi-
fication to call the Indian Tamils a race. It is,
therefore, necessary to apply the same rules which
I have referred to earlier in considering whether
the conferment of Ceylon citizenship on an Indian
Tamil has the effect of changing his race or not.

The argument of counsel for the appellant on
this matter, at the time it was advanced, had
considerable attraction and appeared convincing.
He submitted two aspects for our consideration
based on section 6(2)(iv)(a) of the Indian and
Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act which was
to the effect that it shall be a condition for allowing
any application for registration under this Act
| that the applicant shall have produced sufficient
| evidence to satisfy the Commissioner that the
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applicant clearly understands that in the event of
being registered as a Citizen of Ceylon, the appli-
cant will be decmed in law to have renounced all
rights to the civil and political status the applicant
has had, or would, but for such registration in
Ceylon, have had, under any law in force in the
territory of origin of the applicant or the applicant’s
parent, ancestor or husband, as the case may be.
Mr. Tiruchelvam submitted that the renunciation
of all the rights to the civil and political status
referred to in this provision would preclude an
applicant who is registered as a citizen from calling

himself thereafter an Indian Tamil by race. In |

other words, his contention was that once an
Indian Tamil was 1egistered as a citizen of Ceylon
under this Act, it would be wrong for him to call
himself an Indian Tamil and he thereafter became
a Ceylon Tamil and that, therefore, if he continued
to call himself an Indian Tamil, it would contradict
the position that he has been registered as a
Ceylon Citizen and has renounced all rights to
the civil and political status he has had prior
to that, or would, but for such registration in
Ceylon, have had. The other aspect he advanced
for our consideration was that it would be dis-
courteous for an Indian Tamil, who was conferred
Ceylon citizenship by this country, to enjoy
the privileges of citizenship and to continue to
call himself an Indian Tamil. On a closer exa-
mination of this submission, however, and upon
a consideration of the distinction between ‘race’
and ‘citizenship’ which I have referred to earlier,
it seems to me that there is no difficulty in recon-
ciling the provision relied on by counsel for the
appellant with the fact of an Indian Tamil who is
granted citizenship continuing to call himself
an Indian Tamil by race. For, the accent in section
6(2)(iv)(a) appears to me to be on the words “civil
and political status™ which is a niecessary attribute
of citizenship and not an attribute of race.

I shall now proceed to deal in greater detail with |

the interpretation of the words contained in the
relevant provision. Maxwell on ‘Interpretation of
Statutes’ says:—

“The preamble to a statute, even after repeal,
is a good means of finding out its meaning and,
as it were,a key to the understanding of it. It may
legitimately be consulted to solve any ambiguity
or to fix the meaning of the words which may have
more than one, or to keep the effect of the Act
withinits real scope, whenever the enacting part
is in any of these respects open to doubt.” It is
useful to look at the preamble to the Indian
and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship) Act in

terms of this definition. This preamble sets out
| the purpose as being an Act to make provision
for granting the status of a Citizen of Ceylon by
Registration to Indians and Pakistanis who have
the qualification of past residence in Ceylon for a
certain minimum period. In interpreting any section
of the Act whose meaning for some reason is not
clear, it behoves one not to travel outside its
scope and always to bear in mind the purpose of
the Act. The preamble to the Act refers to the
status of a Citizen of Ceylon which is sought to
be conferred on certain Indians and Pakistanis
with certain residence qualifications. Section 6(2)
(iv) (a) of the Act on which reliance is placed to
' support the argument that an Indian Tamil ceases
to be such and becomes a Ceylon Tamil after
registration as a Ceylon Citizen, also refers to
the rights to the civil and political status which
such a Ceylon Citizen is deemed to have renounced
on the conferment of Ceylon Citizenship. The
contention of counsel being, or being tantamount
| to saying, that one of the rights so renounced is
the right to be called an Indian Tamil — which
necessarily involves the corollary that one of the
rights conferred by Ceylon Citizenship in this case
is the right to be called a Ceylon Tamil— the trug
meaning of the word ‘status’ or the words ‘civil
and political status’ in the context referred to -
above assumes the greatest importance. As I
have peinted out earlier in this judgment, political
| status and civil rights have ro relation to race
and if a person’s race continues to be what it was,
despite this change of civil and political status,
the only correct course of action for the Registrar
will be to act in the manner he has done. We
are not called upon, in this case, to decide the
abstract question as to what the race of the child
which is sought to be registered would or should
be and it is, therefore, unnecessary to delve into
that aspect in the present appeal.

Yet another way of testing this matter is to
leave aside for a moment the Indian and Pakistani
Residents (Citizenship) Act and to consider whether
| @ persen, who belongs to a race different from
|1ndia.ns or Pakistanis and who obtains Ceylon
| citizenship under the Citizenship Act, will be

entitled to call himself by any other race than

his original race if he had to register the birth of

a child. Would it be in order for an Englishman

or Frenchman or Italian or a Chinese by race,

for instance, who is granted citizenship under
| section 13 of the Citizenship Act to call himself

3

Registrar of Births in respect of the particulars to
be entered in cages (4) and (5) of Form A in the

] by any other race in furnishing particulars to the
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Schedule. The question he is called upon to answer
for this purpose is what his race is and not whether |
he is a citizen of Ceylon or not. The obvious
answer seems to me to be to mention his original ‘
race as a member of which he applied for and
obtained citizenship. If that is the answer to the
question vis-a-vis a person registered as a Citizen
of Ceylon under the Citizenship Act, the principle
cannot be different in the case of one registered
as such under the Indian and Pakistani Residents
(Citizenship) Act.

Considering the case from yet another aspect,i

would the entry of the particulars of the race of!

the father or the mother as “Indian Tamil” in a
Birth Register defeat the purpose of even the
Indian and Pakistani Residents (Citizenship)
Act, which again, it may be noted, we are not
called upon to interpret in the present appeal,
although, admittedly, the provisions of section

6(2)(iv)(a) indirectly arise for consideration. The
answer to this question to my mind is unambi-
guously in the negative. For, whatever may be the

race of the person, who is granted citizenship
of Ceylon by registration under this Act, he will
be fully entitled to all the rights to the civil and
political status which are granted by the certificate
of registration and they will continue to remain

undiminished, be he called “Indian Tamil” or
“Indian Moor™ or “‘Pakistani Tamil™ or “Pakistani
Moor”, unless and until he either renounces his
Ceylon Citizenship or does some other Act, such
as acquiring some other nationalityor citizenship,
which will ipso facto have the effect of depriving
him of his Ceylon Citizenship. Even on the ground
of possible mischief or prejudice to the person
who has been registered as a Ceylon Citizen
or to any member of the family, therefore, I
cannot see how the contention of counsel for the
appellant can prevail because mischief or pre-
judice there is none.

Fot these reasons, I am of opinion that the
Registrar of Births and Deaths was right in
noting down the particulars of the race of the
father and the mother of the child as he did. The
appeal must, therefore, fail and it is accordingly
dismissed.

T. S. Fernando, J.
I agree.

Alles, J.
I agree.

Appeal dismissed.

IN THE COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEAL
Present: Basnayake, C.J., T. S. Fernando J., and Herat J.
THE QUEEN vs. ARTYADASA AND ANOTHER

Appeals Nos. 160-161 of 1961 with Applications Nos. 168-169 of 1961
S.C. No. 67 M.C. Dambulla No. 9878

Argued on: February 27 and March 12, 1962.
Decided on: April 5, 1963.

_ Court of Criminal Appeal — Misdirection — Burden of proof on prosecution — Evidence of pro-
secution witnesses uncontradicted by accused — Does this lessen burden on prosecution —Whether duty
cast on accused to give evidence on their own behalf in every case — Evidence Ordinance, sections 101, 153,

Five accused were charged in this case with being members of an unlawful assembly and attempting inter alia to
commit murder in prosecution of its common object. They were also indicted on a charge of attempted murder on the
basis that they committed a criminal act in furtherance of the common intention of all,

In the course of his charge, the learned Trial Judge directed the jury as follows:—

*,...I want you to bear in mind that in view of the assessment of innoncence there is no duty cast on an accused
person to give evidence. He can remain silent and the prosecution must prove the guilt of each accused beyond
reasonable doubt, But where you have a case where evidence is given which implicates an accused, then when you
come to assess that evidence you could take into consideration the fact that there is no evidence given by the accused
person contradicting such evidence, On that question then of credibility of the prosecution witnesses you have their
evidence. You have no evidence which contradicts it given by the persons whom they accuse. You can take that
into consideration in ass¢ssing the credibility of the prosecution witnesses Ran Banda and Mudiyanse who say ‘we
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saw these people there. They attacked us.’ When
you can ask yourselves of the fact—the fact that
evidence given by these 2 persons.”

Held: (1) That the learned trial Judge’s direction was wrong in law,

you come to decide whether you are going to believe them or not
none of the accused gave evidence—and of your assessment of the

The fact that an accused person elects not

to give evidence does not render the prosecution evidence more credible on that account and is not
a factor to be taken into consideration in evaluating such evidence,

(2) That therefore the conviction must be quashed as it could not be said that the jury were not influenced
by this wrong direction in arriving at a verdict, :
Per BASNAYAKE, C.J, — “The burden of proving the case against the accused is on the prosecution (s. 101 Evidence

Ordinance) and that burden is not lessened by

the fact that the accused does not contradict on oath the evidence for the

prosecution, The view expressed by the learned Judge would make it incumbeni on accused persons to give evidence on

their own behalf in every case. It finds no support in
enactment. When an accused person pleads not guilty

the Evidence Ordinance or the Criminal Procedure Code or any other

him by the prosecution. Section 155 of the Evidence Ordinance specifies the ways in which the credit of a witness may be

impeached. Contradicting a witness with the evidence of another 1s not one of the ways

prescribed in that section, A pro-

secution witness's credibility has to be assessed on his own merits and the factthat he is uncontradicted by the sworn testimony

of the accused does not enhance his worth.”

M. L. de Silva with K. Jayasekara and M. Shanmugalingam (assigned), for the accused-appellants,
T. A. de S. Wijesundere, Crown C ounsel, for the Attorney-General.

BASNAYAKE, C.J.

Five accused by name Wasala Mudiyanselage
Ariyadasa, Wasala Mudiyansclage Wijedasa,
Mahara Mudiyanselage Jayaratne,
and Wasala Mudiyanselage Premadasa were in-
dicted on charges of being members of an unlawful

assembly, the common object of which was to |
cause hurt to Panabokke Upasakagedera Ran |

Banda and his father Mudiyanse, and attempting
to commit the murder of Ran Banda in prosccution
of the common object of the unlawful assembly.
They were also indicted on a charge of attempted
murder on the basis that they committed a criminal
act in furtherance of the common intention of all.
They were all acquitted of the charge of being
members of an unlawful assembly and committing
the offence of attempted murder in prosecution
of its common object, and the 3rd, 4th and 5th
accused were also acquitted of the charge of
attempted murder based on the existence of a
common intention. The Ist and 2nd accused
were found guilty of attempted murder and each
of them was sentenced to undergo eight years’
rigorous imprisonment. They have appealed against
that conviction. The appellants are brothers,

The case for the prosecution rests on the evidence
of Ran Banda and his father Mudiyanse, both of
whom were injured. This attack was at night in
the dark. The motive for the attack is not clear.
The prosecution story is that the accused were
lying in wait to attack Mudiyanse’s neighbour
Weragama. But Weragama was not attacked.
What is more, both Weragama and Ukku Amma,
his wife, whose names were on the list of witnesses
for the Crown gave evidence for the defence.

Don Cyril |

The two grounds of appeal urged before us
were —

(@) that the verdict is unreasonable, and

(b) that the learned Trial Judge misdirected
the jury as to the effect of the accused not
being called to give evidence on their
behalf.

There was no charge in respect of the injuries
caused to Mudiyanse, although the evidence
disclosed that the avowed intention of the st
accused was to attack him. The attack on his
son Ran Banda was incidental, and was made only
because he raised cries when his father was,
-attacked. In examination-in-chief Ran Banda
did not say that the 1st accused-appellant atacked
 him. He said: “When my father was assaulted
I raised cries saying, my father is assaulted, then
the 2nd accused Wijedasa came running and
| struck me on my head with a weapon. I fell down
| unconscious at that blow.” Questioned further
1as to the nature of the weapon with which he
was attacked he said it was an iron rod. It was in
cross-examination that the evidence against the
Ist accused was elicited. Ran Banda was reminded
of his deposition in the Magistrate’s Court and
questioned thereon as follows:—

“176. @: Why didn’t you run for your life?
A: I started to run. It was at that stage
that Wijedasa came running in the
dark and came and struck me,

|
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177. Q: Wijedasa is the 2nd accused?

A: Yes.

178. Q: You are quite certain that it was
Wijedasa ?

A: Yes,

179. @: You remember giving evidence in
the Magistrate’s Court?

A: Yes.

180. ©O: Did you tell the Magistrate, ‘the 1st
-accused dealt the first blow on my
head’?

A: 1 did not say that.

181. Q: If it was recorded? i

A: 1 would accept that I have said so. |

182." Q: Which is correct, Ist or 2nd accused

: who assaulted you ?

A: First of all 2nd accused Wijedasa |
came near me and the others came |
running close to me.

183. Q: Which is correct, 1st accused assaul-

ted or 2nd accused assaulted you?

The first blow was dealt by the 2nd
accused, thereafter the 1st accused
also came and struck me.”

In answer to further questions Ran Banda said

that the 1st accused dealt a blow on his left shoulder !

on the top of his forearm with an iron rod. In
order to discredit Ran Banda the defence proved
the statement D1 made by him in the Magistrate’s
Court that it was the 1st accused who dealt the
first blow. Mudiyanse’s evidence throws no light
on the attack on Ran Banda as Mudiyanse was
the first to be attacked and he lost consciousness
after the attack on him,

Despite the infirmities in Ran Banda’s account
of the attack on him there is evidence of a con-

certed attack by the 1st and 2nd accused-appellants. |

The evidence against the 1Ist accused though
clicited in cross-examination was evidence on
which the jury were entitled to act. It is the duty
of the jury to decide which view of the facts is
true and then to return the verdict which under
such view ought according to the direction of the
Judge to be returned. The verdict against the
appellants cannot therefore be said to be un-
reasonable or unsupported by the evidence.

In regard to the other ground it was submitted

that the following direction of the learned Judge
was wrong in law:—

35

~ “Perhaps there is one matter which I must
touch on.- You have the evidence of all these
witnesses who spoke to those matters which
they say they heard. There is no evidence
given by any of these accused. They called
witnesses, It is for you to assess the value
of these witnesses. I want you to bear in mind
that in view of the assessment of innocence
there is no duty cast on an accused person
to give evidence. He can remain silent and
the prosecution must prove the guilt of each’
accused beyond reasonable doubt. But where
you have a case where evidence is given which
implicates an accused, then when you come
to assess that evidence you could take into
consideration the fact that there is no evidence
given by the accused person contradicting
such evidence. On that question then of
credibility of the prosecution witnesses you
have their evidence. You have no evidence
which contradicts it given by the persons
whom they accuse. You can take that into
consideration in assessing the credibility
of the prosecution witnesses Ran Banda
and Mudiyanse who say ‘we saw these people
there. They attacked us.” When you come to
decide whether you are going to believe
them or not you can ask yourselves of the
fact — the fact that none of the accused gave
evidence — and of your assessment of the
evidence given by these 2 persons.

Will you please now retire and consider
your verdict.”

The learned Judge’s direction is unusual and is
capable of creating the impression that if -the
prosecution evidence is not contradicted by the
testimony of the accused the prosecution witnesses
should be believed. The burden of proving the
case against the accused is on the prosecution
(s. 101 Evidence Ordinance) and that burden is
not lessened by the fact that the accused does not
contradict on oath the evidence for the prosecution.
The view expressed by the learned Judge would
make it incumbent on accused persons to give
evidence on their own behalf in every case. It
finds no support in the Evidence Ordinance or
the Criminal Procedure Code or any other enact-
ment. When an accused person pleads not guilty
the plea must be taken as a denial of every assertion
of fact against him by the prosecution. Section
155 of the Evidence Ordinance specifies the ways
the credit of a witness may be impeached. Contra-
dicting a witness with the evidence of another is
not one of the ways prescribed in that section.
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A prosecution witness’s credibility has to be
assessed on his own merit and the fact that he is
uncontradicted by the sworn testimony of the
accused does not enhance his worth. In the instant
case Ran Banda as a witness was not entirely
satisfactory. He was not observant and he was
not consistent. In the Magistrate’s Court he had
said it was the Ist accused-appellant who dealt
the first blow on his head; in the trial Court he
asserted that it was the 2nd accused-appellant
who dealt the first blow which rendered him in- -
conscious. Nor did his story find Support in the
evidence of Ukku Amma who was according to
him an eye-witness of the attack, There is also
the fact that the jury rejected the evidence of
both Ran Banda and his father Mudiyanse on
the charge that the 1st to 5th accused were members
of an unlawful assembly whose common object
was to murder them.

The learned Judge’s direction is wrong in
law. There is no obligation on an accused person

to give evidence on his own behalf except where
he relies on his own evidence to establish a general
or special exception, the onus of proving, which
is on him. The fact that an accused person elects
not to give evidence does not render the prosecution
evidence more credible on that account and is
not a factor to be taken into consideration in
evaluating such evidence.

We are unable to hold that the jury were not
influenced by this wrong direction in arriving
at their verdict. We therefore direct that the con-
viction of the appellants be quashed,

On the question whether a judgment of acquittal
should be entered or a new trial ordered, the
order of the Court is that a judgment of acquittal
be entered.

Accused acquitted,

Present: H. N. G. Fernando, S.P.J,, and T. S. Fernando, J.
THE RAJAPAKSE ESTATES COMPANY LIMITED vs. NISSANGA DULSIN AND OTHERS.
S. C. No. 119/63 (Inty.)—D. C. Negambo No. 325/P,

Argued on : 1st June 1965,
Decided on: 2nd September 1965.

Fideicommissum — Deed of Gift — Prohibition against alienation — Clause vesting the property
in heirs executors administrators and assigns of the donees — Validity of fideicommissum.

By deed P 3, E gifted to the three children of his son M certain interests in a land subject to a life-interest reserved

for M and his wife.

After prohibiting the donees from alienating,the deed proceeded to state that “the four portions of land heteby gifted
shall vest in the abovenamed three children of my said son a.nd“in the children that may be born to him in the fuiure and

their heirs, executors administrators and assigns............

Held: That the deed P 3 did not create a fideicommissum as the persons who were to fake in the event of a breach
of the prohibition were not clearly designated.

Case referred to:

Seneviratne v. Mendis, (1962) 65 N.L.R. 169

J. W. Subasinghe, for the 6th defendant-appellant.

T. B. Dissanayake, for the plaintiff-respondents.

H. N. G. FErRNANDO, S.P.J.
By a deed of gift No. 25795 of 1880 (P 3),

one Endoris Silva conveyed a one-third share of

the land which is the subject of this action to

the children, then born and unborn, of his son
Marthelis, subject to a life-interest reserved for

Marthelis and his wife. There was a clause in
the deed prohibiting the alienation of the property
by the donees, followed by the following provision :=

““Therefore all the right title claim and interest
of me the said donor and of my heirs exe-
cutors administrators and assigns in and to the
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said four portions of land hereby gifted shall | N.L.R. 171) that a clause which vests propeity
vest in the above-named three children of |in the donees “and their heirs executors adminis-
my said son and in the children that may be trators and assigns” is mercly a mode of vesting
born to him in the future and their heirs the full dominium in the donees themselves. Even
executors administrators and assigns and they in cases where such a clause has wrongly been
may after the death of the said Marthelis Silva | thought to be a sufficient designation of the
and Sethan Silva Hamine posscss the same, | persons to benefit in the event of a breach of a
for which T have hereby granted and set over | prohibition against alienation, there have usually
the same as a gift.” been other citcumstances which led to such mis-
taken findings. There is no such excuse for the
I cannot but express dismay at the fact that the | finding in this instance.
District Judge, without any reference to authority, ]
formed the opinion that (P 3)created a fidei- | The decree appealed from is set aside with
comissum. The prohibition against alienation, | costs in both Courts. The District Judge will
which was the only feature of the deed which | enter g fresh decree on the basis that the deed

could lead to that cpinion, was nude, and in- | (p 3) did not create a fideicommissum.
operative to create a fideicommissum, unless

the persons who were to take in the event of a -
breach of the prohibition were clearly designated. T. S. FERNANDO, J.

It has repeatedly been held in decisions of this | I agree.

Court, the most recent of which is that of | ,

WEERASOORIYA J. in Seneviratne v. Mendis (65! Appeal allowed.

st e e

IN THE COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEAL
Present : T. S. Fernando, J., (President), Sri Skanda Rajah, J., and Sirimane, J.
S. H. SIRINIYAL alias SIRIGURUNNANSE vs. THE QUEEN

C.C.A. Appeal, No. 125 of 1964 (with Application 139 of 1964)
S.C. No. 46/64—M.C. Balapitiya, 40401.

Argued on : 18th and 19th January, 1965.
Decided on : 19th January, 1965.
Reasons delivered on : 1st February, 1965.

~ Criminal Procedure Code, section 121—Statements in first information to police not testified to
orally in Court—Improper admission of hearsay evidence—Duty of Appeal Court.

At a trial for murder, it transpired that a witness, M., (who was the wife of the deceased) was the dperson who carried

the first information to the police of the injuries caused to her husband. Her complaint as recorded by the police was

produced in document form, in terms of section 121 of the Criminal Procedure Code, as part of the case for the Crown
This complaint was read out to the jury and it contained, inter alia, the following statement :—

“ He (the appellant) has on several occasions threatened to shoot us.™
M. did not in her evidence refer to any previous threat either to shoot or injure in any other way.

Held: (1) Thqtb lthe evidence of previous threats by the appellant to shoot was hearsay and, therefore, inadmis-
sible.

(2) That where such evidence is wrongly admitted the Appeal Court would quash the conviction unless
the Crown was able to satisfy it that a reasonable jury, had they been properly directed, would with-
out doubt have convicted the appellant. .

Cases referred to:  R. v. Ivor Stephen Parker, (196]1) 45 Cr. AR. 1,
Teper v. R., (1952) A.C. 480; (1952) 2 A.E.R. 447;(1 952) 2 T.L.R. 162

G. E. Chitty, 0.C., with R. Rajasingham and M. Kanakaratnam, for the accused-appellant.
V. S. A. Pullenayegum, Crown Counsel, with R, Abeysuriya, Crown Counsel, for the Crown.
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T. 8, FERNANDO, J. | certain infirmities and some improbability in
| Meelin’s evidence to which our attention was
By a 6 to 1 majoiity verdict of the jury the | drawn, we were unable to take the view that there
appellant was convicted of the offence of murder | was a misdirection of the jury. The first ground
of a man called Leedin. On the appellant’s ‘ of appeal failed.
behalf it was argued : (1) that there was non- |
direction amounting to misdirection of the Jury  The reception of hearsay evidence took place
as to the manner in which an inference of guilt | in the following circumstances. Mcelin was the
may be made in a case depending solely on circum- person who carried the first information to the
stantial evidence ; and (2) that there was illegal police of the injuries caused to her husband. Her
reception at the trial of hearsay evidence which | complaint as recorded by the police was produced
could well have turned the scale against the!in document form as part of the case for the
appellant. Crown, and section 12] of the Criminal Procedure
| Code, of course, permitted such production.
In regard to the first of these two grounds of | This complaint was read out to the jury and it
appeal, it may be mentioned that the case was contained, inter alia, the following statement —
one of shooting of the deceased at night by an | * He (the appellant) has on several occasions
assailant at a distance of 50 to 60 feet from his | threatened to shoot us.” Meelin had not in
victim. The Crown’s case in regard to identi~ her evidence (which had been completed before
fication of the assailant rested on the testimony of | the production of the document which was made
a single witness, Meelin, the widow of the de- | only when the Inspector of Police gave evidence)
ceased. This woman stated that at about 7.30 p.m. ' referred to any previous threat either to shoot o
when the deceased was stooping over the edge | injure in any other way. No-attempt was made
of the verandah of her house in order to spit on kto recall Meelin in an effort to prove the truth
to the compound a shot was heard and the deceased of this statement. The evidence of previous
was secn falling as a result of injury caused by | threats by the appellant to shoot was, therefore,
that shot. She had an electric torch in her hand | hearsay and inadmissible. It was, therefore.
and she flashed that torch in the direction from patent that there was etror of law in the conduct
which the shot appeared to come, and she thcni of the trial,
saw the appellant running with a gun in his hand |
in the direction of his own house. It was not possible for us to accede to the
| argument of Crown Counsel that the jurors were
The learned trial judge stated more than once | hardly likely to have remembered this bit of
to the jury that if they were satisfied that Meelin | evidence. A striking example of the powers of
identified the appellant the latter should be found | jurors to recollect statements made in evidence is
guilty of the offence of murder. Learned counsel | to be found in the reported case of lvor Stephen
for the appellant argued that identification of the ‘ Parker, (1960) 45 Cr. AR. 1, That was also a
appellant as he was running away was no more | case where certain inadmissible evidence had heen
than a circumstance which could have tended to given at the trial. The trial judge had not even
incriminate him, and that, as Meelin did nect | heard the evidence in question and, when it was
claim to have seen the appellant fire at the deceased, brought to his notice by a juror at the conclusion
more inferences than one could have been drawn | of his summing-up, he directed the jury not to
in the case from the fact that the appellant was | attach any weight at all to it. In regard to this,
seen running away. He contended, therefore, Lord Parker, L.C.J., stated in the Court of Cri-
that it was incumbent on the learned judge to minal Appeal :—
have directed the jury as to the manner in which ; :
circumstantial evidence should be considered | * Whether a direction of this sort will in any
before a verdict of guilty can be returned. While | particular case cure the wrongful admission of
it may be correct strictly to.label this a case of | evidence must, in the opinion of the Court, be
circumstantial evidence in the technical sense that | one of degree. There may be many cases
the fact in issue was dependent on an inference = where the inadmissible evidence is of such little
from another fact, we are in agreement with the weight or is' liable to create so little prejudice
argument of learned Crown Counsel that in this | that it would be right and proper that the
case the fact in issue could have been decided with matter should be dealt with by a direction to
as much practical certainty as if it had been | the Jury. On the other hand, there are other
observed by Meelin. Therefore, notwithstanding ' cases wheic the inadmissible evidence is so pre-
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judicial and so likely to influence the jury in

arriving at their verdict that the Court is
reluctantly forced to the conclusion that the
matter cannot be left to a direction, but must be
dealt with by discharging the jury.”

The Court of Criminal Appeal there adopted
the test formulated by Lord Normand in the Privy
Council in the case of Tewer v. R., (1952) A.C.
492, in these words :—* The test is whether on a

wrongly admitted. Error of law having been
established, the burden shifted to the Crown to
satisfy us that a reasonable jury, had they been
properly directed. would without doubt have con-
victed the appellant. We were unable to say that
the Crown had so satisfied us. Indeed, we were
unable also to overlook the probability of the
evidence of previous threats by the appellant to
shoot having turned the scale against him to the
point of the jury getting some confirmation thereby

fair consideration of the whole proceedings the
Board must hold that there is a probability that|
the improper admission of hearsay evidence
turned the scale against the appeliant. ™

In the case before us there was not even a
direction to the jury to disregard the evidence

————

of the evidence of identification given by Meelin,
Upholding the second ground of appeal, we
allowed the appeal and quashed the conviction of
the appellant,

Appeal allowed.

Present: Sri Skanda Rajah, J,

B. FLOCKS vs. INSPECTOR OF POLICE, MIRIHANA

S.C. 1237/64. M.C. Colombo South, 51933/B.

Argued and decided on:

Criminal Procedure Code, sections 15 and 17—

20th November, 1964.

Sentence of whipping— When can a Magistrate inflict

it —Maximum sentence a Magistrate is empowered to impose when convicting a person on several counts.

Held: (1) That a Magistrate has jurisdiction to inflict a sentence of whipping only in the case of a person who

is under 16 years of age,

(2) That under section 17 of the Criminal Procedure Codea Magistrate could sentence an accused convicted
on several counts to a maximum of only 12 months.

S. S. Sahabandu, for the accused-appellant.
U. C. B. Ratnayake, Crown Counsel, for the

SRI SKANDA RAJAH, J.

I see no reason to interfere with the conviction;
but in passing sentence the Magistrate has violated
the provisicns of sections 15 and 17 of the Criminal
Procedure Code.

It would appear that the accused was 24 years
of age. Though whipping is a sentence in section
345 of the Penal Code for the use of criminal

Attorney-General. '

sentenced the accused to terms of three months’
imprisonment in respect of the first, third and
fourth counts, and to 6 months’ imprisonment and
whipping on count two, and he ordered all
these sentences to run consecutively, which would
total to fifteen months’ rigorous imprisonment.
Even that he had no jurisdiction to do. At most
under section 17 of the Criminal Procedure Code
he could sentence the accused to a maximum of
only 12 months.

force with intent to outrage the modesty of a
woman, the Magistrate had no jurisdiction to
inflict a sentence of whipping. He has jurisdiction
to inflict a sentence of whipping only in the case
of a person who is under 16 years of age. There-
fore, the sentence of whipping in respect of the
second count has to be deleted. The Magistrate

' Therefore, I delete the sentence of whipping and

also order that all sentences do run concurrently.
| The accused will in the result undergo a term of
| rigorous imprisonment for six months.

Sentences varied,
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Present | Abeyesuondere, J., and G. P. A. Silva, J.

FERNANDO s,

FERNANDO

§.C.264 (F), 1963—D.C. Colombo, No. 8851/L.

Argued and decided on : 19th May, 1965,

Possessory action—Meaning of the words  ut dominus ™.

Held: That the learned Judge had misinterpreted the expression “ut dominus™ to mean ‘“‘as sole owner”. A posses-

action means “* in his own right *,

sory decree is not based on sole ownership, The words *“ ut dominus ** in the context of a possessory

Case referred to: Cooray v. Samaranayake, (1946) 47 N.L.R. 322; XXXII C.LLW. 43

E. B. Wikremanayake, Q.C., with M. L. de Silva, for the plaintiff-appellant,

Roland de Zoysa, for the defendants-respondents,

ABEYESUNDERE, J.

In this case the plaintiff sued the defendants on
two alternative causes of action. On the first
cause of action he averred that he had acquired a
prescriptive title to the allotment of land des-
cribed in the schedule to the plaint which is a
divided portion of a large land, and prayed for a
declaration of title to that allotment of land and
for the ejectment of the defendants therefrom.
On the second cause of action the plaintiff pleaded
that he had been in possession of the said allot-
ment of land for a period of more than a year and
-a day before he was dispossessed by the defendant,
that he had raised a coconut and rubber plantation
thereon, and that the defendants had dispossessed
him, and he prayed for the ejectment of the
defendants from the said allotment of land. The
plaintiff also claimed damages. The learned
District Judge who tried the action dismissed it.
The plaintiff has appealed from the judgment and
decree of the learned District Judge.

Mr. E. B. Wikremanayake, Q.c., who appeared
for the appellant, did not support the appeal
in respect of the first cause of action. He
restricted the appeal to the second cause of action.
He also did not support the claim to damages.
According to the findings of the learned District
Judge, the plaintiff and the defendants are co-
owners. In regard to ths second cause of action
the learned District Judge has on the facts held
that the plaintiff had raised a coconut and rubber
plantation on the aforesaid allctment of land and
had possessed it for the requisite period of a

year and a day but he held that the plaintiffs’
possession was not ut dominus and, therefore,
he was not entitled tc a possessory decree. The
learned District Judge has interpreted the ex-
pression “ut dominus” to be “as sole owner”.
A possessory decree is not based on ownetship.
The expression “ut dominus”. with reference to
possession pleaded by a plaintiff in a possessory
action, means “in his own right”. In the present
case the plaintiff has been in possession of the
aforesaid allotment of land in his own right.
I, therefore, hold that the lsarned District J udge
has misdirected himself on the interpretation of
the law applicable to a possessory action, This
Court has held in the case of Cooray v. Samara-
nayake, reported in 47 N.L.R., page 322, that a
co-owner who has been in possession of the entire
commeon property for a year and a day ut dominus
can maintain a possessory action against ansther
co-owner who thereafter ousts him. In view of
the findings of the learned District Judge on
the facts relating to possession T hold that the
plaintiff had been in possession of the aforesaid
allotment of land fer a period adequate in law
to entitle him to a possessory decree against the
defendants.

I set aside the judgment and decree of the
learned District Judge and I order that the
defendants be ejected from the aforesaid allotment
of land and the plaintiff be restored to possession
thereof. The appellant is entitled tc the costs of
this appeal.

G. P. A. SiLva, J.
I agree.
Appeal allowed,
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Privy Council Appeal No. 15 of 1965

Present: Lord Reid, Lord Morris of Borth-y-Gest, Lord Pearce, Lord Upjohn, Lord Pearson

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MARADANA MOSQUE
VS.
THE HONOURABLE BADI-UD-DIN MAHMUD AND ANOTHER

From
THE SUPREME COURT OF CEYLON

JUDGMENT OF THE LORDS OF THE JUDICIAL COMMITTEE OF
THE PRIVY COUNCIL,

DELIVERED THE 19TH JANUARY 1966

Certiorari — Failure to observe the principles of natural justice —Failure to _consider the right question
before making an order —Consequent lack of jurisdiction to make order — Assisted Schools and Training
Colleges (Special Provisions) Act No. 5 of 1960 — Assisted Schools and Training Colleges Supplementary
Provisions) Act No. 8 of 1961.

The Appellants are a body incorporated by the Maradana Mosque Ordinance (Cap. 347) and charged with the
administration, inter alia, of Zahira College. Zahira College became on the 30th November 1960 an Unaided School, and
as such became subject to Sections 6 and 11 of the Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Special Provisions) Act No,
5 of 1960, and afterwards to the Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Supplementary Provisions) Act No, 8 of 1961.
On the 11th August 1961 respresentations were made by groups of teachers to the 2nd Respondent that their salaries were
not being paid in accordance with the duty imposed on the Appellants by section 6(7) of Act No. 5 of 1960, and that fact
showed that the Appellants were not in a position to satisfy the duty imposed on them by Section 6(k) of the same Act.
The 2nd Respondent thereupon informed the Appellants on the 11th August 1961 that it had been brought to his notice
that they had contravened section 6(i), and asked them to show cause why the School should not be taken over for manage-
ment by the 2nd Respondent. There was no reference to Section 6(k), nor were the Appellants informed that a complaint
existed that they were not in a position to satisfy the duty imposed by Section 6(k).

The Appellants by a letter dated 15th August 1961 showed cause as requested. On the 21st August 1961 the 2nd
Respondent informed the Appellants that the school had been taken over under section 11 of Act No. 5 of 1960 as section
6(7) of theAct had been violated. Abcut two months later, the 1st Respondent made a broadcast speech, which was later
published as an official paper by the Government, giving the reasons for the take over of the School, The Minister here
stated that the letter of the Appellants of the 15th August 1961 clearly indicated that the appellants had been disregarding
section 6(k), as well as 6()), and that under these circumstances he had no alternative but to order the take over of the
School. The Appellants challenged the validity of the order for the take over of the school made on the21st August 1961
by way of certiorari on a number of grounds. The two grounds adjudicated on by their Lordships were,

(@) that in making the order, the Minister was acting in a judicial or quasi-judicial capacity and was under a
duty to observe the rules of natural justice; this he failed to do in that he did not afford the appellants
an opportunity of answering the charge against them.

(b) that the Minister failed to consider whether the school ““is being administered incontravention of any of tl_1e
provisions of this Act,” (which were the words of Section 11) which imply an element of continuance in
the contravention of the Act as at the date of the order.

Held: That both arguments were entitled to succeed. With regard to the first argument, the Appellants had no notice
of any complaint in regard to the contravention of section 6(k), and no opportunity of stating their case
in regard to this. In making the order, it was established that the Minister was largely influenced by this
alleged contravention of which the Appellants had no notice. With regard to the second argument, in
making the order the Minister had not considered the right question which was whether the School was
presently being administered in contravention of the Act. The Minister should have concerned himself with
the present conduct of the School, and not the past. Since he had not considered the right question, he
had no jurisdiction to make the order.

Per Curiam—When an applicant applies to quash an Order on the ground of a failure of natural justice, he is not
confined to the face of the record. He may establish his case from other reliable evidence.

Cases referred to: Ridge v. Baldwin, 1964 A.C. 40; 1963 (2) A.E.R. 67; 1963(2) W.L.R. 935.

Franklin And Others v. Minister of Town And Country Planning, 1948 A.C. 87; 1947(2) A.ER,
289; 63 T.LR. 446, :



E. F. N. Gratiaen, Q.C., with
for the appellant,

Victor Tennekoon, Q.C., with R.K. Handoo

Lord Pearce ,

The Maradana Mosque is a leading place of |
Muslim worship in Ceylon. '

The appellants are a body incoiporated over
forty years ago by the Maradana Mosque Ordi-
nance (Ne. 22 of 1924). They are charged with the
administration of the Mosque, and its lands and
property, part of which is a large school known
as Zahira College (referred to as “the school™).
The appellants sought from the Supreme Court of
Ceylon a mandate in the nature of a writ of
certiorari quashing an order made on the 21st |
August 1961 in respect of the school by the first
respondent who was at the relevant dates Minister
of Education (referred to as “‘the Minister™)
after consultation with the second respondent
who was at the relevant dates Director of Education
{referred to as “the Director”). The late Herat J.
in the Supreme Court refused a mandate and the .
appellants appeal against thar refusal. There |
has been delay in the proceedings since, owing
to the illness of the late learned judge, there was
an interval of eighteen months between the hearing |
and judgment.

Until 306th November 1960 the school was an
Assisted School, that is to say, it provided fres
education and received a government grant to-
wards its running cxpenscs. In 1960 however
the government was empowered to take over the
management of all Assisted Schools by the terms
ol the Assisted Schools and Training Colleges
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 5 of 1960 (referred
to as the 1960 Act). The 1960 Act, however, gave
to the proprictors of Assisted Schools an clection |
to carry on the schools without government aid
(Scction 5). The appellants did so elect within the
statutory peried and therefore on the 30th !
Nevember 1960 the scheool became an Unaided |
School. As such it was subject to Sections 6 and
11 of the 1960 Act and afterwards to the Assisted
Schools and Training Colleges (Supplementary
Provisions) Act, No. § of 1961 (referred to as the
1961 Act) which was passed on the 2nd March
1961, amending the 1960 Act and intraducing a
new provision for vesting of school property in
the Government without compensation.

Section 6 as amended provides:—
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T. 0. Kellock, Q.C., A. C. M. Ameer, Q.C., and Walter Jayawardena,

and V.S.A. Pullencyagum, for the respondent.

“The proprietor of any school which, by virtue of
election made under Section 5, is an unaided school—

- x s

(/) shall pay to every teacher and employee who is
on the staff of such school the salary and allowances
due to such teacher or employee in respect of any
montl}; not later than the 10th day of the subsequent
month;

£ o0 ® & e e w

(k) shall satisfy the Director that necessary funds
to conduct and maintain the school will be available
and shall conduet such school to the satisfaction of
the Director;”

Section 11 provides:—
“Where the Minister is satisfied—

R R e et e

(b after consultation with the Director, that any
school which, by virtue of the provisions of this Act,
is being administered as an unaided school, is being so
administered in contravention of any of the provisions
of this Act or any regulations or Orders made there-
under or of any other written law applicable in the
case of such school,

the Minister may, by Order published in the Gazetie
declare that, with effect from such date as shall be
specified in the Order—

(i) such school shall cease to be an unaided school.

(i} such school shall be deemed for all purposes to
be an Assisted school, and

(iii) the Director shall be the Manager of such school.

Section 4(1) of the 1961 Act provides:—

“Where the Minister, considers it desirable so to
do, the Minister may, by Order published in the Gazette
(in this Act referred to as a “Vesting Order’), declare
that, with effect from such date as shall be specificd
in the Order (not being a date earlier than fourteen
days after the date of such publication), all property
of the description specified in the Order, being property
liable to vesting, shall vest in the Crown,”

In the summer of 1961 the school had tun
into financial difficulties. The salaries of the teachers
up to the end of June were duly paid, but most
of the salaries for July had not been paid by the
10th August, so that there was a contravention of
Section 6(i). On the 11th August 1961 there were
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two letlers from groups of the teachers to the
Director, Both letters complained of the non-
payment of the salaries. One of them added—
“From the time Zahira became unaided on the
1st December 1960 we have been receiving our ‘
salaries regularly on or about the last day of each
month. This failure on the part of the Management
reveals that the Management docs not have the
necessary funds to manage the institution pro-
perly.” On the same day, the 11th August, the
Dircctor of Education sent to the appellants a
formal complaint that it had been brought tc his
notice that they had failed so far to pay the salaries
of the teachers for the month of July 1961 and
that they had thereby contravened Section 6(7)
(whose terms were set out in full). The letter
ended with these words “I shall be thankful
if you will show cause on ot before the 18th
August 1961 why I should not recommend that
Zahira College be taken over for Director-manage-
ment in terms of the Special Provisions Act No. 5
of 1961.”” There was no reference to paragraph (k)
of Section 6: the Director did not invite the appel- |
lants to satisfy him that “necessary funds to |
conduct and maintain the school will be available”.
Nor did he inform them of the observation on this
point made by the group of teachers in their|
letter to him. |

In answer to the Director’s letter of 11th August, |
referring only to paragraph (i) of Section 6, the
appellants, in a letter of 15th August, showed
cause as requested. They said:—

“With reference to your letter No. NSB. 112 of the
{1th instant, I write to inform you that owing (o a
certain misunderstanding the salaries of all the teachers |
of the College werz not paid by the 10th instant. I |
am making arrangements to pay the salaries of the
remainder of the teachers by the 18th instant. |

The salaries of the teachers for August 1961 and the
subsequent months will be paid by the 18th of the
subsequent month in terms of the Provisions of the
Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Special
Provisions ) Act No. 5 of 1960 as amended by the
‘Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Supplementary
Provisions) Act No, 8 of 1961.”

I
The appellants were able to provide the necessary
funds by means of a further loan from the Mosque,
and on the 18th August the unpaid teachers were

that the school should be taken over for Director-
management with effect from the 2Ist August
“as Section 6(7) of the a oresaid Act was violated™.
On the same day, the 21st August, 1961 an Order
of the Minister (referred to as the first Order)
bearing date the 19th August, was published in
the Government Gazette declaring that the school
should cease tc be unaided, that it should be
dezmed for all purposes to be an Assisted School,
and that the Director of Education should be its
Manager. From the 21st August 1961 the Director
took over the management and administration of
the school.

About two months later, as representations had

' been made to him complaining of the *“take over”

of the school, the Minister made a broadcast
statement, which was published as an official
paper by the Government and was put in
evidence. It was headed

“Zahira Colleze
Education Minister’s Statement
Published by the Department of Information
(Printed at the Goverment Press Ceylon)

The following is the text of a broadcast made over
Radio Ceylon by the Honourable Minister of Education
and Broadeasting, Mr. Badiuddin Mahmud, giving
the reasons for the take over of Zahira College,
Colombo.”

In the course of his statement the Minister referred
to the “twelve conditions” mnamely 6{a) to (/)
“to be satisfied by the proprietor” of a school
under Section 6 of the 1960 Act as amended and
said—

“The law further provided that a school should be
taken over for Director-management if any of thesc
twelve conditions was violated, The procedure was
also laid down. According to it, the Minister, in con-
sultation with the Director of Education has to publish
an Order declaring the school to be director-managed.
The law does not give the Minister.any discretion Lo
excuse the violation of any of the above-mentioned
conditions or to adopt any course of action other than
director-management.”

In a later passage the Minister, referring to what
the appellants had said in their letter of the 15th
August, said:—

“These statements were a clear indication that the

offered their salaries but refused to accept them
from the appellants.

On the 21st August the President of the Exe-
cutive Committee of the Mosque, who was also
the manager of the school, reccived a letter from
the Director stating that the Minister had ordered

Executive Committee of the Maradana Mosque had
not only violated Section 6(f) but had been disregarding
Section 6(k) which required the Committee to have
available with it the necessary funds to conduct and
maintain the school. All these very poignantly pointed
to the fact that the Exccutive Committee of the Mara-
dana Mosque did not have the necessary funds to
pay even a month’s salary to its teachers. Under these
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circumstances there was no alternative for me, but
to issue the inevitable Order, under Section 11 to
take over Zahira College for Director-management.
This step was rendered compulsory by the failure of
the Executive Committee of the Maradana Mosque
to comply with the unambiguous provisions of the lav.”

On the 2nd December 1961 the Minister made
an Order under Section 4 of the 1961 Act vesting
in the Crown the premises, movable property and
money of the schocl.

The Minister’s second Order vesting the property
in the Crown is not attacked in these proceedings,
nor is the Crown a party to them. Their Lordships
are not concerned with any future proceedings
that may be taken with regard to the second O -der.

The first Order however which declared that the :

school should cease to be unaided, that it should
be deemed an Assisted School and that the Director
should be its Manage. is attacked on various
grounds.

It is contended first that the Minister in making
the first Order was acting in a judicial or quasi-
judicial capacity and was under a duty to observe
the rules of natural justice; this he failed to do in
that he did not afford the appellants an opportunity
of answering the charge against them.

Further it is contended that the Minister acted
in excess of his jurisdiction, in that he failed to
consider the right questions and failed to make
the decisions which were the requisite foundations
for an Order under Section 11. The passages from
his broadcast statement, which have been set out
above, are relied upon as showing that, in the view
of the Minister, as soon as any breach of any of
the provisions of Section 6 had been proved,
he had no further question to consider and no
discretion to excercise and was bound to make the
Order. 1t is contended that the Minister thus
erroneously failed to consider (¢) whether the
school “is being administered in contravention
of any of the provisions of this Act”, which
mmplies an element of continuance in the contra-
vention as at the date of the Order and (b) whether,
if such contravention had been established, it
would in all the circumstances be right to make the
Order. Then it is said that, as the Minister failed
to consider these questions, he did not make the
decisions which were the necessary foundations for
the Order and therefore the Order was made in
excess of his jurisdiction,
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There is also a contenticn that there was an error
of law on the face of the record. This is put on the
ground that the Director’s letters of the 1lth
and 21Ist August 1961 form part of the record and
show that the mere single breach of Section 6(i)
by failure to pay the July salaries within the
statutery time limit was considered a sufficient
foundation for the Order. Alternatively it is put
on the ground that in the circumstances of this case

| the record should be taken to include the Minister’s
| own broadcast statement cf his reasons for making

the Order, and that statement reveals his errors in
law in holding and acting upon the belief that if a
single breach of the statuiory requirements had
been proved it would follow automatically that
he must make an Order.

Herat J. in the Supreme Court refused the
appellants” application on two grounds; first
that certiorari only lies to question and quash a
Jjudicial act and the act in question, even if un-
Justified, was purely ministerial; secondly that the
minister was acting infra vires since one flagrant
act of contravention satisfied the condition of
“being administered in contravention.”

With all respect to the learned judge, it is not
correct to regard the Minister's act as purely
ministerial. It was not contested below nor before
their Lordships that the Minister was acting in a
Judicial or quasi-judicial capacity in satisfying
himself whether there had been a contravention.
And until he was so satisfied he had no juris-

' diction to make the Order. He must therefore

in satisfying himself on that point observe the
rules of natural justice. He must give the appellants

| notice of what was charged against them and

allow them to make representations in answer.

Sc far as a contravention of Section 6(i) was
alleged the appellants had fair warnin 2. The Direc-
tor on the I[1th August 1961 sent the formal
complaint (referred to above) that they had failed
so far to pay the salaries of the teachers for the
month of July 1961 and that they had thereby
contravened Scction 6(i) and it concluded with
the invitation to show cause why he should not
recommend that the school be taken over.

The appellants accordingly showed cause in
their letter of 15th August 1961 quoted above.
So far as concerned the promise of payment on the
18th instant and of good behaviour in the future,
that answer was satisfactory, but so far as ex-
plaining the past lapse was concerned it was not
very illuminating. Whether the appellants took
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their danger too lightly or whether, having little to
excuse their lapse, they felt that the least said
would be the soonest mended, one cannot say.
But they had an opportunity to state their casc
and they chose to state the excuse for their lapse
in very cursory form.

In respect of the complaint under Section 6(7)
therefore, it cannot be said that the appellants
were denied an opportunity of stating their case.

They had, however, no notification that any
complaint was being made under Section 6(k)
which is a different and, in this case, more far
reaching matter. If, therefore, an imputed failure
under Section 6(k) can be shown to have played
a material part in the Minister’s decision, the
appellants were not fairly treated.

The learned Solicitor-General argues forcefully
that a political speech is no adequate evidence
for establishing that Section 6(k) formed an
important part of the Minister’s decision. He
relies on Franklin’s case (1948) A.C. 97 at 105.
But the dicta in that case are net near enough to
the facts of the present case to provide an analogy.
Here the Minister presented a serious and detailed
statement (in a broadcast which was printed as a
government paper) “‘giving the reasons for the
take over of Zahira College™. There seems therefore
no reason to doubt the truth of the Minister’s
own assertion that the appellants’ contravention
of Section 6(k) plaved an important part (and,
it may well be, the most important part) in his
decision to make the Order.

When an applicant is applying to quash an
Order on the ground that there was an infringe-
ment of the rules of natural justice, he is not con-
fined to the face of the record. He may establish
his case from other reliable evidence. In their
Lordships® view it is sufficiently established by
the government paper that the Minister in making
the Order was largely influenced by an alleged
contravention of which the appellants had no

notice,

Whether it could be a valid answer to say that
the appellants had in truth no defence even if |
they had been given an oppeortunity of presenting |
it, need not be considered. That point was left
open in Ridge v. Baldwin (1964) A.C. 40. In the
present case their Lordships cannot assume that
the appellants had no means to satisfy the pro-
visions of 6(k). It would appear that the Mosque \
has funds out of which it lent money tc the school

in order to provide the greater part of the payment
which was tendered to the teachers on 18th August,
It may be that, if challenged under 6 (k), the
appellants would have made funds available to
the school for its maintenance. If indeed no funds
were available, it seems hardly likely that this
appeal would have been launched, since its success
would in that case be followed immediately by
a fresh Order based on a contravention of 6(k).

On the appellants’ first argument, the appeal
succeeds,

The second argument is also valid in their
Lordships’ opinion. Before the Minister had
jurisdiction to make the Order he must be satisfied
that ““any school is being so administered in
contravention of any of the provisions of this
Act.” The present tense is clear. It would have
been casy to say “has been administered” or
“in the administration of the school any breach
of any of the provisions of this Act has been
committed”, if such was the intention aof the
legislature. But for reasons which common sense
may easily supply, it was enacted that the Minister
should concern himself with the present conduct of
the school, not the past, when making the Order.
This does not mean, of course, that a school may
habitually misconduct itself and yet repeatedly
save itsell from any Order of the Minister by
correcting its faults as soon as they are called to
its attention. Such behaviour might well bring it
within the words “is being administered”. But
in the present case no such situation arose. The
evidence shows that before July 1961 payment of
salaries had always been punctual, a fact which
was used to emphasize the lapse that cccurred
with regard to the July salaries. Although on this
occasion the salaries were not paid, as they should
have been, by 10th August, the appellants premised
to pay them by 18th August. This promise they
fulfilled, since for this purpose tender was equi-
valent to payment. Moreover a promise was made
that all payments would in future be made by the
due date. There was therefore no ground on which
the Minister could be “satisfied” at the time of
making the Order. As appears from the passages
of his broadcast statement which are cited above,
he failed to consider the right questicn. He con-
sidered only whether a breach had been committed,
and not whether the school was at the time of
his order being carried on in contravention of any
of the provisions of the Act. Thus he had no

jurisdiction to make the Order at the datec on

which he made it.
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The remaining contentions of the appellants raise | Order both without giving the appellant a fair
difficult questions as to the scope of the remedy hearing under 6(k) and without jurisdiction,
by mandate in the nature of a writ of certiorari. | Therefore this appeal succeeds.

In thinking that he had at the final stage no dis- |
gcé“;n in C}iﬁdﬁs _“tfhcther' Odr' no}t}_to} lff?asl‘_e the ' Their Lordships will therefore humbly advise
rder, was the Minister exceeding his jurisdiction Her Majesty that the appeal should be allowed

or merely making a mistake in the exercise of it?
What is the record in relation to the Order of a | ahd the deciee of the Supreme Court dated the

Minister, and in this case should it be taken to | 3rd September 1963 set aside with costs and the
ilc-]ude lheﬁDJrcctor‘s letters of the 11th and 21st case remitted to the Supreme Court in order that it
ugust 1961 and the Minister’s broadcast state- may issue a mandate in the 4 Wri
: ; ; e a mandate nature of a writ of
ment of his reasons for the Order ? Their Lordships, | . ; 4
however, find it unnecessary to embark upon a
discussion of these problems.

certiorari quashing the Order of the first respondent
dated the 19th August 1961. The respondents
| must pay the costs of this appeal.

The appellants have shown by their first and |
sccond arguments that the Minister made the | Appeal alfowed,

Present: T. S. Fernando, J.

CHARLOTTE BEATRICE PERERA
¥s,
THE COMMISSIONER OF INLAND REVENUE

S.C. Application No. 426 of 1964 _
Application in Revision in M.C. Panadura No. 86367

Argued on: 24th June 1965
Decided on: 8th July 1965

Income Tax Ordinance, section 85(1) — Tax in default deemed to be a fine — Not obligatory on
Magistrate to impose term of imprisonment in default of payment of fine — Criminal Procedure Code,
section 312(1),

Held: (1) That it is not obligatory on a Magistrate, in every case where tax in default is deemed by section 85(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance to be a fine, to order a term of imprisonment in default of payment of fine.

(2) That although no appeal lies against an order made in pursuance of section 85(1) of the Ordinance, it is
open to the Supreme Court to aller such order in the exercise of its power of revision.

Per T.8. Fernando, J.—(A) “No question of convicting a person arises where proceedings under section 85 of the Ordi-
nance have been taken. Where sufficient cause has not been shown, the tax in default shall be deemed to be a fine imposed
by a sentence of the Magistrate on the defaulter for an offence punishable with fine only or not punishable with imprison-
ment.,”*

(B) “This Court does not ordinarily interfere with the exercise of a Jjudicial discretion. But the learned Magistrate, in
making the order sought to be revised here, acted on the gssum ption that he was obliged, at the time of imposition of the
fine, also to make an order in respect of imprisonment in default of payment, De Jong’s case had been cited before him,
and Weerasooriya JI. had there made the observation that the object of the proceedings under section 85(1) would be defeated
if the Magistrate merely makes an order that the defaulter should pay the tax as a fine. The learned Magistrate, therefore
acted in the instant case as if he had no discretion in regard to the question whether imprisonment in default of payment
should be ordered or not,” .

Not followed : De Jong v. Commissioner of Income Tax, (1955) 57 N.L.R. 281
Distinguished : Puswella v. Commissioner of Income Tax, (1958) 60 N L R. 497
Cecil de S. Wijeratne, for the petitioner,

P. Naguleswaran, Crown Counsel, for the respondent,
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The proceedings in the Magistrate’s Court in
this case commenced with the issue by thc Commis- |
sioner of Inland Revenue of a certificate in terms of |
saction 85(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance (Cap. |
242) to the effect that the petitioner had made
default in the payment of Rs. 7,350/- made up of
income-tax due, surcharge thereon and a sum ‘
added by reason of ncn-payment. 5

The petitioner, when summoned by the Magis-
trate to show cause why further preceedings for |
the recovery of the amount certified shovld not |
be taken against her, gave evidence which dis-
closed that her liability to pay this sum arosc as a |
result of tax being attracted to a sum of Rs. |
37,662/50 which she received on 4th July 1959
as the 2nd prize in a Hospital Sweep. She is a
widow with children, and she gave an account of |
the manner in which she spent this money. The |
learned Magistrate has accepted that the money has
been utilised for legitimate and necessary ex-
penses. About six weeks before she received the
prize money legislation had been passed making
prize money from sweeps liable to income tax.
Whether the petitioner knew or did not know of
such a tax liability is irrelevant because the
liability to pay the tax is not dependent on that
knowledge. The petitioner had at no time prior
to the reczipt of the prize money been liable to
pay income tax, and a notice of assessmznt of |
liability to tax issusd for the first time only on
22nd January 1963, some three and a half yearsl
after shz became liable to pay it and after she |
had spent the prize money. When she received |
the assessment she had no money or other assets |
to pay any sum at all.

The learned Magistrate, holding that she hadI
not shown sufficient cause within the meaning
of section 85(1), imposed on her a fine of Rs.
7.350/-, and in default of payment “convicted |
her and sentenced her to 2 menths’ simple !
imprisonment.” No question of convicting a
person arises where proceedings under section
85 ¢f the Ordinance have been taken. Where
sufficient cause has not been shown, the tax in
default shall be deemed to be a fine imposed by
a sentence of the Magistrale on the defaulter |
for an offence punishable with fine only or not |
punishable with imprisonment.

Learnsd counsel for the petitioner attempted
to rely on the decision in Puswella v. Commissioner
of Income Tax (1958) 60 N.L.R. 497, inhis argu-
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i ment that the Magistrate should have held that

sufficient cause was shown against recovery
by the procedure of section 85. The facts of the
instant case, however, are different, and Puswelld’s
case is, in any event, distinguishable. 1 ses no
reason tc interfere with that part of the order
which relates to the tax being deemed a fine
imposed by the Magistrate,

The question that has given me some difficulty
is whether the Magistrate is obliged, in every
case where the tax in default is deemed by szction
85(1) to be a fine, to order a term of imprison-
ment in default of payment of the fine. Counsel
for the Commissioner argued that there is such
an obligation on the Magistrate and relied for
support for that argument on the observations
of Weerasocoriva l. in de Jong v. Commissioner
of Income Tax, (1955) 57 N.L.R. at page 281. There
that learned judge observed that the tax due is
deemed to be a fine only for the purpose of in-
voking the provisions of section 312(1) of the
Criminal Procedure Code relating to the imposition
of a torm of imprisonement in default of payment
of tax. He also went on to observe that the object
of proceedings under section 85(1) of the Ordinance
is to snsure recovery of the tax due from a de-
faulter by subjecting him to a term of imprison-
ment should he fail to pay the tax. Where, however,
it is not disputed thal the defaulter is not possessed
of any money, I find it difficulr, with respect, to
appreciatz how the subjecting of the defaulter
to a term of imprisonment will result in a payment
of the tax or even a part of it. Counsel for the
Commissioner suggested that, if the petitioner is
sentenced to imprisonment, her children might
come forward to pay the tax in order to save their
mother from gaol. I do not think that such a
hope is one which the Commissioner should be
encouraged to entertain at law,

This Court does not ordinarily interfere with the
exercise of a judicial discretion. Bui the learned
Magistrate, in making the order sought to be
revised here, acted on the assumption that he was
obliged, at the time of imposition of the fine, also
to make an order in respect of imprisonment
in defanlt of payment. De Jong's case had been

| cited before him, and Weerasooriya, J. had there

made the observation that the object of the pro-
ceedings under section 85(1) would be defeated
if the Magistrate merely makes an order that the
defaulter should pay the tax as a fine. The learned
Magistrate, therefore, acted in the instant case

| as if he hbad no discretion in regard to the question

whether imprisonment in default of payment should
be ordered or not.

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org



48 1966—Sirimane, J.— Yasapala & Another vs. Munasinghe Vol. LXX

Section 85(1) itself, while it makes it cbligatury | on the assumption that he had no discretion in the
that a tax in default shall be decemed to be a fine, | matter but that he was obliged to do so, it is
leaves it, in my opinion, open to the Magistrate (open to this Court to consider whether in the
to decide whether or not any of the provisions of ‘circ-umstances of the case it was onz in which a
section 312(1) of the Criminal Procedure Code shall | term of imprisonment in default of payment was
be made applicable to the fine. In the words of | called for. In the ordinary case of the imposition
that section, “the Magistrate may make any | of a fine and a sentence of imprisonnment in default
direction which, by the provisions of that sub- | of payment of the fine upon a conviction for an
section 312 (1), he could have made at the time ' offence, the serving of the sentence of imprison-
of the imposition of the sentence.”” Again, pro- | ment puts an end to the liability to pay the fine.
vision (b) of sub-section 1 of section 312 vests | It was conceded, however, that serving a term of
in the Magistrate a discretion whether or not to imprisonment for default does not put an end
direct by the sentence that in default of payment | to the liability to pay the tax-vide section 88 of
of the fine the offender shall suffer imprisonment |the Ordinance, It is implicit in the findings
for a certain term. Although in many cases a |in this case that the petitioner has no present means
Magistrate may decide to impose a term of impri- | of paying the tax (now a fire). Sending her to
scnment in default, there may be some cases where gaol in the face of that finding can hardly be said
he does not think such action called for. to be necessary to ensure recovery of the tax.

] The interests of the Revenue did not require the

There is, of course, no appeal available against | imposition of the term of imprisonment. I would,

an order made in pursuance of section 85(1) of | therefore, acting in revision, quash that part of

the Ordinance; it is, howevsr, open to this Court | the order made on 27th October 1964 by the

to consider whether in the circumstances the order | Miagistrate \YhECh (Sl o cenviction £a0 sefiiencs

: i of 2 months’ simple imprisonment. The imposition
complained of here should be altered in the exer-

_ of the fine of Rs. 7,350/- will stand.
cise of its powers of revision. The Magistrate
having imposed the term of imprisonment Varized.

ELECTION PETITION, No. 11 OF 1965

Present: Sirimane, J.

ELECTORAL DisTRICT NoO. 32—AGALAWATTA

G. DON YASAPALA & ANOTHER
Vs,
ANIL KUMAR MUNASINGHE dlias ANIL KUMAR MOONESINGHE

Decided: May 9, 1966

Election Petition Inquiry — Right to obtain cert ified copies of statements made to police by witnesses
Jor purposes of cross-examination — Law applicable to summoning of witnesses and admissibility of
evidence in Election cases — Civil Courts (! pecial Provisions) Act No. 43 of 1961 section 3 — Ceylon
(Parliamentary Elcctions) Order-in-Council, section T8(A)(3).

Held: (1) That there is no legal objection to the issue of certified copies of statements made to the police Qy some
of the witnesses listed to testify against a party to an election petition when such party needs them
for the purpose of cross-examining these witnesses.

(2) That the provisions of section 3 of the Civil Coutts (Special Provisions) Act No. 43 of 1961 and those
of section 78(A)(3) of the Ceylon ( Parliamentary Elections) Order-in-Council justify the view that in
matters relating to the summoning of witnesses and the admissibility of evidence, the law applicable
to civil trials before a District Court should be followed in a Flection Court, rather than the pro-
visions of the Criminal Procedure Code.

P. Navaratnarajah, Q.C. with J. W. Subasinghe, S. C. Crossette-Tambiah, J. E. P. Deraniyagala,
R. N, Hapugala and Miss Rarr-Kumarakulasinghe, for the petitioners,



Yol. LXX

1965 —Tambiah, J.—Chandrasiri v. Wickramasinghe

49

K. Shinya with Nimal Scnanayake, Stanley Tillekeratne, Tudor Siriwardena and Vernon Gunaratne,

for the respondent,

L, B. T. Premaratne, Senior Crown Counsel, as amicus curiae,

Sirimane, J.

The respondent has made an application for
certified copies of statements made to the police
by seme of the witnesses listed to testify against
him in regard to alleged acts of intimidation
ete. These statements are needed for che purpose
of cross-examination and would undoubtediy
be of assistance to Court in assessing the evidence
of the witnesscs.

The pelice are apparently very reluctant to
grant these copies.

Personally I look upon with disfavour any attempt
to hide or keep secret statements made to the
police in the course of their investigation. Unless
the law very clearly prohibits it, there is no good
reason for withhelding such statements.

Is there any legal cbjection to the issue of these
statements? I think nct,

Under Scction 2 of the Civil Courts (Special
Provisions) Act No. 43 of 1961 a party to any
proceedings in a Civil Court is undoubtedly
entitled to obtain such certified copies on payment
of the charges specified in the schedule to the

Act. Civil Ceurt in this Act has the same meaning |

as in the Civil Procedure Code, where, a Civil

| Court meansa Court in which a Civil action may
be filed. (Section 5).

The Distriet Couit is therefore a Civil Court,

Section 78(A4)(3) of the Ceylon (Parliamentary
Election) Order-in-Council — Chapter 381, pro-
vides that for the purpose of summoning of
compelling the atiendance of a witness, an Election
Judge shall have the same powers, jurisdiction,
and authority as are possessed and exercised by
a judge of a Distriet Court in the trial of a Civil
action.

There is, of course, no specific reference to the
provisions of Act No. 43 of 1961. But, on a con-
sideraticn of the two Sections referred to above,
I am of the view that in matters rclating to the
summoning of witnesses and the admissibility
of evidence the law applicable to Civil Trials
! before a District Court should be followed in a
Elecrion Court, rather than the provisicns of the
Criminal Procedure Code.

The application for certified copies made by
the respondent is allowed.

Application for certified
copies allowed.

Present: T. S. Fernando, J. and Tambiah, J.

L. A. CHANDRASIRI vs. D. WICKRAMASINGHE

5.C. 15(F)/1962—D.C. Kandy No. L 4862

Argued on: 19th & 24th November, 1965
Decided on: 15th December, 1965

Servitude — Right of way of niecessity — What must a plaintiff proves to succeed in such an action —

Burden of proof.

Held: (1) That the onus lies on a person who claims a right of way of necessity to show that it is neccessary for

him to claim this right.

(2) That an owner of a fand is not entitled to claim, a way of necessity if there is another though less

convenient road.

A. C. Gooneratne, Q.C. with N. Gooneratne, for the Defendant Appellant.

C. Ranganathan, O.C. with K. Nadarajah,

for the Plaintifi-Respondent.
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Tambiah, J.

The plaintiff, who is the owner of the northern
three pelas of a land called Diddeniya Kumbure
depicted in plan No. 1903 of 12. 1. 1961 and
marked X in the course of the proceedings, claimed
a right of way over the defendant’s land along the
path ABCD on two causes of action, namely,
by right of prescriptive user and by way of neces-
sity. After trial the learned District Judge held |
that the plaintiff respondent had not prescribed
to this path but granted a servitude by way of
necessity. The defendant has appealed from this |
order.

l
|
|

It transpired in the course of the evidence that
there is another path EF along which the plainiifi
could have access to the public road. Mr. De
La Motte, the surveyer who preparsd the plan
testified that the road marked EF in plan appeared
to be a well used path and that it is possiblz to go
along this path to the abandoned brick kiln marked
2 and the well No. 3 which are sitvated in the
plaintifi’s land. The plaintiff who gave evidence |
stated that he had only used AB and not the path |
EF but he admitted under cross-cxamination that
about 50 or 60 people use the road EF fo get on
to his land for the purposc of going to another
well in his land which is marked No. 4 in the
plan referred to earlier. He stated that seven to
eicht house holders come along the Village
Commiitee path to this well using the path marked |
EFGH. He also admitted that this path had been |
in existence for at least 20 years.

The second defendant stated that about 60 to .
70 people use the path EF to go to the plaintifi’s
land from the public road and that this was an |
old path. He also added that there are other
paths apart from this path claimed, to go to the
plaintiff’s land from the public road to ths West, |
The plaintiff was forced to admit that there are
other paths to have access to his land from ihe |
public rcad but he said that they were not cosn-
venient, The road EF runs through Kiri Ukku's |
land. The plaintifi-respondent has led no satis- |
factory evidence to show that he cannot use this
path. When he was asked why he could not uss
this road he stated that ths road EFGH is only
lintited to seven or eight houses and that he has not
used it. He has led no evidence to show that he |
would be prevented if he attempts to vse the
path EF along which sixty to seventy people pass
daily to go to the well of the plaintiff.

1965-—Tambiah, J.—Chandrasiri v. Wickramasinghe
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Mr. A. C. Goonaratne, Q.C., who appeared for
the appellant, submitted that a right of way of
necessity cannot be granted when thers is another
equally ecnvenient path. It is my view that the
path EF can be used by the plaintiffif he chooscs
to do so0, to have access to the public road.

Mr. C. Ranganathan, Q.c., submitted that every
person who owns a land-locked land has got the
right to obtain a right of way of necessity if he
proves that he has no other path which he has
acquired either by grant or prescription. In support
of this contention he relied on the last few lines

| of a passage from Maasdorp, which is as follows:

(vide The Institutes of South African Law, Vol,
I 6th Edition p. 218).

“In addition to the above rights of passage, which
haye their origin, like all other servitudes, in express or
implied grant. we have to consider another kind of right
of way which falls under the class of servitudes of
necessity, to which allusion has already been mad:
above, namely, necessary way or way of necessity.
It is based on the right which every owner of land has
to communication with the world at large outside his
ground, and, with this object in view (whenever no
definite path or road has been allotted to him, by way of
grant or acquired for his lund by prescription), to
claim some means of access to the public roads of the
country, without which his land would be useless to
him.”

The authoritics cited in support of this pro-
position by Maasdorp are Kimberly Mining
Board v. Stamford, 1 Buch App. C.129 and a
passage from Groetius (G. 2.35.7). I have examined
these authoritics and they do not support the

| contention of Mr. Ranganathan, Hall and Kella-

way, in their well-known work on servitudes,
statc as follows: (vide Servitudes by Hall and
Kellaway p. 68):

“Mor may a person claim a read ex necessilate over
his neighbour’s land on the ground that this property
alone intervenes between his land and a public road,
whereas he has the use of a road giving access to
another public road, but one which passes over a
number of intervening propertics whose owners may
in the future object to his using it. (Lenfz v. Mullin
1921 E.D.L. 268).”

It is clear law that such an owner is not entitled
to claim a right of way on the grounds of necessity,
if there is another though less convenient road,

The onus lies on a person who claims a right of
way of necessity to show that it is necessary for
him to claim this right and when there is an alter-
native convenient route he cannot make this
claim. In Lentz v. Mullin (1921) ED.L. 268 at
270 Graham 1.p. said;

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org
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“The onus of proving a claim of this character is
upon the person alleging it, and the claimant alleging
it to succeed, must show that he has no reasonable
or sufficient access to the public road for himself
and his servants to enable him, if he is a farmer, to
carry out his farming operations. If he had an alternative
route to the one claimed, although such a route may
be less convenient and involve a longer and more
arduous journey, so long as the existing route gives
reasonable access to the public road. he must be content
and cannot insist upon a more direct approach over
his neighbours property.”

The plaintiff has not discharged this onus.

In this case although a feeble attempt was made
by the plaintiff to show that this path EF in plan
X was not allowed to be used, he has not led
satisfactory evidence to show that the cwner of
the land over which the path passcs had any serious
objection if the plaintiff wanted to use it. Kiri
Ukku, the owner of the land through which EF

Present: Sanseni, C.J., Tambiah, J., Silva, J., Manicavasagar, J.

1966—Sansoni C.J.—Leelawathie vs. Weeraman &.Others

passes has not objected to 60 to 70 people using
this path. No reason had been given as to why he
should object if the plaintiff also uses this path.

The plaintifl stated that he made a complaint
to the police when he was refused this path. But
he has not called any police officer to prove that
he made such a complaint. Further he stated that
he only used the path AB. For these reasons I
set aside the order of the learned District Judge
| granting a right of way of necessity over the path

ABCD in plan X and dismiss the plaintiff’s action
with costs in both courts.

| T. S. Fernando, J.

I agree.
Appeal allowed and
action dismissed.

and Alies, J.

LEELAWATHIE vs. WEERAMAN & OTHERS

S.C. No. 78/64 (Iniy)—D.C. Matara Case No. 3729 P

Argued on!

17th March, 1966

Decided on: 30th March, 1966.

Partition action — Addition of parties — Whether sununons or notice should issue on such added

parties—Discretionary power of trial Judge to add parties af any stage

12, 13, 22 and 70(1).
Held:

Partition Act (Cap. 69), sections

(1) That once a person has been added as a party to a partition action he is cntitled to be served with

summons and the correct procedure would be to issue summons on him,

(2) That under the Partition Act (Cap. 69), a notice should be issued only on a person who is not a party

to the action,

(3) That section 70(1) of the Partition Act empewered a trial Judge to add a pariy at any time and even

before the trial stage of the action.

(4) That, in the present case, as the learned trial Judge

had ordered a notice and not summons to issue

after an order to add the 7th to 13th defendants as parties, all steps taken since that stage
(including the interlocutory decree already entered) shouid be set aside.

Per Sansoni, C.J. — “A party to an action can, of course, waive the service of summons and enter an appearance
even before summons has been issued, That is because the rule that service of summons is necessary has been laid down in

the interest of the party,

and to prevent orders being made behind his back.

If he appears before the Court and is per-

mitted to take part in the proceedings, he may be said to have dispensed with the need for complying with the rule.”

C. Ranganathan, Q.C., with W. D. Gunasekera, and M. T. M. Sivardeen, for the 11th defen-

dant-appellant.

A. C. Gunaratne, Q.C., with R. C. Gunaratne, for the plaintiff-respondent.

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org
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Sansoni, C.J,

This partition "action was instituted against
six defendants. In execution of the commission
issued to him, the Surveyor sent a repert, verified
by affidavit, in the course of which he disclosed
the names and addresses of seven claimants who
claimed the land surveyed.

On 19th June 1963 when the case was called in
Court, the Additional District Judge who had the
Surveyor’s report before him made the order
“Add and issue notice on fresh claimants for
24.7.63.” They werc added as 7 to 13 defendants,

Clearly, the Judge was wrong when he ordered
notice to be issued instead of summons. It is
elementary that once a person becomes a party
to an action as a defendant, he is entitled to be
served with summons. Under the Partitien Act
Cap. 69 a notice is issued only on a claimant who
is mot a party to the action. Section 22 of the
Act provides for notice to be issued on a person
who is not a party, while sections 12 and 13
require summonses to be issued on defendants —
and this rule would apply to added defendants
also,

The very form of notice in the Second Schedule
to the Act, and that is the notice which was served
on the added defendants, shows that it is merzly
to give them notice of an action without 1equiring

them to appear in Court. A summons, on the |

other hand, as the form of summons in the second
Schedule demonstrates, summons the pary to
appear in Court either in person or by Proctor
and to state whether he disputes the accuracy
of the share allctted to him or to any other party.
Indeed, it was not seriously argued that once a
person is made a party the correct procedure is
to issue summons on him.

Mr. Guneratna, however, submiited that. the
Judge had no power te add as defendants the
claimants who were disclosed by the Surveyor.
He argued that section 70(1) of the Act does not
apply before the trial stage of the action, even
though the section reads:—

“70(i). The court may af any time before inter-

locutory decree is entered in a partition actlon add |

as a party to the action,

(@) any person who, in the opinion of the court,
should be, or should have been, made a party
to the action, or

{b) any person who, claiming an interest in the land,
applies to be added as a party to the action,”

1966—Sansoni C.J.—Leclawathie vs. Weeraman & Others
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It is obvious that this scction confers a discre-
tionary power on the Judge to add a party at
any time: and once the order tc add has been
made, the next step should be to order summons
to issue. To issue a notice on such an added
| party is wrong and is not justified by any provision
of the Act.

It was open to the added defendants, once ihey
were served with the notices issued by the Court,
to apply to be added as parties to the action
under section 70(1)(b) which has just been quoted,
but that again was left to their discretion. It
surely cannot be argued that the stage at which
section 70(1) b) can be applied is only the trial
stage. Why then should the application of section
70(1)(a) be confined tc the trial stage?

A party to an action can, of course, waive the
scrvice of summons and enter an appearance
even before summons has been issued. That is
because the rule that service of summons is,
| necessary has been laid down in the interest of
|the party, and to prevent crders being made
behind his back. If he appears before the Court
and is permitted to rake part in the proceedings,
he may be said to have dispensed with the need
for complying with the 1ule.

There seems to have been some misconception
in the mind of the Additional District Judge as to
the effect of the notice which was served on the
defendants. In his order refusing the application
of the 11th defendant to set aside the interlocutory
deciee, he has said that the 11th defendant should
have appeared in Court when notice was served
on her. He seems to have thought that a notice
was a substitute for a summons. If he had not
made that mistake, and if he had realised that it
was his duty to issue summons on the 11th defen-
dant, he would undoubtedly have set aside the
interlocutory decree. Even Counsel who appeared
for the 11th defendant seems to have made the
same mistake with regard to the effect of the
notice, for he pleaded that the 11th defendant
could not appear in Court in obedience to the
notice because she was ill,

For these reasons I would hold that the inter-
locutory decree already entered should be set
aside. All steps taken since the addition of the
' 7th to 13th defendants are also set aside. Summon-
ses must be issued on the added defendants
before any other steps are taken in the action.
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The 11th defendant-appellant is entitled to the | at all, except when in the opinion of the Court
costs of the enquiry held on 27th May 1964 and | formed at the trial siage, a party should be added,
of this appeal from the plaintiff-respondent. appears to me to ignore completely the words
| “at any time before interlocutory Decree” in

: Section 70(1). The submission that the Couri can
Tambiah, J. i ;
form no opinion as to whether any person should

: hidpe, | be added as a party or not, except at the frial
Silva, J.  stage, does not commend itself ta me. In a partition
1 agree. suit the Court must bear in mind the effect of a
deciee which i: enters, and therefore should be

Alles, J. carcful to bring in parties who appear to have an
I agree. | interest. The fact that a person has made a claim

| before a surveyor commissioned to survey a
Manicavasagar, J. : land, and the data appearing on his plan and
report, are sufficient to enable the Court to form

I agree with the opinion of My Lotd, the Chief  an opinion ; if the Court be of opinion that the
Justice, and the Order proposed by him, but claim made to the surveyor should also be in-
I desire to state my views as well. quired into, two courses are open; the Court may
either act under Section 22(1)(a) or it may add
him under Section 70(1) as a party defendant
and issue summons on him.

The submission of Counsel for the respondent
that where a claim is made before a surveyor,
the procedure which the Ceurt should follow is
confined only to Section 22(1) of the Partition _
Act, and that Section 70(1) has no application Appeal allowed.

L P

Present: T. S. Fernando, J. and Sri Skanda Rajah, J.

L. K. LEBBAYTHAMBY AND NINE OTHERS
vs.

THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL AND ANOTHER

S.C. Application No. 20 of 1964 — D.C. Colombo No.935/Z

Application under section 753 of the Civil Procedure Code

to revise an order made by the District Court of Colombo
in Case No. 935/Z

Argued & decided on: 30th January 1964
Reasons delivered on: 5th February 1964

Stay of proceedings — Interlocutory appeal — Refusal by trial judge to stay execution of order
allowing evidence on commission — Power of Supreme Court to act in revision — Likely delay in disposal
of appeal irrelevant consideration. — Courts Ordinance, section 3.

Held: (1) That where a District Judge makes ordet refusing an application for stay of proceedings pending an
interlocutory appeal, section 73 of the Courts Ordinance does not limit in any way the powers of
the Supreme Court to revise such an order.

(2) That in an application for stay of proceedings pending an interlocutory appeal, the likely delay in the
disposal of the appeal is not a factor that can override the possibility that the appeal itself, if successful,
would be rendered nugatory.
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H. V. Perera, Q.C., with M. Tiruchelvam, Q.C., and G. D. Welcome, for the plaintiffs-petitioners.

J. G. T. Weeraraine, Crown Counsel with Siva Pasupati, for the defendants-respondents.

T. S. Fernando, J.

This action No. 935/Z was instituted by the
plaintiffs-petitioners to obtain (i) a declaration that
certain bars of gold seized as forfeit under the
Customs Ordinance are the property of the plain-
tiffs and were not liable to be seized and (ii) an
order directing the return of the bars of gold to
them. After the case for the plaintiffs had been
closed at the trial, the defendants successfully
made an application to the trial judge for the issue
of a Commission to record in the United Kingdem
the evidence of three persons named in that
application. The plaintiffs appealed on December
16, 1963 to this Court against the order directing
the issue of the Commission. On December 20,
1963 the plaintiffs applied to the District Court
for a stay of the issue of the Commission uniil
this appeal is decided. After hearing Counsel for
the parties, the District Court on January 13,
1963 refused the application for stay of proceedings
in respect of the Commission. The plaintiffs
thereupon made the present applicaticn to this

Court for a revision of the order of the 13th |

January. In support of the revisicn application it
has been argued that the plaintiffs will be called
upon to incur heavy expenditure in connection
with the recording of evidence in the United
Kingdom and that, if they are eventually successful
in the appeal now pending in this Court, not
only will the appeal be rendered nugatory but the
costs that may be awarded will not include the
total expenses incurred in connection with the

Commission.

Learned counsel for the defendants has pointed
to section 73 of the Courts Ordinance which enacts
that no appeal to the Supreme Cour against
judgment, decree c¢r order of a District Court
shall have the effect of staying the execution of such
judgment, decree or order unless the Distiict
Judge shall see fit to make an order to that effect.
The District Judge is, therefore, vested with a

discretion in the matter of directing a stay of

2|

| exccution of the order in respect of the Commission
referred to above, and it is contended that that
discretion has here been exercised. We do not,
however, understand that section of the Courts
Ordinance as limiting in any way the powers of
this Court to revise in appropriate circumstances
an order staying or refusing 10 stay cxecution.

| The appeal of December 16, 1963 has not yet
I been received by this Court. We are not here
called upon to say anything in regard to its merits.
It is cotrect (o say, however, that if the Commission
issues and is cither executed or is in the process of
being executed before the appeal is decided, the
appeal to this Court, if successful, will be rendered
| nugatory and the expenditure unnecessary. More-
over, in the present case the bars of gold are
still in the possession of the proper officers of the
| Crown, and it was not shown to the learned District
Judge how the interests of the crown in the litigation
will suffer by a stay of the ¢xecution of the Com-
mission until the appeal has been decided by the
{ Supreme Court. A point was made in the District
Court as well as before us of the delay that will
ensure. Delay by itself cannot, in my opinion,
override the considerations that must in the present
case be weighed against it, viz. the admittedly
‘heavy expenditure that will be involved and the
appeal itself, if successful, being rendered iugatory,
There is 1o reason why an attempt should not be
made to move this Court, by appropriate appli-
cation, to expedite the hearing of the appeal.
If such an application is made we have little
doubt that it will receive the Court’s serious
consideration,

The crder made by the District Court on
January 13, 1964 is set aside. Proceedings in respect
of the issue of the Commission are to be stayed
| pending the detcrmination of the appeal filed
on December 16, 1963. They are entitled to the
costs of the present application to this Court,

| Sri Skanda Rajah, J.
1 agree,

Application allowed.
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Present: T. S, Fernando, J. and Sirimane, J.

DULLEWE vs. DULLEWE & ANOTHER

S.C. No. 391 (Final) Of 1963—D.C. Kandy L. 5765

Argued on 4th November, 1965
Decided on: 3rd December, 1965

Kandyan law — Deed of gift — Use of words “‘as a gift irrevocable” — Revocability of such deed
of gift — Kandyen Law Declaration and Amendment Ordinance (Cap. 59), section 5(1).

A donor gifted lands to his son “as a gift irrevocable,” subject to a fideicommissum. It was submitted on behalf
of the appellant (hat the expression *as a gift irrevocable” used in the deed was merely declaratory of the kind of gift the
donor was making, but did not amount to an express renunciation of the statutory right to revoke vested on him by section
5(1)(d) of the KandyanLawDeclaration and Amendment Ordinance. Tt was further submitted that the case of Punchi Banda v.

Nagasena (64 N.L.R. 548) was wrongly decided and should not be followed on this point.

Held:
and to bring it within section 5(1)(d).

That the use of the words ““as a gift irrevocable” was sufficient 1o indicate the gift was meant to be irrevocable

Followed: Punchi Banda v. Nagasena, (1963) LXITI C.L.W. 10 ; 64 N.L.R. 548,
Kuruppu v. Dingivi Menika, S.C. 16162 (F) D.C. Kandy 6442, §.C. Mts. of 5. 12. 63,

H. V. Perera, 0.C., with C. R. Gunaratne and N. S. A. Goonetilleke, for the defendant-appellant.
S. Nadesan, Q.C., with S. Sharvananda, for the plaintiffs-respondents.

T. &. Fernando, J.

Ar. Perera has invited us on this appeal to
censider the correctness of the decision cf this
Court in Pinchi Banda v. Nagasena (1563) — €4.
N.L.R. 548 which held that by the use of the single
word ‘irrevocable’ in a Kandyan deed of gift the
donor may, under section 5(1)(d) of the Kandyan
Law Declaraticn and Amendment OCrdinance
(Cap. 59), cxpressly renounce his right to 1e-
voke the gift.

By ihe deed we are concerned with on this
appeal the denor gifted a number of lands to
his son “as a gift irrevocable”, subject however
to a fidei commissum. Mr. Perera has argued
the expression  ‘as a  gift irrevocable’ that
in the deed is merely declaratory of the kind of
gift he was making, but does not ameunt {0 an
express renunciation of the statutory right to
revoke vested in him by scction 3(1)(d) of the
Ordinance. We arc unable to accede to that
argument. We agree respectfully with the reasons
contained in Punchi Banda v. Nagasena (supra),
and we may add that the same interpretation
of the rclevant provision of the Ordinance is to
be found in the later decision in the case of
Kuruppu v. Dingiri Menika — (S.C. 161/62(F) —
D.C. Kandy 6442 — S.C. Minutes of 5.12.1963).
Herat J. (with Siri Skanda Rajah J. agrecing)
there held that the expiession in a deed “by way

of gift absolute and irrevocable” is a sufficient
compliance with the provisions in section 5(1)(d)
to indicate clearly that the gift was an irrevocable
Kandyan deed of gift.

Mr. Perera has stared that in D.C. Kuruncgala
Case No. 10580 and in D.C. Rarnapaura Case
No. 1317, the respective District Courts have
held that this cxpression “‘as a gift absolute and
irrevocable” dees net constitute a sufficient
compliance with the requirements of the said
section, and that appeals taken from these two
decisions to this Court have been dismissed.
We have sent for and examined the records of

' these two cases but find that both appeals have
| becn dismissed without

reasons stated. The
appeal in the Kurunegala case has been dismissed
on 11th October 1956 and that in the Ratnapuia
case on 16th September 1960. We therefore do
not know whether the point now raised reeeived
consideration by the Court on either occasion.
Punchi Banda v. Nagasena (supra) and Kuruppu
v. Dingiri Menika (supra) are decisions of 1963
and, as stated above, we see no good reason for
taking a different view.

We would dismiss this appeal with costs.
Sirimanse J.

T agree,
Appeal dismissed.
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Present : Sri Skanda Rajah, J.

PITCHAI vs. FEENA UMMA

S.C. No. 1451/°64—M.C. Kandy, No. 35039.

Arguied and decided on » 2nd ] uly, 1965.

Maintenance, in respect of illegitimate child of Muslim parents—Has Magistrate's Court exclusive
Jurisdiction ?

Held : That the Magistrate’s Court has exclusive jurisdiction to try an application for maintenance in respect of
an illegitimate child of Muslim parents.

Cases referred to 1 Jiffiy v. Nona Binthan, 62 N.L.R. 255 ; LVIIN C.L.W. 49,
Ismail v, Latiff, 64 N.L.R. 172.
Moosa Lebbe v. Asiva Umma, 1LXII C,L.W. 106,

M. T. M. Sivardeen, for the def>ndant-appellant,
George Candappa, for the applicant-respondent.

SRl SKAN DA RaIAH, J. of in three cases, Jiffiy v. Nona Binthan, 62 N.L.R.,

page 255 ; Ismail v. Latiff, 64 N.L.R., page 172,
This is an application for maintenance in | both of which were decistons of single Judges, and

respect of an illegitimate child. The child’s Adam Bawa Mossa Lebbe v. Ahamadu Lebbe

mother is Muslim and so is the putative father. Asiya Umma, S.C. 2, Quazi Courts 3829, S.C.

On the facts there is ample corroboration of the Minutes of 28.6.62* a decision of two Judges. [

mother’s evidence. would follow these cases and hold that the Magis-

l trate’s Court had exclusive jurisdiction to try this

A point of law was raised, namely, that the | case.

Magistrate’s Court has no jurisdiction to entertain |

an application of this nature because the parties | The appeal is, therefore, dismissed with costs.

are Muslims. A similar objection was disposed | :

* 62 C.L.W., Page 106 | Appeal dismissed,

Present: Sri Skanda Rajah, J,

NAGAMUTTU vs. INSPCTOR OF POLICE, GAMPOLA

S.C. No. 525/65—M.C. Gampola, No. 20199.

Decided on;: 9th July, 1965.

Theft—Charges of theft and of retaining stolen property—Can the accused be convicted of both
charges.
Held: That a person cannot be convicted of theft and also with retention of the same stolen property.

Accused-appellant in person.
Aloy N. Ratnayake, Crown Counsel, for the Attorney-General

SRI SKANDA RAJAH, T, viction and sentence in respect of the 2nd count
but affirm the conviction and sentence on the
As in S.C. No. 518/65, the accused was con- | Ist count.
victed on his own plea of both theft and retention .
of stolen property. A person cannot be con- Subject to this variation, the appeal is rejected.
victed of theft and also with retention of the same
stolen property. Therefore, I set aside the con- Appeal rejected,
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PRIVY COUNCIL APPEAL No. 10 OF 1965

Present: Lord Reid, Lord Morris of Borth-y-Gest, Lord Pearce, Lord Upjoln, Lord Pearson

AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND BANK LIMITED
V5.
ATELIERS DE CONSTRUCTIONS ELECTRIQUES DE CHARLEROI

THE SUPREME COURT OF NEW SOUTH WALES

JUDGMENT OF THE LORDS OF THE JUDICIAL COMMITTEE
OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL.

DeLIVERED THE 228D FEBRUARY 1966

Agency — Actual authority of agent to indorse cheques made in favour of principal — Conversion
of cheques by agent by payment into his bank account — Action by principal against Bank for conversion.

The Respondents were suppliers of heavy electrical machinery, who appointed the firm of Helios Heavy Electrical
Engineering Contracting Co., Private Ltd., as their general agents in Australia for the negotiation and execution of contracts
for the supply and installation of clectrical machinery. In pursuance of such a contract en red into between the Respondents
and Snowy Mountains Hydro-Electric Authority, the Authority handed over to Helios i td., & number of cheques made
out in favour of the Respondents. Helios Ltd. indorsed the cheques and paid them into its account with the Appellants
but did not remit the proceeds of fifteen of the cheques abroad to the Respondents, The Fespondent £sued the Appellants
in conversion in respect of these chegues, and the trial judge held in their favour. In appeal—

Held: That as Helios Ltd. was, inter alia, operating the Australian office of the Respondents, acting as importer
and holder of the import licences for the equipment supplied by the Respondents, arranging and paying
for expenses connected with the peformance of the Respondents’ contracts, was the holder of a “full
credential” from the Respondents to act for them in negotiating contracts, and had of necessity to deyise
some method of paying the Respendents in Belgium in respect of payments made to the Respondents
in Australia in Australian currency, Helios Ltd. had implied actual authority to endorse the cheques.
The Appellants were thereforc not liable in conversion.

H. Jenkins, 0.C., with A. H. Conlon, for the appellants.
R. Watson, Q.C., with R. B. Murphy, for the respondents.

LORD PEARSON | the plaintiff company, so that there was a shortage
of £55,540 18s. 7d. The judgment was for damage
This is an appeal from a judgment in a commer- | equal to the amount of the shortage. -
cial cause by Manning J. in the Supreme Court of
‘New South Wales. He gave judgment for the
plaintiff company, now the respondents in this | ward five pointsas defences to the plaintiff com-
appeal, against the defendant bank, now the | pany’s claim, namely:—

appellants in this appeal, for £55.540 18s. 7d. |
as damages for the conversion of fifteen cheques.
The basis of the judgment was that the cheques,
drawn in favour of the plaintiff company and duly
delivered or sent to their agent, were without
autherity and wrongfully indorsed by the agent
and paid into his account with the defendant

At the trial the defendant bank had put for-

(1) that the agent had actual authority, express
or implied, from the plaintif company.
to indorse the chegues and pay them into
his account;

(2) that the plaintiff company represented to
P

bank, and that the defendant bank wrongfully | the defendant bank that the agent had such
converted the cheques by receiving them and authority, and the defendant bank in
collecting the proceeds for the agent’s account. reliance on the representation acted to
The total amount of the cheques was £280,309 their detriment in receiving the cheques

16s. 11d., and in respect of them sums amounting ‘ and collecting the proceeds for the agent’s
to £224,768 18s. 4d. were remitied by the agent to account, and therefore the plaintiff come

Digitized by Noolaham Foundation.
noolaham.org | aavanaham.org



58

1966—Lord Pearson—Australia and New Zealand Bank Ltd, vs,
Ateliers De Constructions Electriques de Charleroi

pany are, as against the defendant bank,
estopped from denying that the agent had
such authority;

that the plaintif company ratified the!
agent’s acts in respect of the cheques as
done on their behalf; |

(&)

(4) that the defendant bank had a statutory
defence under section 88 of the Australian |
Bills of Exchange Act 1909-58 (corres-
ponding to section 82 of the English
Bills of Exchange Act 1882), because they
had in good faith and without negligence
received payment of these cheques for the
agent as their customer;

(5) that the agent was parl owner of the cheques
or some of them and by virtue of his part |
ownership was entitled to indorse them
and have the proceeds collected and paid

into his account.

But at the hearing of this appeal counsel for the
defendant bank abandoned points (4) and (5),
explaining that the abandonment of point (4)
did not involve any admission that the defendant
bank had been negligent. He elected to rely only
on points (1), (2) and (3) — actual authority,
ostensible authority and ratification. As the
arguments in the appeal were developed, it became
evident that the principal question was whether
the agent had actual authority, express or implied
from the plaintiff company to deal with the cheques
as he did. If he had such actual authority no |
question of ostensible authority or ratification |
would arise. Examination of the facts is required.

The plaintiff company at all material times
carried on business at Charleroi in Belgium as
(inter alia) manufacturers of heavy electrical |
equipment. Mr, Haesaerts, who was in the employ-
ment of the plaintiff company and soon after- |
wards became head of their Export Division, |
came out to Australia in December 1852, in
order to investigate and prospect the potential
market in Australia for goods of their manu-
facture, and, according tc his findings, to propose
to the plaintiff company that they should appoint
a representative or form a company. Mr. Hacsaerts
did not state in his evidence what proposal he
made, but in fact the plaintiff company appointed
a representative and did not form a company in
Australia,

On the 24th February 1953 an agreement was
made between the plaintiff company, represented

by its Director-General, and “the firm Helios
(Heavy Electrical and Engincering Company)
at Sydney, represented by Mr. T. Ismet Guler,
its owner-manager.”” Mr. Guler afterwards formed
a company called ‘“Helios Heavy Flectrical
Enginecring Contracting Co. Pty. Ltd.” which
took over the business of the firm. As the learned
judge said in his judgment “It seems to have been
regarded by all parties as unnecessary to distin-
guish between Mr., Guler personally, the firm
and the company, and all three have been treated
as one and the same.” “Helios® is a useful word
for covering all three — Mr. Guler, the firm
and the company — and may be treated as a
masculine singular noun. The agreement was in

French and, as two different translations are

available, there is some choice of phrasing, but
there is no problem of interpretation.

Article 1 of the agreement gave to Helios
exclusive representation for the Australian territory
for the sale of all material manufactured by the
plaintiff company. Article 3 provided that, unless
otherwise indicated by one or the other of the
parties, the plaintiff company would forward te
Helios their lowest prices, quoted generally in the
currency of their choice, for goods delivered
F.O.B, Antwerp or C.I.F. Australian port, inclu-
ding suitable packing, but with customs duties and
taxes excluded. Article 3 also provided commissions
for Helios atspecified rates. Article 4 provided that
in respect of all business {ransacted through
Helios, and : whatever might be the conditions
of payment decided by mutual agreement,

(a) without permission from the plaintiff com-
pany Helios could not deal except in the
currency stipulated in the plaintiff com-
pany’s offers;

Helios would be guarantor to the plaintiff

company of the solvency of his customers;
{(¢) the commissions provided for in Article
3 would be payable only on final com-
pletion of the transactions.

Article 4 also provided that for important tran-
sactions with certain authorities the contracts
would be drawn up directly between the customers
and the plaintiff company. By Article 5 Helios
undertook to do any necessary advertising for
developing sales in his territory, to visit his clients
regularly, to keep himself informed of new possi-
bilities of business, and, in a word, to fulfil in
relation to the plaintiff company all the obligations
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of a good representative. In particular Helios
undertook to open in the centre of Sydney an
agency office (French “bureau de représentation’)
for the plaintiff company. Article 5 also provided
that the expenses of advertising, correspondence,
cables, purchase of specifications, travelling and
otherwise, should be the responsibility of Helios.
By Article 6 the plaintiff company promised to
give technical assistance to Helios, and to facilitate
the work of Helios by furnishing without charge
their publications of all types, agendas and other
advertising material which they normally furnish to
their offices abroad (French “bureaux étrangers’’).
By Article 8 as afterwards amended the agreement
would remain in force until the 28th February
1957 and thereafter from year to year until termi-
nated by notice.

Helios arranged a number of contracts under

which the plaintiff company would supply heavy
electrical equipment to Australian customers. |

This case is directly concerned with only a contract

made with the Snowy Mountains Hydro-Electric

Authority (which for want of a better abbreviation
has been and will be referred to as “Snowy’’)
for the supply, delivery and supervision of erection
of seven transformers of 56 M.V.A. and auxiliary
equipment. This contract was in substance con-
cluded by an acceptance letter dated the 27th
July 1955, although the formal contract was not
signed until later. It was under this contract that
the fifteen cheques were drawn and issued. How-
ever, on the question as to the extent of the
authority of Helios in respect of such cheques
the relevant arrangements in the other contracts
have some bearing, The relevant arrangements
are those as to parties and as to modes of payment.

Full details of the other contracts are not available;

it was reasonable not to increase the already
great bulk of the documents by including them.
But there is enough information to show that
some at least of these other contracts were earlier

in date than the contract with Snowy and had |

been partly performed before performance of
the contract with Snowy began. The outlines of
the relevant arrangements are sufficiently clear,
and two types of contract can be distinguished.

Type A — There were about seven contracts with
the Electricity Commission of New South Wales,
including a contract known as E. 60 dated the
8th October 1953 and involving the supply of
eight transformers of 30 M.V.A. The partics to
that contract were the plaintiff company and the
Commission. The price of the equipment C.LF.
Australian port was payable by the Commission

to the plaintiff company, but the local expenses
| (e.g. for customs duty and transport and insurance
in Australia) were to be invoiced by Helios to
. the Commission and paid by the Commission to
| Helios. The original arrangements and the amended
arrangements for payment of the C.LF. price
(less 5% retention) appear from a letter dated
| 28th January 1954, in which the plaintiff company
said to the Commission “we beg to recall that it
' was initially being agreed that payment would
. be made in London, up to 959% of the C.LF.
| price of plant from time to time shipped, in pounds
sterling upon presentation of on board bills of
 lading, insurance certificates and a certificate
by the Commission’s authorised Inspecting
‘Engineer that the plant in question has passed
the necessary and appropriate tests at the manufac-
‘turer’s works. We have been informed by our
representatives in Sydney, Messrs. Helios, that
you are prepared to transfer the invoiced amounts
in Belgian francs or transferable pounds sterling
to be converted into Belgian francs, after having
checked the above-mentioned shipping documents,
We agrec to receive direct payment by bank
transfer from your company to ours after Messrs.
Helios will have been possessed of said documents
sent from our end.” Under a contract of this
type there would be many things to be done or
arranged by Helios as the agent for the plaintiff
company, e.g. obtaining the necessary import
licences, receiving the transformers, payment
of customs duty, transpoert and insurance of the
transformers to the site, supervision of crection,
and financial arrangements for the payment of the
C.LF. price by the Commission in Australia
|through the banks to the plaintiff company in
Belgium. But the financial arrangements would be
simple in principle: the amount of the C.LF.
| price in Australian currency (less the 57 retention)
would be paid directly by the Commission to the
defendant bank and would be used by the bank
in purchasing a sum of Belgian francs in Belgium
for the credit of the plaintiff company: the local
| expenses incurred by Helios would be paid by the
Commission to Helios.

Type B — There were made with the State
Electricity Commission of Western Australia
five contracts for the supply of transformers,
' with the Northern Rivers County Council one
' contract for the supply of transformers, and with
|the State Electricity Commission of Victoria
| one contract for the supply of transformers and
one for the supply of lightning arrestors. In these
contracts Helios appeared as the party contracting
to supply the transformers or other equipment,
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though Helios was in fact contracting as agent
for the plaintiff company. Under these contracts
the price was payable to Helios, and consequently
the cheques were drawn in his favour, received
and indorsed by him and paid into his account
with the defendant bank. [t was his duty to remit

to the plaintiff company the C.LF. content of the |

price or cost of the equipment (making all the
necessary arrangements in respect of import
licences, exchange control and otherwise) but
the residue of the price would be in the bank
account of Helios covering the local cxpenses
incurred by him.

In February 1955 an arrangement was made |

by the plaintiff company at the request of Helios
to assist Helios to make payments of customs
dutics and other local expenses before receiving
payments from the customers. The plaintiff
company guaranteed an overdraft on the Helios
account with the defendant bank up to to a limit
of £5000 0s. 0d., which was afterwards raised to
£10.000 0s. Od. This arrangement was no doubt
helpful to Helios, but did not affect the reim-
bursement of the local expenses, That reimburse-
ment would be made to Helios under the Type
A contracts by direct payment of the local expenses
as such by the customers to Helios, and under
the Type B contracts by payment of the whole
price, including the element of local expenses,
by the cusiomers to Helios.

The contract with Snowy was negotiated by
Helios. After consultation with the plaintiff com-
pany Helios submitted a tender dated 13th Decem-
ber 1954 and discussions and correspondence
ensued. On the 21st March 1955 for the purpose
of these negotiations the plaintiff company cabled
to Snowy a “full credential” in terms requested
by Helios, and foliowed it with a confirming letter

of the 23rd March 1955, which was almost in the |

same terms, The letter referred to the cable and
sald “We wish to confirm that Messrs. Helios
Heavy Electrical Engineering Contracting Co.,

City House, 164 Pitt Street, Sydney, owned by |

Mr. T. L. Guler, are our general agents for Australia
and that they have the power of attorney to act

on our behall for the submission, the execution |
and the realisation of centracts made or sub- |

obtain for the plaintiff company the benefit
Snowy’s performance of the contract.

In letterheads used by Helios there was a des-
cription of Helios as “Sole Australian agent for
A.C.E.C. Charleroi, Belgium” or a description of
theHelios office as“Australian office forA.C.E.C.”
No objection was made by the plaintiff company.

The contract with Snowy was in effect con-
cluded by Snowy’s letter of acceptance dated the
27th July 1955 and addressed to Helios. The formal
contract came much later on the 13th June 1957,
and was signed on behalf of the plaintiff by Mr.
Guler under a special power of attorney. But
performance procceded before the execution of
the formal contract.

The contract with Snowy differed in respect
of the relevant arrangements both from the Type
| A contracts and from the Type B contracts men-
tioned above. The party contracting to supply
the transformers was the plaintiff company.
The whole price, including not only the C.LF.
content or cost of the equipment but also the
amount of the local expenses, was payable to the
plaintiff company, and was payable in Australian
currency in Australia. In the course of the nego-
tiations Helios had tried to obtain a provision
for payment of the amount of the local expenses
to Helios, but Snowy would not agree to such a
provision and Helios had to agree that the whole
price should be paid to the plaintiff company,
The contract also provided that for the purpose of
conversion into Belgian currency for transmission
to the Plaintiff company a fixed rate of 112 Belgian
francs to the Australian pound should be assumed.

Other provisions of the contract which need
to be mentioned were as follows:—

(i) Under clause 14 of the General Conditions
and clause 6(2) of the Specification progress
payments, if required by the plaintiff
company, were to be made by Snowy on an
engineer’s certificate of the progress of
the manufacture at the plaintiff company’s
works and a bank guarantee of repayment
in the event of non-delivery of the equip-
ment concerned;

coniracted by oursclves with our full technical !

and financial backing.”” The word “‘realisation”
does not have an exact meaning in relation to a
contract, but would naturally include both the
performance of the plaintiff company’s contractual
obligations-in Australia and also taking steps Lo

Under clause 18 of the General Conditions
every application by the plaintiff company
for payment by Snowy was to be accom-
panied by a detailed claim in duplicate
setting forth particulars of the claim;

(ii)
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(iii) Under clause 29 of the General Conditions |
the plaintiff company was to maintain a |
compelent representative in - Australia
having authority to act for them and
satisfactory to Snowy;

Oil for filling the transformers was to be
supplied by the plaintiff company, and the
figure for the oil shown in Schedule VI
was £20,692.

(iv)

Afterwards the plaintiff company ins-
tructed Helios to order and pay for the
oil and to invoice it to Snowy.

By June 1956 enough progress had been made
with the manufacture of the transformers to !
justify a progress payment of £62,180 1ls. 2d.,
representing 409, of the F.O.B. value of one
transformer and 20% of the F.O.B. value of
the other six transformers. The necessary bank
guarantee was arranged through the plaintiff
company’s Belgian bank and the defendant
bank. Then the first of the fifteen cheques was
drawn by Snowy and delivered or sent to Helios
as agent for the plaintiff company. It was dated
the 27th June, and was for £62,180 1ls. 2d. Tt
was drawn in favour of “Ateliers de Constructions
Electriques de Charlerci C/- Helios Heavy Elect.
Engr. and Contracting Co. 164 Pitt Street,
Sydney.”” It was then indorsed by Helios and
paid into the account of Helios with the defen-
dant bank at their Chatswood Branch. The
indorsement was by means of a rubber stamp
with the words “Helios Heavy Electrical Engi-
neering and Contracting Co., 197 Victoria Avenue,
Chatswood J.A. 2592” and then a signature
“T. Holt”’>, On the 29th June 1956 Helios wrote
to the defendant bank, asking them to transmit
by telegraphic transfer to the plaintiff company
the sum of 6,964,222 Belgian francs, and attaching
a cheque for £62,967 12s. 0d. made out at an
exchange rate of 110.6 Belgian francs to the
Australian pound. The telegraphic transfer was
duly carried out through the defendant bank
and the plaintiff company’s Belgian bank, and
notified to the plaintiff company. In a letter of
the 3rd July 1956 the Belgian bank referred to the
transfer as “On instructions Helios Co”’., but in a
credit advice of 11th July 1956 they said that the
remitter was Snowy.

As appears from the evidence of Mr. Guillery,
who was from late in 1954 to May 1960 manager
for the plaintiff company for the export zone
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which included Autralia, no instruction was given
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by the plaintiff company at this time, or at any
time before about May 1958, as to the mechanism
of the financial operation involved. They received
the correct sum of Belgian francs in Belgium,
and they were evidently content with that. They
left to Helios, as their general agent in Australia
already charged with many tasks on their behalf,
the further task of devising or using appropriate
mechanism for receiving payment of the sum of
Australian currency in Australia and converting
it into a sum of Belgian francs credited to the
plaintiff company in Belgium. Payment by Snowy
of the sum of Australian currency was naturally
made by means of a cheque made out in favour
of the plaintiff company and delivered to Helios.
The plaintiff company had no bank account in
Australia. Helios had a bank account which had
been used for the reception of very large sums
paid to Helios as agent for the plaintiff company
under the Type B contracts. In the circumstances
it is not suprising that Helios indorsed the cheque
for the plaintiff company and paid it into the
Helios bank account, and then drew a cheque
on the account to enable the defendant bank to
purchase the necessary sum of Belgian francs to
be credited to the plaintiff company in Belgium.
That was a convenient mechanism by which the
intended result was achieved.

On this point questions were put to Mr. Guillery
in cross-examination. He said he knew that under
the Snowy contract payments were to be made in
Australian currency, but did not know until
later that they were made by cheque. Then followed
these questions and answers:—

‘0. At all event you would expect that some-
one would have to convert it into Belgian
currency or purchase the requisite Belgian
currency. You anticipated that? A. Yes.

Q. And won't you agree that Helios was
your agent for that purpose? A. Yes.

Q. And he had the authority of the company—
did he not — to do whatever was necessary to
enable it to be sent to you in Belgian francs?

A. Yes. Just like with other customers; the
Electricity Commission of N.S.W. for ins-
tance.”

It is however surprising that the defendant
bank should have taken the risk of accepting
the cheque for collection in spite of the irregular
indorsement, and collecting the proceeds of the
cheque for the account of their customer Helios,

e
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and not asking for any confirmation of the indorse-
ment or of the authority of Helios to indorse
such cheques on behalf of the plaintiff company,
There was some evidence on this point and it was
considered in the judgment of the learned judge,
as 1t was relevant to the question of ostensible
authority and to the statutory defence, but it is
separate from the question of the actual authority
of Helios, which is now being considered.

In respect of the first cheque there was an
exchange difference. The plaintiff company was
entitled under the contract to receive 6,964,222
Belgian francs as the equivalent of £62,180 11s.
2d. at the rate of 112 Belgian francs to the Austra-
lian pound. But the rate of exchange had moved
in favour of Belgium. Helios sent to the defendant
bank a cheque for £62,967 12s. 0d., assuming an
exchange rate of 110.6, but this was not enough
because the actual rate on the material date was

110.12, and Helios had to pay to the defendant |

bank a further sum of £274 10s. 4d. Thus Helios
had paid out £62,967 12s. 0d. plus £274 10s. 4d,
and had only received £62,180 11s. 2d. and so
were out of pocket to the extent of £1.061 11s, 2d.
Snowy then gave the second cheque, which was
dated the 27th August 1956, for that sum pay-
able to the plaintiff company. That was indorsed
by Mr. Guler and paid into the account of Helios,
and as that sum was making good the loss sustained
by Helios there was no remittance to the plaintiff
company. Any objection to Helios’s dealing with
this cheque would have been technical rather
than practical. Mr. Guillery, was asked in cross-
examination “And you do not complain about him

paying that into his acccunt, do you,” and he said |

“I do not understand. 1 have no complaint, We
did not complain about that, no.””

On the 10th January 1957 snowy wrote a letter
to Helios containing instructions with regard
to (inter alig) the manner in which claims for
payment were to be made, and enclosing a speci-
men of the form to be used. The form required
entries to be made under headings relating to
F.O.B. value, marine freight, insurance to site
and transport in Australia, and there was a heading
“(g) portion of total claim to be remitted to
Belgium.” Helios sent a copy of that letter to the
plaintiff company on the "1st February 1957.
The plaintiff company replied on the 15th June
1957, dealing with details of the claim to be made,
and they said: “We understand that the claim
forms will be drawn up by you as for progress
payments. We leave you the care to complete the
paragraphs (f) and (g) of the customer’s sample.”

At this stage it must have been apparent to both
parties that only a portion of the sums paid under
the contract could be remitted to Belgium, Ex-
change control was associated with import licensing,
and there would be no reason for allowing foreign
exchange to be used in payment of local expenses
incurred in Australia, for instance those referred to
in headings (e) and (f) of the claim form — in-
surance to site and transport in Australia. The
| amount of the local expenses included in any
payment by the customer would have to be retained
in Australia. Where, how and by whom would
it be held ? The plaintiff company gave no instruc-
tions and mde no enquiry on these points, leaving
them to be settled by Helios as their general agent
in Australia.

The third cheque given by Snowy was dated the
27th May 1957 and was drawn in favour of the
plaintiff company care of Helios, as before, and was
indarsed in the name of the plaintiff company
with a signature by Mr. Guler, and was paid
into the account of Helios. The amount was
£38,862 17s. 1d., and there was a remittance to
Belgium through the banks as before, and the
plaintiff company received the proper sum of
Belgian francs corresponding to the sum of
£38.862 17s. 1d.

Similarly there was a fourth cheque given on
the 30th August 1957 for £9,822 8s. 7d. and there
was a corresponding remittance to Belgium on the
| 16th September 1957.

The fifth cheque was dated 9th September
1957 and was for £3,513 1s. 6d. covering local
expenses, and no remittance was made.

| The sixth cheque was dated 23rd September
1957, and was for £15,545 2s. 10d., and there was
a corresponding remittance to Belgium on the
| 4th November 1957. That was a substantial delay.
| Things were beginning to go wrong.

The seventh cheque, dated the 21st October
| 1957, was for £6,189 14s. 10d., of which only
| £529 8s. 5d. was for local expenses, so that,
| £5,660 6s. 5d. should have been remitted, but the
remittance was delayed until January 1958.

The eighth cheque, dated the 28th October

1957 was for £5,919 15s. 2d. of which £4,992 7s. 0d.

| was for local expenses, so that £927 8s. 2.d should

have been remiited, but the remittance was not
| made,
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Further cheques were given up to the 14th | (the relevant Snowy contract for seven transformers
April 1958, which was the date of the fifteenth of 56 M.V.A.) and to Contract No. 40,019 for
and last cheque. The remitiances were irregular | twenty-two lightning arrestors (in which evidently
and seriously deficient. Helios appeared as the contracting party), and
it said “We the undersigned, representative of

Over a long period the plaintiff company in their | Ateliers de Constructions Electriques de Charleroi
correspondence with Helios had been complaining | and Helios Heavy Electrial Engineering Contracting
that they were not receiving suflicient information | Company Pty. Ltd., the Contractors for the above-
from Helios as to the state of the accounts under | mentioned Contracts, respectively hereby request
the several contracts. They wished to know under | that all future payments due by the Authority
each contract what sums had been claimed, | to the Contractors under those Contracts be
what sums had been paid by the customer, and | made by the Authority’s cheques payable and
which of the sums remitted were attributable to | paid to the Sydney Branch of Comptoir National
that contract. Helios persistently failed to give | d’Escompte de Paris to be credited to the account
that information, and the learned judge Las found | of Ateliers de Constructions Electriques de Charle-
that Helios was acting in bad faith, withholding | roi with the said Bank and We state that the
monies that should have been paid to the plaintiff | receipt of the said Bank for the said payments
company and keeping them in dark as to the | shall be a sufficient discharge to the Authority
true state of the accounts. There is evidence to | of its liability to the said Contractors for the
support these findings, and they cannot be im- | said payments under the said Contracts and We
pugned. Helios had other business besides the | acknowledge that all payments made by the
agency for the plaintiff company, and the other | Authority on account of the said Contracts up
business may have absorbed money which should | to the date hereof have been properly made and
have been remitted to the plaintifl company. have been received by the said Contractors on

the said account and We underiake to furnish

Mr. Guillery had visited Australia and had | to the Authority within one month of the date
many meetings with Mr. Guler in 1955 and 1957, | hereof written confirmation by the said Contractors
and he camec again to Australia in February | respectively of the above request, statement
1958 to investigate the position. On the 26th | and acknowledgment.”” Written confirmation was
April 1958 he wrote what may be called 2 “white- | given on behalf of the plaintiff company on the
washing” letter to Snowy, saying, though he | [9th June 1958. The acknowledgment contained
knew this was not entirely true, that ke had | in this document is relied by upon the defendant
found everything perfecily in order and all remit- | bank as constituting a ratification of the reception
tances from Snowy for the plaintiffi company | of the money by Helios into the Helios bank
had been transferred by Helios. Mr. Guillery | account as a due reception of it on behalf of the
had reasons of policy for writing that letter, and | plaintiff company. It can be contended on the
it is not in itself significant, but his answers in | other side that this acknowledgment was given
cross-examination on it are interesting:— “Q. | only to reassure Snowy that as between Snowy
But you knew the moneys had gone to Helios? | and the Contractors the past payments had been
You knew they had gone into his account? 4. I | duly made and received, and that the acknow-
knew that the money was paid to Helios, but how, | ledgment does not necessarily mean any more
I did not know. Q. Provided he accounted for it | than that the cheques had been duly given and
to your company you would not at that time have | received as conditional payment and there was
taken any objection, would you? 4, No.” no failure to honour the cheques on presentation.

It is not necessary to express any opinion on the

On the 23rd May 1958 Mr. Guillery went to | question of ratification, In relation to the question
the offices of Snowy and was shown the cheques | of actual authority, it is of some significance that
and so became aware that they had been indorsed | there was no concurrent reservation of rights
by Helios and paid into the Helios account. | against Mr. Guler and at any rate no written
He desired that future payments should be kept | complaint at this time about the indorsement of
away from Helios, Snowy desired to be assured | the cheques by Helios and payment of them into
that their past payments were valid and eflective. | tiie Helios account. Equally there was not at this
Mr. Guler was willing to co-operate. Accordingly | time any written complaint against the defendant
a document was drawn up by Snowy and signed | bank in respect of their having collected the
by Mr. Guillery and Mr. Guler. It was dated the | procesds of the cheques for Helios. It is doubtful
28th May 1958. It referred to Contract No. 40,006 | whether there was any oral complaint against the
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defendant bank. Mr. Guillery in evidence said
he “probably” made one. On the other hand there
is a contemporancous note made in the defendant

bank’s diary of an interview with Mr. Guillery |

on the 23rd June, 1958, and it records that “he
made no reflection on our bank.”

Mr. Guillery consulted a ‘firm of solicitors in
Sydney, and they, presumably on the basis of
his instructions as well as their own consideration
of the position, wrote a letter to Mr. Guler dated
the 10th June 1958, in which they said: —

“Referring in particular to contract with the |

Snowy Mountains Authority, it appears that,
in addition to the gocds sold per medium of

you, your Company ‘“Helios” contracted to |
carry out certain work in connection with the |

transport of the materials to the sites for erection

and in connection with the erection of the |

material on the sites chosen by the Snowy
Mountains Authority. For this latter work
you are
muneration or rather your company “Helios”
was entitled to receive its own special remune-
ration. We understand that included in
cheques received from the Smowy Mountains
Authority and made payable to A.C.E.C.
were some moneys which belonged to Helios.
Having received the cheques and paid them into
the account of Helios your plain duty was to
account immediately to our clients for that
portion of the proceeds which really belonged
to them. This was not done.”

That letter reflects the attitude of the plaintiff
company which is shown by the history cf the
case. They were strenuously complaining of the
failure to account and the failure to remit. They
were not interested in the mechanism of the
reception of the money and the making of the
remittances. They made no protest against the
procedure adopted by Helios in indorsing the
cheques and paying them into the Helios account.

The business of Helios did not prosper, and in
July 1958 the defendant bank, acting under an
equitable mortgage, appointed a recciver of the
Helios company’s undertaking. Afterwards there
was a liquidation and the Helios company was
found to be insolvent,

The plaintiff company’s claim against the
defendant bank was made for the first time
in a letter of 12th January 1960, and the writ
was issued on the 20th February 1961.

entitled to receive your special re- |

the |

and New Zealand Bank Ltd. vs. Vol. LXX

Ateliers De Constructions Eiec_t_riqg_e__s de Charleroi

The learned judge decided in favour of the
plaintiff company in a careful judgment dealing
with the numerous points raised on behalf of the
defendant bank. His decision on the guestion of
actual authority scems to have been partly based
upon or influenced by an erronecous impression
of similarity beiween the Type A contracts (those
made with the Electricity Commission of New
South Wales) and the Snowy contract. In fact
these contracts differed in material respects, as
has been pointed out above. Under the Type A
contracts the customer contracted to pay the
cost of the equipment fo the plaintiff company
in Belgian currency in Beigium, so that no bank
| account in Ausiralia was required for this purpose,
and the amount of the local expenses was paid
directly by the customer to Helios and so was
from the beginning a separate amount. Under
' the Snowy contract Helios received cheques
drawn in favour of the plaintiff company for sums
‘of Australian currency in Australia, and it was

necessary for Helios by some means (a) in many
cases to divide the amount of a single cheque
into the part allowed to be remitted to Belgium
and the part to be retained in Australia, (b) in
so far as remission was permitted, to transmute
[ sums of Australian currency in Australia into
‘ sums of Belgian currency credited to the Belgian
company in Belgium, and (c) out of the amount
retained in Australia to reimburse Helios for his
outlay on the local expenses.

Did Helios have actual authority to indorse the
| cheques and pay them info the Helios account?
| Normally of course it would be quite wrong for an

agent without specific authority to indorse his
principal’s cheques and pay them into his own
account. That is the strength of the plaintiff
company’s case and of the learned judge’s decision
(in their favour. On the other hand the special
facts and history of this case have to be brought
into account, and in a commercial case of this
kind it is right to take a practical, commercial
| view rather than a technical or legalistic view.
| How would the case appear, and how did it
appear, to the business nien concerned? It is
necessary (o consider the position and functions
of Helios as the general agent for the plaintiff
{company in Australia. Helios was operating
the “Australian office” for the plaintiff company,
{and was acting as importer and holder of the
| import licences for the equipment supplied by
!thc plaintiff company, and was arranging and
| paying for the performance of the plaintiff com-
| pany’s contractual obligations in Australia in
i respect of transport, insurance, supervision o
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erection and provision of oil, and was collecting |
the very large sums falling due from very important |
customers. There was the “full credential” of
the 22nd March 1955, declaring that Helios was
authorised to act on behalf of the plaintiff company |
for the submission, the execution and the realisation |
of contracts, made or subcontracted by the plaintiff |
company, with their full technical and financial |
backing. There was the course of business
established under the Type B contracts for in-
coming payments to be received into the Helios
account and remittances to be made from it.
There was the need to have some means of (i)
receiving the money (ii) paying for the remittances -
to Belgium (iii) holding the sums not allowed
to be remitted to Belgium (iv) reimbursing to
Helios the outlays on local expenses. There was
the persistent attitude of the plaintiff company
in giving no instructions, and apparently making
no enquiry, as to the mechanism or procedure |
for the reception of the money and the making |
of the remittances, and in not complaining of |
the mechanism or procedure when they ascertained
what it was. Helios was an exceptionally general and |
exceptionally trusted agent.

In the end the compelling point is this. The
sums due were payable in Australian currency.
If Snowy had chosen to make payment in cash,
admitedly Helios had authority to receive it.
But payment by order cheques in favour of the
plaintiff company must have been expected. It |

could not have been supposed that they would
be sent to Belgium to be indorsed, and the plaintiff
company had no bank account of their own in
Australia. Apart frem exchange control difficulties.
the only practical plan from a business point
of view was for Helios to indorse the cheques
and pay them in to the Helios account. This
became the only possible plan when the total
amount of the cheques exceeded the sum which
exchange control permitted to be exported, or
when it became proper for Helios to retain part
of the sum in any cheque to pay local expenses.
Implied authority was necessary to give business
efficacy to the transacticns, In view of the large
sums which the plaintiff company knew that
Helios had earlier paid into that account under
other contracts, it is easy and natural to infer
the necessary authority to meet any difficuity
caused by the fact that the precise method of
payment by Snowy differed from the methods
of payment under earlier centracis.

For these reasons their Lordships consider
that there was implied actual authority.

Accordingly their Lordships will humbly advise
Her Majesty that the appeal should be allowed,
and that judgment should be cntered for the
defendant bank. The plaintiff company must
pay the bank’s costs of the action and of this

| appeal.

Appeal allowed.

Present: Manicavasagar, J.

LUCHOW ys. DE SILVA

S.C. 127/1965 (R.E.)—C.R. Kandy 17924

Argued and decided on: lst April, 1966

Decree, amendment of — Ejectment of tenant from premises — Wrong assessment number given
through bona fide error — Error partly due to tenant—Writ returned by Fiscal — Application to amend
decree allowed — Appeal — Civil Procedure Code. section 189 — Inherent powers of court.

Of consent decree was entered to eject a tenant from premises No. 25 Old Matale Road, Kandy. When writ issued,

the Fiscal's Officer reported that the premises occupied by the tenant was No. 28 and not No. 25. The Landlord, then
realising that she had erred in giving the assessment Number which was partly due to her being misled by the description
given in an application by the tenant to the Rent Control Board and the failure to dispute in the answer this obvious
misdescription in the plaint, moved for an amendment of the decree, which the learned Commissioner allowed. On an
appeal by the tenant—

Held: (1) That the error aforesaid did not fall within the ambit of section 189 of the Civil Procedure Code.

(2) That the said erroneous description does not affect the right of the Landlord to execute the decree
after it was duly amended by correcting the error. This was an appropriate case for the Court to use
its inherent powers to prevent a miscarriage ol justice.
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T. B. Dissanayake, for the defendant-appellant.

C. R. Gunaratna, for the plaintiff-respondent.

Manicavasagar, J.

The problem, in this appeal by the tenant, is
whether the Court has the power to amend its
decres even though the amendment that is sought
does not fall within the ambit of section 189 of the
Civil Procedure Code.

In this action, decree to eject the tenant from
premises No. 25, Old Matale Road, Kandy was
entered on 23. 3. 64 by consent of the parties;
writ was not to issue till 31. 3. 65. When writ
issued to the Fiscal, the officer reported that the
premises occupied by the tenant was 28, Old
Matale Road, Kandy and returned the writ
unexecuted. The landlord then realised that she
had erred in giving an incorrect assessment number
and applied to the original court to have the
decree amended, by altering the figure 25, to 28.
The appellant, who when the time to quit the
premises under the decree was drawing nigh, had
unsuccessfully sought on frivolous grounds to
set aside the decree to which she was a consenting
party, now took advantage of the error in the
assessment number and objected to the application
to amend. The learned Commissioner granted the
landlord’s application and directed that the
decree be amended.

Counsel for the tenant submitted that the power
of the Court to amend the decreeis contained only
in section 189 of the Civil Procedure Code, and
this provision had no application to this case.
Mr. Gunaratne for the respondent submitted that
the amendment could be brought under section

error arising from an accidental slip; he also
submitted further reasons as to why the order of
the learned Commissioner should not be dis-
turbed.

I am of the view that section 189 has no appli-
cation to the facts of this case: I do not, however,
agree that the powers of the court are limited
only to the instances provided by the section.

1

Section 189 enables the court to correct (i)
clerical or arithmetical errors contained in a
judgment, or (ii) an error arising in the judgment
from any accidental slip or ommission, or (iii)
errors in the decree so as to bring it into conformity
with the judgment; the error in the instant case
does not fall intc any one of these categories;
the mis-description of the number was not an
arithmetical or clerical error in the judgment or
an error due to an accidental slip or omission
in the judgment, or an error in the decree. The
decrece merely adopted the description in the
pleadings.

The court, however, is not without the power to
amend its decree, if justice demands that the
amendment should be granted, and I think this is
one such case where the court should intervene
in the interests of justice. The error was un-
doubtedly an honest mistake, into which the
landlord was in a way led by the tenant’s description
of the assessment number in his application to
the Rent Control Board. The tenant in her answer
to the plaint did not dispute this obvious mis-
description of the number in the plaint; she
continued the same mistake right throughout
the proceedings: that the premises, despite the
mis-description, was one occupied by the appellant
as tenant of the plaintiff, and no other, was never
in dispute: the identity of the premises was not an
issve. These circumstances point clearly to both
the landlord and the tenant having erred in des-
cribing the premises by an incorrect assessment
number; both parties were agreed that the decree
related to certain premises in Old Matale Road,
Kandy belonging to the landlord, and occupied
by the appellant. In this situation, the court
ought not to lend its assistance to a party who
attempts to wreck the decree by taking advantage
of an erroneous description to which she herself

W { was a party and in regard to which she remained
189 of the Civil Procedure Code as this was an |

silent when she had the opportunity prior to the
entering of the decree to point out the error.
This is a case where an erroneous description does
not affect the right of the landlord to execute the
decree, duly amended, by correcting the error;
it is just that the court should use its inherent
powers to prevent a miscarriage of justice.

The appeal is dismissed with costs,

Appeal dismissed,
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LADAMUTHUPILLAI ARUMUGASAMY
Vs,

LADAMUTHUPILLAT KATHIRKAMANPILLAT*

S.C. Application No. 118 of 1965

In the matter of a Rule for Contempt of Court under section 47 of the
Courts Ordinance.

Heard on: 16th November, 1965
Order made on: 26th November, 1965.

Contempt of Court—Order by Supreme Court on administrator on 3rd August 1962 to bring all
income of the properties forming the estate of the deceased to Court—Subseguent order on 1st April 1963
with consent of administrator directing him to file final accounts on or before 315t October 1963 and bring
into Court the income from the properties in his charge — Failure to comply with both orders — Charge of
contempt of Court—Courts Ordinance, section 47.

The respondent, the eldest son of the deceased, who died intestatc leaving a widow and six children was granted
letters of administration on 9.3.53. The widow and three of her children successfully moved the Court for orders revoking
the grant of the said letters and appointing the widow in his place as administratrix. The respondent appealed from these
orders as well as from a later order refusing stay of execution.

Pending these appeals, on an application by the respondent to the Supreme Court to stay all testamentary proceedings
in the District Court and for the advancement of the date of hearing of the said appeals, on 3.8.62 the Supreme Court made
order directing

(i) a stay of further action in the District Court

(i) that all the income of the properties forming the estate of the deceased be brought into Court to the
credit of the testamentary case.

The two appeals came up for hearing on 29.3.63 and on 1.4.63 and after argumant the orders appealed against
were set aside after recording an agreement of Counsel in the following terms:—
“That the appellant who is the present administrator is directed to file a final account together with vouchers

and receipts on or before 31. 10. 63, and that the account be judicially settled thereafter. Until the final settlement
of the accounts the administrator is directed to bring into Court the income from the properties in his charge.”

On a motion and affidavit by the petitioner—one of the sons of the deceased—a rule was issued on the respondernt
to show cause why the latter should not be punished for the offence of contempt of Court for failing comply with and for
disobeying the directions contained in the said two orders.

It was not denied that no payment as directed by the Court was made by the respondent since the first order on
3.8.62. The final accounts were filed only on 28.5.64 after obtaining several dates from the District Judge. The respondent
in his affidavit admitted that he had Rs, 40,000/~ in his hands as administrator and further stated (a) thata sum of Rs.
248,690/~ was spent on litigation and other expenses (b) that Rs. 157,022/71 was lost through thefts by the petitioner and
two other brothers, who were acquitted in criminal proceedings in that connection.

Held: (1) That the complaint that the respondent is guilty of contempt of Court in respect of the order made
on 3.8.62 should not be pursued in view of the fact that the said order was made pending the
appeals which were disposed of on 1.4. 63 on an order being made of consent; besides the complaint

was a stale one, being made two years after the event.

(2) That the aforesaid order of 1.4.63 contains a clear direction by the Supreme Court (not an undertaking
between parties which the respondent hoped he would be able to fulfil) to an administrator who is
an officer of Court, disobedience to which amounts to a contempt of Court.

(3) That the words “income from the properties” mentioned in the said consent order of 1.4.63 should be
understood to mean the net income from the properties after deducting the expenses of production

* For Sinhala translation, see Sinhala section, vol. 12 part 5p 15
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thereof. They could not mean that the expenses of litigation with third

to properties or expenses of duly adm
without an order of Court.
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parties regarding disputes

inistering the estate were to be deducted from the gross income

(4) 'That as the respondent had failed to bring into Court the net income of the propertics, and as he had

failed to deposit in Court
to a willul disobedience

offence of contempt of Court,

at least the sum of Rs. 40,000/~
of the direction given by this Court and therefore he” was guilty of the

admittedly in his handfh s conduct amounted

Cases referred to: Badri Dass vs. Labhu Mal (1959) 60 Cr.L.J. of India 899
Botticelli vs, Ribeira (1872) Ramanathan’s Reports 12.

A. C. Nadarajah, for the petitioner.

G. E. Chitty, Q.C., with 4. . Vanigasooriar and D. S, Wijewardene,
J. G. T. Weeraratne, Crown Counsel, with N. B. de

T. S. Fernando, J.

The respondent comes before us on a Rule which
this Court issued on him on a motion and aflidavit
presented by the petitioner calling upon him to show

cause why he should not be punished in terms of |

section 47 of the Courts Ordinance for the offence
of contempt committed against or in disrespect of

the authority of this Court, in that

(a) having been directed by the order of this Court in
Application No. 128 of 1962 made on the 3rd
August 1962 to bring into court to the credit of
lestamentary case bearing No. 14879 of the District
Court of Colombo all the income of the properties

forming the estate of Muthu Vairan Ladamuthu |

Pillai, deceased, of Chilaw, pending the determination

of the appeals bearing Nos. 29 (Interlocutory) and

110 (Final) of 1962; and
(b) having through his Counsel agreed in seftlement of
the above mentioned appeals to abide by the direction
of this Court made on Ist April 1963 to file, in his
capacity of Administrator of the Estate of the said
Muthu Vairan Ladamuthu Pillai, a final account of
his administration together with vouchers and Teceipts
on or before the 31st day of October 1963, in order
that the accounts may be judicially settled thereafier,
and having also agreed to bring into court the
income of the properties in his charge until the final
settiement of the said accounts,

he has, in toial disregard of those orders

(1) failed to bring into court the income of the properties
forming the Estate of the abovenamed deccased or
any portion of such income up to the date of the
determination of the said appeals Nos, 29 and 110,
namely, the Ist day of April 1963; and

(2) failed to file a final account of his administration,

together with vouchers and receipts, on or before

the 315t day of October 1983, and to bring into
court the income of the properties in his charge
up to that date,

for the respondent.

S. Wijesekere, Crown Counsel as amicus curiae.

| The respondent is the eldest son of the deceased
who died intestate so long ago as 8th April 1951
leaving a widow and six children, two of whom
were minors. The respondent was, on his own
application granted letters of administration on
9th March 1953 to enable him to administer
the estate of the deceased which is a consider-
able one and the value of which in 1951 was
assessed at Rs. 711,198/-. The widow and three
of the children, of whom the petitioner was one,
moved the District Court in September 1960
foran order revoking the grant of letters on grounds
of -

(a)
()

failure to file inventory, valuation and accounts;

neglect to bring into court monies received by the
administrator to which the heirs were entitled;
(¢) purchase by the administrator of properties in his
own name with profits of lands forming the estate;
(d) deliberate delay in duly administering the estate
with a view to depriving the other heirs of their
lawful rights.

The District Court, after inquiry, made order on
18th January 1962 revoking the letters of adminis-
tration granted to the respondent and making a
grant in favour of the widow. The respondent
appealed to this Court against this order of re-
vocation — Appeal No. 110 (Final), as well as
against a later order of the District Court refusing
a stay of execution — Appeal No. 29 (Interlocus
tory). In addition to the filing of the appeals,
the respondent made an application to this Court
(Application No. 128 of 1962) for a stay of all
proceedings in the Testamentary Case No.
14879 during the pendency of the appeals and for
| an advancement of the hearing of the main appeals.
This application came up for hearing before this
* Court on 3rd August 1962 when the Court made
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crder directing (1) a stay of further action in the | Mr. Chitty has contended that as the appeals
District Court and (2) “that all the income of the | were disposed of on 1st April 1963 on an order

properties forming the estate of the deceased be
brought into court io the credit of the testamenlary
case.” It made further order that “should in the
meantime any taxes or rates fall due in respect
of the propemes forming the estate of the de-

ceased, the petitioner (i.c, the present respondent) |

will obtain the sanction of the District Court to
pay them out of the monies brought into court.”

The two appeals came up for hearing before
this Court on 29th March 1963 and after argument
on that day and on st April 1963, an agreement |

being made of consent, a complaint by the present
petitioner made two years later (26.3.1965) that
the respondent is guilty of a contempt of court
in that he has disobeyed this Court’s order of
3rd August 1962 was quite stale, and that in any
event that order made, as it was, pending the

| determination of the appeals must not now be

pursued for purposes of contempt proceedings.
There is substance in this contention and we are
disposed to accede thereto. We propose therefore
to consider only the matter of the -alleged dis-
obedience to the order of this Court made on

of Counsel was recorded and the orders appealed | 1st April 1963.

from were set aside. The agreement of Counsel
is recorded in the following way in the judgment
of this Court which reads:—

“Counsel on both sides now agree that this matter
can be settled on the following terms; namely, that
the appellant who is the present administrator is
directed to file a final account together with
‘vouchers and receipts on or before 31st October
1963, and that the accounts be judicially settled
thereafter. Until the final settlement of the accounts
the administrator is directed to bring into court
the income from the properties in his charge.”

The respondent in his affidavit of 17th July 1965

states that the terms on which the dppeals were |

decided were agreed to by his counsel without
reference to him. I pointed out te Mr. Chitty
that the appellant was present throughout lhc
argument on both days (29th March and 1st
April 1963). That the appellant was present in
court when the appeals were argued was not
denied or disputed before us. We arc quite unable
to accept as true the respondent’s statement to
which I have referred above.

The rule charges the respondent with disobe-
dience to the directions contained in both orders
made by this Court. viz. that of 3rd August
1962 and that of Ist April 1963, It is not denied
that no payment of any kind into court has been
effected since the first of these two orders was
made. In fact,

made on 9th February 1961 when the District
Judge made the following orderi—

“I find from the accounts filed that there is a sum
of Rs. 157,022/71 in the petitioner’s hands. First
of all this amount must be brought into court. Issue
deposit order for Rs. 157,022/71 which must be
deposited immediately.”

; it is not disputcd‘ t!m the last | o respondent hoped he would be able to fulfil.
payment Inte court by the administrator was |

It is beyond question that the latter order
contains a clear direction given by this Court.
It dces not embody merely an intention of the
parties to do certain specified things. We have
been referred to a case decided in India, Badri
Dass vs. Labhu Mal (1959) 60 Cr. L.J. of India,
page 899 where the Punjab High Court has decided
that where, in a suit for money, the defendant
accepts the claim of the plaintiff and makes a
| statement promising to pay the amount in instal-
ments and promises not to alienate any part of
his immovable property till the payment of the
claim, and it appears that the statement was
based upon a private compromise between the
parties, the undertaking contained in the state-
ment is not one given to the Court. It is no more
than a solemn promise by the defendant to the
plaintiff and the nature of that promise or under-
taking can never be changed by reason of the
compromise being accepted by the Court and a
decree passed in its terms. The breach of such
an undertaking or promise does not amount
to contempt of Court. This decision, in my opinion,
has no application to the facts of the case before’
us. Here is no mere private undertaking between
parties, nor is this an ordinary private suit between
parties. This is a testamentary action where the
administrator is an officer of the court. Moreover,
as I have already stated, the breach is of a direction
given by a court, not of an undertaking which

In principle, the situation is not different to that
in Botticelli vs. Ribeira (1872) Ramanathan’s
Reports, p. 12 where this Court committed for
contempt a defendant (a trustee who had frau-
dulently appropriated money) who had been
ordered by Court to pay the money into court,
and who instead of obeying the order, got himself
made an insolvent on his own petition, and then
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set up his own insolvency as a reason why the | be examined in the appropritae court. I am unable
order of the court should not be enforced by |to conclude that the net income from the pro-
attachment for contempt. ; perties means anything other than the gross
income from the properties less the expenses of
It was next contended that the expression “in- | producing that income in tHe sense this last
come from the properties in his charge’ means | expression is ordinarily understood. I entertain
not the gross income, but the net income. The | no reasonable doubt that the Court intended and
petitioner pointed to the earlier order of the Court, | the respondent understood that income from the
namely, that of 3rd August 1962 which too directed | properties was the gross income less the expenses
that *“all the income of the properties” be |of producing that income; I cannot infer that
brought into court and which contained an express | the respondent could reasonably have understcod
direction as to the nature of the disbursements in | or interpreted the Court’s order made of consent
respect of which money could be drawn out from |to mean that the expenses of litigation with third
the sums deposited in court. Apart from the | parties who are alleged to have claimed the pro-
fact that it is not open to us, particularly in pro- | perties or, to use the words of his Counsel, the
ceedings of a criminal nature, to interpret one expenses of duly administering the estate were
order in the light of another and an earlier order, | to be deducted from gross income without an
we find that when the District Judge by his order | order of court. Every administrator knows that
of 18th January 1962 revoked the grant of letters - he is entitled to apply to court to draw out monies
to the respondent in favour of a grant to the  from the estate of the deceased as and when
widow of the deceased, the latter was directed | required for due administration. The respondent
to deposit quarterly only the net income from |himself was not slow to apply to the Disirict
the properties. A deposit in court of the gross | Court 1o obtain further time when he was unable
income is impractical and as the accounts have |to file final accounts on or before 3ist October
ultimately to be judicially settled, the court will | 1963 as decreed by this Court. The record shows
be burdening itself in having to make payment | that the District Judge granted him time on several
orders frequently without any significant advan- | occasions even after 31st October 1963. Final
tage to any party. I shall therefore deal with the accounts were filed cnly on 28th May 1964.
question before us on the basis that the direction | As he himself puts it in his affidavit of 21st August
this Court made on Ist April 1963 was to bring | 1965, “whenever T found that I was unable to do
into court the net income from the properties. | certain acts on the dates fixed by Your Lord-
ship’s Court, I made application to the District
There is no denial that the gross monthly , Court in the Testamentary proceedings for ex-
income was about Rs. 50,000/-. That would |tension of dates and the Court granted me such
appear to be the position even from the accounts | time.”” On the other hand, ne application was even
that have now been filed in the District Court by | attempted to be made to court in respect of any
the respondent himself. He however contends in | relief against the order fo deposit the income from
his affidavit that the average net monthly income | the properties, even if the court were to decide
is Rs. 9623/64. Therefore, even if the order of the | ultimately that it had no power to vary the order
Court made on Ist April 1963 is looked at only | of the Supreme Court. It is significant that after
prospectively, the respondent should today have | the disposal of the appeals by this Court, the
in his hands a sum in excess of Rs. 9623 x 30 | District Judge made two specific orders, the first
or Rs. 288,690/-. He has stated in his affidavit | on 6th November 1963 and the second cn 19th
of 17th July 1965 that he has only a balance of | August 1964, for the cash in the hands of the
Rs. 24,695/45 which balance, as his affidavit | respondent to be deposited to the credit of the case.
of 15th November 1965 shows, has since in- [ These ordeis have also been completely disre-
creased to about Rs. 40,000/-. In spite of his |garded by the respondent.
admission of having in his hands at least these
much reduced sums, he has not brought a single In his affidavit of 17th July 1965, the respon-
cent of that money into court. dent, while stating that the balance cash in his
hands is only Rs. 24,695/45, asserts that “this
He has attempted to make out that the difference | money cannot be brought into court as money
representing a sum in excess of Rs. (288,690/- |is required daily for current expenditure including
less Rs. 40,000/-) Rs. 248,690/ has been spent |expenses in pending litigation.”” This assertion
by him in litigation and other expenses. The |he repeats in another affidavit dated 15th Novem-
correctness of this claim of his will no doubt |ber 1965, the day before the hearing by us, where,
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after stating that the amount now in his hands
is about Rs 40,000/-. he adds “] have been com-
pelled to retain this comparatively small amount
in my hands for the due discharge of the duties
as administrator”, T feel constrained to obscrve
that the due discharge of his duties as administrator
plaintly required him to deposit the net income
in court and then to apply to draw out such
sums as the court thought reasenable to enable
him duly to perform his functicn of administrator,

I must add that in computing that the balance
in his hands in July 1965 — vide paragraph 15
of his affidavit of 17th July 1965 — was Rs.
24,695/45, he has accounted for a sum of about
Rs. 157,000/- as being lost through thefts by the
present petitioner and two other brothers. The
respondent’s position in regard to these thefts
is set out in paragraph 5 of that same affidavit.
The losses are alleged to have taken place on
26th March 1961, i.e. within two months of his
deposit by the respondent of another sum of
Rs, 157,022/71 in court, as already mentioned.
As to this allegation of theft by his brothers, the
petitioner states — see paragraph 5 of his affidavit
of 3rd August 1965 — that he and his brothers
were acquitted in criminal proceedings, the trial
judge hcelding that the allegation of theft was
““a fabrication by the respondent, his sister and his
brother-in-law’’. That the District Judge acquitted
the petitioner and his brothers and made the
observation quoted above is not denied. If this

sum of Rs, 157,022/71 was indeed not stolen —and

I wish to say nothing myself here in respect of
the truth or otherwise of the allegation — then

the respondent should obviously have brought |
this sum too to the credit of the testamentary |

case long ago.

In view of all that I have stated above, leaving
out of account the failure of the respondent to

!file a final account by 31st October 1963 (an
account which has now been filed after extensions
of time obtained from the District Court), I
am satisfied that the respondent has failed to
bring into court the income from the properties
in his charge, by which 1 understand the net income
from the properties after deducting the expenses
of production thereof. 1 hold that the respondent
could not reasonably have understood, and did
not in fact understand, that the direction was to
bring into court the income after deduction of
expenses and all other expenses of due adminis-
tration, Such an interpretation of this Court’s
order of Ist April 1963 would virtually have
' constituted the respondent the judge of what
amount, if any, he should deposit in court. Even
on an assumption that the only money now in
his hands as administrator cf this estate is about
Rs. 40,000/-, he has on his own showing been
guilty of the offence of contempt of this Court
by failure to deposit at least this sum admittedly
in his hands. The respondent’s failure, in my
opinion, has been wilful and contumacious;
the wilful disobedience of the direction of this
Court, a direction to which he in fact consented,
! makes the contempt the more heinous.

I find the respondent guilty of the offence of
contempt of court on the findings set out above.
I order that he be committed to jail for a period
of twelve months, there to underge rigorous
| imprisonment.

|
i Tambizh, J.
I agree.

Alles, J.
T agree.

Rule made absolute.

Present Sansoni, C.J.

WEERASINGHE

vs.
PERMANENT SECRETARY, MINISTRY

OF DEFENCE & EXTERNAL AFFATRS

AND ANOTHER

(S.C. Application No. 177/1966)

In the matter of an Application for a Mandate in the nature of a Writ of Habeas Corpus
to produce the body of Captain Duleepsingh Upawansa Weerasinghe and[or a
Writ of Mandamus against the Second Respondent

Argued on: April 30th,
Judgment delivered on:

& May 2nd, 1966.
May 13th, 1966,
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Public Security Ordinance (Cap. 40), section 5 — Validity of Ordinance and Regulations made there-
under — Whether delegation of law making powers to Executive valid — Ceylon (Constitution) Order-
in-Council (Cap. 378), sections 15(5), 45, 51(2) — Emergency (Miscellaneous Provisions and Powers )
Regulations — Powers of detention and right to regulate conditions under which peisons detained given
by Regulation 26 — Whether duties other than those referred to in section 31(2) of Constitution can
be imposed on a Permanent Secretary to a Ministry.

Writs of Habeas Corpus and Mandamus — Application by brother of person detained under Emergency
Regulations — Whether petitioner has status to make an application for ¢ Mandamus — Powers of Court
to issue Writ of Habeas Corpus during state of Public Emergency — Regulation 26(10) of Emergency
(Miscellaneous Provisions and Powers) Regulations.

The petitioner filed this application for writs of Habeas Corpus and Mandamus, praying for the custody of his
brother the 3rd respondent, a captain in the Regular Army, who had been arrested on orders issued by the
Ist respondent under regulation 26(1) of the Emergency (Miscellaneous Provisions and Powers) Regulations, made by
the Governor General under section 5 of the Public Security Ordinance. It was contended for the petitioner (@) that the
Public Security Ordinance under which the Governor General had purperted to make the regulations relevant to the 3rd
respondent’s arrest and detention was ultra vires the Constitution. (b) that the regulations in question imposed duties upon -
the Permanent Secretary to the Ministry of Defence and External Affairs which were not contemplated in and in conflict
with the duties imposed by section 51(2) of the Constitution; (¢) that a mandamus lay against the 2nd respondent Chairman
of the Advisory Committee appointed under regnlation 26(4) to inquire into the objections filed by the 3rd respondent;
and (d)(gat the 3rd respondent had been denied the rights and privileges to which he was entitled under the Prisons Ordi-
nance (Cap. 54).

Held: (i) That the Public Security Ordinance was intra vires the Constitution and so also the Regulations made
thereunder, for the reason that Parliament by virtue of sections 2(3) and 5(3) of that Ordinance and
15(3) of the Constitution retained its power and control over the Executive even during a State of
E-n'nergg:ncy when regulations such as those under the Public Security Ordinance can be made by the
xecutive.

(i) That the power of the Court to issue a writ of habeas corpuis was, during a state of emergency
taken away by Regulation 26 (10).

(iii) That section 51(2) of the Constitution empowering each Permanent Secretary to exercise supervision
over the department or departments in the charge of his Minister is not exhaustive of the powers
and duties which may be conferred on a Permanent Secretary, and additional powers not in conflict
with section 51(2) may be conferred.

(iv) That no mandamus would lic because there is nothing to suggest that the2nd respondent has failed
or will fail to do his duty at the appropriate time, apart from the fact that as no duty was owed
the petitioner by the 2nd respondent, the petitioner had no status to make the application.

(v) That regulation 26(3) empowers the Inspector General of Police with the sole authority to issue ins-
tructions in regard to the conditions under which prisoners are held in detention and it is not for the
Courts to adjudicate upon such measures as are taken under regulation 26(3).

Per Sansoni, C.J. — “One thing is essential for the validity of a delegation of its* law making power, .and that
is that it should not abandon its legal authority or its control over the Executive Authority to which it has delegated
that power. It must not try to transform the Executive into a parallel legislature and abdicate its function. There is
nothing in the Public Security Ordinance to indicate that Parliament has abdicated its legislative authority.”

G. D. C. Weerasinghe, with (Miss) Maureen Seneviratne and P. Karunaratne, for the petitioner.

V. Tennakoon, Q.C., Solicitor-General, with H. L. de Silva, Crown Counsel for the 1st and
2nd respondents.

Sansoni, C.J. | & External Aflairs, and the 2nd respondent is
| the Chairman of the Advisory Committee appoin-

The petitioner in this application moves for | ted by the Governor-General under Regulation
writs of Habeas Corpus and Mandamus, He is | 26(4) of the Emergency (Miscellaneous Provisions
a brother of the 3rd respondent, a Captain in | and Powers) Regulations made by the Governor-
the Regular Army. The Ist respondent is the | General under section 5 of the Public Security
Permanent Secretary to the Ministry of Defence Ordinance, Cap. 40.
* Parliament’s Fr ey B
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By reason of the existence of a state of public

were used because the emergency was on. Neither

emergency, the Governor-General under section | of these statements shows that the Governor-

2 of that Ordinance declared by a Proclamation
that the provisions of Part 2 of the Ordinance
should come into operation throughout Ceylon
on 8th January, 1966. In each succeeding month
a similar Proclamation was made, and the state
of emergency still continues. The 3rd respondent
was taken into custody on 17th March, upon
an order made by the 1st respondent in exercise
of the powers vested in him by Regulation 26(1),
as he was of the opinion that it was necessary

to make such an order on the grounds set out |

in that Regulation.

The main argument of Mr, Weerasinghe is
that the Governor-General has no right to make
any Regulations, as section 5 of the Public Secu-
rity Act which purports to give him the power
to make Emergency Regulations is beyond the
power of Parliament as laid down in the Cons-
titution. If this objection fails, I think there is
little or nothing that can be said in support of
the other objections he has taken.

On the main objection, that the Emergency
Regulations are invalid, the argument is the
familiar one that the Constitution entrusts the

General’s powers were not being properly exer-
cised or that the Regulations were being impro-
perly exercised cr that the Regulations were
being improperly used. The Ordinance gives
prominence to the part which Parliament has
to play at this time. Under secticn 5(3) anyv
Emergency Regulation may be added to. altered
or revoked by resolution of the House of Repre-
sentatives. Under section 2(3) a Proclamation of
a state of emergency must be forthwith commu-
nicated to Parliament, and if Parliament is at
the time separated by adjournment or pro--
rogation for more than ten days it must be
summoned to meet within ten days. It is relevant
to refer here to section 15(5) of the Ceylon {Cons-
titution) Order-in-Council, Cap. 379, which states

| that even after a dissolution of Parliament the

power to make laws to Parliament and to nobody |
else: therefore no other authority has a law-making |

power. As against this, the Solicitor-General’s
position is that Parliament can delegate its power
to make laws to the Executive as it did in this
case, even though there is nothing said about it
in the Constitution.

Section 5 of the Public Security Ordinance
certainly purports to vest legislative authority
in the Governor-General to “make such regu-
lations as appear to him to be necessary or ex-
pedient in the interests of public security and the
preservation of public order and the suppressim
of mutiny, riot or civil commotion, or for the

Governor-General may summon it by Procla-
mation if he is satisfied that an emergency has
arisen of such a nature that an earlier meeting of
Parliament is necessary. All these provisions
ensure that Parliament retaing its powers and its
control over the Exccutive even during a state,
of emergency. One thing is cssential for the
validity of a delegation of its law-making power,
and that is that it should not abandon its legal
authority or its control over the executive autho-
rity to which it has delegated that power. It
must not try to transform the executive into a
parallel legislature, and abdicate its function.
There is nothing in the Public Security Ordinance
to indicate that Parliament has abdicated its
legislative aunthority. Tn my view the power to
make laws for the peace, order and good govern-
ment of the country include the power to make

[such a law as the Public Security Ordinance

maintenance of supplies and services essential |

to the life of the community.”” Two conditions

are laid down by the Ordinance for the exercise |

of this
One is “the existence or imminence of a state
of public emergency” of which the Governor-
General is the sole judge; and the other is that
the Regulations he makes must be such as appear
to him to be necessary or expedient. In passing

authority by the Governor-General.

which, and I emphasise this, makes provision
for delegation of legislative power ¢nly at a time
of public emergency.

The important question that has been argued,
whether the delegation of legislative power is
ultra vires the Constitution, has been discussed
and decided in many cases, but I intend to refer
only to a very few of them. The Solicitor-General

icitcd the Supreme Court of Canada decision of
| the Reference as to the validity of the Regulations

I may mention that the petitioner relied on state- |

ments by the Minister of State made on 11th
March 1966 to the effect that he thought the
emergency can be lifted. and that the Regulations

in relation to chemicals (1943) S.C.R. 1, where
the validity of regulations and orders made
under powers conferred by the War Measures
Act, 1914 was considered and upheld. Rinfret,
J. there said: “Parliament retains its power in-
tact and can, whenever it pleases, take the matter
directly into its own.hands. How far it shall
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seek the aid of subordinate agencies and how |
long it shall continue them in existence, are |
matters for Parliament and not for courts of |
law to decide. Parliament has not abdicated |
its general legislative powers...... el The |
subordinate instrumentality, which it has created
for exercising the powers, remains responsible
directly to Parliament and depends upon the
will of Parliament for the continuance of its
official existence.” Duff, C.J., pointed out that
every regulation, rule and order made under the
Act derives its legal force solely from that Act,
for as the Privy Council decided in The Zamora
(1916) 2 A.C. 77, all such instruments “derive
their validity from the statute which creates the
power, and not from the executive body by which
they are made.”” The argument that there was the
risk that extensive and drastic powers of control
may thus be given to persons who were not
responsive to the will of the electorate was met
by Davis, J. who said, “the safety valve of our
constitutional system of government remains
intact. Parliament has not effaced itself...... as
representative of the people (it) has, in a practical
sense, full power to amend or repeal the War
Measures Act or to make ineffective any of the
Orders-in-Council in pursuance of its provisions.”
It should not be forgotten however, that this case
and In Re George Edwin Gray (1918) 57 S.C.R.
150 which it approved, deait with regulations
framed during national emergencies when the
safety of the country was in peril.

In Victorian Stevedoring and General Con-
tracting Co. Pty. Ltd. and Meakes vs. Dignan (1931)
46 C.L.R. 73 the High Court of Australia had to
consider a similar question of delegation of legis-
lative power where the Commonwealth Parliament
conferred upon the Governor-General the power
to make regulations. It was held to be intra vires,
even though it was not an instance of emergency
legislation. Dixon, J. used words to describe
the delegated power which equally well describe
the power conferred by scction 5 of the Public
Security Ordinance. He said: “Section 3 of the
Transport Workers Act, 1928-1929, cannot be
regarded as doing less than authorizing the
Executive to perform a function which. if not
subordinate, would be essentially legislative. It
gives the Governor-General in Council a com plete,
although, of course, a subordinate power, over
a large and by no means unimportant subject,
in the exercise of which he is free to determine
from time to time the ends to be achieved and
the policy to be pursued as well as the means to

be adopted. Within the limits of the subject

matter, his will is unregulated and his discretion
unguided. Morcover, the power may be exercised
in disregard of other existing Statutes, the pro-
visions of which concerning the same subject
maltter may be overridden.”

His conclusion was that “a statute conferring
upon the Executive a power to legislate upon
some matter contained within one of the subjects
of the legislative power of the Parliament is a
law with respect to that subject, and that the
distribution of legislative, executive and judicial
powers in the Constitution does not operate to
restrain the power of the Parliament to make such
a law.” He sounded a note of warning, however,
when he added that the subject matter dealt
with by the law may be so extensive or vague,
so wide and uncertain, that the attempt to hand
over legislative authority would be invalid. [
wish to add that, it having been decided that the
Legislature is competent to delegate its power,
whether there is a limit beyond which that power
must not travel, or whether the power is un-
confined, is a difficult question to answer. But
even if there is a limit, it could only be found
when the circumstances of a particular case have
been examined. Certainly a threat to the safety
of the nation would entitle the legislature to
delegate its powers to make laws to an authority
in whom it can have the utmost confidence.
Parliamentary debates on the details of necessary

 legislation at a time when speedy action is essen~

tial would seem to be out of place.

The Privy Council, in Attorney General for
Australia vs. The Queen (1957) A.C. 288, referred
to Dignan’s case and said this: “The other matter
to which their Lordships must refer has already
been mentioned. It is the departure from the
principle of separation of powers in matters
legislative and executive. They refer to this matter
again lest it should be thought that in anything
they have said in relation to the judicial power
they intended to cast any doubt upon the line
of authorities where the union of legislative and
executive power has been considered, Reference
has already been made to Dignan’s case, and a
salient passage from it cited. From the same case -
in exhaustive judgments of Dixon J, and Evatt J.
many other passages will be found which illustrate
how different are the measures which have been
and ought to be meted out to the union of legis-
lative and executive powers on the one hand and
the union of such powers and judicial power
on the other.” Evatt, J. has pointed out in that
case that judicial power occupies a special place
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because of its special nature, and that there is a
great cleavage between legislative and executive
power on the one hand, and judicial power on
the other. He also pointed to the British tradition
that judicial functionaries are or should be free
from any interference on the part of the Legis-
lature or the Executive, and this has resuited
in a special tendency to resist any serious en=
croachment upon the field of judicial action
by agencies of the Executive Government. This
is the answer to the argument of Mr. Weerasinghe
that because of the recent pronouncements of
the Privy Council about the judicial power in
our Constitution it must also be held that there

was a strict separation of all the three powers of |

Government.

Before I conclude this part of my judgment I
should also refer to In re Art. 143, Constitution
of India and Delhi Laws Act, A.LR. (1951) S.C.
332 decided by seven judges of the Supreme Court
of India. The judgments in that case dealt exhaus-
tively with the subject of delegated legislation,
and numerous cases, including those to which I
have referred, were discussed. There was a sharp
conflict of views as to the constitutional validity
of such legislation, and my impression is that the
judges were divided four to three, the majority

holding the view that the Indian Parliament had |
no power to dclegate its legislative authority |
to the extent, say, that our Parliament has done |

in the Public Security Ordinance, though it can
validly delegate the power to make subsidiary or
ancillary legislation, and conditional legislation.

After considering the matter as carefully as
I can, I hold that the Public Security Ordinance
is intra vires, and the Regulations, as well as the
orders and rules made under the authority of
such Regulations, are also valid. Consequently
the order made by the 1st respondent that the
3rd respondent should be taken into custody
and detained is valid. Regulation 26 (10) takes
away the power of this Court to issue a writ of

habeas corpus during the emergency, and that is |
the final answer to the application for that writ. |

Another argument put forward for the petitioner |

was that, under section 51(2) of the Constitution,
each Permanent Secretary could only “exercise
supervision over the department or departments of
Government in the charge of his Minister,”
and that no other duties could be imposed, even
by a law, on a Permanent Secretary. I do not
think that section 51(2) was intended to be ex-
haustive of everything that a Permanent Secretary

can do while he holds that office. The wording
of the section does not suggest that. I see no
objection to the passing of a law which gives the
Permanent Secretary additional powers, pro-
vided that they do not in any way come into
conflict with section 51(2). If this argument
were to be upheld it could be argued that the
exercise of legislative power by the Governor-
General when he makes Regulations under the
Public Security Ordinance would also be contrary
to the Constitution, because, section 45 of the
Constitution speaks only of the Governor-General
exercising executive power, and says nothing
about his exercising legislative power. 1t seems
to me that it is perfectly constitutional for the
Governor-General to make Emergency Regulations
when he is empowered to do so by an Act of
Parliament, for such a power does not conflict
with his exercise of executive power.

There only remains the question as to whether
any relief should be granted on the application
for Mandamus against the 2nd respondent.
Under Regulation 26(6) the 2nd respondent
presides over meetings of the Advisory Committee
appointed by the Governor-General to hear
any objections which the 3rd respondent might
make against his order of detention. The Solicitor
General stated that objections had been filed
by the 3rd respondent. In due course the
Advisory Committee will consider those objections
if it has not already done so, and the 2nd res-
pondent will inform the 3rd respondent of the
grounds on which he is detained and furnish him
with such particulars as the 2nd respondent
considers sufficient to enable him to present his
case. There is no need for a Mandamus, bzcause
there is nothing to suggest that the 2nd respon-
dent has failed or will fail to do his daty at the
appropriate time. In point of law the petitioner
has no status to make the application for a
Mandamus, because no duty is owed tc him by
the 2nd respondent, and the petiticn should
fail on this ground also though I have not dis-
missed it for this reason.

Other matters mentioned in the petition are
the denial of visits by relations and friends of
the 3rd respondent, the deprivation of privi-
leges to which he was entitled under the Prisons
Ordinance (Cap. 54), and the imposition of
solitary confinement. The 1st respondent has
made orders which he was entitled to make
under Regulation 26(3) suspending. the operation
of certain provisions of that Ordinance. Regulation
26(3) empowers the Inspector General of Police
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to issug instructions with regard to the conditions | of the authorities who are empowered to impose
under which persons are held in detention. The | them.
3rd respondent is dctained under conditions

covered by such orders and instruction. It is For these reasons the application is dismissed
not for the Court to Judge the necessity for such | with costs, ¥
measures, since that is within the sole province ! Application dismissed.

IN THE COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEAL

Present: T. S, Fernando, J. (President), Tambiah, J. and Manicavasagar, J.
THE QUEEN ys. U, DON PREMADASA & TWO OTHERS

C.C.A. Application Nos. 10, 11 & 12, of 1966
S.C. No. 83 — M.C. Horana No. 38540,

Argued & decided on: March 14, 1966,

Court of Criminal Appeal — Plea of guilt — Culpable homicide and aitempt to commit culpable
homicide not amounting to murder — Sudden fight — Principles and basis of punishment — Sentence
manifestly excessive — Criminal Procedure Code, section 325 (2).

In an Assize trial for murder and attempted murd er, before the close of the prosecution case, the trial Judge accepted
on behalf of the three appellants a plea of gui Ity of culpable homicide not amounting te murder and of attempting to commit
culpable homicide not amounting to murder on the basis that the injuries were inflicted in the course of a sudden fight.
The defence had suggested that the appellants went to the assistance of their mother, who had a number of injuries.

The trial Judge sentenced the first and second appellants to 10 years’ and 2 years’ rigorous imprisonment on the two
counts, the sentences to run consecutively and the third appellant to 10 years rigorous imprisonment on the first count,
In imposing the sentence, the trial Judge stated that he was satisfied that the appellants were lying in wait to attack the
deceased when he was returning from his brother’s house, and characterised the causing of the injuries as a cowardly attack.

Held: (1) That it is contrary to principle to accept a plea on one basis and to impose punishment on another,
and that the basis on which the plea was accepted must be regarded as the basis also of the appropriate
sentence in respect of the offence.

(2) That the sentences imposed in this case were not only contrary to principle, but also manifestly excessive.
(3) That the following sentences should be imposed :—

{a) First and second appellants—4 years’ rigorous imprisonment on the first count and 2 years’ rigorous
imprisonment on the second count, the sentences to run concurrently;

(b) Third appellant (who only had a club which evidently he had not used) — to enter into a bond
in a sum of Rs. 500/- with one surety, to be of good behaviour for 2 years, in terms of section
325(2) of the Criminal Procedure Code.

E. R. 8. R. Coomaraswamy, with Miss Barr-Kumarakulasinghe, Nihal Jayawickrema and Kumar
Amerasekera, for the accused-appellants.

N. Tittawela, Crown Counsel, for the Crown.

T. S. Fernande, J. | Judge addressed the Jury on the question as to
whether they wished to go on with the case,

The three appellants who are brothers and one against Siriwardena. The evidence against him
Siriwardenc who is their uncle stood their trial | was unsatisfactory and pointed strongly to a
at the Kalutara Assizes on two charges, (1) of | false implication of him as one of those who
the murder of a man called Lihinis and (2) of | participated in the attack on Lihinis and Don
the attempted murder of a man called Don Nomis. | Nomis. The Jury were unanimously of the opinion
Towards the end of the prosecution case the learned ' that they did not wish to go on with the case
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against Siriwardena, and he was accordingly
acquitted. Thercupon the prosecution acquiescing,
the learncd Judge accepted a plea on behalf of
the three appe]lants of guilty of culpable homicide
not amounting to murder on the first charge
and of attempting to commit culpable homicide
not amounting to murder on the second charge
on the basis that the injuries were inflicted in the
course of a sudden fight,

The pleas came to be offered and accepted in
the following circumstances. The mother of the
appellants, a woman by the name of Sopinona,
had a number of injuries, but the prosecution
failed to establish how she came by those injuries.
The suggestion for the defence — be it noted
that the case ended before the defence was called —
was that the appellants went to the assistance
of their mother Sopinona when she was being
attacked, and that Siriwardena was nowhere
about at the time. The learned Judge, after the
Jury had agreed to accept the pleas, sentenced
the 1st and 2nd appellants to ten years’ rigorous
imprisonment and two years’ rigorous imprison-
ment on the Ist and 2nd counts respectively
the sentences to run consecutively. They were
therefore to serve twelve years in all; the 3rd
appellant was sentenced to a term of.ten years’
imprisonment on the lst charge.

Although the pleas were accepted on the basis
that the injuries on the two men, Lihinis and
Don Nomis, took place in the course of a sudden
fight, the learned trial Judge in imposing sentence
stated that he was satisfied that the three appellants
were lying in wait to attack Lihinis when he was
returning from his brother’s house. If that was
the case, then there was no ground for an accept-
ance of the pleas. Moreover, he characterised
the causing of the injuries on the two men as a
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cowardly attack. The making of these obser-
vations shows that the trial Judge himself did
not think that the occurrence of a sudden fight
was probable. He does not appear to have placed
any weight on the circumstance that the injuries
on Sopinona remained unexplained by the pro-
secution, To accept a plea on one basis and to
impose punishment on another is contrary to
principle. The basis on which the plea was accepted
| must be regarded as the basis also of the appro-
| priate sentence in respect of the offence.

We are of opinion that the sentences imposed
in this case are not only contrary to principle,
| but also manifestly excessive. We therefore subs-
| titute for the sentence imposed by the trial Judge
‘ the following sentences:— the 1st and 2nd appel-
| lants will undergo a term of four years’ rigorous
imprisonment on the first charge and two years’
rigorous imprisonment on the second charge
the sentences to run concurrently. In regard to
the 3rd appellant, the evidence for the prosecution
was that he was armed with a club. There is a
strong inference from the medical evidence that
no club injuries had been dealt either on Lihinis
or on Don Nomis; this goes to indicate that,
although armed with a club, the 3rd appellant
refrained from using that club. In the circums-
tances, especially having regard to the fact that
his mother was involved in some incident at this
time in the course of which she received a number
of injuries, we do not think that the 3rd appellant
should be sentenced to a term of imprispnment.
Acting in terms of section 325(2) of the Criminal
Procedure Code, we direct that he do enter into
a bond in a sum of five hundred rupees, with

one surety, to be of good behaviour for a period
of two years.

Sentences varied.

Present: Tambiah, J.

PIYASENA, SUB INSPECTOR OF POLICE, PITIGALA vs. FERNANDO

S.C. 718/°65—M.C. Balapitiva Case No. 3049 [E

Argued on:
Decided on:

11-11-65
16-11-65

Excise Ordinance—Charge of possessing fermented toddy against husband and wife — Acquittal
of wife and conviction of husband — Absence of husband from home at time of raid.

Held:

That the mere fact that a husband is the chief occupant of the house, without any other evidence against

him, cannot support the conviction of the husband for the possession of an excisable article.
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S. W. Jayasooriya, with K. Charavanamutiy for the accused-appellant.
E. D. Wikremanayake, C.C., for the Attorney-General,

Tambiah, J, conscious possession of it. This view has been

adopted in a number of cases (vide Cornelis vs.
‘The accused-appellant and his wife were charged  Excise Inspector (1946) 47 N.L.R. 407: Sudu
with the offence of possessing 176 drams o Banda and another vs. Inspector of Excise, Passara
Excisable article, namely fermented toddy which LW ?
is 160 drams in excess of the quantity declared -5 C-L-W. 6).
by the Minister as a limit of sale by retail without
a permit from the Government Agent, an offence
putrgsgable undf:n];:l section 17 of Chapter 52 read
with Excise Notification No. 484 published in the | was the chief occupant of the house. In support
Gpvergment Gazette No. 11826 of 7.8.59. After | ¢ his contention he cited the case of Samarag’eem
trial the learned Magistrate acquitted the wife o Babee 4 C.L.W. 48. This case is however
and convicted the accused and sentenced him to  distinguishable from the instant case. The evidencs
pay a fine of Rs. 150/-. The appellant has appealed | i " o o disclosed that the husband had just
from this order. left the house when the raid took place and the
- excisable articles in excess of the prescribed amount
The evidence led on behalf of the prosecution | were found in the house. In such circumstances
which has been accepted by the learned Magistrate | a court is justified in holding that the husband
establishes that the appellant was the chief occupant = was in possession of the excisable articles. Soertsz
of a house in which were found some pots of J.took the view that there is a presumption that a
fermented toddy. Inspector Piyasena, in the & house occupied by a married couple is in the
course of his evidence stated that when he raided | possession of the husband rather than that of the
this place he saw the first accused who was standing wife and that to succeed in a charge of illicit
in the verandah of her house, running inside. possession of toddy against a married woman
He followed her into the kitchen and saw the |living with her husband the prosecution must
first accused with a pot in her hand, the contents rebut this presumption. I am unable to agree
of which was later found to be fermented toddy. with this view. The presumption that a house
The appellant was nowhere near the house at | occupied by a married couple is in the possession
the time of the raid and there is no evidence to ;of the husband cannot help the prosecution in
show as to when he left the house. The learned |this case because there is no presumption that
Magistrate, having accepted the evidence of the | the toddy found in the house of the appellant,
prosecution witnesses should have convicted the | who was not there at the time of the raid, was in
wife for the offence for which she was charged. | the possession of the accused. It is a cardinal
However, he had chosen to acquit her and convict principal of law that the accused is presumed to
the accused appellant on the ground that he was | be innocent till the ingredients of the offence
the chief occupant of the house and had a license | are proved by the prosecution beyond reasonable
to sell sweet toddy. There is no evidence to show | doubt.
that the accused was in possession of sweet toddy
which he allowed to ferment.

The learned Crown Counsel submitted that the
appellant was in conscious possession since he

I'am of the view that where an excisable article
is found in the house occupied by a husband and
wife, the mere fact that the husband is the chief
occupant of the house without any other evidence
against him cannot support the conviction of the
husband for the possession of such article.

The counsel for the appellant contended that it
had not been proved that the accused-appellant
has been in possession of the toddy. In support
of this contention he cited the case of Alice vs.
Excise Inspector, Kandy (1955) 59 N.L.R. 550
in which it was held that where excisable articles For these reasons I set aside the order of the
are found inside a house, the chief occupant | learned Magistrate and acquit the accused.
is not liable to be prosecuted for unlawful posses-
sion of it unless there is evidence that he was in Conviction set aside.
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Present: T. S. Fernando, J. and Alles J.

THE QUEEN vs. SELLIAH AND ANOTHER

S.C. 53-54/65—D.C. Kandy (Criminal) Case No, 769/16903

Argued & decided on: March 18, 1966.

Evidence — Charges of obstruction of public servants and escape from lawful custody — Proof
of lawful discharge of duties — Investigation consequent to first complaint — Oral evidence inadmissible —
First complaint must be produced — omission fatal to convictions — Criminal Procedure Code, section
121 — Penal Code, sections 183 and 2204 — Evidence Ordinance, section 91,

The first appellant was charged with offences, inter alia, under Sections 183 and 220 A of the Penal Code, and the
second appellant with two offences under the said sections. All these charges depended on proof that the police officers
who received injuries were acting in the lawful discharge of their public functions. The prosecution alleged that the injuries
were received when they went to investigate into a complaint made by a man named H to one of the police officers.

Held:

That no evidence of the nature of the complaint made by H could have been led in Court other than through

the document itself, that is, the complaint made in terms of section 121(1) of the Criminal Procedure
Code, and that oral evidence of the contents of the document was wrongly admitted in the absence of
the document and was fatal to the convictions on those charges.

Followed: The King vs. Haramanisa (1944) 45 N.L.R. 532; XXVIII C.L.W. 68,
The King vs. Don Sarmmuel (1946) 47 N.L.R, 449.

E. R. S. R. Coomaraswamy, with S. S. Sahabandu and K. Amarasekera, for the accused-appellants.

Cecil Goonewardena, Crown Counsel, for the Attorney-General.

T. S. Fernando, J.

Counsel on behalf of the two appellants has
raised a legal objection to the maintainability
of the convictions on the 1st, 2nd, 4th and 5th
charges which all depended upon proof that the
police officers who received injuries on the day
in question were acting in the lawful discharge
of their public functions. It was the case for the
prosecution that the public officers received these
injuries on an occasion when they went to investi-
gate into a complaint made by a man named
Haramanis to one of the police officers and to
arrest the persons accused by Haramanis in that
complaint. This was obviously a complaint made
in terms of section 121(1) of the Criminal Procedure
Code and therefore had to be reduced to writing
and copied into the Information Book. It has
been held in the case of The King vs. Haramanisa

(45 N.L.R. 532) that oral evidence of such a |

complaint is inadmissible. This decision was
followed in the case of The King vs. Don Samel (47
N.L.R. 449), Tt follows therefore, that no evidence
of the nature of Haramanis's complaint could
have been led in court other than through the
document itself. The prosecution omitted to pro-
duce the document, but led oral evidence of some
of its contents. It was a serious omission and, as

it turns out, it is fatal to the conviction on the
four charges we have referred to above. If Crown
Counsel who prepared the indictment in this case
had addressed his mind to the matters that required
proof on the part of the prosecution before a
conviction could have been expected, we are

| confident that the omission could have been

supplied before the indictment was signed. We
therefore with reluctance allow the appeal in
so far as it relates to the convictions on those
four charges, that is, 1, 2, 4 and 5, and the sentences
imposed in respect of them.

Counsel for the appellants frankly concedes
that he is unable to attack the conviction on the
3rd count which was one of causing grievous
hurt simpliciter to the driver of the police jeep,
Adikari. Adikari had driven the jeep that brought
the two police constables to the scene of their
investigation. It was Adikari’s evidence-that when
he heard the cries of his comrades who were
being attacked he rushed to their assistance only
to find himself stabbed by the first appellant.
In respect of the 3rd charge which was only
against the Ist appellant the sentence imposed was
one of one year’s rigorous imprisonment. We
have little doubt that this sentence came to be

fixed by the learned Judge because he had already



80

imposed in respect of the other
of two years' rigorous imprisonment. Attacks
on police officers who go about on public duty —
and let it not be forgotten that they are not armed
in this Country — are becoming increasingly
frequent; and it is the duty of the courts to afford

protection not only to the civilian population
ervice. We,
therefore, while affirming the conviction on the

but also to members of the Police

third charge, increase the sentence imposed in

1966—Sansoni, C.J,—~In re De Silva

charges a term | respect of it to one of two years’ rigorous impri-

sonment. In the result the 1st appellant will undergo

| two years’ rigorous imprisonment while the 2nd

appellant is, to our regret, entitled to be acquitted,

Alles, J.
I agree.
Second appellant acquitted.
Sentence on first appellant enhanced.

Present: Sansoni, C.J.

in Re NANCY DE SILVA

S.C. 148/66 — M.C. Colombo No. 27862/C

Argued and decided on: 15th February, 1966.

Right of appeal — Appeal by

person not party to proceedings from order directing motor car to

be returned to alleged owner—Motor car produced by police on complaint of robbery—Criminal

Procedure Code, section 338 (1).

Where N, who was not a party to any proceedings in the lower court, appealed from an order of the Magistrate

directing a motor car which was produced
alleged owner P.—

Held:

by the police

(1) That Nhad no right of appeal.

in connection with a complaint of robbery,

to be returned to the

(2) That proceedings can be instituted and continued even where an appeal is pending and the record has
been sent up to the Supreme Court, all that the Magistrate has to do in such an event is start

another record.

No appearance for the appellant.

Cecil Gunawardene, Crown Counsel, as amicus curiae.

Sansoni, C.J.

This is an appeal by one Nancy de Silva against
the order of the Magistrate directing a motor
car, which was produced by the Police in connecticn
with a complaint of robbery, to be returned to
the alleged owner Mrs. L. S. Peiris.

The first question that arises for determination
is whether the appellant has a right of appeal.
She was no party to any proceedings in the lower
court, and she therefore does not come within
the terms of section 338(1) of the Criminal Pro-
cedure Code.

Learned Crown Counsel has referred me to
various authorities and has asked me to give a
decision on the question whether an appeal would
have lain if Nancy de Silva had been a party to
the proceedings in the lower court. Any ‘opinion
I express on this point, on which there seems to

' be some conflict of opinion, will be obiter and
‘I do not think T sheould deal with such a hypo-
| thetical situation.

This appeal was listed for hearing early because
| the record had been sent up to this court along
with the petition of appeal, and it was undesirable
that any proceedings that the Police wished to
| institute shall be delayed on that account. I wish
|to add that even if the record remained in this
court such proceedings could be filed, because
| all the Magistrate has to do in such an event is
(to start another record. Proccedings can be
|instituted and continued even where an appeal of
(this nature is pending and the record has been
‘sent up to this court.

_ So far as this appeal is concerned, as no appeal
lies it is dismissed.

Dismissed,
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Present: H.N.G. Fernando, S.P.J, and G.P.A, Silva, 1.
KANDIAH THIAGARAJAH vs. POORANESWARY KARTHIGESU
S.C. No. 568 (F) 1963—D.C. Batticaloa 1949/ Mis.

Argued on: 6th, 18th, 19th and 20th June, and 6th July 1966
Reasons and decision on: 22nd July 1966

Declaratory decrees— Declaration that plaintiff not married to defendant—Action for jactitation
of marriage—Jurisdiction of our Courts in respect of such actions—Civil Procedure Code, sections 217, 40
and 5—Limits to the jurisdiction of Court to grant a declaratory order—Plaintiff”s cause of action in
such a case—Application of maxim *‘ ut magis valeat quam pereat ’—~Courts Ordinance, section 62.

The plaintiff sued the defendant for a declaration that he was not married to the defendant, and for an
order restraining the defendant from boasting that she was married to the plaintiff, The trial Judge held on the evidence
that the plaintiff and the defendant were in fact married on the 21st January 1959 according to the custom applicable to
the Mukkuwa community to which both parties belonged and dismissed the plaintiff’s action.

Tn appeal the defendant raised the question that the Court had no jurisdiction to entertain the action.

Held: (1) That with regard to the action to prevent the defendant boasting that she was married to the plaintiff
{action for jactitation of marriage), such an action was one within matrimonial jurisdiction, and
no authority had been cited which might indicate that the Courts in Holland or Ceylon had enter-
tained such an action,

(2) That the Court had jurisdiction to grant the declaration that the plaintiff was an unmarried man. The
cause of action in such a case in terms of section 5 of the Civil Procedure Code was the defendant’s
denial of the plaintiff’s status, which would include the denial of the rights of the plaintiff arising
from the status denied, In granting such a declaration, however, the Court would not order either
party to perform conjugal duties.

(3) That the power of a Court to grant a declaration would be subject to the following conditions:—
(@) The Court would have a discretion in deciding whether to grant the declaration or not.

() The declaratory jurisdiction could be invoked for the determination of legal disputes, but
not for disputes of a moral, social or political character,

(c) Theoretical issues could not be determined in such an action.

() The declaratory jurisdiction could not be invoked to determine the Jawfulness of a pro-
posed action, or the rights which might be claimed or denied if and when a person takes such
proposed action.

{¢) Nor could it be invoked if the declaration could have no practical consequences.

(4) That none of these limitations, however, could be invoked in the present case to defeat the plaintiff’s
action. The Court therefore had jurisdiction to grant the declaration asked for.

(5) That on the evidence the trial judge had erred in finding that the partics had on the 21st January 1959
gone through a ceremony of marriage according to the custom applicable to the parties, or that
the plaintiff had intended to contract a marriage with the defendant on that day.

Cases referred to:  Aziz vs. Thondaman, (1959) 61 N.L.R. 217; LVII C.L.W. 73.
Grand Junction Waterworks Co. vs. Hampton U.D.C., (1898) 2 Ch. 331; 78 L.T. 673; 14
T.L.R. 467.
Hanson vs. Radcliffe U.D.C., 1922 Ch. 4%0; 127 L.T. 509; 38 T.L.R. 667.
Barnard vs. National Dock Labour Board, (1953) 2 Q.B. 18; (1953) 1 A.E.R. 1113,
Russian Commercial and Industrial Bank vs. British Bank for Foreign Trade Lrd., 1921(2) A.C,
438; 126 L.T. 35; 37 T.L.R. 819.
Lever Brothers vs. Manchester Ship Canal Co., (1945) 78 Lloyds L.R. 507,
Har-Shefi vs. Har Skefi, (1953) 1 A.E.R, 783; 1953 P, 16l.
Aronegary vs, Vaigalie et al., (1881) 2 N.L.R. 322.
Andres vs. Bastiana, 1860-62 Ramanathan Reports 133,
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Texts cited: The Declaratory Judgment — Zamir

Law and Orders — Allen (2nd Ed.) 266,

S. Nadesan, Q.C. with C. Ranganathan,
plaintiff-appellant,

_ H. W. Jayawardene,
respondent,

H. N. G. FERNANDO, S.P.J.

This is an unusual action, probably one of first
instance in our Courts, in which the plaintiff prays
for a declaration that he is not married to the
defendant. Reference to the facts is not necessary
at this stage, for the first question is whether our
Courts have jurisdiction to grant such a declara-
tion.

Section 217 of the Civil Procedure Code provides
that “a decree or order of court .......... may, with-
out affording any substantive relief or remedy,
declare a right or status”, and Section 40 of
the Code refers to an action “to establish, recover
or enforce a status”. Chapter XXV of the Code,
which deals with the continuation of actions after
alteration of a person’s “status”, shows that
the expression as used in the Code regards the
marriage of a woman as being a change of her
status. If, asthe Code contemplates, the change
from being a feme sole to being a married woman
is a change of status, the change from bachelor-
hood to the condition of being a married man is
equally a change of status. In the former case,
the change can affect the capacity in two ways,
i.e. a woman’s right to property or her contractual
capacity may be altered by reason of marriage,

and also her capacity to contract a valid marriage |

is ordinarily limited by the fact of her subsisting
marriage. In the latter case, the capacity of

a married man to contract a valid marriage js |

equally limited. In fact, the counsel for the
defendant in appeal did not seriously contend

that the declaration sought in this case is not a |

declaration of the plaintiff’s status.

Counsel’s principal argument was that this |

Q.C., Crosette Thambiah and K. Thevarajah, for the

Q.C., with K. Kanthasamy and Mark Fernando, for the defendant-

LIT of the Code does not include such a reference
was, it is argued, deliberate, and established an
intention that our Couris should have no juris-
diction to entertain actions for jactitation of
marriage. g

I do not disagree with the argument that the
action for juctitation of marriage is one within
matrimonial jurisdiction, and no authority was
cited to us which might indicate that the Courts
in Holland or Ceylon entertained such an action,
But the plaintiff in this case seeks also another
remedy, which is a declaration of his status as
an unmarried man; and the cbjections which I
have thus far considered are not relevant
to the question whether the jurisdiction to make
a declaration of status (the existence of which
jurisdiction is clearly contemplated in Head G of
Section 217 of the Code) does or does not include
the jurisdiction to declare the status which the
defendant in this case has denied,

Counsel for the defendant sought to draw an
analogy between the present case, and that deci-
ded in 1860-1862 Ramanathan’s Reports (page 133),
This Court there held that it had no jurisdiction
to order the restitution of conjugal rights, on the
ground that the Courts in Holland were not shown
to have had such a jurisdiction. The decision
was so cxpressed, but what is its principle? If
the Courts of Holland did not make orders for
the restitution of conjugal rights, the reason was
that the substantive law governing the marriage
contract did not compel a spouse to participate
in marital relations, although the denial of
marital rights might constitute a breach of the
contract. The principle is the same as that which
prevents a party to certain other contracts from

action is one for jactitation of marriage, i.. to | enforcing specific performance of the contract

restrain a defendant from boasting that he or
she is married to the plaintiff. (The plaintiff in
this action has asked for that very relief in
addition to the declaration which he claims),
That action was a matrimonial action, which in
England used to be entertained by the Ecclesi-
astical Courts. But it is argued that such an action
cannot be enterfained by our Courts, because the
matrimonial jurisdiction referred to in Chapter

by the other party. If the law does not compel
the specific performance, then equally the courts
will not decree the remedy of specific performan -
ce. In appropriate cases, the courts have the duty,
to determine that the contract wasnot performed
but only for the purpose of exercising its jurisdic—
tion to decree the relief which the law allows for

I'non-performance, which in most cases would be
| pecuniary damages for breach of contract, Indeed
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there can be no doubt that the Courts in Ceylon, |
for the purpose of deciding whether a decree of

divorce or separation should be granted, do have

the duty to determine whether a party to a

marriage has failed to perform his or her contrac- |
tual duties of cohabitation.

The suggested analogy between such cases and
the present one is in my opinion fallacious. For
no question here arises of a Court making any
order inconsistent with the substantive law go-
verning contracts of marriage. Evenif a court
were to grant a positive declaration that A is
married to B, the court would not thereby order
either party to perform conjugal duties. The
question whether A is or is not married to B can |
arise for determination in several contexts, e. g. |
in a matrimonial action, in an action for declara- |
tion of title to land, in an action for defamation,in
an action for injury caused to A or to B, and so on.
In the instant case, the plaintiff’s action for a de-
claration of his status calls for a determination of
that question, and it is the duty of the court
to decide it, if there is jurisdiction to decree the
declaration.

Counsel has argued that under our Code a
person cannot institute an action unless he is able
to plead that he has a cause of action as defined
in section 5 of the Code. A similar argument was |
considered in Aziz v Thondaman (61 N.L.R. 217)
where the court apparently took the view that,
because Section 217 (G) of the Code declares
that a decree may ‘‘declare a right or status”, a
person may therefore bring an action to have a
right or status declared. The precise objection,
based on the definition of “cause of action”
was (I think with respect) not clearly formulated
in that judgement. The objection is that the
definition does expressly include the denial of a
right, but makes no reference to the denial of a |
status, and that therefore the denial ofa status
does not give riseto an actionable cause, The
answer to this objection is that the definition
and the provisions of Section 217 (G) must be
read together, and construed as far as reasonable
so as to render both provisions effective. Incons-
istency is avoided by the construction that, in the
definition, “denial of a right” includes the denial
of a status. To deny a status can involve a denial |
of the legal rights flowing from such a status.
To deny the plaintiff’s status of bachelor was to
deny his right and his capacity to contract a |
valid marriage. A cause of action can therefore |
arise upon that denial. Any other construction
would render the provision for a decree or order |

| jurisdiction in all civil

declaring a status a dead latter, and would
offend the principle of construction ut magis
valeat quam pereat.

The arguments of counsel were to some extent
based upon the absence of any precedent in the
Courts of Holland for the grant of the particular
declaration sought in this case, that A is not
married to B. The lack of such precedent can
compel me to assume, even though the assumption
may in fact be incorrect, that the courts of
Holland had no jurisdiction to make such a
declaration. Butit is not to be further assumed
that therefore the Courts in Ceylon do not have
that jurisdiction. Section 62 of the Courts Ordi-
nance, which is only a re-enactment of the cor-
responding provision in Section 24 of the Char-
ter of 1833, confers on District Courts “original
......... matrimonial.........
matters,........ .and in any other matter in which
jurisdiction .........is now or may hereafter be
given to District Courts by law.” Section 62 had
in contemplation the jurisdiction referred to in
Section 217 of the Civil Procedure Code for a
civil Court to make a court decree or order dec-
laring a status. It is significant, and decisive of this
matter, that the date of operation of the Courts
Ordinance, No. 1 of 1889, was 2nd August 1890,
while the date of operation of the Code, No. 2
of 1889, was Ist August 1890. The jurisdiction
referred to in Section 217 (G) of the Code was
thus in existence immediately before Section 62
of the Courts Ordinance came into operation.
That jurisdiction now exists quite independently
of the consideration whether or notit was reco-
gnised in the Roman-Dutch law. And it is very
nearly beyond argument that in conferring that
jurisdiction, the Legislature of Ceylon intended
to adopt the English Law contaiped in Order

| XXV, rule 5, of the English Rules of the Supreme

Court 1883, to the following effect:

“No action or proceeding shall be open to objection,
on the ground that a merely declaratory judgment or order
is sought thereby, and the court may make binding decla-
rations of right whether any consequential relief is or could
be claimed or not.”

That the modern declaratory judgement is in
many jurisdictions the consequence of adoption
from the English Law has been stated ina
comprehensive and very helpful study of nume-
rous English cases by Dr. Zamir of the
University of Jerusalem. (The Declaratory
Judgement 1962). Section 217 (G) of our code
amply confirms that statement so far as Ceylon
is concerned
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In Aziz v. Thondwman (supra), this court djs- |

approved the opinion of the trial Judge that the
granting of a declaration of status is not a matter

within the discretion of the Court. That opinion |

I think with respect was correct, not merely
because it was in line with English decisions, but
because those decisions demonstrate the danger
and inconvenience which can result if a declara-
tory judgement can be claimed as of right.

“It seems to me that when the court is simply asked
to make a declaration of right, without giving any
consequential relief, the court ought to be extremely
cautious in making such a declaration, and ought
not to do it except in very special circumstances,”

(Grand Junction Waterworks Co, vs. Hampton U.D.C.
1898, 2 Ch. 331).

“The power of a Court to make a declaration, where !

it is a question of

is almost unlimited........,. .. The discretion should

of course be exercised judicially, butit seems to me |

that the discretion is very wide™, (Hanson vs.

Radcliffe
U.D.C. 1922, Ch. 490),

These two citations, from judgements delivered
in 1898 and 1922 respectively show how sharply
the attitude of the Courts in England towards
declaratory judgements changed within a short
space of time. In 1953 (Barnard v. National Dock
Labour Board 1953, 2 Q.B. 18), Denning L.J.
said ** 1 know no limit to the power of the Court
to grant a declaration, except such as it may in
its discretion impose upon itself, *

The limits of the jurisdiction as laid down in
English cases are classified in Dr. Zamir’s book
and I shall frecly borrow from it, in order to
refer to the limitation appropriate to cases like
the one before us.

The declaratory jurisdiction can be invoked for
the determination of legal disputes, but not for
disputes of a moral, social or political character.
The dispute in the present case, whether a valid
ceremony of marriage took place between the

plamtiff and the defendant, is certainly a legal |

dispute, because it concerns the status and rights
of the partics.

Theoretical issues cannot be determined. “The |

question must be a real and not a theoretical
question; the person raising it must have a real
interest to raise it”. (1921 A.C. 438). If the right
asserted by the plaintiff is not denied by the
defendant, or where there exists only the possi-
bility of a claim against the plaintiff or the
possibility of the denial of his rights, the issue is
only theoretical: so also where

defining the rights of two parties | cable in the present case.

: the facts inrelation | must be presumed that
to which a declaration is sought are hypothetical. ' satisfied when a Court enters
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There are two other limitations on the exercise
of the declaratory jurisdiction which have to be
specially considered, in this case. A person who
contemplates some course of action cannot seek a
declaratory order pronouncing upon the lawfulness
of the proposed action, or upon the rights which
might be claimed or denied if and when he
takes the proposed action (Lever Brothers v. Man-
chester Ship Canal Co, at page 56 of Zamir).
Again a declaration will not be granted if it can
be of no practical consequence. Thus, where the
plaintiffs claimed a declaration that they were
entitled to an ancient ferry from point to point,
the declaration was refused on the ground that no
disturbance had been proved of the plaintiffs’
alleged rights.

Both such limitations might appear to be appli-
The mere assertion
that the plaintiff is married to the defendant, by
itself, has no practical consequences, and it seems
to follow that a declaration to the contrary also
will have no practical consequences. The plain-
tiff may have fears that the defendant may claim
from him such personal or proprietory rights as
may be accorded to a wife by the relevant law
applicable in their case: but there has yet been
no such claim, and if there is one, the dispute
as to their marriage can then be determined. The
plaintiff may fear that, if he now contracts a

| marriage, he may become liable to a conviction
i for bigamy; but that liability can arise, not

because of the defendant’s assertion, but because
of the facts involved in the assertion which if
they are subsequently proved will establish the
offence of bigamy. If in effect it is the plaintiff’s

| purpose to obtain from a civil court a declaration

that will or may protect him from future criminal
proceedings for bigamy, that in itself might be
sufficient reason for denying to him a declaratory
decree,

The principle underlying the limitations just
mentioned is a general one, applicable to every
exercise of a Court’s jurisdiction, and not only
to the declaratory jurisdiction, It is stated thus
by Allen (Law and Orders, 2nd Edition page 266):-

“It is a principle of our jurisprudence — and, it is to
be supposed, of most systems of law — that courts
will not entertain purely hypothetical questions,
They will not pronounce upon legal situations which
may ris;e, but generally only upon those which have
arisen,’

Since this principle is generally applicable, it
its requirements are
a decree of nullity
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of marriage or of divorce. Taking in particular | status in their community on this account, and
an action for a decrce of nullity ab initio, it ‘ both parties arc comparatively speaking regarded
must be presumed that there is a pending legal | as being affluent units in their community.

dispute for determination by the Court and that
the decree when entered will have practical con-
sequences. But the point of the dispute is no
different from that arising in the present case,

On 16th January 1959, there was a meeting
between the plaintiff, his father, the defenﬁant’s
« a vali AT g " | parents, and one or two others, at W ich a
I;;?ﬁfgfff a:%ast}:?g:f;n:ﬁg??wﬂﬂ%ﬁiﬁz\f? L(l:; | marriage between the plaintiff ,and the defendant
Har-Shefi v, Har Shefi (1953) 1 A.E.R. 783) stated | was arranged, The defendant’s father a_greed to
that the sole object of a suit for nullity was “to | give as dowry a sum of Rs. 10,000/ in cash,
obtain a declaration that what purported to be a and a land on which he agreed to erect a house
valid marriage was in law a nullity.” The present of the value of Rs. 25,000/- or more, and two
action differs from a suit for nullity only because the paddy fields. Actually, the erection of a house
plaintiff does not concede that there was even the on the land had already commenced at the time,
semblance of a marriage in his case. But the dispute but the major part of the building operations had
is precisely whether the ceremony relied on by the yet to be taken in hand. According to_the plain-
defendant as purporting to be a valid marriage, tiff, the dowry Encluded a motor-car of the value
was valid according to customary law. Again, the of Rs. 13,000/-; but accardm%lto the defendant’s
consequences of a decree of nullity ab initio are father the arrangement was that he would assist
no different from those which will flow from the plaintiff to purchase a car.
a declaration in the present case that the plain- . :
tiff and the defendant arc not, and never were, There is conflict as to the further arrange-
husband and wife. Hence the principle, that the ments made on 16th January. According to the
issue involved in litigation must be real and not plaintiff, it was arranged that on 2lst January
hypothetical, must be held to be equally satisfied he and the defendant should become formally
in both types of action. engaged to each other, in token of which there
would be an exchange of rings; the notice of
Consideration of this matter leads me to the | (prospective) marriage was also to be signed on
opinion that, properly classified, a decree of | that day and given to the Registrar of Marriages;
nullity ab initio of a purported marriage falls with- | the dowry deed was also to be signed on the 21st.
in the categories of decrees declaring status. And | But the cash dowry of Rs. 10,000/- was to be
since a person’s status, whether of bachelor | paid on the day of the marriage, and the erection
spinster or married person, so obviously affects | of the house would also be completed before
his rights and capacities, there is a reasonable | that day. The actual date of the marriage was
presumption that a declaration of such status | not fixed.
will have practical consequences. The same pre-
sumption may I ‘think be invoked when the | The defence version of the events arranged for
plaintiff in this action seeks a declaration of his | 21st January was similar to that of the plaintiff,
status as a bachelor. but differed vitally in that (according to this

[ would hold for these reasons that the Dis- version) a marriage according to custom Was to

; siahtl .ld that he had jurisdicti take place on that day. It was arranged that
E:c;rigf%;cllgeé]iral:;‘on.t at e “had. jutisdicuion the dowry deed for the land and paddy fields

were to be signed on the 21st, but there was no
The learned District Judge dismissed the plain- | arrangement as to the payment of the cash dowry
{iff’s action because he reached a finding and no updt}'rtakmg that the house would be
upon the evidence that the plaintiff and the erected within any specified time.
defendant were in fact married on 21st January
1959 according to the custom applicable to the The trial Judge has assumed, presumably upon
community to which both parties belonged, namely | the evidence of the actnal events of 21st January,
the Mukkuwa community of the Tamils of the | that the parties, and principally the plaintiff, bad
Bafticaloa district. ‘ intended to contract acustomary marriage on the
21st. But he did not attempt to test the truth
The plaintiff is a graduate teacher, and the only | of the two conflicting versions of the arrange-
child of a teacher. The defendant is the daughter | ment reached on January 16th by an examina-
of a teacher. Both parties, enjoy a high social \tion of those versions themselves.
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The plaintiff’s evidence is that, very soon after
the arrangements made on the 16th, he received
some disturbing information concerning the defen-
dant, For this reason he wrote a letter on the
19th to the defendant’s brother in which he requ-
ested that the engagement ceremony, fixed for
the 21st, should be postponed. But the brother
came and saw him and persuaded him not to press
for the postponement. He then withdrew his
request for the postponement, because at that
stage the information which he had was only a
matter of rumour and because in any event he
was only to become engaged, and not to be married
on the 21st,

The defendant’s father admitted the receipt
of a letter requesting a postponement of the
ceremony arranged for the 2lIst. But according
to him the request was for a postponement of
the marriage ceremony fixed for that date. The
letter, he said, had been handed to the defen-
dant’s proctor, but he could “not definitely say
whether I can produce this letter this afternoon.’
These statements were made by the witness on
the morning of 16th July 1962. When the trial
was resumed that afternoon, the witness again
said that the letter had been given to the proctor,
But, in answer to a further question, he admit-
ted that he had not asked the proctor whether
the letter was still available. It was not produced
at the trial,

This letter would in all probability have either
confirmed or rebutted the plaintifi’s evidence that
what had been arranged for the 21st January was
only an engagement ceremony, If it did refer to an
engagement, and not to a marriage ceremony,
it would have shown at the least that shortly
before the 21st January, the plaintiff had denied
an arrangement for a marriage on that day; and
if so, the failure to refute in writing such a
denial made in a letter was significant. It is
unfortunate that the trial Judge did not choose
to infer that the defence withheld the letter
because it must have contained evidence
unfavourable to the defendant’ s case. That
inference can nevertheless be relied upon at the
stage of appeal,

The trial Judge has noted in the record a
statement of defence counsel that “certain
documents had been misplaced.” But even if this
statement might show that the letter had been
misplaced, it was open to the defence to call the
proctor as a witness to give secondary evidence
of the contents of the letter. As matters
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actually stood, the plaintiff’s evidence as to
the contents of the letter was not contradicted
by the best available evidence,

Before referring to the grounds upon which the
learned trial Judge held that the plaintiff and
the defendant were married according to the
Custom prevailing in their community, I must
note one feature which distinguishes this case
from many contained in our Law Reports in
which there arose the question whether a
marriage had been celebrated according to custom.
The distinction is that the question there arose
in relation to persons claimed to have been
husband and wife by habit and repute, and not
(as in this case) to persons who have never
lived together even as man and concubine. In
the usual cases “where a man and a woman
are proved to have lived together as man and
wife, the law will presume, unless the contrary
be clearly proved, that they were living together
in consequence of a valid marriage, and not in
a state of concubinage,” (Aronegary v Vaigalie
et al. 2 N.LR. 322, Privy Council). In view
of the evidence of cohabitation and repute, it
was held in that case that it was wrong to
place, on the party asserting the marriage, the
burden of proving the appropriate marriage
customs and the fact that the requisite ceremony
was performed. But in the present case, the
parties have neither cohabited for a single day
nor even lived together under the same roof.
There is therefore no presumption in favour of
their marriage, proof of which depends solely
on evidence to the effect that a valid ceremony
of marriage was actually performed.

In deciding what was the custom prevailing in
this particular community, the learned trial Judge
has adopted the opinion of the witness Pandit
Periatambipillai which was:-

“whether it be milk and fruit or rice and curry they
are all mixed up and placed in the same vessel and
both the he and the she who had lived and grown up
in two different homes partake of the meal that is
mixed up, the one and only meal and this is intended
to achieve the oneness of the he and the she. In other
words it is the identity of one getting merged into
the identity of the other. This is also what is described
as the identification of both in the sorrows and happi-
ness of one with the other.”

This, witness appears to have created a very
| favourable impression both as to his learning and
| his credibility, It is fortunately not necessary for
| me to examine the credentials of the witness, which
counsel for the plaintiff in appeal has quite properly
attempted to attack. I am satisfied, on different
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grounds, that the evidence of this witness fell
far short of establishing that a valid marriage
according to custom did take place between the
plaintiff and the d~fendant.

The witness admitted more than once * that
the essential element of a customary marriage in
this particular community is the kalan ceremony
in which rice and seven curries are offered to
the bridegroom; it is interesting to note that this
“rice ceremony’’ was accepted eighty years ago
in the judgement of the Privy Council (2 N,L.R.
322) as being the essential element of a valid
marriage, and that in a case from the District
Court of Batticaloa. The ceremony, according
to the witness is that the bridegroom mixes
some rice with the curries, and first eats three
mouthfuls
feeds three mouthfuls to the bride. The defen-
dant’s father did state that this rice ceremony
was performed between his daughter and the
plaintiff; but the trial Judge quite rightly did not
act upon that statement, for the unusually good
reason that there was not at the time any
witness who could claim to have been present at
the rice ceremony and to have seen it per-
formed. Since the performance of this ceremony
is the essential element of the marriage custom
it is incredible that it was performed in secret,
without opportunity for invited friends and
relatives to witness its performance if sominded.
The defendant’s “expert” witness had often
witnessed this ceremony, and indeed  his
qualification asan expert depended very much
on the fact that he had attended several
marriages at which the rice ceremony Wwas
performed. Moreover, the trial Judge has not

rejected the evidence of at least onec reputable
witness called by the plaintiff that the rice
ceremony ordinarily takes place in the view

of invited guests.

The trial Judge should riot in my opinion have
been content with merely declining to act upen
the evidence of the defendant’s father that rice
ceremony was performed. There were good
grounds for him to find, in all the circumstances
that no rice-feeding ceremony teok place.

The plaintiff’s evidence at the trial was given
on 25th October 1960, and on 17th January 1961.
In regard to the kalan ceremony alleged to
have taken place on 2lst
plaintiff was cross-examined solely on the basis
that he and the defendant had jointly

himself; he then with his hands |

January 1959 the |

to him suggesting that the rice ceremony had
been performed. His evidence was concluded on
17th January 1961.

On 18th January 1961, during the cross-exami-
nation of a witness called by the plaintiff to
speak to marriage customs, it was suggested more
than once to this witness that rice is not essen-
tial for the kalan ceremony and that “something
like milk or something pure” could be used in-

| stead. The same suggestions were repeated to

the witness during the afternoon session. But a
while later, defence counsel for the first time
suggested in his questions that the rice ceremony
had actually been performed between the plain-
tiff and the defendant in an inner room in the
house.

It seems to me that the plaintiff was entitled
to the benefit of the fact that, until the afternoon
of 18th January 1961, it had not been the defence
position that the rice ceremony had been per-
formed. The inference which strongly arises is

| that the rice ceremony did not in fact take place.

The plaintiff was subsequently recalled by the
Judge and in answer to him denied that the rice
ceremony had taken place. Thereafter, the
defendant’s father asserted that it had. The trial
Judge did not think it necessary to consider who
spoke the truth, and who the lie, on this point.
If the circumstances to which I have just referred
had been taken into account, together with the
unusual feature that there was not available to
the defence a single witness, not even the defen-
dant herself or her father, who could testify at
first hand to the performance of the rice ceremony
| it would have been a perfectly justifiable con-
clusion that the evidence of the defendant’s
father on this point was deliberately false, and
conversely that the plaintifi's evidence was true,

|
By way of parenthesis I must here refer to defence

| counsel’s explanation to the Judge “‘that by some
| over-sight perhaps he did not put it to the plain-
tfe s that there was a kalan ceremony........
meaning participation in rice and curry.........
inside a room”. One point has been established
beyond doubt by the evidence in this case, namely
that the rice ceremony alone would constitute a
valid matriage between these parties. That being
' so, the plaintiff can rightly ask this court to
presume that the fact of its performance should
have been the vital and decisive question, for
determination at the trial of this action. The

partaken of milk and fruit. No question was put failure of the defence to raise this question,
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except belatedly, must enure to the plaintiff’s | was

advantage despite the explanation from the Bar
which quite properly was expressed in uncerfain
terms.

It is convenient at this stage to consider a
matter to which I have already referred, namely
the omission of the trial Judge to consider the
question of the intention which the plaintiff
entertained when he came to defendant’s house
on 2Ist January 1959, that is to say “did
he come there as prospective fiancee or else
as bridegroom”? According to his evidence, he
did not imagine that he could contract a valid
marriage except by participation in the rice
ceremony, and for the reasons I have stated he
certainly did not participate in such a ceremony.
As to the alleged symbolic and alternative par-
ticipation in milk and fruit, he was not even
asked in cross-examination whether he was aware
before he came to the defendant’s house on
21st January 1959, that the arrangements fixed
for that day contemplated any ceremony in which
he would drink from some vessel and thereafter
hand the vessel to the defendant. Nor was he
questioned with a view to showing that he had
been informed that his marriage would be sole-
mnized, not by the known rice ceremony, but
instead by some alternative ceremony, the
validity of which could if necessary be established
by “expert” evidence in a court. There is no
evidence that he was instructed in any way as
to his part in such an alternative ceremony,
which would have been novel to him. The fact
that the rice ceremony was not performed on
21st January 1959, and the lack of evidence
indicative of a prior arrangement to perform an
alternative ceremony of marriage, render reaso-
nable and credible the plaintiff’s evidence that
he did not intend to be married that day.

It is common ground that the “financial”
transactions fixed for the 21st was only the ex-
ecution of a deed for the promised land and
paddy fields; these were valued in the deed at
Rs. 9,000/-. Hence the parties did not contem-
plate that the cash dowry of Rs. 10,000/- would
be given on that day, nor that any agreement
would then be executed binding the defendant’s
parents to fulfil their promise to erect a valuable
house on the land and to assist the plaintiff in
the purchase of a car. Indeed the defendant’s
father admitted that *there was no talk as to
when the money (the cash dowry) should be paid.”

The defence version meant that, although the
marriage was fixed for January 21st, the plaintiff

content to rely on the bare word of the
defendant’s parents in regard to a very subs-

| tantial part of the promised dowry, and did not

|

' stating that on Sth January,

| He then

seck even an oral assurance as to the time when
the promise would be performed. There is literally
nothing in the evidence to indicate that the
plaintiff was thus ready to marry in haste without
troubling to eliminate possible causes for sub-
sequent repentance. Indeed, T shall immediately
refer 1o evidence which eliminates the possibility
that the ordinary motive for a hasty marriage was
present in the mind of either of these two par-
ties.

This alleged marriage was in fact not con-
summated. At one stage, the defendant’s father
appeared to give the court the impression that by
some prior arrangement “the martiage was to
be consummated only after the tying of the tali
is gone through” at some later time. But he later
admitted that there had been no discussion of
the question of the consummation of the
marriage. Since there had been no discussion of
this delicate but important detail, one cannot
understand why both parties appeared to have
readily assumed (this is obvious from the evidence
that they were not to live as husband and wife
after the ceremony which took place on January
21st.

I need refer only to one other matter which is
relevant to the question whether the plaintiff inten-
ded to be married on 21st January. The defendant’s
expert witness stated that “depending on the
means of the parties concerned”, the koorai and
fali ceremonies take place on the day of the
marriage. There was in this case no taji ceremony,
This omission was explained by the defendant’s
father’s evidence that both sides had earlier
agreed to have this ceremony performed “after
the wedding”, but without fixing even an appro-
priate date. At one stage of his cross-examination,
the witness resiled from this position by stating
there had been no discussion as to the fali
ceremony, A while later he reverted to the ex-
planation of a postponement of that ceremony,
the question was
discussed and “the plaintiff’s party were finding
it difficult to have the rali made, and I suggested
that I could get that tali made.” This explanation
was later expanded by the witness, when he
stated that the plaintifi®s family were at the time
unable to afford the expense of buying a ali,
proceeded to give evidence, as to the
means of the plaintiff and his parents, in an
effort to support the allegation of their inas
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bility to pay for a tali. But he did admit that
. the plaintiff’s parents were possessed of several
properties, and he had earlier made the admission
that “both his parents and we are fairly well to
do'.l!

The trial Judge refers in the judgement to the
explanation that the fa/i cermony was not per-
formed because the plaintiff’s family did not have
at the time the Rs. 600/- or 700 necessary to
procure a ftali. But he did not consider the cre-
dibility of that explanation, and expressed no
view as to its truth. Nor did he examine the
truth of the assertion that the question of the
tali ceremony had been discussed and settled
on 9th January. Had he examined that asser-
tion in the light of the relevant evidence to
which I have now referred, he would not have
found any reasonable grounds upon which to
accept it as- true. I am myself convinced in
the circumstances of this case that; if the in-
tention of the parties had been that the ceremony
of a customary marriage should take place on
21st January, that fa/i ceremony would also
have been fixed for that day.

1 have referred in detail to the matters relevant
to the point whether the plaintiff came to
the defendant’s house on 2lst January with
the intention of marrying her. There must be
added to these the item that the truth of the
defendant’s father on this point is cast in
doubt by the falsity of his version that the
rice ceremony was in fact performed. There is
also the consideration that the defendant her-
self did not enter the witness box to speak to
her own state of mind. The only reasonable
conclusion which the trial Judge could have
reached on this point, if he had considered these
matters, is that the plaintiff did not leave his
home with any intention of contracting a
marriage.

1966—H. N. G. Fernando, S.P.J.—Kundiah vs. Pooraneswary

I shall now consider the crucial question
decided by the trial judge, namely that a cere- |
mony did take place on 2lst January which |
constituted a valid customary marriage. He |
referred to the evidence that the “bridegroom™
was brought to the “bride’s’”” house by the latter’s
elder brother; the house of the defendant was |
decorated for the occasion and a canopy of
white cloth had been erected; on the arrival of |
the plaintiff the defendant’s father broke a
coconut and the “‘evil eye ceremony™ was per-
formed; the plaintiff and the defendant garlanded ]

each other and sat together on a scttee; they '

exchanged rings ; a porcelain vessel containing
milk and fruit was delivered to the defendant
who offered it to the plaintiff; the plaintiff took
three sips from the vessel and returned it to the
defendant who in turn took three sips; there-
after a dowry deed was read over by a Notary
and signed by the parties including the plaintiff.

It is the partaking in the manner stated above
of fruit and milk which the Judge has held to
have had “an inner meaning” and to have cons-
tituted the marriage ceremony.

The evidence of the defendant’s chief witness
Pandit Periyathambipillai makes it quite clear
that the Kalan ceremony which had customarily
been observed in this community is the rice cere-
mony performed in the manner 1 have explained.
But he stated his opinion that according to the
sastras it is sufficient if fruit and milk is used
instead of rice. The answers of the witness in
subsequent cross examination appear to indicate
that his opinion is not supported by the writing
he had in mind. But even if valid this was
opinion evidence based on the witness’s inter-
pretation of ancient writings. He was questioned
further as to the instances in which to his know-
ledge milk and fruit had actually been used in
the kalan ceremony instead of rice. His answers
revealed that during the course of twenty five
or thirty years he had noticed the use of milk
and fruit only on two occasions although he
had been present at over a hundred marriages.

One of the two occasions was a case where
on the day of the marriage the bridegroom’s
party threatened to take away the bridegroom
(and thus not to proceed with the arranged
marriage). At this stage, according to the
witness, he himself suggested a immediate second
marriage between the two families. i.e. ‘“an exchange
marriage” between the bridegroom’s sister and
bride’s brother. This emergency proposal made
after midnight was proceeded with and the bride-
groom’s sister was hurriedly brought from her
house, knowing then for the first- time that she
was to be married. In this emergency the witness
himself apparently suggested that milk and fruit
instead of rice should be served for both the
marriages.

The second instance according to the witness
where fruit and milk-took the place of rice was
in 1940 but he attempted no explanation as to
why a traditional rice ceremeny was not per-
formed,
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The effect of the evidence of this witness surely
is that custom is followed among this community
in Batticaloa requires the performance of the
rice ceremony, and that in nearly every case to
which he can speak that ceremony was in fact
performed, but that on two occasions, one of
which had been of his own devising, milk and
fruit took the place of rice. Thus the use of
milk and fruit even according to the witness
was an exception to the traditional custom and
in one at least of the two instances was resor-
ted to in quite extraordinary circumstances at
the witness’s own suggestion. Two deviations
from traditional custom are in my opinion |
quite insufficient to support the witness’s position |
that in modern times young people are accus- |
tomed to follow the deviation rather than the ‘
tradition. In the first of the two instances, the
deviation was not made in consequence of the '
modern views held by young people, nor in the |
present case is there any clue that either the|
plaintiff or the defendant abhorred the use of |
rice or that milk and fruit are modern in com- |
parision with rice. In fact, the defendant’s
father could not even attempt to explain why in |
this instance, fruit and milk were used as a subs- |
titute fqr rice. The witness’s frequent admissions

has recognised any new custom. |

The dowry deed P6 contains a recital that |
it is a conveyance to the plaintiff “as bride-groom” |
and the defendant “as bride”’, The acknowledge-
ment which they signed in acceptance of the gift |
also refers to them as bridegroom and bride. |
This undoubtedly constitutes an admission by
the plaintiff that the marriage took place on |
21st January. - |

The plaintiff explained at the trial that when |
the dowry deed was read, he understood it to |
refer to a future marriage. He had given the
same explanation in the letter P5 written by
his proctor to the defendant on 26th May 1959. ‘

No reply to this letter was sent to the plaintiff

and no satisfactory reason was given for the
failure to reply. There was not even evidence |
that the plaintiff was ever requested to complete |
the alleged outstanding arrangements for the
civil marriage before the Registrar and for the
tali ceremony. The plaintiff’s denial in May 1959 [
was not contradicted in writing or by conduct |
until after the institution of this action in
March 1960. [

The considerations just mentioned, and the
matters with which I have dealt in discussing
whether the plaintiff intended to contract a valid
marriage, are more than sufficient to rebut the
effect or the apparent admisssion in the deed P6,

During the argument of the appeal my brother
suggested that the proceedings (if I may so term
them) of 21st January 1959 had the appearance
cf a marriage ceremony, and that many of the
events of that day would not have taken place on
the occasion of an engagement. It was in view of
this feature, unfavourable to his case, that the
plaintiff’s counsel proposed to produce certain
love-letters alleged to have been written by the
defendant to a Sinhalese by the name of Mendis;
counsel proposed a line of cross-examination
designed to show that “there was an alleged plan
on the part of the defendant’s father to stage a
milk-feeding ceremony and to incorporate in the
dowry deed a term to the effect that the marriage
had already taken place”, This course the Judge
did not permit, because in his view “what is really
before the court is the nature of the ceremonics
and other things that took place on that day”.
This statement confirms my clear impression

intended to contract a marriage. In the result, he
presumed that intention because the ceremonies
in his opinion constituted a valid marria ge, but he
teok little or no account of the several matters
which (as I have tried to show) negatived that

 intention. The inconsistency, that the plaintiff,

who had no intention to contract a marriage,
is explained in the submission of plaintiff’s
ccunsel that the defendant’s father planned to
stags a marriage ceremony, It is fortunate that
this already long judgement need not include
any pronouncement on the validity of that
explanation,

I am compelled for the reasons stated to
reverse the finding of fact of the trial judge and
to hold that the plaintiff is not married to the

defendant :-

(a) on the ground that the plaintiff did not
intend to contract a marriage to the defen-
dant on 21st January 1959; and /or

(b) onthe ground that a valid marriage
between the plaintiff and the defendant did
not take place on that day, or at any other
time, j '
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is not married to the defendant. The decree will
order payment to the plaintiff of taxed costs in
both cour(s.

The legal issues in this appeal are interesting
and important, and the factual issues have been
at the least interesting. On both aspects, counsel
for both parties have been of great assistance to
the Court.

|

G.P.A. SiLva, J,
I agree,

The decree appealed from is set aside and

decree will be entered declaring that the plaintiff [ Appeal allowed,

Present: H. N. G. Fernando, A.C.J.

OSCAR JOACHIM FERNANDO vs. THERESE DYLANTHIE FERNANDO (Minor)
AND OTHERS*

H.C. Application No,450/63

Argued on: 30th August, 1965.
Decided on: 3rd September, 1965.

for, by parents (petitioners) — Parents acceding to request of
) to bring up child — Petitioners and respondents sharing
bstantial contribution by petitioners to child’s welfare—Absence
s — To what extent is a child’s consent relevant in

Custody of minor — Application
wife’s childless sister (3rd respondent
cares and joys of child's upbringing—Su
of any indication 1o renounce parental right
such an application.

Child D was the daughter of the petitioner and his wife. At the request of the wife’s childless sister the child
hout any agreement express or implied to renounce

was given to the latter to be brought up in her home, but wit )
dents *° together shared the cares and joys of child’s up-

parental rights. For many years, the petitioners and the respon 2
bringing.” The child was sent or taken on visits to her parents and brothers and sisters and the parents contribute to

the welfare of the child in a substantial manner.
In an application by the parents for a writ of habeas corpus in respect of the child against the respondents—

Held: (1) That in the circumstances, it could not be said that the parents ever intended to renounce their parental
rights to the child. The father was therefore entitled to its custody.

(2) That the child, not having attained the age of discretion was not entitled in law to consent to her
continuance in the custody of others, Her wishes were only relevant to the consideration whether

the placing in parental custody would be detrimental to health and morals.

J. W. Subasinghe, for the petitioner.
H. W. Jayawardene, 0.C., with L. W. Athulathmudali, for the respondents.

H. N. G. Fernando, A.C.J. ( worked admirably for many years, during which
! the child’s parents and the respondent husband
Counsel for the petitioner has justifiably main- [ and wife together shared the cares and joys of
tained that the petitioner and his wife did mot | the child’s upbringing. The 3rd respondent has
effectively renounce their rights of parent-lord | admitted that, as frequently as possible every
-in respect of their child Dylanthie, in favour of | year, the child was sent or taken on visits to her
the 2nd and 3rd respondents. 1t is perfectly clear | parents and her sister and brothers and that the
an the evidence that the petitioner’s wife, out of | parents had throughout contributed towarls
affection and sympathy for her childless sistcr, [ the welfare of the child in a substantial manncr.
acceded to a request that the sister be permitted | It would be quite unrealistic to think that th«
to bring up the child in her home, but without | parents ever ceased to regard themselves as sucl,
any agreement or implication, for a renunciation from the point of view whether of duty or of
of parental rights. This undefined arrangement | affection.

* For Sinhala translation, see Sinhala section, Yoi. 12 paii 5, p. 43
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In these circumstances, I am unable to say | where she is, and I believe her statement that she
that the petitioner’s application lacks goed faith. | has told her parents that she would not consent
While the petitioner’s wife had previously been ' to stay with them even if they threatened to kill
willing, on compassionate grounds. to share her. While these undoubtedly are her wishes 1
with her sister the affection of her child, it is not | do not think that severe meatal suffering or
Surprising that under an impression (whether | injury to health will ensue if she has now to live

deserves her compassion, she should now desire | like to form a final opinion at this stage.)
to deny to the sister the favour and sympathy
extended in the past. The petitioner and his wife 1, child hos stated that her parents and her
also apparently believe that the child’s mind is | o0 were unkind to her, and even ignored her
being poisoned against them, and for this reason | while she was with them last year. But it maj;
as well are anxious to resume their full rights and |

Einly ! i : well be that this unpleasantness was the conse-
;;S&)(;Esilgégt;eifofhgucsltﬁ%y H fhels wn ietorestl | quence of her refusing her consent to live with

| her family, and 1 trust the family will strive to

; ; e : y ' i § f di :
Prima facie, the petitioner in this case has the | V0ld such causes of discontent

right to the custody of his child. The child is under ! !
8 and has not attained the age accepted by | I acc;ordmgly order that the child be 1‘f.?tlll‘lled
this Court as the age of discretion, She is therefore forthwith to the custody of her parents. I trust
not entitled in law to consent to her continuance | that this will be done next week without the need
in the custody of others. (Gooneratne vs. Clayton for any further intervention by the Court. But
31 N.L.R. 132; The Queen vs. Jayakodi 9 S.C.C. | the petitioner will produce the child before me
148). Her wishes are therefore relevant only to a | in chambers on Monday, 8th November 1965.
consideration of the question whether it will be | In the meantime I trust that no change will be
detrimental to her life, health and morals to place | made n regard to the schooling of the child at
her now in parental custody. For this purpose 1 | St.  Bridget’s Convent, Colombo. 1 make no
have talked to the child, and T find her to be | order as to the costs of the proceedings.

quite normal, intelligent and of a cheerful dis-
position. She very definitely wishes to remain | Application allowed.

ELECTION PETITION, No. 41 OF 1965

Présenr . Tambiah, J.

TISSAMAHARAMAYA—ELECTORAL DISTRICT No, 75

LAKSHMAN RAJAPAKSE ys. S. KATHIRAGAMANATHAN

Argued on : August 31 1965
Decided on : October, 4 1965

Election Petition—Prayer for scrutiny  and recount of votes and Sfor declaration that candidate
who lost be declared duly elected—Successful candidate not made a respondent—Is the petition badly
constituted—Ceylon (Parliamantary Elections) Order-in-Council, 1946, Third Schedule, rules 8, 9 and 29
(1.

The petitioner in an election petition, to which only the Returning officer had been made respondent prayed:

(@) - for scrutiny in terms of Section 80(b) of the Ceylon (Parliamentary Elections) Order-in-Council 1946,
(b) for a recount.

(e) for a declaration that if cither of these showed that the petitioner had polled a majority of the lawful
votes, that he be duly elected,

The successful candidate at the election was not made a party to the petition.
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Held: (1) That as the successful candidate who is

the party vitally interested had not been made a respondent,

the petition was badly constituted and should be dismissed.

€))

That an amendment to an election petition is permitted only within the time allowed by law and

the Court has no power to add a respondent after this time has lapsed.

(3) That the form of the petition and the rules set out in the Third Schedule to the Ceylon (Parliamentary

Elections) Order-in-Council, 1946, also clearly

contemplate that a successful candidate should he

made a respondent when a declaration is sought that the candidate who lost should be declared

duly elected.

Per Tambiah, J, — ““A clear distinction should be drawn between a recount and a scrutiny. A recount is only ordered

when there has been no count according to law and a scrutiny is granted when as a result of bribery, impersonation, etc.,

a winning candidate has not obtained the votes he is entitled to in law.”

P. Nagendran with S. S. Kandiah, for the petitioner.

M. Kanagasundaram, Crown Counsel, for the respondent.

TAMBIAH, J

In this case the petitioner has made only the |

Returning Officer a respondent. He has failed
to make Mr. C. F. W. Edirisuriya, the candidate

returned at the election, a party to this acticn. |

When this matter was mentioned in chanbers, I
brought to the notice of counsel for the
petitioner and the Crown Counsel who
represented the Returning Officer that I would

like to consider whether the election petition is

properly constituted.

On the 31st of August this matter was argued
and the learned Crown Counsel submitted that
the successful candidate is a necessary party in
this case and since the petitioner has not made
him a party the petition should be dismissed.

After a careful consideration of the arguments
presented by counsel T am ofthe view that the
successful candidate is, a necessary party to
this action. Particularly in view of the grounds
on which this election petition is based and
the remedies sought for in the prayer of this
petition the successful candidate should have been
made a party to the action.

The petitioner alleges that he was not given
permission for a recount despite his request to do
so, and that the purported recount granted to him
was in fact, in law no recount at all as the manner
of the recount could not and did not exclude
errors in counting nor did it aid the discovery of
errors in sorting. He prays that a scrutiny be

ranted in terms of section 80 (b) of the Ceylon
Parliamentary Elections) Order in Council, 1946
and also for a recount. He seeks a declaration that
in the event of the scrutiny or recount showing
that the petitioner had polled a majority of the
aw ful votes that the petitioner be duly clected.

A clear distinction should be drawn between a
recount and a scrutiny. A recount is only ordered
when there has been no count according to law and
a scrutiny is granted when as a result of bribery,
impersonation, etc., a winning candidate has not
obtained the votes he is entitled to inlaw. In a
scrutiny the inquiry into each vote is dealt with
separately (vide The Law of Election and Election
Petitions by Hugh Fraser (3rd Edition) page 225).
On a scrutiny the Court is empowered to strike out
the votes which were procured by bribery, cheating,
undue influence, impersonation and on other
grounds set out in section 85 of the Parliamentary
Elections Order in Council. When a scrutiny is
asked for by a petitioner the successful candidate
is also entitled to show that votes cast in favour
| of the petitioner should be struck off for similar
| reasons.

In an election petition where scrutiny is asked
for, if the petitioner leads evidence to establish a
case for scrutiny, the Returning Officer would
naturally be not interested in defending the case.
The only person who could disprove the
allegations and who is interested in the matter
would be the successful candidate, It is clear
| therefore that the person who is vitally interested
in the scrutiny demanded is the successful
candidate. Itis a fundamental and elementary
proposition of law that no order can be made
against a person before he is heard. The
audi alteram partem rule is ingrained in every
legal system of the civilized world.

Counsel for the petitioner however contended
that although scrutiny and recount were remedies
| asked for in the petition, he would confine his
"case only to a recount. Since the time allowed
for amending the petition has elapsed, counsel
for the  petitioner cannot now amend the
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petition” by striking out the prayer for scrutiny.
Even if the remedy sought for is only a recount
still the successful candidate should have been
made a party fo this action. The successful can-
didate may be able to show that there had been a
proper count and therefore no case has been made
for a recount. He could do this by cross-exami-
nation of the witnesses who would be called by the
petitioner as well as by calling evidence on his own
behalf. This opportunity has been denied to the
successful candidate,

The third schedule to the Ceylon (Parliamentary
Elections) Order in Council, 1946 contains a form
of the petition. It has no caption but from the
several provisions found in the schedule it is clear
that the successful candidate is a necessary party
in an action of this nature. The prayer in the
model petition that is set out in schedule 3 of the
Order in Council states as follows: “Wherefore
your petitioners pray that it might be determined
that the said A. B. was not duly elected or
returned, and that the election was void (or
that the said E. F. was duly elected and ought to
have been returned, or as the case may be).”” The
terms of the prayer in the model petition have
been followed in this action.

In the prayer the petitioner seeks for a declara-
tion that he should be duly elected. In these cir-
cumstances it would be a denial of justice if the
successful candidate is not given a chance to
defend the action.

Rule 8 of the third schedule referred to above
enacts:

“The respondent in a petition complaining of
an undue return and claiming the seat for some
person may lead ecvidence to prove that the
election of such person was undue. In such
case the respondent shall, six days before
the day appointed for trial, deliver to the Regis-
trar, and also at the address, if any, given by
the petitioner, a list of the objections to the
election upon which he intends to rely, and the
Registrar shall allow inspection of office copies
of such lists fo all parties concerned and no

evidence shall be given by a respondent of any
objection to the election not specified in the
list, except by leave of the judge, upon such
terms as to amendments of _the list, postpone-
ment of the inquiry, and payment of costs, as
may be ordered.”

From this it is clear that the successful candi-
date is a respondent within the meaning of Rule 8.

Rule 10 of the third schedule referred to, refers
to the appointment of an agent by a winning
candidate, although no election petition has been
filed against him. The caption to this rule is as
follows: “Appointment of agent by respondent”,
This rule again clearly contemplates the making
of a successful candidate a respondent.

Rule 29 (1) enacts that if before the trial of an
election petition a respondent dies or resigns, or
gives notice in writing to the court that he does
not intend to oppose the petition, the petition shall
not be abated but shall continue whether or not
any person applies to be admitted as respondent as
hereinafter provided. All these rules clearly con-
template that the successful candidate should be
made a respondent to an election petition if a
declaration is sought that the candidate who has
lost should be declared duly elected.

In India it has been held that all candidates
nominated at an election must be made respon-
dents if the petitioner in addition to calling in
question the election of the returned candidate,
also claims to be duly elected (vide Sharanpore case
1 Hammond’s Indian Election Petitions at 199,
cited in Elections and Election Petitions by
Nanak Chand, Nanchand and Kali Sharan, p. 501)
If this is not done the petitioner cannot be
declared to be elected even though the election
of the respondent has been over-ruled.

The petitioner could have amended his petition
during the time allowed to him by law. This
time has elapsed now. The court has no power
to add the candidate as a party to the petition.
Therefore I hold that the election petition is
badly constituted since the successful candidate
has not been made a respondent. The action is
therefore dismissed with costs.

Dismissed,
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Present: Sri Skanda Rajah, J.

PEIRIS vs.

THOMAS

5.C. 1119/65—M.C. Gampaha Case No. 96661/B.

Argued and decided on:

14th February, 1966.

Penal Code, section 409—Co-owner demolishing fence erected by another co-owner on co-owned

property—Is he guilty of the offence of mischief ?

Held : That a co-owner who demolishes a fence erected by another co-owner on co-owned property cannot

be convicted of the offence of mischief.
Cases referred to : Porolis v. Romanis, 2 C.A.C. 162

Ibrahim Lebbe v. Saibo, 2 C.W.R. 99

N. E. Weerasooria (Jar.) with C. V. R. Isaac

F. W. Obeysekera, for the respondent.

SRl SKANDA RaAjAH, J.

Tn the course of his judgement the Magistrate
came to the finding: * The Certificate of Encum-
brance, D 2, shows that the claim made by the
accused that he was a co-owner of undivided
shares of Ambagahawatte is not altogether un-
founded by reason of the examination and execu-
tion of these deeds. The question weuld therefore
arise whether if he was a co-owner he had the
right to demolish a fence erected by another as
and how he chose.”

The Certificate of Encumbrance shows the two
deeds on which C.H. Obeysekera took a mortgage
of an undivided 1/16 share of Ambagahawatte
and another mortgage of an undivided 1/32 share
of Ambagahawatte. There is another deed showing
that J. S. Obeysckera with O. H. Obeysekera as
the trustees and J. P. Obeysekera, D. W. Peiris, |
H. D. Peiris (nee Obeysekera) and P. E. Peiris dealt |
with certain undivided shares of Ambagahawatte.
So that the finding of the Magistrate is not
without subsfance,

The complainant, watcher of this property, had
seen the deeds on which his master or masters
claim shares. Those deeds have not been produced.
There is no indication that this land was amicably
divided among co-owners at any stage. Under

, for the accused-appellant.

those circumstances this conviction should not be
allowed to stand.

If authority is necessary the following case is
relevant: Porolis vs. Romanis 2 C.A.C 162,
where it was held that, ‘“ A person can be said
to be guilty of mischief only if he acts spitefully,
maliciously or wantonly. He should either intend
to cause wrongful loss or know that wrongful loss
is likely to be caused to some person.

A co-owner who removes a fence in the assertion’
of a real or fancied right to an enclosed portion
of what is claimed as common property does not
thereby commit mischief. *

This case was followed in Ibrahim Lebbe vs.
Saibo 2 C. W. R, 99 where the accused who
claimed to be co-owners of a certain land with
the complainant with a view to protesting against
the assertion by the complainant of a right to a
defined portion, removed a fence put up by the
complainant. It was held that where the act was
done in the assertion of a right to prescription,
the offence of mischief was not committed.

For these reasons Iwould set aside the con-
viction and sentence and acquit the accused.

Accused acquitted.

q’éi'sinhala translation, see Sin

hala section, Vol. 12, part 5, p.'Eé'
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Present: Sri Skanda Rajah, J. and Alles, J.
EKANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE DAYAWATHIE
WIJESINGHE ARATCHILAGE GUNARATNE
S.C. 561/1964 (F)—D.C. Kurunegala 1656/D

Argued on: Ist September, 1965
Decided on: 9th February, 1966

Marriage Registration Ordinance (cap 112), sections 42 and 46—Marriage of minor registered
without consent of parent or guardian—Is the marriage void?

Held: That when the marriage of a minor is registered under the Marriage Registration Ordinance, want of
consent of parent or guardian does not make the marriage null and void,

Case referred to:  Selvaratnam v. Anandavelu, (1941) 42 N.L.R, 487,
W. D. Gunasekera with W. S. Weerasooriya, for the plaintiff-appellant.

T. B. Dissanayake, for the defendant-respondent.

SRI SKANDA RAJsH, J.

The marriage between the Plaintiff-Appellant,

who was 18 years and 2 months old, and the
defendant-respondent was registered on 23.8. 1963.

This action was filed praying for a declaration
that the marriage was null and void on the
ground that it was contracted without the consent
of her father, the next-friend.

The relevant provision in {he Marriage Regist-

ration Ordinance, Cap. 112, section 42, which
enacts:-

“After any marriage shall have been registered |
under this Ordinance it shall not be necessary in ‘
support of such marriage to give proof ... e
of the consent to any marriage having been |
given by any person whose consent thereto was
required by any law - nor shail any
evidence be given 1o prove the contrary in any suit |
or legal proceedings touching the va idity of such
marriage.” !

The portion underlined above speaks for itself.
If evidence regarding want of consent is shut out
by Statute, then it necessarily follows that the
marriage cannot be declared invalid on that score,

Want of the requisite consent is not one of the
circumstances mentioned in section 46 which sets
out the circumstances in which a marriage will
be null and void.

In Selvaratnam et al. v. Anandavelu (1941),
42 N.L.R. 487, at 493, de Kretser, J. pointed out,
“where the provisions of the Ordinance have been

‘ flagrantly flouted, section 42 {new section 46)

declared such marriage null and void. Want of
consent was not so drastically treated.” I would
respectfully adopt this dictum.

For these reasons, I would dismiss the appeal

| without costs.

ALLES, J.
I agree.

Appeal dismissed,
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Pre’.s'em: Sansoni, C.J. and G. P. A, Silva, J.

M. 8. KARIAPPER vs. THE CLERK AND THE ASSISTANT CLERK OF
THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

In the matter of an application for a Mandate in the nature of a WRIT OF MANDAMUS
under the provisions of Section 42 of the Courts Ordinance, Chapter VI, Volume I of the
Legislative Enactments of Ceylon (1956 Revised Edition)

(S. C, Application No. 8/1966)

Argued on:  16th, 18th, 21st and 30th March, 1966.
Decided on: 30th April, 1966.

Mandamus — Does ot lie against servant or agent of the Crown.

Appropriation Act — Deoes not create rights or impose legal duties — Payment of allowances to
Members of Parliament — No legal duty imposed on Clerk to the House.

Ceylon Constitution — Doctrine of “ultra vires — Effect of Speaker’s Certificate — “‘Peace
Order and Good Government” — Usurpation of Judicial Power — Doctrine of amendment by subsequent
inconsistent enactiment.

Civic Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act No. 14 of 1965, Sections 5, 7, 10 — Ceylon (Constitution)
Order-in-Council 1946, Sections 3, 13, 24, 28(1), 29, 55 (I)—Appropriation Act No. T of 1965, Section 2—
Criminal Law (Special Provisions) Act No. 1 of 1962 — Criminal Law Act No. 31 of 1962—Bribery Act
No. 11 of 1954 — Bribery (Amendments) Act No. 40 of 1958.

Interpretation of Statutes—Expressio unius exclusio alterius

The Petitioner was elected to the House of Representatives from the Kalmunai Electoral District at the General
Election held in March 1965. Four years previously, in 1960, a Commission of Inquiry appointed by the Governor-General
under the Commissions of Inquiry Act to investigate and report upon the prevalence of bribery among members of the Legis-
lature had found that an allegation of bribery made against the Petitioner was proved. On 16th November 1965, the
Imposition of Civic Disabilities (Spzcial Provision) Act—hereinafter referred to as the impugned Act—received the Royal
Assent. The object of this Act was to impose civic disabilities on the persons against whom allegations of bribery had been
heldto have been proved by the Commission of Inquiry. In terms of its provisions, the Petitioner was deemed to have
vacated his seat from the date on which the impugned Act came into operation, and he was further disqualified from being
elected or appointed to the Legislature for a period of seven years. The Act contained a provision that wherever necessary,
it was to be deemed as having amended the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946, There was also endorsed on
the Bill when it was presented for the Royal Assent, the Certificate of the Speaker that two-thirds of the members of
the House of Representatives had voted in favour of it.

The Petitioner contended that inasmuch as the Act was ultra vires the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council, he
continued to be a Member of Parliament. He therefore applied for a Writ of Mandamus against the Clerk to the House
directing him to recognise him as the Member for Kalmunai, and pay him his remuneration and allowances as such member
which had not been paid since the end of October 1965,

It was argued on behalf of the Petitioner that:—

1. Though the Act purported to deprive the electors of the Kalmunai Electoral District of the services of the Member
of Parliament whom they had chosen and impose on him penalties, such as vacation of the seat and the dis-
qualification from sitting and voting, no Act of Parliament, even by a constitutional amendment, could do this;

2. The Act was not a law contemplated by section 29(4) of the Ceylon Constitution because it was in effect a judg-
ment or an enactment interfering with judicial power and could not be saved even by the Speaker’s Certificate;

3. Before this Bill was placed before the House, the Constitution should have been amended by a separate Act
which empowered the Legislature to exercise judicial power and to pass Bills of Attainder;

4. The Bill should have been expressly stated to be a Bill for the amendment or repeal of the Constitution and
not one for the imposition of civic disabilities,



98 1966—Sansoni, C.J.—Kariapper vs. The Clerk and the Assistant Vol. LXX
Clerk of the House of Representatives

Held: (@) That a provision of any Act bearing the Speaker’s Certificate which is inconsistent with a term of the
Constilution operates as a repeal by implication,

() That an amendment of the Constitution made in accordance with section 29(4) becomes a part of the
Constitution and is entitled to all the obedience due to any other part of the Constitution,

{¢) That it is not open to the Supreme Court to say that a law passed by two-thirds of the members of
the House of Representatives does not conduce to peace, order and good government, The Court
is not at liberty to declare an Act void because it is said to offend a gainst the spirit of the Constitution
though that spirit is not expressed in words.

(d) That the ex post facto nature of the legislation did not affect its validity.

(e) That accordingly, the Imposition of Civic Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act No. 14 of 1965 is
intra yvires the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council 1946,

Held further: (f) That the cffect of the Appropriation Act was not to give a third party a right to the money
authorised by it to be expended for a particular purpose, Accordingly, there is no legal duty
on the Clerk to the House to pay the Petitioner his remuneration and allowances.

(g) That the Clerk to the House, when he pays Members of Parliament their remuneration and
allowances, acts as a servant or agent of the Crown, and Mandamus does not lie against a servant
or agent of the Crown to compel him to perform a duty which he owes to the Crown. y

Per G, P LA, Siuva, J—(A4) “I am therefore of the view that the ex post Jacte nature of the legislation does not
affect its validity. The fact that this legislation touches a matter which belongs to the field of conduct of members
over which the Houze has full control would tend to reduce the offensive natute. if any, of such legislation,”

(#) “I do not think that when the proviso to Section 29 (4) proceeded to set out the
manier of presentation of a constitutional amendment it also intended to prescribe a particular form to be present on
the face of it This provision is in fact tantamount to the requirements for a Bill whtch amends or repeals the Cons-
titution, namely, a vote of two-thirds of the whole number of members of the House and a certificate of the Speaker to
that effect. Tf these requirements are satisfied, as they have been in this case, I think, that the Parliament, in terms of
Section 29(4), can amend or repeal any provision of the Constituton subject to any objection which may be raised in
view of Section 29 (2).

Cases referred to: The Queen v. Lords Commissioners of the Treasury (1872) 7 Q.B.D. 387,
Unired States v. Lovert (1945) 328 1.S. 303.
Cajder v. Bufl (1798) 3 U.S. 386.
The Queen v, Livanage & Others, (1962) 64 N.L.R. 313 ; LXII C.L.W. 49
Livenage v. The Queen (1966) LXX C.L.W. 1.
The Bribery Commissioner v. Ranasinghe (1964) 66 N,L.R. 73: LXVI C.L.W. 1; 1965 A.C, 172
Gopalan v. The State of Madras (1930) 63 L.W. 638,
McCawley v. The King (1918) 26 C.L.R. 9,
The Queen v. Richards (1954) 92 C.L.R. 157.
Caoper v. Commissioner of Taxes for Queensland (1904) 4 C.L.R. 1304,
McCawley v. The King (1920) A.C. 691,
Krause v. Commissioner for Inland Revenue (1920) A D, 286.
Thambiayak v. Kulasingham, (1949) 50 N.L.R. 25; XXXVIII C.1..W. 53,
Shyamakanr Lal v. Rambhajam Singh et al., A.LR. 1939 Federal Court 74,
Asawarden v, Tennessee Valley Authority, (1935) 297 U.S. 288,

H. W Jdayawardene, O.C., with M. T. M. Sivardeen, D, Sena Wijewardena and Mark Fernando,
for the Petitioner,

V. Tennakoon, 0.C., Solicitor-General, with V. T. Thamotheran, Deputy Solicitor-General and
H. L. de Silva, Crown Counsel, for the Respondent.

Sanseni, C.J[. ) ' Clerk to the House, ordering them to recognise
| him as the Member of Parliament for Kalmunai,
The petitioner, Mr. Mohamed Samsudeen | and to pay him his remuneration and allowances
Kariapper, was duly elected a member of the | as such Member which have not been paid since
House of Representatives for the Kalmunai | the end of October 1965,
Electoral District at the Gencral FElection held |
in March 1965. He has applied for a writ of | The discontinuance of such payment dates from
Mandamus against the Clerk and the Assistant ! the passing of the Imposition of Civic Disabilities




Vol, LXX

1966—Sansoni, C.j.ufl('an'apper vs. The Clerk and the Assistant
Clerk of the House of Representatives

99

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 14 of 1965, which
received the Royal assent on 16th November,
1965. The legality of this Act (which 1 shall refer
to as the impugned Act) has been challenged
by the petitione~ on the ground that it offends
against the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council,
1946.

It is necessary, in view of this attack on the
Act, to consider how it came to be enacted. On
1ith September 1939, a Commission of Inquiry
consisting of Messrs. W. Thalgodapitiya. T. W.
Roberts and S. J. C. Schokman was appointed
under the Commissions of Inquiry Act, Cap.
393, by the Governor-General to investigate and
report on —

(@) whether during the period commencing on January
1, 1943, and ending 11th September 1959, any
gratification had been offered, promised,
given or paid directly or indirectly to any person
who then was or had been a member of the
Senate, or the House of Representatives, or of
the State Council, in order to influence his
judgment or conduct in respect of any matter
with which he in that capacity was concerned
whether as of right or otherwise;

(b) whether during that period any such gratification
had been solicited or received, directly or
indirectly, by any such person as a reward for
any service rendered by him in that capacity
whether as of right or otherwise.

It issued an interim report by which it found
Messrs. Henry Abeywickrema, D. B. Monnekulame
and R. E. Jayatilleke guilty of having received
gratifications as contemplated by the terms of
reference. By its final report it found Messrs.
C. A. S. Marikkar, M. P. de Zoysa and the
petitioner also guilty. These reports were tabled
in the House of Representatives on December
16, 1960, and were ordered to be printed. They
have been published as Parliamentary Series
No. 1 of the Fifth Parliament.

The Commissioners pointed out in their interim
report that the standard of proof required by
them was proof beyond reasonable doubt. They
also pointed out in that report that cach term of
reference was much wider in scope than Section
14 of the Bribery Act No. 11 of 1954, in that it
““categorically and universally covers any act
done by any Member of Parliament in his capacity
as a Member of Parliament whether he has a
right or not.” They said in their final report:
“The appointment of the Commission was due
to serious allegations made in Parliament and.
the local press of wide-spread corruption by
members of the Government in power, specially

'since the grant of independence to Ceylon. A
Commission with similar terms of reference was
issued to Mr. L. M. D. de Silva (now Right
Honourable L. M. D. de Silva, P.C.) in 194]
|which covered the period up to the end of 1942
The period under the purview of this Commission
| starts from 1943..........cooiiiiinnn, 3

| With regard to their procedure, they stated:
“All investigations were carried out under the
direction of the Commission. We received clues
|either written or oral. Then the Tavestigation
| Officers attached to the Commission were directed
to investigate such clues. Those officers brought
| the results of their investigations to the Crown
Counsel attached to the Commission and any
further evidence, if necessary, was obtained on
| his instructions. The Crown Counsel reported to
the Chairman whether there was a prima facie
| case, and if the Commission agreed, the person
against whom the allegation had been made was
summoned before the Commission, informed
|of the allegations against him and given an
opportunity to make any statement he wished
to make in explanation or in exculpation. There~
(after if the explanation seemed unsatisfactory,
Ithc matter was fixed for inguiry. By adopting
this method the Commission sought to avoid
the risk of being suspected of prejudice or pre-
| judgment.” They also said this: “We decided
| at the outset that all hearings at inquiries should
be in piblic. We did so becanse we wished not
merely that justice should be done but sheuld
| plainly and manifestly be seen to be done. The
| proceedings of the inquiries were open (o the
| public and, we belicved, were fully published in
| the newspapers in all three languages.”

The preamble to the impugned Act recites the
appointment of this Commission, the findings
| that the allegations of bribery had been proved
-against certain persons, and that it has become
| necessary to impose civic disabilities on the said
persons consequent on the findings of the said
| Commission. The long title of the Act recited
‘that it is an Act to impese civic disabilities on
|certain persons against whom allegations of
bribery were held by a Commission of Inquiry
to have been proved, and to make provision for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto,

The six persons whe were found guilty by the
Commission are mentioned in the Schedule to
| the Act and it is to them and them alone that the
| Act applies. The disabilities imposed on them
| arei—
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Disqualification for registration in registers of

to give the provisions of such appropriate
electors — section 2

law the force and effect aforesaid,

Disqualiﬁcation_from voting at a parliamentary (4) In the event of any conflict or inconsistency
or local election — section 3, | between the provisions of this Act and the
provisions of any uappropriate law, the

(3) Disqualification from being a candidate at a provisions of this Act shall be read and
parliamentary or local election — section 4 construed subject to all such modifications
: or additions as may be necessary to resolve
(4) Disqualification from being elected or appointed ‘ such conflict or inconsistency or, in the
as a Senator or a Member of the House of " event of it not being possible so to do, shall
Representatives or for sitting or voling in the prevail over the provisions of such appro-
Senate or in the House of Representatives — priate law, .
section 5. | -
(5) Disqualification from being a Member of any | 1here can be no question that the Act was
local authority — section 6, treated by the Leg;slature_ as coming within
' section 29(4) of the Constitution which deals
(6) If any ﬁf them f‘*‘i}g a Senator OF 4 Membelf 0§ | with Bills for the amendment or repeal of the
:liﬁhori(;;%mo thee%r:;eﬁﬁgj;i‘e?ia?eﬁy aggiorocfo provisions of the Constitution. There was endorsed
November 16, 1965 his seat in that capacity | on the Bill, when it was presented for the Royal
is deemed to have been vacant on that date — | assent, the necessary certificate of the Speaker
section 7. that the number of votes cast in favour of it in
() Disqualification from employment as a public | the House of Representatives amounted to no
servant, or from being a member of any | less than two-thirds of the whole number of the
scheduled institution as defined in the Bribery | Members of the House (including those not
Act — section. 8.  present). A copy of Hansard dated 21st October
(8) If any of them was a public servant or a member | 1965 is produced along with the petition for
of ascheduled institution on the day immediately | Mandamus. It shows that the Second Reading
prior to November 16, 1965, he is deemed to | was passed by 142 votes to 1, and the Third
have vacated his office in that capacity — Reading by 130 votes to none,
section 9,
The first objection taken by the Solicitor-General
Section 10 reads:— to the grantof the writ was based on two grounds —
; (1) that there is no legal duty on the Clerk of the
(10) (1) Where any provisions of this Act are supple- | House to pay the petitioner his remuneration and

mentary to, or inconsistent or in conflict | allowances, and (2) that the Clerk, when he pays
;E’l‘"t‘e a‘)"yopff“"'s.mg‘ of t,f]‘e gﬁyﬁlﬂ?h{fggfd Members of Parliament their remuneration and
itution) Order-in-Council, $ ; E SRS ; 3

provisions of this Act shall be deemed, for | @llowances, acts as a servant or agent of the
all purposes and in all respects, to be as | Crown and Mandamus does not lie against a
valid and effectual as though the said |servant or agent of the Crown to compel him to
{’ﬁ"“"swn“d‘)f“t"s f“ﬂ;;’eg 2o égalfflfl perform a duty which he owes to the Crown.

e amendment of th: rder-in- i : 9 25 A

enacted by Parliament after compliance | AS this objection can be decided apart from any
with the requirement imposed by the |constitutional question that arises, I shall deal

proviso of sub-section (4) of section 29 | with it first, assuming for this purpose that the

of that Order-in-Council. petiticner is still a Member of Parliament,
2) Where any provisions of this Act are supple- ] :
e mcntaryy to, or inconsistent or in conflict The question is whether such a Member can

with, any provisions of any appropriate | ask for a writ of Mandamus from this Court to
law, other than the Order-in-Council | oompel the Clerk of the House to pay him his
refored fo . sibsection (), the said remuneration and allowances. Now these amounts
provisions of this Act shall be deemed, _ : !
for all purposes and in all respects, to be as | would be paid out of money prov:ded_ by the
valid and cffectual as though the said | Appropriation Act No. 7 of 1965, Section 2 of
provisions of this Act were in an Act for lhg' the Act authorises the sums appsaring in the
e P b svpropHEic W eRatied e | i 1o e expended as specified in that
! ; schedule. Under Head VI Vote No. 2 a sum of
(3) The provisions of any appropriate law shall | money has been specified as payable on account
have force and effect subject to the pro- | ¢ seqqminictiation charges — recurrent expen-
o o el s o diture” of the House of Representatives. But
read and construed subject to such modi- : A i
fications or additions as may be necessary | the Act does not cither expressly or impliedly
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impose a legal duty which the Clerk of the House
owes to the petitioner. The matter is made clear
in. The Queen vs. Lords Commissioners of the
Treasury (1872) 7 Q.B.D. 387. The argument of
Jessel, S.G., that the effect of the Appropriation
Act is not to give any third person a right to the
money, was accepted by Blackburn, J. in his
judgment.

The further ground of objection, that the
money voted in the Act would be received by
the Clerk and paid by him to a Member of
Parliament as a servant or agent of the Crown,
is also valid. He is answerable to the Crown,
and to the Crown alone. Cockburn, C.J. said in
his judgment in the same case, referring to the
jurisdiction to issue a Writ of Mandamus, “I
take it, with reference to that jurisdiction, we
must start with this unquestionable principle,
that when a duty has to be performed (if I may
use that expression) by the Crown, this Courtf
cannot claim cven in appearance to have any
power to command the Crown; the thing is out
of the question. Over the Sovereign we can have
no power, In like manner where the parties are
acting as servants of the Crown, and are amenable
to the Crown, whose servants they are, they are
not amenable to us in the exercise of our pre-
rogative jurisdiction.” It is not necessary to refer
to any further autheritics on this point because
the case cited is still regarded as a leading authority.

Mr. Jayawardene argued that the Clerk is
neither a servant of the Crown nor a public
officer, but a servant of the House. He would,
I think, be a servant of the House in so far as he
has duties to perform in the House; and he is
bound to obey the commands of the House:
but he is undoubtedly, for the purpose of the law
relating to Mandamus, a public officer who has
been appointed under section 28(1) of the Cons-
titution by the Governor-General. He is not a
public officer as that term is used in the Cons-
titution, only because Section 3 of the Constitution
excludes him from the category of public officers.
But if any payments of public money provided by
the Appropriation Act have to be made, he is
the preper person to make them, and he makes
them as a public officer who is answerable to
the Crown,

The legal position that a person cannot ask for
Mandamus against a public officer to pay him
money which the latter holds as a servant of the
Crown was conceded by Mr. Jayawardene. He
admitted that his application must fail if the

, Clerk is a servant of the Crown, and if the
| money which the petitioner claims is money of
the Crown. The petitioner, therefore, must fail on
this ground alone.

But in deference to the arguments which we
heard in respect of the constitutionality of the
impugned Act, I think we should express our
opinion on the question where the petitioner is
| still a Member of Parliament, as he claims to be.
For the decision of this question it is not necessary
to pronounce specifically on all the sections of
the Act, since sections 5, 7 and 10 alone are
concerned in this application. If section 5 is
valid the petitioner is disqualified for 7 years
from November 16, 1965, for sitting or voting
in the House of Representatives. If section 7 is
valid he is deemed to have vacated his seat in
the House of Representatives. And throughout
it must be remembered that section 10 and the
certificate of the Speaker save such provisions of
the Act as involve a conflict with the Constitution.
Now sections 5 and 7 are related to sections 13
|and 24 respectively of the Constitution. Section
13(3) provides:— e

““A person shall be disqualified for being elected or
Appointed a8 3 ciensicaerisenis member of the
House of Representatives or for sitting or voting......
in the House of Representatives ............

(k) if during the preceding seven years he has
been adjudged by a competent Court or by
a Commission appointed with the approval
of the Senate or the House of Represen-
tatives or by a Committee thereof to have
accepted a bribe or gratification offered
with a view to influencing his judgment
as a Senaior or as a Member of Parliament.”

Section 24(1) provides —

“The seat of a Member of Parliament shall,
become vacant

(d) if he becomes subject to any of the dis-
qualifications mentioned in section 13 of
this Order.

It will thus be seen that so far as sections 5
and 7 of the impugned Act are concerned they
seck to add another disqualification to those
provided in section 13 of the Constitution, and to
render the seat of a Member of Parliament vacant
on a ground not already contained in section
24(1) of the Constitution. This is undoubtedly
an attempt to amend the Constitution, and was
recognised as such by those who sought to make it.
That is why the procedure prescribed in section
29(4) was adopted; and to make the matter clear
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there was enacted section 10 which says that the
Act was to be deemed to be as valid and effectual
as though its provisions were an Act for the
amendment of the Constitution,

Mr. Jayawardene’s argument was that as the
Act deprived the electors of the Kalmunai Electoral
District of the services of the Member of Parlia-
ment whom they had chosen, and imposed on him
penalties, such as vacation of the seat and the
disqualification from sitting or voting, no Act
of Parliament can do this even by a constitutional
amendment. He reclied on certain American
decisions, none of which dealt with a similar
situation. In United States vs. Lovett (1945)
328 U.S. 303, it was held that an Act of Congress
which prohibited payment of compensation to

certain named Government employees charged |

rity of the Federal Government. The prohibition
against their making any ex post facto laws was
introduced for greater caution, and very probably
arose from the knowledge, that the Parliament of
Great Britain claimed and c¢xercised a power
to pass such laws, under the denomination of
bills of attainder, or bills of pains and penalties;
the first inflicting capital, and the other laws,
lesser punishment. These acts were legislative
judgments; and an exercise of judicial power......
............ To prevent such and similar acts of
violence and injustice, I believe, the Federal and
State Legislatures were prohibited from passing
any bill of attainder; or any ex post facto law.”
The citation was undoubtedly appropriatc in
| the Privy Council judgment because it was there
held that the Criminal Law (Special Provisions)
Act No. 1 of 1962 and the Criminal Law Act

with subversive activity was void, as it violated | No. 31 of 1962 were enacted with the aim of
the Constitution./There is a certain risk in relying | ensuring that the defendants who were then in

on American decisions which interpret provisions
of that Constitution which have no parallel in
our Constitution. That decision held that the
Act of Congress was a Bill of Attainder which
offended against Article 1, Section 9, Clause 3
of the Constitution, which states “No Bill of
Attainder or ex post facto Law shall be passed.”
There is no provision of that nature in our Cons-
titution, though the same result could be reached
in Ceylon by attacking the Act as a usurpation
of judicial power, as the Privy Council has recently
shown. But always a distinction must be drawn
between Acts passed in the ordinary way and
those passed under section 29(4) of the Cons-
titution.

Another American decision cited was Calder vs.
Bull (1798) 3 U.S. 386. It considered what was
an ex post facto law within the meaning of the
Constitution, and held that the phrase applied
only to penal and criminal statutes. I think that
decision is still good law in America, and its
effect would be to prevent the passing of an
Act which inflicted a punishment for any conduct
which was innocent at the time it was committed,
or increased the punishment previously provided
for any specific offence. The judgment of Chase,
J. was cited by the Privy Council in its recent
judgment in Liyanage vs. The Queen (1966) 70
C.L.W. 1. The particular sentence quoted by
Lord Pearce reads: “These acts were legislative
judgments; and an exericse of judicial power,”
and it occurs in a passage which reads: “All

~the restrictions contained in the Constitution
of the United States on the power of the State
Legislatures, were provided in favour of the autho-

custody should be convicted and should suffer
enhanced punishment. They thus constituted,
in the opinion of the Privy Council an interference
with the functions of the judiciary. They were
aimed at particular known individuals who were
about to be tried, and taking these and other
facts into consideration they were held to infringe
the judicial power. But at the same time Lord
Pearce made it clear that legislation is not
necessarily a usurpation or infringement of the
judicial power because it is ad hominem and
ex post facto. He said: “Each case must be decided
in the light of its own facts and circumstances,
including the true purpose of the legislation, the
situation to which it was directed, and
the extent to which the legislation affects, by way
of direction or restriction, the discretion or
judgment of the judiciary in specific proceedings.”
I cannot, however, see any resemblance between
the substance of the impugned Act and the two
Acts which the Privy Council considered in their
judgment. The former Statute was enacted in
order to give effect to the findings of the
Commission of Inquiry which had finished its
task. The latter Statutes were “a legislative plan
ex post facto to secure the conviction and enhance

the punishment of particular individuals.”

But what is more important, and I think
decisive, is the fact that the impugned Act was
passed as a Constitutional amendment, with
the Speaker’s certificate to protect it, while the
two Acts considered by the Privy Council were
not. The Privy Council has, in this judgment
and ecarlier, held that section 29(1) of our Cons~
titution “was intended to and did have the result
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of giving to the Ceylon Parliament the full legislative
powers of a sovereign independent State.”” The
only limitation on that power is that contained
in section 29(2), as the Privy Council held in
Ranasinghe’s case (1946) 66 N.L.R. 73. It is
beyond doubt that the words used in section
29(1) of the Constitution are the words “habitually
employed to denote the plenitude of sovereign
legislative power.”

Mr. Jayawardene submitted that the impugned
Act was not a law contemplated by section 29(1)
because it was in effect a judgment or an enact-
ment interfering with judicial power, and could
not be saved even by the section 29(4) certificate.
But the answer to that argument is that an amend-
ment of the Constitution made in accordance
with section 29(4) becomes a part of the Cons-
titution, entitled to all the obedience due to any
other part of the Constitution. Tt is not for the
Court to say that a law passed by two-thirds of
the whole number of members of the House
does not conduce to peace, order and good govern-
ment. The Court is not at liberty to declare an
Act void because it is said to offend against the
spirit of the Constitution though that spirit
is not expressed in words, “It is difficult upon
any general principles to limit the omnipotence
of the sovereign legislative power by judicial
interposition, except so far as the express words of
a written Constitution give that authority” — per
Kania C.J. in Gopdlan vs. The State of Madras
(1950) 63 L.W. 638. There is also the opinion
of TIsaacs and Rich JJ. in McCawley vs. The King
(1918) 26 C.L.R. 9 that “there is nothing sacrosanct
or magical in the word ‘Constitution’, the ex-
pression itself not indicating how far, or when,
or by whom, or in what manner the rules comprising
it may be altered. All these things must depend
upon the rules themselves.” Sir Owen Dixon
on his appointment as Chief Justice of the High
Court of Australia in 1952 said this: “The Court’s
sole function is to interpret a Constitutional
description of power or restraint upon power
and say whether a given measure falls on one
side of a line consequently drawn or on the other,
and it has nothing whatever to do with the merits
and demerits of the measure.

conflicts than a strict and complete legalism.”

The judgment of the Privy Council in Liyanage’s
case contains some very significant passages
which are relevant to this part of the argument.
It said, “there exists a separate power in the
judicature which under the Constitution as if
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stands cannot be usurped or infringed by the
exccutive or the legislature” and again, “Their
Lordships cannot read the words of section 29(1)
as entitling Parliament to pass legislation which
usurps the judicial power of the judicature — €.g.
by passing an act of attainder against some person
or instructing a judge to bring in a verdict of
guilty against some onc who is being tried — if
in law such usurpation would otherwise be contrary
to the Constitution. There was speculation during
the argument as to what the position would
be if Parliament sought to procure such a result
by first amending the Constitution by a two-thirds
majority. But such a situation does not arise
here. In so far as any Act passed without resort
to section 29(4) of the Constitution purports to
usurp or infringe the judicial power it is ultra
vires.”” (the italics are mine in cach case). It is
that situation we are faced with now, and T have
given my view after anxious consideration.

Dealing with the matter on a lower plane,
the Solicitor-General also submitted that the
Constitution itself, provided in scction 13(3)
(k) for a Commission appointed with the approval
of the House of Representatives or a Committee
of the House to adjudge one of its Members
guilty of a charge of accepting a bribe or grati-
fication, and thereby passing judgment on him.
In this case the petitioner was a Member of
Parliament whom the House of Representatives,
by passing the impugned Act, judged unfit to
occupy his seat any longer because of the findings
of the Commission of Inquiry. Tn my view, sections
13 and 24 of the Constitution lend support to
the view T have formed that, apart from other
considerations which may affect the other pro-
visions of this Act, the Legislature was well within
its powers when it enacted sections 3 and 7 with
the necessary two-thirds majority. The case of
The Queen vs. Richards (1954) 92 C.L.R. 157,
which the Solicitor-General cited is not exactly

| in point, but it throws light on the nature of the

particular power which has been exercised in
sections 5 and 7 of this Act, had they and scction
10 alone been enacted. Dixon C.J. pointed out in
that case, which was one where the Speaker of
the House of Representatives of the Common-
wealth Parliament issued a warrant of arrest,
that there has been throughout the course of
English history a tendency to regard the powers
of the House of Commons in such matters as not
strictly judicial but as belonging to the legislature.
as something essential or at any rate proper for
its protection. I see no objection to the Ceylon
House of Representatives, by a constitutional
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amendment, extending the power it had under repealing or altering the sections referred to.
section 13(3)(k) to this particular case by cnacting | All this, it is said, arises because the Constitution
sections 5 and 7 of the impugned Act. They do | Act of 1867 is labelled “Constitution.”” If such
not thereby exercise judicial but legislative power, efficacy is given to that Act because of its label,
and restrospectively impose a disqualification on | then it is self-evident that any other Act passed
one who was already a Member of Parliament. |in the ordinary way, provided no specific manner
or form is prescribed for such an Act, will be of
Mr. Jayawardene also attacked the procedure |equal validity if only it be similarly labelled. And
by which Parliament passed the impugned Act. |so, ultimately it comes to a question of prefatory
He submitted that the Constitution should first | label.” Also, “Does English law make any dis-
have been amended by a separate Act which | tinction between_an express r;:peal and an implied
empowered the Legislature to exercise judicial [repeal? We think not. Given the competent
power and to pass Bills of Attainder. A Bill | authority, given t]_u: absence of any stated require-
should then have been placed before Parliament |ments as to special method of repeal, we know
containing provisions similar to sections 2 to |of no doctrine that upholds a repeal if express,
9. He read the words “Bill for the amendment |and condemns it if necessarily implied. The
or repeal of any of the provisions of this Order” | effect is the same. The effect of the repealing Act
appearing in section 29(4) of the Constitution as | must therefore depend on what it does, and not on
contemplating only a Bill which directly amended | the label it affixes to itsclf.” They quoted with
or repealed specific provisions of the Constitution, | approval an opinion of the Attorney-General and
and not a Bill such as the one before us, For the Solicitor-General for England, which said:
this argument he relied mainly on the case of | It must be presumed that a legislative body
Cooper vs. Commissioner of Taxes for Queensland |intends that which is the necessary effect of its
(1904) 4 C.L.R. 1304. The High Court of Australia | enactments; the object, the purpose and the
held in that case that it was not competent for |intention of the cnactment, is the same; it need
the Legislature of Queensland to pass any cnact- | 00t be expressed in any recital or preamble;
ment inconsistent with the provisions of the |and it is not (as we conceive) competent for any
Queensland Constitution Act without first speci- | Court Judicially to ascribe any part of the legal
fically amending the Constitution. In effect | Operation of a Statute to inadvertence,”
the High Court held that the doctrine of amendinent : y ’
be subsequent inconsistent enactment was not| These passages which T have cited are, I think,
available, and that there should have heen an |a sufficient answer to Mr. Jayawardene’s argument
antecedent amendment of the Constitution before | that both the short and the long titles of the Bill
any Act which came into conflict with the Cons- | #nder consideration are wrong, and that the
titution was passed. Bill should have been expressly stated to be a
Bill for the amendment or repeal of the Cons-
In my opinion Cooper’s case ceased to be of ti’tlltif_}l_ﬁ ..‘cl.l’ld not one for the imposition of civic
any authority after the decision of the Privy |disabilitics, There is, however, also the case of
Council in McCawley vs. The King (1920) A.C. | Krause vs. Commissioner for Inland  Revenue
691, which overruled Cooper’s case and held | (1920) A.D. 286 cited by the Solicitor-General
that a provision of any Act which was inconsistent | Where Wessels J.A. said: “If a later Act of Parlia-
with a term of the Constitution of Queensland | ment is inconsistent with the South Africa Act,
Operatedl as a repea]_ by iﬂCOI]SiStCnCy. In the ti]C.COU.ﬂ_ may hold that the later Act lmphedl_y
Privy Council judgment Lord Birkenhead approved | varies such part of the South Africa Act as is
the diSSanting judgn]cnt of Tsaacs and Rich RN iillCOE’ISIST.CI}l with the latC]‘. Act. reneneieais In
in McCawley vs. The King (1918) 26 C.L.R. 9. considering whether the Legislature intended the
It is useful to quote two passages from that dis- | later Act to supersede a provision of the South
senting judgment “implied repeal by antagonistic | Africa Act, the Court must take into consideration
legislation of an affirmative character is said to | the whole of the later Act as well as the South
be legally impossible. No doubt is raised as to |Africa Act, and gather from these Acts, as well
the competency of the Queensland Parliament as from the effect of the legislation, what the
to pass the self-same Act in the same terms, in | Legislature intended when if passed the later
the same way, by the same royal assent. But it is | Act.”
said to be dependent upon the condition that it
previously passed an Act expressly labelled as an | Lord Birkenhead referred in McCawley’s case
amendment of the Constitution Act, and expressly | to the difference between a controlled and un-
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controlled Constitution. In the case of the latter,
he said, the terms “may be modified or repealed
with no other formality than is necessary in the
case of other legislation”, while the former “can
only be altered with some special formality, and
in some cases by a specially convened assembly.”
In this sense, the Ceylon Constitution is controlled
because it prescribes in section 29(4) a requirement
which has to be complied with in the case of
Bills to amend or repeal any of its provisions.
But apart from the certificate of the Speaker
under that sub-section no other condition is to
be found anywhere in it. That is the only procedure
stipulated by the Constitution, and it would be
wrong to require other formalities which are not
prescribed by the Constitution itself. The restraint
or limitation which Mr, Jayawardene has sought
to introduce in the form of a preliminary Act is
a negation of the principle of repeal or amendment
by subsequent inconsistent enactment.

The Privy Council in Bribery Commissioner vs.
Ranasinghe (1964) 66 N.L.R. 73, considered
section 29(4) and pointed out that the Bribery
Act No. 11 of 1954 Cap. 26 had the necessary
certificates of the Speaker, because it was treated
as coming within section 29(4). Section 2 of that
Act reads:—

2, (1) Every provision of this Act which may be

in conflict or inconsistent with anything,
in the Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council
1946, shall for all purposes and in all respects
be as valid and effectual as though that
provision were in an Act for the amendment
-of that Order-in-Council enacted by Parlia-
ment after compliance with the requirement
imposed by the proviso of sub-section (4) of
section 29 of that Order-in-Council.

2

Where the provisions of this Act are in
conflict or are inconsistent with any other
written law, this Act shall prevail.

Although the terms of this section are different
from the terms of section 10 of the impugned
Act, it is obvious that both sections were inserted
in order to comply with section 29(4) of the
Constitution. Nowhere in that Privy Council
judgment was it suggested that the Bribery Act
No. 11 of 1954 was invalid because it was not
preceded by a separate Act to amend or repeal
any of the provisions of the Constitution. The
judgment considered the validity of the Bribery
{Amendments) Act No. 40 of 1958 which came
into conflict with section 55(1) of the Constitution
and held it to be invalid because it did not comply
with the procedural requirements imposed by
the proviso to section 29(4) of the Constitution,

It is not difficult to gather from the judgment that
the amending Act would have been wvalid if it
had the Speaker’s certificate, for Lord Pearce
said, “where an Act involves a conflict with the
Constitution the certificate is a necessary part
of the Act making process.” After explaining the
difference between AMceCawley’s case and Rana-
singhe’s case, Lord Pearce said that alterations
of the Constitutional provisions, whether implied
or express, can only be made by laws which
| comply with the special legislative procedure
llaid down in section 29(4).

i For these reasons I would dismiss this application

| with costs.

G. P. A, Silvg, J.

In agreeing with the judgment of My Lord
the Chief Justice I wish to express my own views
on some of the aspects that arise for consideration
in this application. Even though the decision of
this matter can be confined to one or two points,
I feel that the Court owes a duty to the Counsel
on both sides, who have presented an exhaustive
argument, to deal with all the points raised.
The submissions made and the cases cited have
been dealt with in some detail by My Lord the
Chief Justice.

While counsel for the petitioner assailed the
validity of the entirety of the Imposition of Civic
Disabilities (Special Provisions) Act, the Solicitor
General at the very commencement of his argument,
urged that we should not in any event declare
the whole of the Act in question invalid as
there were certain provisions in  which could
remain valid even if certain other provisions
may be declared invalid, He based his sub-
mission on the doctrine of severability. This
question arcte for decision in Ceylon in the
case of Thambiayah vs. Eulasingham 50 N.L.R.
page 25 where the point at issue was whether a
certain amendment to the Ceylon (Parliamentary
Elections) Order-in-Council 1946 was wulira vires.
It was held in that casc that the fact of repugnancy
to the Constitution ¢f a part of a statute did not
[render the remaining provisions w/tra vires. The
Divisional Bench in that case followed the principie
enunciated in the case of Shyamakant Lal vs.
Rambhajon Singh et. al. reported in Al India
Reporter (1939) Federal Court 74.

These judgments show that a Court would, in
| Cealing with an Act of Parliament, be only justificd
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in pronouncing whether any particular provision
therein is ulira vires or not and it would be travelling
outside the scope of its powers if it pronounces
the entirety of an Act of Parliament invalid unless
every single provision is repugnant to an existing
provisicn of the Constitution, An Act of Parlizment
will remain on the statute book until it is repealed
by another Act of Parliament or until it lapses
by reason of any time limit imposed cn its operation
by the Act itself and the Courts will be competent
only to pronounce on the validity of a particular
provision of an Act which is sought to be impugned
by any party aflected by such provisions. The
Solicitor General has also drawn attention to the
casc of Ashwarden vs. Ternessey Valley Authority
(1935), 297 United States Reports at page 288 in
which a number of useful rules were laid down in
regard to the manner in which Courts should
approach constituticnal questicns. The principles
laid down in this case serve as a guide to decide
this as well as the other aspects arising in the
instant case. The Privy Council has confirmed
this principle of severability in the last paragraph
of the judgment in Liyanage vs. The Queen, 70
C.L.W. 1. Having ecarlier, in dealing with
the offending provisions cf this legislation,
characterised the Acts as a legislative plan ex
post facto to secure the conviction and enhance
the punishment of particular individuals and fer
that reason bad, the Privy Council drew pointed
attention te certain other provisions of the Act
whiclh in their view could survive on this principle
of severability. When therefore they pronounced
the Acts to be invalid they mnst neccssarily be
taken to have pronounced to be invalid such of
the provisions as were repugnant to the Constitu-
tion en the ground that the alterations to the
existing criminal law effected by the Acts cons-
tituted an incursion into the judicial sphere. Cn
the authority of this case and the carlier cases
cited, the Sclicitor General’s contention must be
upheld. There arce to be found in this Act provi-
sions disqualifying the persons mentioned in the
schedule from future appeintments in the Public
Service or from election to any local bedy for
seven years, These provisions are innocuous and
will remain valid even if certain other provisions
which are impugned in this case are declered to
be invalid. The main questions that require
consideration would fall into the following
categories:—

(1) Whether the Parliament has the power tc
pass legislation which would disqualify a
member from sitting and voting and from
continuing as a member by reason of a

certain state of facts, which existed before
such member even contested the election
at which he was duly elected a Member of
Parliament and which was not a dis=-
qualification according to the law as it
then cxisted.

Is such an Act of the Legislature, or does
such Act tantameount to, a usurpation of
the functions of the Judicature and, if so,
does it violate the principle of separation
of powers which hos been recognised by
cur Counstitution and confirmed by the
judgment of the Supreme Ccurt in the
first Trial-at-Bar, Queen vs. Liyanage and
Others reperted in 64 N.L.R. 313 as well
as in the Privy Council judgment in
Liyanage vs. The Queen, 70 CLW. 1.

(2

Does this Act contain a law or laws within
the meaning of section 29(1), of the
Constitution.

(3)

(4) Does the Act in question constitute an
amendment of the Constitution.

In any event is the Clerk to the House of
Representatives the holder of a public
office against whom a writ of mandamus
from the Supreme Court, compelling him
to perform a certain duty, lies.

(%)

In regard to the first point, it is manifest that
the provisions of the Act proper havgz#i  their

'aim the imposition of certain disabilitics on the

six named individuals. Sub section (3)(k) cf
Section 13 of the Ceylon Constitution which
contains the disqualification of members of either
House shows that one of the disqualifications
for being elected or appointed as a Senator or a
Member of the House of Representatives or for
sitting or voting in either House is that, infer
alia, hs has been, during the preceding seven years,
adjudged by a Commission appointed with the
approval of that House or by a committee thereof
to have accepted a bribe or gratification. This is
an indication that even at the time of the drafting
of the Constitution a special jurisdiction as it
were was conferred on each House in the sphers of
bribery, to disqualify a member of such House
without the normal condition precedent, namely,
a conviction by a Court. This provision bhas in
effect given the decision of a Committee of the
House the same sanctity as a decision of a Court
in regard to the acceptance of a bribe by a member.
Tt seems to me that if such a disqualification can
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result from a decision of even a Committee cf
the House, a fortiori an Act of Parliament which
is passed by both Houses would result in such
disqualification. When an Act of Parliament
enacts that certain persons who have been found
by a particular Coemmission of Inquiry to have
been guilty of bribery shall be disqualified for
being elected or appoinled as a Senator or a
Member of the House of Representatives or for
sitting or voting irn the Senate or Hcuse of
Representatives it must be presumed that the two
Houses of Parliament perused the proceedings
of that Commission of Inquiry and were satisfied
of the correctness of the findings when both
Houses proceeded to pass the cnactment; and
thereafter the decision of the Commission, even
though the latter was not appointed with the
approval of the Senate er the House of Represen-
tatives, must be considered to be translated into
a decision of both Heuses of Parliamesnt. Mr.
Jayawardena in this connection made several
complaints in regard to the findings of the
Commission of Inquiry one of which was even bias
on the part of one of the Commissioners. Had
the petitioner in the first instance made a successful
attack on these findings — I do not know in which
appropriate proceeding he could have done so —
the situation would have merited different
considerations. As it is, however, the findings of
the Commission remain intact and the Parliament
has based the present enactment on those findings
as they stand.

The q  tion as to the validity of ex post facto
legislation in this case arises for consideration in
this regard. For, the act or acts of bribery referred
to were clearly committed and the findings thercon
arrived at by the Commission even before the
member concerned sent in his nomination papers
for the election. Mr. Jayawardena advanced
a number of cogent and powerful arguments in
this connection which would have persuaded me
to decide this question in his favour had it not
been for the now settled view in regard to
retrospective legislation. The gravamen cof Mr.
Jayawardena’s attack was that while the words
of Section 13(3)(k) contemplated a situation
where the decision as regards the disqualification
had been taken prior to the election or appointment
as a Senator or Member of the House, the present
enactment ¢ffected a disqualification which was not
a disqualification at the time the petitioner was
duly elected as a Member of Parliament to
represent his constituency and that the Parliament
cannot enact law which would deprive the electors

* of the candidate of their choice who was duly
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¢lected. The principle that the Parliament has
the power to pass retrospective or ex post facto
legislation has now been well established vide
the Order of Court in The Queen vs. Liyanage
and Others, 65 N.L.R. page 73. The question
was also considered in the Order of Court dated
21.6.1965 in the subsequent Trial-at-Bar No. 1
of 1965 in the following passage:— ““These
principles which have been the subject of judicial
interpretation in England would equally apply
to the Parliament of Ceylon. The only restriction
placed upon the legislative power of Parliament
in Ceylon is to be found in Section 29 and, in a
sense, to a limited extent in Section 39 of the
Ceylon (Constitution) Order-in-Council itself and
so long as any Act of Parliament is duly passed
and does not offend against restrictions placed in
the sections referred to above, either cxpressly
or by necessary implication, courts of law are
obliged to treat such Acts of Parliament as having
enacted good law, be it prospective or retrospective.
We may say that this matter was fully argued and
received careful consideration by a Bench of
three Judges of this Court before whom the
Trial-at-Bar, No. 2 of 1962, was held and their
rejection of the argument in regard to the invalidity
of retrospective legislation fortifies the conclusion
which we ourselves have reached. On an
examination of a number of decisions of the
English Courts we observe that this is one of
those subjects in regard to which all the decisions
have been in one direction, despite the almost
universal natural revulsion of Judges towards
the concept of retroactive laws.” T am therefore
of the view that the ex post facto nature of the
legislation does not affect its validity. The fact
that this legislation touches a matter which belongs
to the field of conduct of members over which
the House has full control would tend to reduce
the offensive nature, if any, of such legislation.

This leads me to the second point as to whether
this legislation is, or is tantamount to, a usurpation
of the functions of the judicature. This is an
aspect that has given me considerable anxiety
in this case, namely, the question whether the
acceptance of a bribe being punishable under
the Penal Code, the present legislation which has
as its object the disqualification of a member for
acceptance of a bribe, indirectly has the effect
of a person being convicted by legislation whereas
there should be a conviction by court, and, if so,
whether such legislation being an inroad into the
judicial sphere, is wltra vires to the extent of the
inroad so made, Mr. Jayawardena sought to
argue that there was a clear separation of powers
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Let me now examine the bearing of the instances

as the powers of the Judicature which are|cited by the Privy Council and the legislative

entrenched in the Constitution are concerned,

they are unalterable and that any inroads on the |

Judicature by the Legislature will be invalid to
the extent that they conflict with the entrenched
powers of the Judicature. In his submission this
was the view expressed by the Privy Council in
Liyanage vs. The Queen, referred to above. The
relevant observations of the Privy Council in

this connection are contained in the following |

passage:— “Section 29(1) of the Constitution
says:—‘Subject to the provision of this Order.
Parliament shall have power to make laws for
the peace, order and good government of the
Island.” These words have habitually been
construed in their fullest scope. Section 29(4)
provides that Parliament may amend
Constitution on a two-thirds majority with a
certificate of the Speaker. Their Lordships however
cannot read the words of Section 29(1) as entitling
Parliament to pass legislation which usurps the

judicisl power of the judicature—e.g. by passing |
an act of attainder against some person or |

instructing a Judge to bring in a verdict of guilty
against someone who is being tried — if in law
such usurpation would otherwise be contrary
to the Constitution. There was speculation during
the argument as to what the position would be if
parliament sought to procure such a result by
first amending the Constitution by a two-thirds
majority. But such a situation does not arise here.
In so far as any Act passed without recourse to
Section 29(4) of the Constitution purports to
usurp or infringe the Judicial power it is ultra
vires.” 1 understand this observation to mean
that, although Section 29(1) gives the fullest
scope for the Parliament to pass laws for peace,
order and good government of the lsland, it
cannot be construed as entitling Parliament by a
simple majority to pass legislation which usurps
the judicial power of the Judicature for the reason
that such usurpation would indirectly come in
conflict with the Constitution and the legislation
would therefore be tantamount to an amendment
of the Constitution which has been careful to pre-
serve the independence of the Judiciary in part
VI thereof. The two examples given by the Privy
Council in this connection, namely, the passing
of an act of attainder against some person or
instructing a Judge to bring in a verdict of guilty
against someone who is being tried, make the
view taken by the Privy Council quite clear as,
in both these instances, if there was legislation
intended to achicve the two purposes mentioned,
they would patently be usurpations of judicial
power.

the |
|to an interference with the functions of the

judgment which they had in mind on the facts
of the present case. Their Lordships went on to
say “The pith and substance 6f both Acts was a
legislative plan ex post faeto to secure the con-
viction and enhance the punishment of those
particular individuals. It legalised their imprison-
ment while they were awaiting trial. It made
admissible their statements inadmissibly obtained
during that period. Tt altered the fundamental
law of evidence so as to facilitate their conviction,
and finally it altered ex post facto the punishment
to be imposed on.them. In their Lordships view
that cogent summary fairly describes the effect of
the Acts. As has been indicated already, legislation
ad hominem which is thus directed to the course of
particular proceedings may not always amount

judiciary. But in the present case their Lordship
have no doubt that there was such interference;
that it was not only the likely but the intended
effect of the impugned enactinents; and that it is
fatal to their validity. The true nature and purpose
of these enactments are revealed by their conjoint
impact on the specific proceedings in respect of
which they were designed, and they take their
colour, in particular, from the alterations they
purported to make as to their ultimate objective,
the punishment of those convicted. These
alterations constituted a grave and deliberate
incursion into the judicial sphere.”” With these
observations in the forefront it is not difficuit
to compare and contrast the facts o€ the case
before us in order to arrive at a conclusion whether
there is any resemblance of one case to the other
in any respect. In the instant case what may be
termed a Royal Commission was appointed with
certain terms of reference to probe reported cases
of bribery among certain Members of Parliament,
in terms of existing laws in regard to commissions
of inquiry. The Commission was appointed at
the instance of one Parliament. Those against
whom allegations of bribery were made were
given notice of the allegations and were represented
by counsel at the sittings of the Commission.
The Commission arrived at certain findings which
held the persons named in the schedule to the
Imposition of Civic Disabilities (Special Provisions)
Act to be guilty of bribery, The Parliament which
was responsible for the appointment of the
Commission took no action on the Commission’s
report. A subsequent Parliament which defeated
and replaced the Parliament which appointed
the Commission have thought it fit to pass the
Act referred to, imposing disqualifications and
disabilities against those found guilty by the
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Commission without making any modification
or qualification in the report of the Commission,
Can it be said in these circumstances that the
Parliament which passed the present Act had
any plan at all to sccure the punishment of any
particular individuals who had in some manner
offended the government in power. Far from
there being cven the semblance of a plan, the
whole ground was prepared by onc Parliament
and’ the implementation was by another which,
as T said before, displaced the earlier one. There
was no changing of any law, no placing of any
barrier against thsse individuals in the way of
their defences, no violaticn of any principle of
natural justice in securing the findings against
these individuals; in short not one factor which

shows that the procedurc adopted in this case at |

the instance of one Parliament was anything
out of the ordinary either in regard tc the appoint-
ment of the Commission or the mode of inquiry
adopted by the Commission in reaching their
decision touching the six persons concerned, nor
did the legislation by the other Parliament which
enacted the impugned Act have any plan te
disqualify the six persons of its choice as the
choice had already been made by a Commission
appointed during the period cof its predecessor.
A vital distinction between the legislation for the
trial of the Coup suspects and this enactment
regarding the restriction of the Act to named
individuals is that, while in the Coup case the
named persons were awaiting trial, with the
presumption of innocence operating in their
favour, the six persons named in this schedule
had already been found guilty of allegations cof
bribery long before the Act was passed. Briefly
stated, in the one case the enactment intended
to regulate the trial preceded the finding against
the named individuals; in the other the finding
preceded the enactment. In these circumstances
1 fail to see how there has been any incursion into
the judicial sphere by the legislature in this case
when it merely disqualified a Member of Parliament
for findings of bribery which had already been
finalised several years before the legislation was
passed. It seems to me that the real question which
arises for consideration is the objection to the
ex post facto character of the legislation. I have
dealt with this aspect already and in the state
of the existing law there can be only onc view in
this regard.

As regards counsel’s contention that these
disabilities were in the nature of penalties imposed
on these six persons and that the legislature in
‘imposing such penalties had impinged on the

| the ordinary law of the land and

province of the judiciary, there is a further
important distinction between legislation intended
to punish any particular individuals who would
render themselves liable to punishment under
legislation
intended to impose certain disqualifications or
disabilities on present or prospective members
of the House guwa members. While in regard to
the first category a Court would in certain circums-
tances hold the legislation to be invalid as being
an encroachment on the province of the judiciary
a Court will be slow to invalidate any law passed
by the Parliament imposing certain disabilitics
or disqualifications on Members of Parliament
in view of the power the Parliament has to control
its own proceedings and impose its own discipline.
Further, the offence of bribery mentioned in
Section 13(3)(k) of the Order-in-Council is nct
the same as that contemplated in the Penal Code.
There are two chapters of the Penal Code dealing
with offences of bribery, namely, Chapter IX
which relates to the acceptance of gratifications
by public servants as a motive or reward for
doing or for forbearing to do official acts and
Chapter XI which rclates to the acceptance of a
gratification to screen an offender from legal
punishment. The offence contemplated in the
Order-in-Council, however, is the acceptance of
a bribe by a member of cither House with a view
to influencing his judgment in that capacity. It
seems to me therefore that bribery among Senators
and Members of Parliament is an area where each
House by virtue of the Constitution itself exercises
a sort of special jurisdiction and a finding by a
Commission appointed with the approval of the
Senate or the House of Representatives or by a
Committee thereof will have the same force as
an adjudication by a competent Court. What
the present Act seeks to achieve is to extend this
disqualification to certain persons found guilty
of this same offence by a Commission of Inquiry
appointed under the Commissions of Inquiry
Act. Any legislation therefore in this arca will
carry with it a further argument in support cf
validity.

Implicit in the words of the Privy Council is
the condition precedent that the provisions of
the Constitution with regard to the Judicature
are present in their existing form. This is far from
saying that the powers of the Judicature which
are set down in- Part VI are unalterable. The
last sentence of the passage quoted above, namely,
“In so far as any Act passed without recourse fo
Section 29(4) of the Constitution purports to
usurp or infringe the judicial power it is wltra
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vires.”, to my mind, can also be expressed
differently, namely, that where an Act is passed
after due recourse to Secticn 29(4) of the Cons-
titution, even though that Act usurps or infringes
the judicial power, it is intra vires. If one were
to use almost the identical phraseology of the
Privy Council, it would mean that, even though
any Act passed with recourse tc Section 29(4)
of the Constitution purports to usurp or infringe
the judicial power, it is not wltra vires. In my
judgment there is no justification to draw from
this passage the inference which is contended
for by the learned Counsel for the petitioner

any law within the meaning of Section 29(1).
His submission was that, according to sub section
29(4), Parliament could pass any legislation to
amend or repeal the Constitution only in the
exercise of its powers under Section 29(1); that
Section 29(1) conferred on the Parliament the
power to make laws fer the peace, order and good
government and as this Act does not contain any
law or laws which are contemplated in Section
29 (1), Parliament exceeded its powers in passing
this Act. His argument on this aspect too again
revolved round the contention that a legislative

namely, the unalterability of the separation of

judicial power in the Constitution. Such an |
alteration can, T think, be validly achieved if |

Parliament passes the necessary legislation with
a two-third majority and the certificate of the
Speaker, in terms of Section 29(4) although,
as the Constitution stands at present, there is
such a separation of power which cannot be
infringed by an ordinary Act of Parliament for
the good reason that such an infringement will
be witra vires, the Constitution which alone
conferred on Parliament that very power to
legislate.

There is a further argument that militates against
Mr. Jayawardena’s contention. In giving expression
to the plenitude of powers of our Legislature,
Section 29 proceeded in sub sections 2 and 3
to enumerate certain limitations in respect of
such powers. The acceptance of Mr. Jayawardena’s
contention would necessarily lead to the implication
that apart from the limitation imposed by sub-

sections 2 and 3 of Section 29 there is a further |

limitation which the Constitution has chosen
silently to express, namely, that no law
shall remove or reduce any of the powers of the
Judicature which have been provided for in the
Constitution and that any law made in contraven- |
tion of this limitation shall to the extent of such |

contravention be void. It is a cardinal rule of |

interpretation that when certain exceptions or
limitations are laid down touching any particular
provision, no further exceptions or limitations
should be read into the provisions — expressio
unius exclusio alterius. This principle too would
therefore dissuade a Court from accepting the
argument that apart from the express limitation
contained in Section 29(2) there is a further
restriction on Parliament to pass laws which
conflict with the entrenched principle of separation
of judicial power.

On the next point for consideration Mr.
Jayawardena argued that this Act did not contain

{

judgment is not law as decided by the Privy
Council in the judgment referred to. This Act
which, according to his contention, purported
ex post facto to secure a finding of guilty of six
named individuals for bribery, being therefore a
legislative judgment of the type that was referred
to in the Privy Council decision, is not legislation
which the Parliament could properly pass. The
answer of the Solicitor General to this contention
was that the limitation on legislation, apart from
those mentioned in Section 29(2), resulted not
from the word law in Section 29 (1) but from
Part VI of the Constitution which secured the
independence of the Judiciary. As the Constitution
stood, great care has been taken to secure the
independence of the Supreme Court and of all
the members of the Judicial Service by vesting
the power of appointment of the latter in the
' Judicial Service Commission, There was therefore

| entrenched in the Constitution a separation of

legislative and executive power on the one hand
from the judicial power of the State on the other
| so that, if there was any ordinary legislation which,
| although it conformed to the normal processes
for the passage of legislation, constituted in pith
and substance an incursion into the judicial sphere,
in that the legislation brought about a certain
situation in which the Judiciary, instead of inde-
pendently exercising its judgment, was constrained
or compelled to exercise it in a particular way,
such legislation would, by reason of its repugnance
to the aforesaid entrenched powers of the Cons-
titution, be wltra vires. These objectionable
elements, in the Solicitor General’s submission,
are not present in this Act. On a careful analysis
of the Privy Council decision 1 am inclined to
favour this view. I am also inclined to accept
the submission of the learned Solicitor General
(that Section 29(1) has always been interpreted
to give Parliament the widest possible legislative
- powers known to the British Constitution subject
| to the limitations set out in Section 29(2), this
 submission too being supported by the Privy
Council judgment when it stated “These words
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have habitually been construed in their fullest
scope.” As 1 have already expressed the view
that this enactment is not a legislative judgment
and does not make any inroad inte the judicial
sphere I do not find it possible to accept Mr.
Jayawardena’s argument that this Act dces not
constitute a law which the Parliament is empowered
under Section 29(4) to make. It must be remem-
bered that the Privy Council also held in the very
judgment relied on by Mr. Jayawardena that
every enactment which can be described as ad
hominem: and ex post facto does not inevitably
usurp or infringe the judicial power. When one
considers all the qualifications contained in the
conclusions arrived at by the Privy Council in
this case it seems to me that their Lordships did
not base this decision on one particular fact or
circumstance. Like the necessity for the presence
of all the links in a chain of circumstances the
totality of which goes to prove a case of circums-
tantial evidence it is the presence of a number
of circumstances at the same time in the Coup
case, namely, the facts disclosed in the White
Paper, the alteration of existing laws, the limitation
of the law to specific named individuals and
the wresting from the Judges their proper judicial
discretion regarding the punishment, that made
the Privy Council characterise the Acts as legislative
judgments. Just as a case of circumstantial evidence
would fail owing to the absence of a necessary
link in the chain of circumstances, the absence of
any one of these essential circumstances
may bhave led the Privy Council to take a
different view and to held the impunged provisions
to be intra vires the Constitution. 1t will therefore
be unsafe cn the authority of the Privy Council
decision to rush to a conclusion that Parliament
has enacted a legislative judgment by reason of
the mere presence of one or more of the features
that are present in the Criminal Law (Special
Provisions) Act in such an enactment,

1 shall now consider the next point of attack
made by the counsel for the petitioner, namely,
that this enactment does not constitute an amend-
ment of the Constitution. In his submission the
original Bill was on the face of it not an amendment
of the Constitution but a Bill to impose civic
disabilities etc., and this description did not comply
with the provisions of Section 29(4) which requires
such a Bill to bear on the face of it that it is an
amendment-of the Constitution. He also brought
to our notice in his support one or two previous
amending Acts which were described as such.
He also submitted that the danger of a Bill, not

| bearing on its face such a description was that
neither the members of the House nor the public
will have notice of such an amendment which
must be considered to be of greater importance
than an ordinary cnactment. Finally he submitted
that Section 10 of this Act clearly stated that it
was not an amendment but that any provisions
therein which were inconsistent with the Consti-
tution shall be deemed to be an amendment.
In my view there can be cither a direct amendment
of a particular provision in the Constitution or
one which, though not a direct amendment, may
have the effect of an amendment of one or more
provisions. In the latter case, it may not always
be practicable to describe a Bill as an Amendment
of a particular provision. Section 10 on which
counsel relies is itself in my opinion, the warning
i for members of the House and the public that
 there are, or at least may be, some provisions
, which constitute amendments of the constitution.
| I do not think that when the proviso to Section
| 29(4) proceeded to set out the manner of presen-
| tation of a constitutional amendment it also
(intended to prescribe a particular form to be
t present on the face of it. If so, I should have
expected such a form to be attached to the proviso
or to an appendix or the proviso to use some
phraseology indicating such an imperative require-
ment, particularly when another imperative re-
| quirement is categorically stated, namely, the
{ certificate under the hand of the Speaker that
' the number of votes cast in favour thereof in the
House of Representatives amounted to not less
! than two-thirds of the whole number of members
| of the House. This provision is in fact tantamount
to the requirements for a Bill which amends or
repeals the Constitution, namely, a vote of two-
thirds of the whole number of members of the
 House and a certificate of the Speaker to that
effect. If thesc requirements are satisfied, as they
havz been in this case, I think that the Parliament,
in terms of Section 29(4), can amend or repeal
any provision of the Constitution subject to
any objection which may be raised in view of
Section 29(2). As any such objection does not
arise for decision in this case, there is no justifica-
tion to declare any of the provisions of the
impugned Act to be invalid,

In regard to the last point on which the counsel

| on either side joined issue, namely, whether the
Clerk of the House of Representatives is a holder

of a public office against whom a writ of mandamus.
from the Supreme Court lies, while 1 am not
prepared, on the material placed before us,
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to say that a writ will not lic against him in | cretionary one. In any event, this question does
any circumstances, in view of the fact that he is | not arise unless and until the petitioner successfully
constrained both by this Act of Parliament and | establishes the impugned provisions of the Act
by the orders of the Speaker io follow the course | to be invalid.

he has adopted in this case, I de not think that L

this Court should issue a writ, which is a dis- Application refused.

-

Present: Sapsoni, C.J. and Sirimane, J.

M. R. LEELAWATHIE vs. THE MINISTER OF DEFENCE AND EXTERNAL AFFAIRS*

In the matter of an application for a Mandate in the nature of Writ of Certiorari and Mandamus
under Section 42 of the Courts Ordinance Vol, 1 (Cap. 6).

(S.C. Application No. 148)’64)

Argued on: December 6, 1965
Judgment delivered on: December 10, 1965.

Citizenship Act, No. 18 of 1948, section 12, 12(4) and 12(6)—Indian citizen marrying Ceylon citizen
by descent—Application for registration as citizen of Ceylon—Refusal—Unsuceessful appeal to Minister—
Application for Writs of Certiorari and Mandamus — Right to question Minister’s decision — Applicability
of Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

The petitioner, an Indian citizen came to Ceylon in November, 1958 and in January, 1959 married a citizen of Ceylon
by descent. In 1960 she applied for registration as a citizen of Ceylon in terms of Section 12 of the Citizenship Act (Cap. 349).

This application having been disallowed by the Ministry of Defence and External Affairs, her husband appealed
to the Minister concerned and on 16/4/64 he was informed that the decision was taken after careful consideration for giving
effect to Government policy and that it could not be altered. Thereupon this application for Certiorari and Mandamu$
was filed.

It was contended in support of the 'application,
(@) that the failure fo state the reasons for the Minister’s said refusal was contrary to natural justice.

(b) that the reason stated viz. that it was giving effect to Government policy was bad as that concept was
not the same as public interest.

(c) that the provisions of Section 12(6) of the Citizenship Act were unconstitutional.
(d) that the said refusal was in breach of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

Held: (1) That in view of sub-sections 4 and 6 of Section 12 of the Citizenship Act it was not necessary for the
Minister to give reasons for refusing the said application.

(2) That there does not appear to be any conflict between the concepts of Government policy and public
interest. The policy of the Government would presumably always be in accordance with the public
interest.

(3) That the Parliament has the power to enact a Statute which contains a provision such as Section 12(6).

{4) That while the Universal Declaration of Human Rights is an instrument of the highest moral authority,
it has no binding force as it is not a legal instrument forming part of the Law of Ceylon,

C. Thiagalingam, Q.C., with E. A. G. de Silva and N. R. M. Daluwatte, for the petitioner.

J. G. T. Weeraratne, Senior Crown Counsel, with F, C. Perera, Crown Counsel for the respon-
dent.

~ * For Sinhala translation, see Sinhala section, Vol. 12, part 6, p. 26
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Sansoni, C.J.

The petitioner who was an Indian citizen
came to Ceylon in November 1958, and in January
1959 she married a citizen of Ceylon by descent.

In 1960 she applied for registration as a citizen |

of Ceylon in terms of section 12 of the

Citizenship Act, Chap. 349.

There was an exchange of correspondence
between her and the Ministry of Defence and
External Affairs until 4th March 1964, when

she was informed by a letter written on behalf |

of the Permanent Secretary to the Ministry that
her application for citizenship had been disallowed.
Her husband appealed against the order to the
Minister of Defence & External Affairs through
a Member of Parliament. On 16th April 1964
the Member of Parliament was informed, and
so was the husband, that the decision to reject
the petitioner's application was taken after
very careful investigation as a decision taken
for giving effect to Government policy, and
that it cannot be altered.

The present application for Certiorari and
Mandamus was filed in May 1964. Section 12(4)
of the Act provides that “the Minister may refuse
an application if he is satisfied that it is not in
the public interest to grant the application.”
Section 12(6) reads:—

“The Minister’s refusal under subsection (4) of
this section to allow the application of any person
for registration as a citizen of Ceylon shall be final
and shall not be contested in any court.”

For the petitioner it was submitted that the
reasons for the Minister’s refusal should have
been stated, and that the failure to do so was
contrary to natural justice. The case of Merricks
v. Nott-Bower (1964) 1 A.E.R. 717 was cited.
The Court of Appeal there dealt with a plea of
privilege put forward by a Government Depart-
ment which was asked to produce certain

documents. Lord Denning, M.R. disapproved |
of the practice, which seemed to have grown |

up, of exhibiting a certificate in common form
to the effect that a document ought not to be
produced because it was necessary in the public
interest for the proper functioning of the public
service to withhold it from production. T do
not think this judgment is relevant to the case
we are considering, which concerns a statute
that states under what circumstances the Minister
may refuse an application for registration as a
citizen of Ceylon,

It is interesting to find that Lord Denping,
in an earlier part of the same judgment, said:—

“It is a well-known principle of our law that
any powers conferred by statute or regulation
on an executive or administrative authority must
be exercised in good faith for the purpose for
which they are granted. They must not be misused
or abused by being applied to an ulterior purpose.”

Although the petitioner does allege, as one of
the grounds of her application, that the Minister
acted wrongfully, mala fide and without jurisdiction
no grounds whatsoever are set out in justification
| of these allegations. No attempt has been made
[to substantiate them. In short, there is nothing
before us to show that there was not a real
| and proper exercise of discretion in good faith
| by the Minister.

We do not think that it was necessary for the
Minister to give her reasons for refusing the
application. Subsections (4) and (6) of section
12 indicate clearly that the policy of the Act is
to make the Minister the sole and final judge
of the merits of an application, and to shut out
any enquiry by a Court into the correctness
of his decision. This is not surprising when one
considers that it is the Prime Minister who is
given the responsibility and the power to make
an order on the application. Parliament may
well have thought that an important matter
of this nature could well be entrusted to him to
decide, and that it was undesirable that the
correctness of his decision should be examined
in a court of law. In this connection, we were
referred by Senior Crown Counsel to a passage
in Judicial Review of Administrative Action
by Mr. S. A. de Smith p. 241 which reads:—

“The principle, many times affirmed in older
cases, that even wide discretionary powers must
be exercised ‘judicially’, is seldom applied where
the recipient of the power is a Minister of the
Crown. The courts often invoke the principle of
ministerial responsibility to Parliament in support
of their refusal to review the manner in which a
discretion has been exercised.”

Another argument put forward was that in
the letter written to the Member of Parliament
on behalf of the Permanent Secretary it was
stated that the decision was to give effect to
Government policy, and that as this is not the
same concept as public interest the refusal was
bad in that it was made on wrong grounds. I
do not see any conflict between the two concepts.
The policy of the Government would presumably
| always be in accordance with the public interest;
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the welfare of the State would be presumed. to
be the main object of Government policy. That
policy would normally be decided by, or with
the approval of, the Minister of Defence and

External Affairs, and when she came to a make |

a decision as to what was in the public interest
she would not be uninfluenced
of the Government. Such policy would be a
proper and relevant factor to be taken into
account,

Mr. Thiagalingam also argued that the pro-
visions of section 12(6) were unconstitutional
and that it took away the right of a citizen to
go to Court. We do not agree with this argument,
since it appears to us that Parliament has the
power to enact a statute which contains such a
provision as section 12(6). Phrases of this sort
are quite common now, and they have to be
interpreted according to the context in which
they are found. A suggestion was made on behalf
of the petitioner that the application was refused
because she was an Indian. Such a suggestion
proves nothing and it has not been explained
on what basis it was made. One can well under-

by the policy

| stand the anxiety of the petitioner to know the
reasons for the refusal of her application, if
only to enable her to attack them as unjustified
| and unreasonable. But I do not think that the
petitioner has any right to kdfow the reasons.

Lastly, it was submitted that the refusal was
in breach of the Universal Declaration of Human
Rights. Even if the principles contained in the
instrument have any relevance, it is sufficient to
say that while it is of the highest moral authority,
it has no binding force as it is not a legal instru-
ment and forms no part of the law of this country.
The predicament in which the petitioner and her
husband find themselves is indeed a sad one,
but they married at their risk and it is no argument
| to say that if the application fails they may
! have to live apart. In the result, the application
of the petitioner must be refused with costs,

I would dismiss the application with costs.

Sirimane, J.
I agree.

Application refused.

Present: S

irimane, J.

TAYASUNDERA (P.S 2790) vs. S. K. SINNIAH

S.C. 304/1964—M.C. Hatton No. 9866

Argued and decided on: 17th June, 1964.

Motor Traffic Act (Cap. 203), section 149 —

Held: That section 149 of the Motor Traffic Act applies where an accident
to take such action as may be necessary to avoid such an

in trying to avoid pedestrians.

When it applies.

is imminent and when a person fails
accident ,and not where a collision takes place

M. M. Kumarakulasingham with F. Kodagoda, for the accused-appellant.
W. K. Premaratne, Crown Counsel, for the Attorney General.

SIRIMANE, J.

The accused-appellant had been found guilty
of failing to take such action as may be necessary
to avoid an accident — in contravention of Section
149(1) of the Motor Traffic Act, (Chapter 203).
The evidence of the accused-appellant, which the
learned Magistrate accepted in preference to the
evidence led by the prosecution in regard to the
impact, was that he (appellant) was avoiding two
pedestrians who were on the tarred portion of
the road at the time when he saw the virtual
complainant’s car about 120 feet away from him.
The accused-appellant stated that the virtual
complainant’s car then came up and collided

END OF VOLUME LXX

against his car. Section 149 of the Motor Traffic
Act applies where an accident is imminent and
when a person fails to take such action as may
be necessary to avoid such an accident. I do not
think that on the facts in this case as accepted by
the learned Magistrate any blame can be attached
to the accused. The learned Magistrate appears
to have attached undue weight to a sketch produced
in the case which is misleading when one considers
the evidence led at the trial.

I set aside the conviction and acquit the accused

Set aside.
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